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Chairman’s Statement

EFEHRS

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Neway Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | would like to present to
shareholders the result of the Company and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Year”).

Various business segments of the Group experienced many challenges
during the Year. For our Manufacturing and Sales Business, the export
markets remained tough while the import of the United States (the
“US") declined by double-digits during the Year. Meanwhile, the
economy of the People Republic of China (the “PRC") also failed
to meet expectations and has been sluggish. Our customers have
adopted a more prudent procurement strategy after the Covid-19
pandemic. At the same time, the global supply chain faced multiple
challenges in the Year due to the Ukraine war and geopolitical
issues, which caused an increase in logistic costs and changed the
procurement strategy of our customers. The rapid increase in US
interest rate has affected the global market significantly and increased
the cost of capital of the Group.

For our Property Development Business, the industrial real estate
market has also been deeply affected in the Year alongside the
general real estate market. As the PRC's manufacturing industry
stabilizes, demand for our industrial park is slowly picking up. The
lowered PRC interest rate also has a positive impact on the overall
finance costs of this business.

For our Music and Entertainment Business, as the global economy,
including Hong Kong, has entered a new post-Covid-19 pandemic
phase, the entertainment industry slowly picked up during the Year.
However, the sluggish economy continued to impact the overall show
market in the world.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFEHRS

Looking ahead, in response to the requests from our customers and
all the challenges faced by the Group, the Group has adopted a series
of restructuring measures since the Year to improve our efficiency
and resilience against the fast changing market. These measures will
continue to be intensified in the Year 2024. We will also focus on the
sustainability of the Company through diversification and dedication
to our core businesses. Furthermore, the Group will continue to
extend our supply chain to better serve the changing demands of
our customers and to strengthen our network to ensure a stable and
sustainable supply to our customers.

To tackle the numerous challenges facing the global economy, such
as geopolitics issues, conflict among countries and the increase in
interest rate, the Group will continue to proceed with a conservative
approach and continue to concentrate on the perfection of our
technical and management skills.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my sincerest gratitude to all shareholders, investors,
business partners and all employees for their continuous support
and dedication to the Group throughout the Year amidst the
unprecedented challenges and difficulties we encountered. We
will continue to strive for excellence in everything we do, while
maintaining our focus on developing value to our customers and
shareholders.

SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie
Chairman

Hong Kong
22 March 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEEmk o

OVERVIEW

The recovery of the global economy and the purchasing power
was much slower than expected this Year. Some of our customers,
especially those of the Manufacturing and Sales Business segment,
adopted a more conservative approach this Year, such as reducing
inventory level and slowing down new product development progress,
etc. The number of purchase orders of printing products received
from both overseas and domestic customers decreased. Meanwhile,
the Group has devoted more sales and marketing resources into the
Property Development Business since Year 2022 and the first batch
of industrial buildings of the Zhongxing Industrial Park (as defined
below) were delivered to the purchasers during the Year, generating a
revenue of approximately HK$160 million. Furthermore, the revenue
of other business segments such as the Lending Business and the
Trading Business has also increased as more efforts were placed to
expand the customer base during the Year.

The business and financial review of each business segment is detailed
below.

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Total Revenue and Gross Profit Margin

During the Year, total revenue of the Group was approximately
HK$548.7 million (Year 2022: approximately HK$449.4 million)
and the gross profit margin was approximately 16.1% (Year 2022:
21.0%). The contribution of each business segment to the total
revenue of the Group is as follows:

Approximate %
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Approximate %

to total to total
2023 revenue 2022 revenue
A 25 B 49 EEEl Gt
—®-= BAL _EBCCF BAt

HK$ HK$

A BT
Lending Business BEER 5,672,580 1.0% 3,784,531 0.8%
Manufacturing and Sales Business Ui R SHE %55 346,642,843 63.2% 411,781,643 91.6%
Music and Entertainment Business =24 R R 44 3 3¢ 3,985,706 0.7% 3,806,067 0.9%
Property Development Business MERRER 160,429,227 29.3% = =
Property Investment Business MEREER 2,783,890 0.5% 2,194,059 0.5%
Trading Business EVES 29,174,721 5.3% 27,837,042 6.2%
Total revenue Bz 548,688,967 100% 449,403,342 100%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERE R

Lending Business

The Lending Business comprised the financial leasing business in
Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and the money
lending business in Hong Kong.

For the financial leasing business in Shanghai, no transaction was
conducted during the Year, and the Group is still identifying deals with
promising potential.

The money lending business in Hong Kong is carried out by Grand
Prospects Finance International Limited GEZMFEEERRAE)
(“Grand Prospects”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability and a licensed money
lender under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws
of Hong Kong). Customers of this segment include both individuals
and private companies and most of the loans were either secured by
charge over properties located in Hong Kong, pledges of shares or
personal guarantees.

All loan applications from potential customers are reviewed
and approved by the responsible officer in accordance with
Grand Prospects’ internal loan approval guidelines (the “Internal
Guidelines”). In order to assess whether or not a loan application
should be approved, the responsible officer will (i) collect and
verify the required information and supporting documents from
the potential customers; and (i) assess the value and quality of the
collaterals that the potential customers intend to provide, if any. Legal
search on the borrowers and the collaterals will also be conducted if
necessary.

If the responsible officer intends to grant a loan upon the completion
of the entire credit approval process, he/she will determine the
terms of the loan in accordance with the Internal Guidelines and
with reference to various factors including but not limited to the
background and creditworthiness of the customer, the nature and
value of the collateral provided, if any, the prevailing market interest
rate and other relevant factors as the responsible officer may deem
appropriate. Thereafter, loan documents will be prepared accordingly
and customers are required to provide signed and post-dated bank
cheques in accordance with the repayment schedules set out in the
loan documents.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENmR

In the event that the highest applicable percentage ratio (as defined
under the Rules (the "Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”)) in respect of a grant of loan exceeds 5%, the loan
application will be submitted to the Board and a meeting of the Board
will be convened to consider and, if thought fit, approve the same.

Periodic assessments will be conducted on the recoverability of the
loans granted based on the creditworthiness of the customers, taking
into account their history of default, if any, ability to make timely
payment of interest during the tenure of the loans and the loan-to-
collateral ratios, to ensure if any follow-up action should be taken to
avoid potential exposure to credit risks. Generally, a reminder letter
will be issued to the customer in the event of default. Depending on
the circumstances, if a loan is overdue for more than two months,
Grand Prospects may consider taking legal actions.

As at the end of the Year, the number of customers of the Money
Lending Business was 15.

The total amount of new loans granted during the Year was
approximately HK$6.0 million and the average loan interest rate of
the Group's loan portfolio was approximately 18%. During the Year,
the interest income from loans increased by approximately 49.9%
to approximately HK$5.7 million (Year 2022: approximately HK$3.8
million) and the segment gain were approximately HK$3.1 million
(Year 2022: approximately HK$864,000). The increase in revenue
and the improvement in segment results were mainly due to (i) the
increase in loan portfolio in the second half of Year 2022; and (ii)
the reversal of impairment loss on loan receivables of approximately
HK$389,000 (Year 2022: impairment loss of approximately
HK$930,000).

The Group has a concentration of credit risk as 53% (Year 2022:
61%) of the total loans receivable was due from three (Year
2022: four) independent third parties, totalling approximately
HK$25,402,000 (Year 2022: HK$30,843,000). The gross carrying
amount of loans receivable from the five largest borrowers was
approximately HK$32.8 million (Year 2022: HK$34.8 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEEmRo

As at the end of the Year, the loans receivables had contractual
maturity within one to ten years (Year 2022: within one to six years),
details of which are as follows:

REFER BWERNSKOENAS
—ETERNCEFE —ERE
W) > BRASFIBINT

HK$

BT

Within one year R—%FR 29,810,691
Within a period of more than one year iR — B R HBiE M B HARE A

but not more than two years 15,566,472
Within a period of more than two years HEMFEER BB AFNREBER

but not more than five years 1,207,858

Within a period of more than five years BEAFNEBA 1,159,610

47,744,631

The estimated loss rates of loans receivable were based on historical
credit loss experience of the customers as well as the fair value of
the collaterals they pledged in relation to the loans receivable. For
those loans receivable secured by charge over properties located
in Hong Kong with an aggregate amount of HK$29,171,479 (Year
2022: HK$31,601,901), the loss given default was considered low
by the Directors, given that the fair value of the collaterals are higher
than the carrying amounts of the respective loans receivable. The
Group has not recognised any loss allowance for the loans receivable
as a result of these collaterals. For the remaining loans receivable
with an aggregate gross carrying amount of HK$19,114,080 (Year
2022: HK$18,682,096), the Group has recognised net reversal of
impairment allowance of approximately HK$389,000 on these loans
receivable during the Year.

Manufacturing and Sales Business

This segment represented the manufacturing and sales of printing
products, such as packaging boxes, labels, paper products and paper
shopping bags, with a worldwide customer base.

The segment revenue decreased significantly by approximately
15.8% to approximately HK$346.6 million for the Year (Year 2022:
approximately HK$411.8 million), which was mainly attributable to
the decrease in sales orders of all types of printing products from both
overseas and domestic clients. The decrease in sales orders was mainly
due to the fact that (i) the inventory level of some of our customers
remained high and more time were needed for them to consume the
excessive inventories; and (ii) the sales of some of our customers had
decreased due to the slower-than-expected recovery of the global
economy, resulting in a lower consumption rate in both overseas and
domestic markets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEEmk o

Segment loss of approximately HK$50.8 million was recorded for the
Year (Year 2022: approximately HK$6.6 million), which was mainly
attributable to the following factors:

(i) the gross profit margin decreased by approximately 7.9%
as compared with that of Year 2022. The decrease in gross
profit margin was mainly due to (i) the decrease in revenue of
15.8% as compared with that of Year 2022; (ii) the lowered
selling price of some products in order to secure more
purchase orders from customers, which in turn pushed up
the average material consumption rate of this segment; and
(iii) the increase in total manufacturing staff costs and other
related expenses (including the one-off staff redundancy costs
of approximately HK$4.9 million) of approximately 1.5% as
compared with that of Year 2022;

(ii) the decrease in exchange gain of approximately HK$11.7
million, mainly due to the slow down of depreciation of
Renminbi (“RMB") during the Year;

(i) the net expected credit loss recognized during the Year of
approximately HK$727,000 (Year 2022: reversal of expected
credit loss of approximately HK$355,000);

(iv)  the loss on disposal of fixed assets of approximately
HK$397,000 (Year 2022: gain on disposal of fixed assets of
approximately HK$1.6 million); and

(v) the decrease in government subsidies of approximately HK$6.2
million as compared with that of Year 2022.

Music and Entertainment Business

Revenue from this segment mainly consisted of income from concerts
and shows, artist management fee income, album distribution
income, promotion income and musical work licensing income.

The revenue of the segment increased by approximately 4.7% to
approximately HK$4.0 million (Year 2022: approximately HK$3.8
million) and the segment loss for the Year was approximately HK$3.4
million (Year 2022: approximately HK$3.4 million). The increase in
revenue was mainly attributable to the increase in the musical work
licensing income. Over 60% of the segment revenue was derived
from the musical work licensing income from online music platforms.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEEmRo

Property Development Business

The Group had two property development projects as at 31 December
2023 (31 December 2022: two). During the Year, one project involved
EEmRERMERZEAERAT (unofficial English name: Qingyuan
Zhongqing Property Development Company Limited) (“Zhongging”), a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and the other involved
RENR CBi®) BPFRAE (unofficial English name: Zhongda Printing
(Qingyuan) Company Limited) (“Zhongda Qingyuan”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company.

Zhongqing

Zhongqging held the land use right of two commercial land parcels
in Qingyuan, the PRC ("Qingyuan Land”). On 18 June 2014, &3l
MPRERARKLEERARAT (unofficial English name: Shenzhen
Zhongxing Guosheng Investment Development Company Limited)
("Zhongxing Guosheng”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
initiated civil proceedings against Zhongqging before the People’s Court
of Baoan District, Shenzhen (the “Court”) for, among other matters,
the repayment of the shareholder’s loan contributed by Zhongxing
Guosheng in an amount of RMB23,479,330 (the “Litigation”). On 19
June 2014, pursuant to the application made by Zhongxing Guosheng
for freezing and preserving the assets of Zhongging with a total value
of RMB23,400,000, an order was granted by the Court to freeze and
preserve the Qingyuan Land from 24 June 2014 to 23 June 2016
(the “Freeze Order”), aiming to ensure that Zhongging would have
sufficient assets for the repayment of the shareholder’s loan to the
Group.

Two hearing sessions of the Litigation were held on 18 August 2014
and 25 September 2014, respectively. On 15 October 2014, the
Group received a civil mediation document dated 30 September
2014 (the "Document”) from the Court, acknowledging that: (i) the
Group and Zhongqing confirmed that Zhongging was indebted to
Zhongxing Guosheng in a sum of RMB23,479,330; (ii) Zhongqing
agreed to repay Zhongxing Guosheng a sum of RMB23,479,330,
together with interests accrued from 18 June 2014 to the date of
repayment which was supposed to be within 15 days of the effective
date of the Document; and (iii) where Zhongqing failed to repay the
agreed amount, Zhongxing Guosheng would be entitled to request
Zhongging to pay default interests calculated at two times of the
lending rate of the People’s Bank of China over the same period.
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As advised by the Group's legal advisers in the PRC, the effective
date of the Document was 15 October 2014 and the deadline for
repayment by Zhongqing was 30 October 2014 accordingly. As at 30
October 2014, Zhongging hadn’t repaid the outstanding shareholder’s
loan and accrued interests to Zhongxing Guosheng.

On 27 May 2016, Zhongxing Guosheng submitted an application to
the Court for the extension of the term of the Freeze Order and the
application was accepted. The extended term of the Freeze Order
started on 13 June 2016 and ended on 12 June 2019. The term of
the Freeze Order was further extended to 12 May 2022 by the Court
on 15 May 2019 and to 12 May 2025 on 14 April 2022.

During the Year, after assessing the market condition of Qingyuan
City, the government policies and recent development projects, as
well as the professional experts and financial resources of the Group,
the Board considered that it was time to commence the compulsory
enforcement proceedings against Zhongging to put the Qingyuan
Land for sales in the auction (the “Compulsory Enforcement”).
Further details of the Compulsory Enforcement were disclosed in the
circular of the Company dated 24 June 2022. The shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) passed the resolution to approve
the Compulsory Enforcement at the special general meeting of
the Company held on 15 July 2022 and the Group submitted the
application to the Court to commence the Compulsory Enforcement
in July 2022. As at the date of this report, the Court has completed
all internal verification procedures regarding the Qingyuan Land
with various relevant government departments in Qingyuan, but the
auction progress is not yet commenced. The Company will provide
further update to the Shareholders as and when appropriate.
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Zhongda Qingyuan

The Group, through Zhongda Qingyuan, owns a land parcel in
Qingyuan City, the PRC, with a total area of approximately 208,000
square metres (“sq. m.”) and is building an industrial park (the
“Zhongxing Industrial Park”) with an array of industrial buildings,
commercial buildings, apartments and dormitories. The buildings
thereon are intended for lease or sales. The development plan
was approved by the Guangdong Qingyuan High-Tech Industrial
Development Zone Management Committee Office in March 2020
and was highly supported by the Qingyuan Government.

Construction status:

The whole first stage of development of the Zhongxing Industrial
Park comprises 20 industrial buildings, with a total gross floor
area of approximately 139,000 sq. m.. As at 31 December 2023,
approximately 79% of the aforementioned construction work was
completed according to the supervision reports prepared by an
independent construction company engaged by Zhongda Qingyuan.
The construction work of 14 industrial buildings was completed and
inspected by an independent supervisory company. The Group expects
the construction work of the remaining six industrial buildings to
commence during 2024, if appropriate.

Furthermore, during the Year, Zhongda Qingyuan signed several
construction agreements for one industrial building, one ancillary
building and one dormitory with a total gross floor area of
approximately 26,000 sg. m.. As at 31 December 2023, approximately
45% of the aforementioned construction work was completed and
the rest is expected to be completed in 2024. As at the date of this
report, the total construction area of the Zhongxing Industrial Park is
approximately 165,000 sq. m. and approximately 70% of which has
been completed.

Sales status:

During the Year, Zhongda Qingyuan delivered several industrial
buildings to purchasers and revenue of approximately HK$160 million
was recognized during the Year, which represented approximately
56% of the total gross floor area of the 14 industrial buildings
completed. Furthermore, up to the date of this report, Zhongda
Qingyuan has signed several binding agreements with purchasers
regarding a total gross floor area of approximately 27,000 sg. m.
which is expected to be delivered to the purchasers in 2024.
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Zhongda Qinyuan has entered into several cooperation agreements
with several banks in the PRC, pursuant to which Zhongda Qingyuan
has agreed to provide transitional guarantees in respect of the
repayment obligations of the purchasers under the mortgage loans
which may be granted by these banks to the purchasers for the
acquisition of the industrial buildings in the Zhongxing Industrial
Park. Zhongda Qingyuan’s guarantee obligation under the transitional
guarantees shall be released upon the completion of the relevant
mortgage registrations over the properties and/or the receipt of the
relevant registration proofs by the banks. It is an usual commercial
practice in the real estate industry in the PRC that property developers
shall provide transitional guarantees in favour of the mortgage banks
for the purchasers of properties which are still under development if
the purchasers will settle the purchase price of the properties partly
by mortgage loans. As at 31 December 2023, the Group had financial
guarantee of approximately HK$134 million relating to the transitional
guarantees given by Zhongda Qingyuan in favour of the mortgage
banks while the related property ownership certificates have not yet
been issued.

Property Investment Business

During the Year, the Property Investment Business included the leasing
of several commercial units in Hong Kong and the PRC.

This business involved three properties of the Group as at 31
December 2023 (31 December 2022: two). The first one was a
commercial property situated in Yuen Long, Hong Kong (the “Yuen
Long Property”) which has been leased to a connected person (having
the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules) since 1 August
2023 to operate a karaoke outlet. More details were disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 1 August 2023. The
rental income arising from the Yuen Long Property for the Year was
approximately HK$2.4 million (Year 2022: approximately HK$1.8
million). The increase in revenue arising from the Yuen Long Property
was mainly due to the accounting treatment for the rental concession
granted to the former tenant in Year 2022.

The second one was a commercial property in Beijing, the PRC (the
"Beijing Property”) which was leased to an independent third party
during the Year, and the annual rental income was approximately
HK$420,000 (Year 2022: approximately HK$390,000).
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Furthermore, during the Year, the Group entered into a rental
agreement with an independent third party to lease one block of
industrial building of its self-owned factory situated in Shenzhen, the
PRC (the “Shenzhen Property”) and the lease term was 4 years and 3
months with a rent-free period of 3 months. According to the Group’s
accounting standard, the Shenzhen Property has been reclassified to
investment properties from property, plant and equipment under the
non-current assets. Upon the date of the reclassification, the fair value
of the Shenzhen Property was approximately HK$57.5 million and the
difference of approximately HK$38.5 million between the carrying
amount and the fair value of the Shenzhen Property was recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in "“Properties
valuation reserve”.

According to the Group’s accounting standards, the investment
properties of the Group were carried at market value. A fair value loss
of approximately HK$6.1 million was recorded in “Other gains and
losses” of the Group during the Year (Year 2022: fair value loss of
HK$14.5 million). The fair value loss of the Yuen Long Property and
the Beijing Property were approximately HK$5.2 million and HK$1.7
million respectively, offset by the fair value gain of the Shenzhen
Property of approximately HK$731,000. The decrease in fair value of
the Yuen Long Property and the Beijing Property was mainly due to
the lowered market value and rental value of adjacent locations.

The segment profit for Year 2022 consisted of a gain on disposal of
a subsidiary of the Company of approximately HK$76.4 million which
owned an industrial building in Fanling, Hong Kong completed during
Year 2022.

Trading Business

Revenue from the Trading Business increased to approximately
HK$29.2 million (Year 2022: approximately HK$27.8 million) while a
segment loss of approximately HK$2.3 million was recorded during
the Year (Year 2022: approximately HK$4.9 million). The decrease in
segment loss was mainly attributable to: (i) the increase in revenue
derived from overseas customers with higher profit margin; and (ii)
the decrease in overall operating costs as a result of the adoption of
cost saving plans.
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Securities Trading Business

The Group’s equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) and financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss (“FVTPL") as at 31 December 2023 amounted
to approximately HK$38.0 million (31 December 2022: approximately
HK$39.7 million). During the Year, the Group recorded a fair value
loss in investments of securities listed in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$1.6 million (Year 2022: approximately HK$7.8 million) and
a dividend income of approximately HK$642,000 (Year 2022:
approximately HK$1,115,000). No realized gain/loss was recorded for
the Year (Year 2022: a realized gain of approximately HK$442,000).

The Group’s investments as at 31 December 2023 included
investment in securities of 10 companies listed on the Main Board or
GEM of the Stock Exchange, an offshore investment fund, two Hong
Kong private companies and a PRC private company. The carrying
amount of each of the Group’s investments accounted for less than
5% of the Group’s audited total assets as at 31 December 2023. The
top five largest investments amounted to approximately HK$34.3
million, representing approximately 3.2% of the Group’s audited total
assets as at 31 December 2023.

The largest investment was the investment in an offshore investment
fund named Zhong Wei Capital L.P. (“Zhong Wei"), which
represented 1.33% of the total share capital of Zhong Wei. Zhong
Wei has invested in more than 30 entities including public and private
entities incorporated in Hong Kong and overseas. These entities
are principally engaged in, including but not limited to, educational
sector, entertainment and recreational sector, financial technological
sector, healthcare sector and telecommunication sector. The fair value
of the investment in Zhong Wei as at 31 December 2023 amounted
to approximately HK$17.5 million, representing approximately 1.6%
of the Group's audited total assets as at 31 December 2023.
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The second to fifth largest investments were the investment in Wang
On Group Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange with stock code 01222), Wang On Properties Limited (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange with stock
code 01243), China Agri-Products Exchange Limited (a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange with stock code 00149)
and a private company incorporated in the PRC principally engaged in
trading and entertainment business in the PRC.

The Group will carefully study the market and the information related
to prospective investees before purchasing any securities, and will
closely monitor the performance of investments after the acquisitions
and adjust its investment strategy in a cautious manner as and when
necessary to minimize the impact of market volatility.

BFIEFHAAKREEENWang On
Group Limited (ZZEBERAT) *
(—ERBIMMERLETNRAE B
3H3% 1 01222) ~Wang On Properties
LimitedEZMEBRAE (—ER
MXFAERLETHAE  BRMEAHE:
01243) ~ China Agri-Products Exchange
LimitedFREEmRRXZBRAF (—/H
RE T EMR ETBIAE ) BRDSE -
00149) k—ERFREFMAIIEFE
RABEREEGRBEEBNAAR
BN E -

REBEERAESR A& E IR
MERRABEERRES RSN I
RSB RETERRERER WKL
ERBRETKRERE LR8I
LR TE -

* EREE

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE&EEZKARAT | Annual Report 2023 F iR

17



18

Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEEmk o

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES Hhh s K EsiE
Other gains and losses for the Year mainly comprised the following KEEEMKEZEEBEEFTEGIEUT
items: I5H
2023 2022
—E=-= St
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Change in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL  BBEmE A FEYIRZ
(Note a) %ﬂé&z
NTEEE (W5ta) (1,604,208) (7,820,160)
Change in fair value of investment properties REME AT EED
(Note b) (Bi5tb) (6,125,444) (14,498,870)
Net foreign exchange gain GNEE W 7 BB 1,010,013 12,968,171
Net (loss) gain on disposal of property, plant and HEYZE . BE. REZ
equipment (B518) Wz 358 (396,762) 1,625,999
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note c) HE—BNBAR Z W
(Htztc) - 76,441,616
Total 4Est (7,116,401) 68,716,756
Notes: Mt -
(a) The change in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL consisted of (a) FREREATEIEZEHEEZ N

the fair value loss of securities traded in the Stock Exchange of
approximately HK$1.6 million (Year 2022: approximately HK$7.8
million).

The fair value loss of investment properties was mainly related to the
Yuen Long Property. For the reason of such loss, please refer to the
business and financial review of the Property Investment Business
above.

The gain on disposal of a subsidiary was related to the disposal of
a subsidiary of the Company. For more details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 21 October 2021 and 28
January 2022 and the circular of the Company dated 17 December
2021.
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LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The following table sets out the Group’s current ratio, quick ratio and
gearing ratio as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022:

RBEE - BFRERRERRKR
18
TREJAEENR_ZT_=F+_4
=+—BkRZIZEZF+ZB=+—
SR RBLE EBEERAEARLL

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
Notes RIEZ=F =
HraE +=—B=+—H +-A=+—H
Current ratio mEnLE (a) 2.6 timesf& 3.0 timesf&
Quick ratio REEEE (b) 1.5 timesfZ 1.6 timesf3
Gearing ratio EEBMBILEXE (c) 22.6% 24.9%
Notes: BfsE
@) Current ratio is calculated by dividing total current assets by total (a) MELEETRBEE FERGRNE RS
current liabilities as at the end of respective year. BERMUERENAETE
(b) Quick ratio is calculated by dividing total current assets less inventories (b) BRI RDIRIRE FERERNERE
and properties under development for sale by total current liabilities as BENGT 8 RFEERETYERUEM
at the end of respective year. BEEFHE
(© Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings by total equity (© BEGREXNRERFELERTNE

as at the end of respective year and then multiplying it by 100%. Total
borrowings as at 31 December 2023 include: (i) the amount due to a
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary; (ii) bank borrowings; and
(iii) lease liabilities.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had short-term bank
deposits, pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$196.1 million (31 December 2022: approximately
HK$200.9 million) and total borrowings of approximately HK$163.4
million (31 December 2022: approximately HK$195.9 million).

The current ratio and quick ratio as at 31 December 2023 were
lower as compared with the respective figures as at 31 December
2022, which was mainly attributable to the increase in contract
liabilities of approximately HK$27.1 million which included the deposit
received from the customers of the Property Development Business
of approximately HK$29.2 million. The gearing ratio of the Group
decreased from 24.9% to 22.6% as at 31 December 2023, mainly
due to the decrease in total borrowings of the Group and the reasons
for which are stated below.
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The Group's total borrowings as at 31 December 2023 included: (i) an
amount of approximately HK$16.5 million due to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary (31 December 2022: approximately
HK$17.0 million); (ii) secured bank borrowings of approximately
HK$93.5 million (31 December 2022: approximately HK$111.2
million); and (iii) lease liabilities of approximately HK$53.4 million (31
December 2022: approximately HK$67.7 million).

Secured bank borrowings included (i) an amount of approximately
HK$14.1 million (31 December 2022: approximately HK$18.1 million)
payable within six years and carrying interest at the Hong Kong
Inter-bank Offered Rate plus 1.85% per annum; (i) an amount of
approximately HK$54.2 million (31 December 2022: approximately
HK$50.1 million) payable within one year and carrying interest at the
Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate plus 1.25% to 2.5% (Year 2022:
1.25% to 2.25%) per annum; and (iii) an amount of approximately
HK$25.2 million (31 December 2022: approximately HK$43.0 million)
payable within three years and carrying interest at 5.98%. The
amount due to the non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary was
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The weighted
average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied in lease liabilities
was 4.59%.

All borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and RMB and
the majority of cash and cash equivalents were denominated in RMB,
Hong Kong dollars and U.S. dollars.

The Group generally finances its operation with cash flows generated
internally and bank facilities obtained in Hong Kong and the PRC.
Taking into account the amount of funds expected to be generated
internally and the available bank facilities, the Group will have
adequate resources to meet its future capital expenditure and working
capital requirements. The Group will continue to implement a prudent
policy in managing cash balances, thereby maintaining a strong and
healthy liquidity level to capitalize any potential business opportunity.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERE R

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Looking forward to 2024, it is expected that the Group will be
challenged by multiple adversities as the global market continues to
be shadowed by economic and political uncertainties, including the
prolonged political and economic tensions between the PRC and
other countries. The recovery of the global economy is expected
to be in a slower pace which may negatively affect the desire and
purchasing power of customers of all types of products, especially
those of the Manufacturing and Sales Business and the Trading
Business. However, the awareness of sustainability is expected to
be further enhanced in 2024 which may create more new business
opportunities, especially for those environment-friendly products and
printing solutions of the Manufacturing and Sales Business. In order
to cope with the complex and ever-changing situation, the Group will
carefully revise the strategies for all its business segments, as well as
diversify and expand its businesses in a cautious way.

Lending Business

Due to the keen market competition, the Group will take calculated
risks when expanding the loan portfolio of the Lending Business.
The Group will continue to cooperate with other money lending
companies to attract more new customers. Given the changing
environment, the Group will allocate more financial resources to
expand the business scale by enlarging the loan portfolio in a prudent
way.

Manufacturing and Sales Business and Trading Business

In 2024, the business of the Company will see multiple challenges
and opportunities, especially the Manufacturing and Sales Business.
The intensified political and economic tensions between the PRC and
other countries may continue to shift the production of products
from the PRC to other countries. These factors may negatively affect
the export sales of the printing products. On the other hand, the
competition among printing companies in the domestic market of
the PRC is expected to be further intense, and the Group will put
more efforts to further enhance its procurement ability and increase
its production efficiency in order to reduce the overall production
costs of this segment. The increasing awareness of sustainability shall
create more business opportunities for this business and the Group
will devotes more resources in procurement and provide environment-
friendly printing solutions to our existing and potential customers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENmR

All the above factors will affect both the export and domestic sales of
the business to varying extents. As a result, the Group will carefully
revise its sales strategy for the expansion of these market segments
and spare sufficient cash flows to cope with any sudden or prolonged
adverse situation beyond its expectation. The Group will continue to
engage more overseas sales agents and participate in more overseas
and domestic trade fairs so as to reach more new customers in 2024.
On the other hand, the Group will also continue to acquire new
ancillary equipment for the expanded production line to enhance
production efficiency and lower the defect rate and manpower costs
in its production activities.

In addition, to cope with the challenges faced by the printing
industry and to improve the profitability of the business, the Group
will continue to step up its efforts on the following aspects: (i)
efficiency and effectiveness enhancement by streamlining the
production process of its factories to reduce operation and production
wastage; (i) talent recruitment, provision of value-added services and
continuous upgrade of its technology infrastructure; (iii) procurement
of alternative materials, verification of their quality and negotiation
with suppliers for more favourable terms; (iv) market expansion to
cover high-value products and identification of long-term cooperation
or joint venture opportunities with other industry players to expand
the production capacity of factories and expand the customers base
for reaching more customers in different industries and countries;
and (v) allocation of more resources to upgrade of facilities and
recruitment of skilled labours to meet the diverse demands of
customers. All the strategies adopted by the Group will further equip
it with strength and core competence to tackle unknown challenges
in the coming years.

For the Trading Business, the Group will continue to allocate more
resources to expand and develop the sales teams in Hong Kong,
overseas and the PRC, so as to broaden the clientele, optimize the
product mix and provide more value-added services to the existing
and target customers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERE R

Music and Entertainment Business

The Group will continue to allocate more resources to expand the
sales of physical albums and the musical works licensing business.
Furthermore, the Group has entered into a joint venture agreement
with two independent third parties subsequent to the end of the Year
to form a joint venture to be principally engaged in overseas concert
promotor business and related entertainment business. Through
the formation of the joint venture, the Group expects to organize
and invest more shows overseas, such as the United Kingdom and
the Greater Bay Area of the PRC and also, expand other related
entertainment businesses by pooling the experience of the other
parties to the joint venture agreement.

Property Development Business

For Zhongging, as mentioned in the business and financial review
section of the Property Development Business above, the Court
has completed all internal verification procedures regarding to the
Qingyuan Land, but the auction progress is not yet commenced.
In view of the recent undesirable situation of the property market
in the PRC, the Group will reassess the risk and profitability of the
development of the Qingyuan Land and accordingly, revise the
bidding strategy carefully. The Group will provide further update to
the Shareholders as and when appropriate.

For Zhongda Qingyuan, as at the date of this report, it has signed
several provisional sales and purchase agreements for the industrial
buildings and dormitories in the Zhongxing Industrial Park with a total
gross floor area of approximately 27,000 sq. m. The Group expects to
deliver the relevant properties to the purchasers in 2024. Furthermore,
subject to the sales progress of the existing unsold industrial buildings,
the Group may commence the construction work of the remaining
industrial buildings of the first stage of development of Zhongxing
Industrial Park in 2024, if appropriate.

For 2024, the Group will continue to devote more resources in the
sales and marketing activities of the Zhongxing Industrial Park, such
as engaging more property agents to reach more potential customers
and organizing more group and individual tours for potential
customers to visit the Zhongxing Industrial Park. Furthermore, the
Group will also offer more sales options to attract more potential
customers and cater for their purchase needs.
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BERENmR

Property Investment Business

No material fluctuation is expected for the Property Investment
Business and the Group will continue to monitor the rental market
condition in Hong Kong and the PRC and adjust its strategies, if
necessary.

Securities Trading Business

The Group expects that the fair value of equity securities listed in
Hong Kong may keep fluctuating in the foreseeable future due to the
volatile global economy. In light of this, the Group will closely monitor
the general market and market data related to prospective investees
before committing to any securities investment, and will pay attention
to the performance of the investments after purchasing as well as
make necessary adjustment to the investment strategy in a cautious
manner so as to alleviate the impact of extreme market swings.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's sales and purchases were mainly denominated in RMB,
Hong Kong dollars and U.S. dollars. Except for RMB, there was no
significant fluctuation in the exchange rate of Hong Kong dollars and
U.S. dollars during the Year. The management will closely monitor
the foreign exchange rate risk of RMB and identify significant adverse
impact (if any) on the Group’s operations in the PRC. The Group did
not use any financial instrument for hedging purpose during the Year
and it did not have any outstanding hedging instrument as at 31
December 2023. The Group will consider using appropriate hedging
solutions when necessary.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the Year, capital expenditure of the Group for property,
plant and equipment, investment properties and properties under
development for sales amounted to approximately HK$5.4 million
(Year 2022: approximately HK$15.6 million), nil (Year 2022: HK$5.1
million) and approximately HK$73.5 million (Year 2022: HK$146.9
million) respectively. The capital expenditure for the Year was mainly
attributable to the acquisition of machineries for production in the
PRC, the addition of right of use assets at the leased offices and
warehouses and the construction work conducted in the Zhongxing
Industrial Park.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEEmRo

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately HK$150.4 million (31 December 2022: approximately
HK$177.2 million) which had been contracted for but had not
been provided for in the financial statements for the acquisition
of property, plant and equipment and construction work in the
Zhongxing Industrial Park. The Group did not have any capital
commitment for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
that had been authorised but not contracted for in both reporting
periods. The Group expects to finance its capital commitments by
internal resources and bank borrowings.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had contingent liabilities
of approximately HK$133.9 million in respect of the transitional
guarantees provided by Zhongda Qingyuan in favor of the mortgage
banks for the purchasers of the industrial buildings of the Zhongxing
Industrial Park (31 December 2022: Nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had pledged bank deposits,
investment properties and properties under development for sales/
properties for sales with an aggregate carrying value of approximately
HK$386.8 million (31 December 2022: approximately HK$442.3
million) to secure the construction loan of the Zhongxing Industrial
Park, the mortgage loan of certain investment properties and general
banking facilities granted to the Group. Save as aforesaid, no other
assets were pledged by the Group as at 31 December 2023.

SHARE CAPITAL AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On 16 January 2023, the Company cancelled 280,000 shares
repurchased by it during Year 2022. Save as disclosed, there was no
change in the share capital and capital structure of the Company
during the Year.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had approximately 1,000 full-
time employees (31 December 2022: approximately 1,190). Total
staff costs (including Directors’ remuneration) for the Year were
approximately HK$174.2 million (Year 2022: approximately HK$189.6
million).

The remuneration schemes of the Group are generally structured
with reference to market conditions and the qualifications of the
employees, and the reward packages including discretionary bonus for
staff members are generally reviewed on an annual basis according
to the performance of the Group and respective staff members.
Apart from salary payments and contributions to retirement benefit
schemes, other staff benefits include participation in share option
scheme and medical insurance for eligible employees. In-house and
external training programmes are also provided as and when required.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION OR DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES OR JOINT VENTURE
DURING THE YEAR

The Group had no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the Year.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

There have been no significant events since the end of the Year and
up to the date of this report.
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Corporate Governance Report
EERERRS

The Board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Neway
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) is pleased to present this Corporate
Governance Report in the annual report of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (the “Year”).

The Company acknowledges the important roles of the Board in
providing effective leadership and direction to the Company’s business
and ensuring transparency and accountability of the Company
operations. The Board recognises that good corporate governance
practices are vital to maintain and promote shareholder value and
investor confidence and has adopted the code provisions as set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Part
2 of Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the "Listing Rules”) as its own code of corporate
governance. The Company is committed to enhancing and reviewing
its corporate governance practices from time to time to ensure that
they align with the latest development of the Group.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has applied the principles
of and complied with the code provisions set out in the CG Code
throughout the Year. No incident of non-compliance with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code was noted by the Company during
the Year.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is responsible for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors take
decisions objectively in the interests of the Company and in the
attainment of the objective of creating value to the shareholders of
the Company. Every Director carries out his/her duty in good faith in
compliance with the standards of applicable laws and regulations and
acts in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole
at all times.

Board Composition

The Board comprises eight members as at the date of this Corporate
Governance Report, which include two executive Directors, three non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
The composition of the Board has a balance of expertise, skills and
experience necessary for independent decision-making.
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Corporate Governance Report
EXRER/WS

THE BOARD (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The Board comprises the following Directors during the Year and up
to the date of this Corporate Governance Report:

Executive Directors:
Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (Chairman)
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors:

Dr. NG Wai Kwan

Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren
Mr. WONG Sun Fat

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. LEE Kwok Wan
Mr. LAI Sai Wo, Ricky
(resigned on 30 June 2023)
Mr. CHU Gun Pui
Ms. SIN Chui Pik, Christine
(appointed on 28 September 2023)

The audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”) comprises
the following members during the Year and up to the date of this
Corporate Governance Report:

Mr. LEE Kwok Wan (Chairman)

Mr. WONG Sun Fat

Mr. LAI Sai Wo, Ricky
(resigned on 30 June 2023)

Ms. SIN Chui Pik, Christine
(appointed on 28 September 2023)
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Corporate Governance Report
EERERRS

THE BOARD (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The remuneration committee of the Board (the “Remuneration
Committee”) comprises the following members during the Year and
up to the date of this Corporate Governance Report:

Mr. LEE Kwok Wan (Chairman)

Mr. WONG Sun Fat

Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky
(resigned on 30 June 2023)

Ms. SIN Chui Pik, Christine
(appointed on 28 September 2023)

The nomination committee of the Board (the “Nomination
Committee”) comprises the following members during the Year and
up to the date of this Corporate Governance Report:

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (Chairman)
Mr. LEE Kwok Wan
Mr. CHU Gun Pui

The names of the Directors on the relevant dates are disclosed in all
corporate communications issued by the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, the chief executive officer of the Company (the
"Chief Executive Officer”), is the uncle of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie,
the chairman of the Company (the “Chairman”). Dr. NG Wai Kwan,
a non-executive Director, is the uncle of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie. The
detailed relationships among members of the Board are disclosed
under the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors” on pages
51 to 55.

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules, every board
of directors of a listed issuer must include at least three independent
non-executive directors and the number of independent non-
executive directors must represent at least one-third of the Board.
Following the resignation (the “Resignation”) of Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky,
on 30 June 2023, the Board comprised seven members, including
two executive Directors, three non-executive Directors and two
independent non-executive Directors, which was non-compliant with
Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report
EERERRS

THE BOARD (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

In addition, pursuant to Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the audit
committee of every listed issuer must comprise a minimum of three
members and the majority of its members must be independent non-
executive directors. Following the Resignation, the number of members
of the Audit Committee reduced from three to two and it comprised
one independent non-executive Director and one non-executive Director.
These resulted in non-compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

As Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky, was also a member of the Remuneration
Committee, following the Resignation, the number of members of the
Remuneration Committee reduced from three to two and it comprised
one independent non-executive Director and one non-executive Director.
As a result, the Board was unable to fulfil the requirement of having a
majority of independent non-executive directors in the Remuneration
Committee as prescribed under Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules.

However, the Board used its best endeavour to identify suitable
candidate to fill the aforementioned vacancies within three months
from 30 June 2023 in compliance with Rules 3.11, 3.23 and 3.27
of the Listing Rules. Following the appointment of Ms. SIN Chui Pik,
Christine, on 28 September 2023, the Company has re-complied with
the requirements under Rules 3.10(1), 3.10A, 3.21 and 3.25 of the
Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, during the Year, the Board has at all other
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to (i) the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors
with at least one independent non-executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise; and (ii) the appointment of
independent non-executive Directors representing at least one-third of
the Board.
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EERERRS

THE BOARD (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The Company has adopted an independent views policy (the
“Independent Views Policy”) in accordance with the CG Code,
pursuant to which the independent non-executive Directors are
required to, among others: (i) keep up-to-date with the Company’s
business affairs and be involved in scrutinising the Company’s
performance in achieving agreed corporate goals and objectives,
and monitor performance reporting; (ii) bring independent judgment
to bear on issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability,
resources, key appointments and standards of conduct, and help review
some of the Board’s major decisions and the Company’s performance
in relation to corporate goals, and monitor performance reporting; (i)
take the lead where potential conflicts of interest arise; and (iv) serve on
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and other governance committees of the Board, if invited.

According to the Independent Views Policy, the independent non-
executive Directors shall allocate sufficient time to discharge their
responsibilities and should not accept an invitation to serve as an
independent non-executive Director on the Board unless they can
devote adequate time and effort to the work involved. Independent
non-executive Directors sitting on multiple boards of directors of listed
companies will need to ensure that they devote sufficient time and
dedicate adequate attention to each board and board committee.
In addition, the independent non-executive Directors shall at least
annually attend meeting with the Chairman of the Board without the
presence of other Directors. The Independent Views Policy and its
implementation and effectiveness are reviewed by the Board annually.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
existing independent non-executive Director of his/her independence
with reference to the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. None of the independent non-executive Directors fails to meet
one or more of such guidelines. Accordingly, the Company considers
all existing independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

The non-executive Directors bring a wide range of business
and financial expertise and experiences to the Board. Through
participation in Board meetings and serving on Board committees, all
non-executive Directors make various contributions to the effective
direction of the Company.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by
different persons in order to preserve independence and a balanced
judgement of views. The Chairman, Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, is
primarily responsible for ensuring that good corporate governance
practices and procedures are established.

The Chairman has encouraged all Directors to make a full and active
contribution to the Board's affairs and take the lead to ensure that
it acts in the best interests of the Company. Directors with different
views are encouraged to voice their concerns and they are allowed
sufficient time to discuss issues in meetings to ensure that Board
decisions fairly reflect Board consensus.

During the Year, the Chairman has held meetings with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of the
other Directors. The Chairman has ensured that appropriate steps are
taken to provide effective communication with shareholders of the
Company and that their views are communicated to the Board as a
whole.

The Chairman has promoted a culture of openness and debate by
facilitating the effective contribution of non-executive Directors in
particular and ensuring constructive relations between the executive
and non-executive Directors.

The Chief Executive Officer, Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, is responsible for
running the Company’s businesses and developing and implementing
the Group's strategic plans and business goals.

Despite that the Chief Executive Officer and the Chairman are uncle
and nephew, they consider issues and make decisions independently.
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EERERRS

THE BOARD (Continued)
Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the existing non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company. Mr. LEE Kwok Wan was appointed for a term of three years
from 5 April 2022 to 4 April 2025, Mr. CHU Gun Pui was appointed
for a term of three years from 23 June 2023 to 22 June 2026, and
Ms. SIN Chui Pik, Christine was appointed for a term of three years
from 28 September 2023 to 27 September 2026. Save for the above,
all other non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term
of three years from 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2025. The term of
appointment of each Director is subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election in accordance with the Company's bye-laws (the “Bye-
laws”) and the Listing Rules and the terms and conditions of their
respective letters of appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are laid down in the Bye-laws and the nomination policy
adopted by the Company. Please refer to the paragraph headed
“Nomination Committee” below for further details of the nomination
policy of the Company.

Induction and Continuing Development for Directors

The Directors are encouraged to attend external seminars and training
programmes at the Company’s expense to update themselves with
the legal and regulatory developments and the business and market
changes to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Briefings
and professional development trainings will be arranged for the
Directors whenever necessary.

On 28 September 2023, Ms. SIN Chui Pik, Christine was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director. Ms. SIN Chui Pik, Christine
was appointed before Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules becoming
effective, therefore, such rule was not applicable to her appointment.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Professional Training for Directors

Each of the Directors, namely Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, Mr. SUEK
Chai Hong, Dr. NG Wai Kwan, Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren, Mr.
WONG Sun Fat, Mr. LEE Kwok Wan, Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky (resigned
on 30 June 2023), Mr. CHU Gun Pui and Ms. SIN Chui Pik, Christine
(appointed on 28 September 2023) confirmed to the Company that
they had complied with code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code during
the Year by reading all materials provided by the company secretary of
the Company (the “Company Secretary”) and/or attending trainings
on the topics relating to the updates on the new requirements under
the Listing Rules launched by professional parties.

Company Secretary

Mr. TANG Chi Ki, Ernest has been appointed as the Company
Secretary in place of Ms. CHEUNG Yuk Shan on 1 June 2023. He
joined the company secretarial department of the Group in 2010 and
has been assisting the Company in its company secretarial works since
then. Mr. TANG Chi Ki, Ernest reports to the Board and is responsible
for advising the Board on corporate governance matters. He has taken
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
Year in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

The Company does not engage any external service provider as its
Company Secretary.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General
Meetings

Board practices and conduct of meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings were served to all Directors at least
14 days before the meetings during the Year. For other Board and
committee meetings, reasonable notices were given. All Directors
were given an opportunity to included matters in the agenda for
discussion.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information were sent to all Directors at least three days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting during the Year to keep the
Directors apprised of the latest development and financial position of
the Company and to enable them to make informed decisions. The
Board and each Director also had separate and independent access to
the management staff whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking and keeping minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. During the Year,
draft minutes containing significant details for any decision and
recommendation made during the meetings were normally circulated
to the Directors for comment within a reasonable time after each
meeting and the final version was open for the Directors’ inspection.

The Bye-laws contain provisions, with certain permitted exemptions,
requiring Director(s) to abstain from voting and not to be counted
in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which
such Director(s) or any of their respective associates have a material
interest.
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EEERERS

THE BOARD (Continued)

Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General
Meetings (Continued)

Directors’ attendance records

During the Year, the Board held four meetings, two of which were
regular Board meetings for reviewing and approving the financial
and operating performance of the Group. The Company did not
announce its quarterly results and hence did not consider the holding
of quarterly meetings necessary.

The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings of
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the Board, the Board committees and at the general meetings of the TEEeTE BEESECTTENMIRE
Company for the Year is set out below: AE ik !
Attendance/Number of meetings
held during the Year
REEEHERY, GHETRE
Special Annual Special
General General General
Meeting Meeting Meeting
held on held on held on
Audit Remuneration Nomination 17 March 16 June 11 August
Name of Directors Board  Committee Committee  Committee 2023 2023 2023
RIB-=F W-Z-=F R-B-=F
ZRttH AR+ABR NAt—H
o o e man R BED RGZ
EEfS £X8® ERZERY HHWEEE RLZEE RREIAE RRBEEFAE REEHIAS
Executive Directors HIEZ
- Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Erie —EERLE 4/4 /A A 171 171 171 171
(Chairman) (/&) TEH TER
— Mr. SUEK Chai Hong —BEEXL 4/4 A /A /A 1”n 1”n 1”n
(Chief Executive Officer) (fTE#E %) ~EA ER ~EA
Non-executive Directors EHITESR
- Dr. NG Wai Kwan -REEETL 4/4 /A /A A ”n ”n ”n
~EA AEH AEH
- Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren — —BRYE# & 4/4 NA NA NA ”n ”n 1”n
~EA AEH AEH
— Mr. WONG Sun Fat —EHMRRE 444 22 22 /A 17 17 17
AEH
Independent Non-executive ~ BUFRITES
Directors
~ Mr. LEE Kwok Wan - FEERE 4/4 22 2 17 17N 17N 1”n
- Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky —BUMEE 33 7 " NA 7 " NA
(resigned on 30 June 2023) (HB_FE_=F TEH B
/\/@,—7L
#1)
~ Mr. CHU Gun Pui —REMRE 4/4 /A /A 7 7 7 7
~EA AEH
- Ms. SIN Chui Pik, Christine hBREL T N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
(appointed on 28 September (\ —E-= TER TEA TER TEH TER AEA AEA
2023) NAZ+/NH
Bz
Note: Attendance of the Directors during the Year was stated by reference to izt "REEEELEAENERZBERZH

the number of meeting(s) held during their respective tenures.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the Year. No incident
of non-compliance with the required standard set out in the Model
Code was noted by the Company during the Year.

The Company has also established written guidelines on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”)
for securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
was noted by the Company during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance for
Directors and officers of the Group for indemnifying their liabilities
arising from corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
on an annual basis.

DELEGATION

In practice, the Board takes responsibility for decision making in all
major matters of the Company including the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, the setting of objectives and overall strategies,
internal controls and risk management systems, material transactions
(in particular those may involve a conflict of interests), appointment
of Directors and other significant financial and operational matters.
The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the designated officers. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board before the designated officers enter into any
significant transactions and they have the Board’s full support in the
discharge of their responsibilities.
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DELEGATION (Continued)

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed. Each Director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company's expense, upon making request to the Board.

The Board has established four committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the investment management committee (the “Investment
Management Committee”) for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company'’s affairs. All Board committees are established with defined
written terms of reference.

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this Corporate Governance Report, the
Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. LEE Kwok Wan (chairman) and Ms. SIN Chui Pik,
Christine, and one non-executive Director, namely Mr. WONG Sun Fat,
the majority of which are independent non-executive Directors.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on the remuneration policy and structure
and remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the senior
management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her
associates will participate in deciding such Director’s remuneration.
Remuneration of each Director is determined by reference to the
Group's operating results, the duties and responsibilities of the
Director within the Company, the performance of the Director
and the Company as well as market practice and conditions. The
Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or the
Chief Executive Officer in relation to its proposals relating to the
remuneration of the executive Directors and shall have access to
professional advice at the Company's expense, if necessary. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for reviewing and
approving matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings
to review the remuneration of the existing Directors, make
recommendation to the Board in relation thereto and consider matters
relating to the adoption of the share option scheme of the Company.
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DELEGATION (Continued)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The Company did not have other member of senior management
other than the Directors during the Year.

The written terms of reference for the Remuneration Committee are
published on the websites of the Company (www.newaygroup.com.
hk) and of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) respectively and
are available to shareholders upon request.

Investment Management Committee

For the purpose of effective and timely management of the
investment matters of the Company, and in order to cope with the
Company’s business development in the future, a committee of
the Board known as the Investment Management Committee was
established in March 2014 for identifying, assessing and analysing all
investment opportunities for the Group and making recommendations
on acquisition and/or disposal of the Group to the Board from time to
time.

The Investment Management Committee comprises four members,
namely Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (Chairman), Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, Mr.
CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren, and Ms. CHEUNG Yuk Shan, the financial
director of the Group, throughout the Year and up to the date of this
Corporate Governance Report, all of whom possess experience and
familiarity with financial and investment analysis.

During the Year, the Investment Management Committee held two
meetings and all members of the Investment Management Committee
attended such meetings.

Nomination Committee

As at the date of this Corporate Governance Report, the Nomination
Committee comprises an executive Director, namely Mr. SUEK Ka
Lun, Ernie (Chairman), and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. LEE Kwok Wan and Mr. CHU Gun Pui. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board and the appointment of new Directors from
time to time, so as to ensure that it has a balanced composition of
candidates appropriate for the requirements of the businesses of the
Company. The Nomination Committee is also responsible for assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors and
reviewing the succession plan for the Directors, in particular the
chairman of the Board.
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EERERRS

DELEGATION (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

The written terms of reference for the Nomination Committee are
published on the websites of the Company (www.newaygroup.com.hk)
and of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) respectively and are
available to shareholders upon request.

Since December 2018, the Company has adopted a nomination policy
(the “Nomination Policy”) for the nomination of directors so as to
ensure the Board has the appropriate balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives that are required to support the execution
of the Company’s business strategy and in order for the Board to be
effective.

The Nomination Committee has primary responsibility for identifying
suitably qualified candidates to become members of the Board
and making recommendations to shareholders of the Company for
election as Directors at general meetings or appoint Directors to
fill casual vacancies, and in carrying out this responsibility, will give
adequate consideration to the Nomination Policy.

According to the Nomination Policy, Board appointments will
be made on merit and candidates will be considered against an
objective criteria. In assessing the suitability of a proposed Director,
the Nomination Committee will consider the candidate’s academic
background and qualifications; experience in the industry; character
and integrity; willingness and capacity to devote adequate time in
the discharge of a director’s duties; and will also consider whether
the candidate can contribute to the Board a diversity of perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service.

The Nomination Committee may nominate or invite a candidate
for appointment as a Director for consideration. The Nomination
Committee shall evaluate the personal profile of each of the
candidates based on the criteria as set out in the Nomination Policy.
The Nomination Committee shall also undertake adequate due
diligence in respect of each candidate and make recommendation for
the Board'’s consideration and approval.
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Corporate Governance Report
EERERRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board has not established a corporate governance committee.
Instead, the full Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance function such as developing and reviewing the policies
and practices of the Company on corporate governance, reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional development
of the Directors and senior management, reviewing the policies and
practices of the Company on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements and developing and reviewing and monitoring the codes
of conduct applicable to employees and Directors. During the Year,
the Board reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
the disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”). In assessing the Board's composition, the Board would
consider a range of measurable objectives set out in the Board
Diversity Policy, including but not limited to gender, age, race, cultural
and educational background, knowledge, professional experience
and skills. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and the
contribution that the selected candidates may bring to the Board. As
at the date of this Corporate Governance Report, the Board has one
female member. Accordingly, the Company has not set any numerical
targets or timeline for achieving gender diversity on the Board or
adopted any measures to develop a pipeline of potential successors to
the Board to achieve gender diversity.

As at 31 December 2023, the gender ratio of the Group’s workforce
was 54:46 male to female.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the Year.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment in annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of Financial
Statements (Continued)

The management has provided all Directors with monthly updates
containing such explanation and information to the Board so as to
enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial
information put to the Board for approval and the financial position of
the Company.

Further explanation as to how the Company generates or preserves
value over the longer term and the strategy for delivering the
Company’s objectives is set out under “Management Discussion and
Analysis” from pages 6 to 26 of this report.

Risk Management and Internal Control

During the Year, the Group complied with code provision D.2.1 of the
CG Code by maintaining appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems. The management of the Company is
responsible for the design, implementation and monitoring of such
systems while the Board oversees the management in performing its
duties on an ongoing basis. The Board does not have a designated
risk committee. Main features of the risk management and internal
control systems are described below:

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages the risk
associated with its business and operations, including environmental,
social and governance (“ESG") risks. The system comprises the
following phases:

o Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business objectives
and risks that could affect the achievement of objectives;

o Evaluation: Analyse the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly; and

o Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and monitor the residual risks on
an on-going basis.

Based on the risk assessments conducted during the Year, no
significant risk was identified.
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EEERERS

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)
Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (the “COSO") 2013 framework. The
framework enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The
components of the framework are shown as follows:
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Control environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group;

Risk assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analysing risks to achieve the Group's
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks should be
managed;

Control activities: Actions established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management directives to
mitigate risks for the achievement of objectives are carried out;

Information and communication: Internal and external
communications to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls; and

Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each component of the internal control system is
present and functioning.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)
Internal Control System (Continued)

In order to enhance the Group's system of handling inside information
and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness
of its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and implements
an inside information policy and procedures. Certain reasonable
measures have been taken from time to time to ensure that proper
safeguards are in place to prevent a breach of disclosure requirement
in relation to the Group, which include:

o the access to information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality;

o confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group enters
into significant negotiations; and

o the executive Directors are designated persons who speak on
behalf of the Company when communicating with external
parties such as the media, analysts or investors.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted during the Year, no
significant control deficiency was identified.

Internal Audit Function

The Group has an Internal Audit (“IA") function, which consists of
professional staff with relevant expertise (such as Certified Public
Accountant). The IA function is independent of the Group's daily
operation and carries out appraisal of the risk management and
internal control systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and
tests of operating effectiveness.

An |IA plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal control
systems is conducted annually, covering a period of each financial year
and the results are reported to the Board via the Audit Committee
afterwards.
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EERERRS

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and ensuring that a review of the effectiveness
of these systems has been conducted annually. However, such
systems are designed to limit the risks to which the Group exposes
to an acceptable level but not eliminate them. Hence, such systems
can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatements in financial information and record or loss.
Several areas have been considered during the Board's review, which
include but are not limited to (i) changes in the nature and extent
of significant risks (including ESG risks) since the last annual review
and the Group’s ability to respond to changes in its business and the
external environment; and (ii) the scope and quality of management'’s
on-going monitoring of risks and of the internal control systems.

Furthermore, to comply with code provision D.2.2 of the CG Code,
the Board also included a review of the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, internal audit as well as the
function relating to its ESG performance and reporting, their training
programmes and budget in its annual review during the Year.

The Board has engaged an external professional internal control
consultant firm, Roma Risk Advisory Limited (“Roma”) to
conduct a review of the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems and to give recommendations to
make any enhancement during the Year. Such review covered
material controls on corporate level control, financial reporting and
disclosure management, compliance management, procurement and
expenditure management, human resource and payroll management,
inventory and costing management, information system management
and fixed assets management for all business segments of the Group
and did not reveal any significant defects. Roma has reported major
findings and areas for improvement to the Audit Committee. Relevant
recommendations made by Roma have been properly followed up by
the Group to further enhance its internal control policies, procedures
and practices. The Audit Committee reviewed the internal control
review report issued by Roma on the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems for the Year and considered that such systems
are effective and adequate.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Audit Committee

As at the date of this Corporate Governance Report, the Audit
Committee comprises two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. LEE Kwok Wan (chairman) and Ms. SIN Chui Pik, Christine,
and one non-executive Director, namely Mr. WONG Sun Fat, the
majority of which are independent non-executive Directors (including
at least one independent non-executive Director who possesses
the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise). None of the members of the Audit
Committee was a former partner of the Company’s existing external
auditors.

The written terms of reference for the Audit Committee are published
on the websites of the Company (www.newaygroup.com.hk) and of
the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) respectively and are available
to shareholders upon request.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

o to review the financial statements and reports of the Company
and consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
Company’s staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function and external auditors before submission to
the Board;

o to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management systems via the IA function and their associated
procedures; and

o to review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement and make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors.
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EERERRS

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings and
reviewed the Group’s final results and annual report for the year
ended 31 December 2022 and interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2023. The Audit Committee also reviewed with the
management the Group’s accounting policies, the risk management
and internal control systems via the IA function and the effectiveness
of the Company’s IA function. It also discussed auditing, internal
controls and financial reporting matters of the Group, reported to
the Board on material issues, if any, and made recommendations to
the Board. It reviewed the work performed and fees charged by the
external auditors and made recommendation to the Board on the re-
appointment of external auditors.

The Company's final results for the Year have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee. There are no material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the selection and appointment of external
auditors.

External Auditors and Auditor’s Remuneration

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 164 to 170.

For the Year, the remuneration paid/payable to the external auditors
of the Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services
amounted to HK$2,395,000 and HK$839,300 respectively. The non-
audit services charged by the external auditors of the Company for
the Year included (i) interim review of the financial statements of
the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2023; (ii) filling of
tax return of the Company and its subsidiaries; and (iii) professional
services rendered on notifiable transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules conducted during the Year.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communications with the
shareholders are essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance and
strategies. The Group also recognises the importance of transparency
and timely disclosure of corporate information to enable shareholders
and investors to make the best investment decision.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. The Company has adopted
a shareholders communication policy (the “Shareholders
Communication Policy”) in accordance with the CG Code which
provides for different communication channels between the Company
and the shareholders. According to the Shareholders Communication
Policy, the Board is committed to providing clear and full information
of the Group to the shareholders in a timely and effective manner
through making the Company'’s interim and annual reports, notices of
general meeting, circulars, notices, proxy forms and other documents
available to the shareholders as and when appropriate and providing
additional information to the shareholders on the Company’s website
from time to time. Designated officers maintain regular dialogue
with institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of
the Company's developments. Investors may write directly to the
Company at the principal place of business in Hong Kong for any
enquiries. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative
and timely manner.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Company encourages its shareholders to attend general meetings
to ensure a high level of accountability to the shareholders and
for the shareholders to stay informed of the Group's strategy and
goals. External auditors, the Chairman as well as the chairmen of
the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee or, in their
absence, other members of the respective committees, normally
attend the annual general meeting and other relevant general
meetings of the Company to answer questions from the shareholders.

During the Year, the Company had arranged for the notice of its
annual general meeting held on 16 June 2023 (the “2023 AGM") to
be sent to its shareholders at least 20 clear business days beforehand
and at least 10 clear business days for all other general meetings.
All members of the Board and the external auditors attended the
2023 AGM. In light of the above, the Board was satisfied with the
implementation and effectiveness of the Shareholders Communication
Policy.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS (Continued)

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, shareholders of the Company
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary,
to require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may
do so in accordance with Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda, as amended from time to time. The written requisition
must state the objects of the meeting, and must be signed by the
relevant shareholder(s) and deposited to the Company Secretary at
the Company’s principal place of business.

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, (i) shareholders
representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights
of all shareholders having a right to vote at the general meeting;
or (i) not less than one hundred shareholders, can submit a written
requisition stating the resolution which is intended to be moved
at a general meeting, or to submit a statement of not more than
one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

Shareholders who wish to put forward any enquiry to the Board
may send such written enquiry to the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong, to the attention of the Company Secretary.

The Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited, deals with shareholders’ questions on
their shareholdings and related share registration matters.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed at general meetings on each substantially
separate issue, including the election of individual Director.

All resolutions put forward at a general meeting will be taken by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll results will be uploaded on
the websites of the Company (www.newaygroup.com.hk) and of the
Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) respectively after the general
meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there was no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EFZEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, aged 45, was appointed as the Chairman
since August 2009. He has been an executive Director since July 2004
and the chief executive officer of the Company from November 2007
to 31 August 2009. He is currently the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. He is also a director of a number of subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie obtained an EMBA degree and
a Master degree in marketing from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong in 2008 and 2003 respectively. He had two years of experience
in investment banking and subsequently moved to commercial sector
and acted as a director of a private company for two years. Mr. SUEK
Ka Lun, Ernie possesses sophisticated and professional management
experience and is familiar with investment analysis. He is responsible
for monitoring the Group's business development and to search
for business opportunities in the PRC market and overseas. Mr.
SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie has not entered into any service contract with
the Company and there is no designated length of service but his
appointment is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and
other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing
Rules. As at the date of this report, Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie is entitled
to receive a remuneration of HK$2,310,000 per annum.

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie is the nephew of Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, an
executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer, and Dr. NG Wai
Kwan, a non-executive Director.

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, is a director of CNA Company Limited and
Longoing Limited, which has an interest in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and Divisions 3 of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, aged 62, was appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer since August 2009 and has been appointed as an executive
Director since 1992. He is also a director of a number of subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. SUEK Chai Hong obtained a Bachelor degree
of Business Administration in Finance from the York University,
Canada. He has more than 35 years of experience in marketing and
is responsible for running the Company’s businesses and developing
and implementing the Group's strategic plans and business goals.
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong has not entered into any service contract with
the Company and there is no designated length of service but his
appointment is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and
other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing
Rules. As at the date of this report, Mr. SUEK Chai Hong is entitled to
receive a remuneration of HK$1,386,000 per annum.

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong is the uncle of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, an
executive Director and the Chairman.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EFZEE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. NG Wai Kwan, aged 74, was appointed as a non-executive
Director in March 2007. Dr. NG Wai Kwan holds an engineering
doctorate degree from the University of Warwick in the United
Kingdom. Dr. NG Wai Kwan has over 40 years' experience in global
supply chain management, logistics planning, innovation and
executive and leadership development.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment entered into between Dr. NG
Wai Kwan and the Group, Dr. NG Wai Kwan has been appointed
for a term of three years commenced from 1 April 2022 until 31
March 2025 subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and
other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing
Rules and the terms and conditions of his letter of appointment. As
at the date of this report, Dr. NG Wai Kwan is entitled to receive a
remuneration of HK$120,000 per annum.

Dr. NG Wai Kwan is the uncle of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, an executive
Director and the Chairman.

Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren, aged 72, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in February 2002 and was re-
designated as a non-executive Director in November 2007. Mr.
CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants (UK) and a fellow member of the
Institute of the Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and the Chartered Global
Management Accountant.

Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren has over 40 years of experience
in financial management, corporate administration and corporate
finance in several multinational corporations and listed public
companies.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment entered into between Mr.
CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren and the Group, Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi,
Warren has been appointed for a term of three years commenced
from 1 April 2022 until 31 March 2025 subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election and other related provisions as stipulated
in the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules and the terms and conditions
of his letter of appointment. As at the date of this report,
Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren is entitled to receive a remuneration of
HK$169,992 per annum.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EFZEE

Mr. WONG Sun Fat, aged 68, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director from December 1994 to August 2009 and
re-designated as a non-executive Director in August 2009. He is
currently a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. WONG Sun Fat holds a Bachelor degree of Arts from
The University of Hong Kong and has over 35 years of experience in
electronic products business and vast experience in manufacturing
operations.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment entered into between Mr.
WONG Sun Fat and the Group, Mr. WONG Sun Fat has been
appointed for a term of three years commenced from 1 April 2022
until 31 March 2025 subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election and other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws
and the Listing Rules and the terms and conditions of his letter of
appointment. As at the date of this report, Mr. WONG Sun Fat is
entitled to receive a remuneration of HK$120,000 per annum.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LEE Kwok Wan, aged 56, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in April 2013. He is currently a member
of the Nomination Committee, and the chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. LEE Kwok Wan
holds a MBA degree in Business Administration and a Bachelor
degree in Commerce and Accountancy and is an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the CPA
Australia. Mr. LEE Kwok Wan has more than 25 years of accounting
and management experience. He is the chief financial officer of a
sizable company in Hong Kong engaging in the manufacturing of
watches. He was once appointed as the company secretary of the
Company from March 2007 to May 2008.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment entered into between Mr. LEE
Kwok Wan and the Group, Mr. LEE Kwok Wan has been appointed
for a term of three years commenced from 5 April 2022 until 4 April
2025 subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and other
related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules
and the terms and conditions of his letter of appointment. As at
the date of this report, Mr. LEE Kwok Wan is entitled to receive a
remuneration of HK$120,000 per annum.
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EFZEE

Mr. CHU Gun Pui, aged 44, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in June 2017. He is currently a member of the
Nomination Committee. Mr. CHU Gun Pui holds a Bachelor degree of
Commerce majoring in marketing and a Bachelor degree of Science
majoring in computer science from The University of Auckland. Mr.
CHU Gun Pui has over 15 years of experience in sales and marketing
field in entertainment industry.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment entered into between Mr.
CHU Gun Pui and the Group, Mr. CHU Gun Pui has been appointed
for a term of three years commenced from 23 June 2023 until 22
June 2026 subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and
other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing
Rules and the terms and conditions of his letter of appointment. As
at the date of this report, Mr. CHU Gun Pui is entitled to receive a
remuneration of HK$120,000 per annum.

Ms. SIN Chui Pik, Christine, aged 45, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in September 2023. Ms. SIN
Chui Pik, Christine is currently a member of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee. She holds a bachelor's degree
of business administration in accounting from Hong Kong Baptist
University in 2001. Ms. SIN Chui Pik, Christine is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Ms. SIN Chui Pik, Christine has over 21 years of accounting and
auditing experience. She worked for Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
an international public accounting and auditing firm, from 2001
to 2004 and from 2005 to 2014, where she most recently served
as a manager. Ms. SIN Chui Pik, Christine is currently an executive
director of Medicskin Holdings Limited (“Medicskin”, together with
its subsidiaries, “Medicskin Group”), a company listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange with stock code 8307. Ms. SIN Chui Pik, Christine
has also been the chief financial officer of Medicskin Group and the
company secretary of Medicskin since 2014.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment entered into between Ms.
SIN Chui Pik, Christine and the Group, Ms. SIN Chui Pik, Christine
has been appointed for a term of three years commenced from 28
September 2023 to 27 September 2026 subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election and other related provisions as stipulated in
the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules and the terms and conditions of
her letter of appointment. As at the date of this report, Ms. SIN Chui
Pik, Christine is entitled to receive a remuneration of HK$120,000 per
annum.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EFZEE

As at the date of this report, each of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, Mr.
SUEK Chai Hong, Dr. NG Wai Kwan and Mr. WONG Sun Fat has an
interest in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and/
or its associated corporations which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.571, Laws of Hong
Kong). For further details, please refer to the paragraphs headed
"Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures”
of the Directors’ Report of this annual report. There is no change in
such Directors’ interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company and/or its associated corporations within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO from 31 December 2023 up to the date of this
report.
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Directors’ Report

EFEHRS

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Neway
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) present its annual report for the year ended
31 December 2023 (the “Year”). All cross-references mentioned in
this Directors’ Report form part of this Directors’ Report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. During the Year,
the principal activities of the Group include (i) money lending (the
“Lending Business”); (ii) manufacturing and sales of printing and
other products (the “Manufacturing and Sales Business”); (iii)
artists management, production and distribution of music albums,
licensing of musical works and shows investment (the “Music and
Entertainment Business”); (iv) property development (the “Property
Development Business”); (v) property investment (the “Property
Investment Business”); (vi) securities trading (the “Securities Trading
Business”); and (vii) trading of printing and other products (the
“Trading Business”). The principal activities and other details of the
principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages
171 to 172.

No dividend was paid or proposed during the Year.

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
Year (year ended 31 December 2022 (“Year 2022"): Nil).
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Directors’ Report
E5EHRS

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS (Continued)

In order to enhance transparency of the Company and facilitate
the shareholders of the Company and investors to make informed
investment decisions relating to the Company, the Board has adopted
a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”). According to the Dividend
Policy, when determining whether to declare any dividend in the
future and the amount of dividend to be declared, the Company shall
consider a number of factors, including but not limited to:

the Group's actual and expected financial results;

o the general economic conditions and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Company;

o the Company’s business operation strategy, including expected
working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements
and future expansion plans;

o the Company’s liquidity position;

o retained earnings and distributable profit reserves of the
Company;

o the contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends

imposed by the Company’s lenders and other institutions; and

o any other factors that the Board considers to be applicable
from time to time.

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend distribution
proportion or distribution ratio. The declaration, payment and amount
of dividends will be subject to the Board's discretion. The Board will
review the Dividend Policy on a regular basis.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group's businesses with analysis using key
performance indicators and the likely future development of the
Group are set out in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 6 to 26.
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Directors’ Report

EFEHRS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group acquired property, plant and equipment at an aggregate
cost of approximately HK$5.4 million (Year 2022: approximately
HK$15.6 million) during the Year in order to increase its production
capacity. Details of such acquisitions and other movements in the
property, plant and equipment of the Group during the Year are set
out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

On 16 January 2023, the Company cancelled 280,000 shares
repurchased by it during Year 2022. Save as disclosed above, there
was no change in the share capital and capital structure of the
Company during the Year.

ISSUE OF SHARES OR DEBENTURES

During the Year, the Company did not issue any shares or debentures.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the reserves of the Company available for
distribution to its shareholders were approximately HK$556.3 million
(Year 2022: approximately HK$628.4 million), calculated in
accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out on page 320.

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE2EEZERBRAE | Annual Report 2023 F iR

ME - -BERRSZE

REEE ZEEREEYE BEKRRK
&L H 495,400,000 (T2
FE . #4915,600,00087T) » MUIBANEE
o ZEBEBEZHEBRNEAEELREHR

ZME -BERRFEZHMEBSE IR
BMBERERWEE 14
iz s

RN_EBE_=F—H+/, B> &K~ Aa#
HHAABDR_E__FEEL
280,000 f& 17 o Br E XX PR EEE I > K
NERAEAREREBRAEE W EE
@JO

BITRDBES

RAEFE > ARBDHEBITERKRO
(EEaE

] i 53k 1
R_E_=ZF+"B=+—H XK
NBEARDRKTEREZREENS
556,300,000 T (ZE-_FEF |
628,400,000 70) * WA RIEE RE
—hAN—FREEFE-

M HEE

AEBBERAEATHEEZ£ERE
EUREEMEHNE3I208



Directors’ Report

EFEHRS

DIRECTORS

The Board comprises the following Directors during the Year and up
to the date of this Directors’ Report:

Executive Directors:

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (Chairman)
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors:

Dr. NG Wai Kwan
Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren
Mr. WONG Sun Fat

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. LEE Kwok Wan

Mr. LAI Sai Wo, Ricky
(resigned on 30 June 2023)

Mr. CHU Gun Pui

Ms. SIN Chui Pik, Christine
(appointed on 28 September 2023)

In accordance with bye-law 87(1) of the Company’s bye-laws (the
"Bye-laws”), Dr. NG Wai Kwan, Mr. WONG Sun Fat and Mr. LEE
Kwok Wan will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting
(the “2024 AGM") of the Company. Ms. SIN Chui Pik, Christine has
been appointed as an addition to the Board on 28 September 2023.
Pursuant to bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-laws, Ms. SIN Chui Pik, Christine
shall hold office until the 2024 AGM. Being eligible, each of Dr. NG
Wai Kwan, Mr. WONG Sun Fat, Mr. LEE Kwok Wan and Ms. SIN Chui
Pik, Christine will offer himself/herself for re-election at the 2024
AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director being proposed for re-election at the 2024 AGM has
a service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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Directors’ Report
EEEHRS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the "SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers were as follows:

(i) Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company (the “Shares”)

EFENKMD - HEARND RES
Rz R

RN _E =+ _B=+—H 'ExQF
PEERRSTHRAEBREARTRE
B EE (EERESKPERKRG (155
HREAEERF]) EXVER) Z i~ R
B kESF BEEREESAKBER
BIFE352MEBFEE S L MATC &
HREBELMETAETEFTETESRS
MWIZESTRBNEARNT BT
BT -

() MAEABEKREECNETZ
HiEhk (M) 2FE

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

capital of
Number of the Company
Name of director Capacity Shares held (5T B 1T
By 19 FrIERH#EE RAEBOEILL
Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie Founder of a discretionary trust who 39,872,000
("Mr. Ernie Suek”) can influence how the trustee
exercises his discretion’
EEEmYE AR EBRFEANTHERE#EN
(TEEm= Mt ) REFENRIMAT

Interest of controlled corporation?

PR AR 2 2

Beneficial owner

BEm#EAA
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong Beneficial owner
EEEESLSE Em#EAA
Dr. NG Wai Kwan Beneficial owner
SEEEL Em#EAA
Mr. WONG Sun Fat Beneficial owner
=LY Em#EAA
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58,182,000 22.96%
700,000 0.28%
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Directors’ Report

EFEHRS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

()

(i)

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company (the “Shares”) (Continued)

Notes:

1. These Shares are beneficially owned by CNA which is in
turn beneficially owned by the Preserve Capital Trust, a
discretionary trust set up by Mr. Ernie Suek, the beneficiaries
of which include a family member of Mr. Ernie Suek and a
charitable institution set up in Hong Kong.

2. These Shares are beneficially owned by Longoing Limited,

which is a company wholly-owned by Mr. Ernie Suek. Mr. Ernie
Suek is the director of Longoing Limited.

Long positions in the shares of associated
corporations

As at 31 December 2023, CNA beneficially owned deferred
non-voting shares in the following subsidiaries of the
Company:

Name of subsidiary

A

EFENKRG - HEARGRES
iz (18)
(i) BAZM}TEHzE{EOOL%mZ

1.

(i)

dRg (The17)) 29 = (48)
et

ZERMHACNAZ T HES > TCNA
FPreserve Capital Trust (—IB &
EMAERIZERETL HER
m ANOEEEB LY — 2Rk
MER—TEREBERILZESH
) BEmER-

ZE 1A HLongoing Limited& &
P > Mlongoing Limited% FRES
BB BB AT ER
B4 4E Alongoing LimitedfE
Ho

BA*E jH /i.ﬂxﬁJ\Zt&E

A _E_=F+_RA=+—8"
CNABmBEBEERAE TNIHER
BB ERIRIERR :

Number of deferred
non-voting shares held

by pNCIEY FEBEREREZER#E
New Box Mini Storage Limited 2
RRKIRBEBRAE

Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited 100
FRARENR (RED BIRAF

Chung Tai Printing Company Limited 3,000
RRENBIBERAE

The Greatime Offset Printing Company Limited 9,500

AR BRAE

The rights and restrictions of such deferred non-voting shares
are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

ZEERERIEIERI S Z EF
REHEHNGEEMBRRME

410
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Directors’ Report

EFEHRS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

(i)

Long positions in the shares of associated
corporations (Continued)

CNA is beneficially owned by the Preserve Capital Trust,
a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Ernie Suek and the
beneficiaries of which include a family member of Mr. Ernie
Suek and a charitable institution set up in Hong Kong. Mr.
Ernie Suek is deemed to be interested in all the deferred non-
voting shares owned by CNA in the above subsidiaries of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, no
other Directors or chief executive of the Company had any
interest or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (i) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including the interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or (ii) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii) were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in the Listing Rules to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ Report
E5EHRS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2023, so far as was known to the Directors,
the following persons, other than the Directors or chief executive
of the Company, had interests or short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of

Part XV of SFO:

Long Positions

FERR

N R —F+__RA=+—H '#MEF
FIR U TAL (BEEHEARTDZES
TN BRRIN) 5RRRAD R A8 BA AR (D &
BERBESRBERAIEXVEFE2KRE
3R BOR R RBRFAINE

BmaalT

5=}

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

capital of
the Company
Number of o /NS
Name of shareholder Capacity Shares held BETREZ
RERLE 819 FriFRe {5 8B S =R g
CNA’ Beneficial owner 39,872,000 15.74%
BEm#EAA
Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited’ Trustee 39,872,0007 15.74%
SEEA
Alpadis Group Holding AG’ Interest of controlled corporation 39,872,000° 15.74%
RIEFLEE 2 #m
Alain Esseiva’ Interest of controlled corporation 39,872,0007 15.74%
RIEEGLEE 2 #m
Wei Lee Teo’ Interest of spouse 39,872,000° 15.74%
BofBEm
Longoing Limited? Beneficial owner 16,730,0007 6.60%

Bm#EAA
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Directors’ Report

EFEHRS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Long Positions (Continued)

Notes:

1. CNA is beneficially owned by the Preserve Capital Trust, a discretionary
trust set up by Mr. Ernie Suek, the beneficiaries of which include a
family member of Mr. Ernie Suek and a charitable institution set up
in Hong Kong. Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited, which is wholly-owned by
Alpadis Group Holding AG, is the trustee of Preserve Capital Trust.
Alpadis Group Holding AG was owned as to 94% by Alain Esseiva.

2. These 39,872,000 Shares duplicate with those held by CNA.

3. Spouse of Alain Esseiva.

4. Longoing Limited is a company wholly-owned by Mr. Ernie Suek. These

16,730,000 Shares duplicate with 16,730,000 Shares which Mr. Ernie
Suek is interested in.

Save as disclosed above, so far as was known to the Directors, as
at 31 December 2023, there was no other person, other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company, who had an interest or
short position in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
Previous Share Option Scheme

On 13 February 2014, a share option scheme (the “Previous Share
Option Scheme”) was approved by shareholders of the Company
and adopted by the Company. According to the rules of the Previous
Share Option Scheme, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, it
would remain in force until 16 February 2024, being 10 years after
the date of its adoption. The Previous Share Option Scheme was
terminated (the “Termination”) by the shareholders at the Company’s
annual general meeting held on 16 June 2023 (the “2023 AGM") in
view of the new requirements under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules
which became effective on 1 January 2023 (the “New Share Scheme
Rules”).
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Directors’ Report
E5EHRS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Previous Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The purpose of the Previous Share Option Scheme was to enable
the Company to grant options to eligible participants as incentives
or rewards for their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the
Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract human
resources that were valuable to the Group and any entity in which the
Group held an equity interest (the “Invested Entity”).

The Directors might, subject to the provisions of the Previous Share
Option Scheme and the Listing Rules, invite any person belonging to
any of the following classes of participants to take up the options:

(a)

any employee (whether full time or part time, including any
executive Director but excluding any non-executive Director) of
the Company, any of its subsidiary or any Invested Entity;

any non-executive Director (including independent non-
executive Directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or
any Invested Entity;

any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity;

any customer of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity;

any person or entity that provided research, development or
other technological support to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity;

any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any
area of business or business development of any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity; and
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Directors’ Report
E5EHRS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Previous Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(h) any other group or classes of participants who had contributed
or may contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance or
other business arrangements to the development and growth
of the Group.

and, for the purposes of the Previous Share Option Scheme, the
offer might be made to any company wholly-owned by one or more
persons belonging to any of the above classes of eligible participants.

As at 1 January 2022 and up until the Termination, the total number
of Shares which might be allotted and issued upon exercise of all
options granted under the Previous Share Option Scheme and any
other schemes must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the aggregate
number of issued Shares at the day on which the Previous Share
Option Scheme was adopted, which was 10,193,545 Shares
(restated to reflect the share consolidation effected on 5 April 2016),
representing approximately 4.02% of the issued Shares as at the
date of this Directors’ Report. The maximum number of Shares which
might be allotted and issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Previous Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes must not in aggregate exceed 30% of
aggregate number of issued Shares from time to time.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted under the Previous Share Option Scheme
and any other schemes to each participant in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the aggregate number of issued Shares from
time to time. Share options granted to a Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company or any of their respective
associates must be approved by the independent non-executive
Directors (excluding independent non-executive Director who was
a grantee of the options). Where any grant of options would result
in the Shares issued or to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted to a substantial shareholder of the Company or
an independent non-executive Director or any of their respective
associate in excess of 0.1% of the aggregate number of issued Shares
and having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the
Shares at the date of grant, in excess of HK$5 million in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant, such further grant
of options must be approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting.
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Directors’ Report
E5EHRS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Previous Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The subscription price for Shares under the Previous Share Option
Scheme shall be a price determined by the Directors, but shall not be
less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the offer date, which
must be a business day; (i) the average closing price of the Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the
nominal value of a Share. A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 was
payable on acceptance of the grant of an option.

An option might be accepted by a participant within 21 days from the
date of the offer for grant of the option.

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the offer
for the grant of options to grantees, there was no performance target
and no minimum period for which an option must be held before it
could be exercised under the Previous Share Option Scheme.

An option might be exercised during such period as the Directors
might determine, save that such period shall not be more than 10
years from the date of grant.

Since its adoption and up until the Termination, no option had ever
been granted under the Previous Share Option Scheme.

Existing Share Option Scheme

In view of the New Share Scheme Rules, a new share option scheme
(the “Existing Share Option Scheme") was approved by shareholders
of the Company at the 2023 AGM and was subsequently adopted
by the Company on 20 June 2023 in accordance with Chapter 17 of
the Listing Rules. According to the rules of the Existing Share Option
Scheme, unless otherwise terminated or amened, it will remain
in force until 19 June 2033, being 10 years after the date of its
adoption.

The purposes of the Existing Share Option Scheme are to enable the
Company to grant options to the Eligible Participants (as defined
below) as incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential
contribution to the growth and development of the Group and/or
enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre Eligible Participants
and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group.
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E5EHRS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Existing Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The Directors (or a duly authorised committee thereof) may, subject
to the provisions of the Existing Share Option Scheme and the Listing
Rules, invite any of the following eligible participant(s) (the “Eligible
Participant(s)”) to subscribe for Shares:

(@) director(s) and employee(s) of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries (including person(s) who are granted options
under the Existing Share Option Scheme as an inducement to
enter into employment contracts with such companies) (the
"Employee Participant(s)”);

(b) director(s) and employee(s) of the holding companies, fellow
subsidiaries or associated companies of the Company; and

(c) person(s) who provide services to the member(s) of the
Group on a continuing or recurring basis in its ordinary and
usual course of business which are in the interests of the
long-term growth of the Group, excluding placing agents or
financial advisers who provide advisory services for fundraising,
mergers or acquisitions or professional service providers such
as auditors or valuers who provide assurance or are required
to perform their services with impartiality and objectivity (the

"

“Service Provider(s)").

The total number of Shares which may be issued in respect of all
options and awards to be granted under the Existing Share Option
Scheme and any other share scheme(s) of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue on the date on which
the Existing Share Option Scheme was adopted (i.e. 25,335,945
Shares) (the “Scheme Mandate Limit"), which represent approximately
10% of the issued Shares as at the date of this Directors’ Report. The
total number of Shares which may be issued in respect of all options
and awards to be granted to the Service Provider(s) under the Existing
Share Option Scheme and any other share scheme(s) of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 1% of the Shares in issue on the
date on which the Existing Share Option Scheme was adopted (i.e.
2,533,594 Shares) (the “Service Provider Sublimit”), which represent
approximately 1% of the issued Shares as at the date of this Directors’
Report. Subject to the rules of the Existing Share Option Scheme and
the Listing Rules, the Scheme Mandate Limit (and the Service Provider
Sublimit) may be refreshed.
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Directors’ Report
E5EHRS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Existing Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Where any grant of options to an individual Eligible Participant would
result in the Shares issued and to be issued in respect of all options
and awards granted to such Eligible Participant (excluding any options
or awards lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Existing Share
Option Scheme and any other share scheme(s) of the Company) in
the 12-month period up to and including the date of such grant
representing in aggregate over 1% of the Shares in issue, such grant
must be separately approved by the Shareholders in general meeting
with such Eligible Participant and his/her close associates (or associates
where such Eligible Participant is a connected person of the Company)
abstaining from voting. Any grant of options under the Existing
Share Option Scheme to any Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company or any of their respective associates must
be approved by the independent non-executive Directors (excluding
any independent non-executive Director who or whose associate is
the proposed grantee of the options).

Where any grant of options to an independent non-executive Director
or a substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their respective
associates, would result in the Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options and awards already granted (excluding any
options or awards lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Existing
Share Option Scheme and any other share scheme(s) of the Company)
to such person in the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such grant representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares
in issue, such further grant of options must be approved by the
shareholders in general meeting.

The subscription price in respect of any option shall be a price
determined at the discretion of the Directors, but shall not be less
than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date; and (ii) the
average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date. A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is
payable on acceptance of the grant of an option.

An option may be accepted by an Eligible Participant within 21 days
from the date of the offer for grant of the option.

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Existing Share Option
Scheme, the Directors may establish performance targets against the
attainment of which the options granted to the Eligible Participant
concerned may be exercised either in whole or in part.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Existing Share Option Scheme (Continued)

An option may be exercised during such period as the Directors may
determine, save that such period shall not be more than 10 years from
the date of grant.

The vesting period in respect of any option granted to any Eligible
Participant shall not be less than 12 months from the offer date,
provided that where the Eligible Participant is an Employee Participant,
the remuneration committee of the Board (the “Remuneration
Committee”) (in the case where such Employee Participant is a
Director or a senior manager identified by the Company) or the
Directors (in the case where such Employee Participant is neither
a Director nor a senior manager identified by the Company) shall
have the authority to determine a shorter vesting period, if the
Remuneration Committee (or, as the case may be, the Directors)
considers that a shorter vesting period is appropriate to align with
the purpose of the Existing Share Option Scheme. Notwithstanding
the terms and conditions of the Existing Share Option Scheme, the
Directors may provide in the notice of the offer that any option prior
to it being exercised may be subject to clawback and/or a longer
vesting period if any of the clawback events (as defined under the
rules of the Existing Share Option Scheme) shall occur.

No option has ever been granted to any Eligible Participant under the
Existing Share Option Scheme since its adoption.

As at 31 December 2023, the total number of Shares which may be
issued in respect of all options and awards available for grant under
the Scheme Mandate Limit and the Service Provider Sublimit was
25,335,945 Shares and 2,533,594 Shares respectively.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Previous Share Option Scheme and the Existing Share
Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Group during the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the Year, none of the Directors had any interest in any business
which competed or was likely to compete, either any directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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Directors’ Report

EFEHRS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save for the Previous Share Option Scheme and the Existing Share
Option Scheme, at no time during the Year was the Company, or
any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Save as disclosed in notes 27 and 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, none of the Directors or an entity connected with a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and which was subsisting as at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the Year, the Group has engaged in a continuing connected
transaction which is subject to annual reporting requirement in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of the continuing connected
transaction is set out below:

Continuing Connected Transaction
Lease of commercial property in Hong Kong

The Group completed the acquisition of the entire issued share capital
of Supreme Cycle Inc. (“Supreme Cycle”) on 30 November 2016.
The principal activities of Supreme Cycle are investment holding and
property investment and its principal assets is the whole of 3/F, Hop
Yick Commercial Centre (Phase 1), 33 Hop Choi Street, Yuen Long,
New Territories, Hong Kong (the “Yuen Long Property”). Pursuant to
the tenancy agreement (the “Tenancy Agreement”) dated 1 August
2023 entered into between Supreme Cycle as landlord and Paco
Corporation Limited (“Paco Corporation”) as tenant, the Yuen Long
Property have been leased to Paco Corporation for an initial term of
three years from 1 August 2023 to 31 July 2026. Paco Corporation
is ultimately wholly-owned by Dr. Suek Chai Kit Christopher, who is
a merchant and is the father of Mr. Ernie Suek and the brother of
Mr. Suek Chai Hong, both being executive Directors. Dr. Suek Chai
Kit Christopher is also the brother-in-law of Dr. Ng Wai Kwan, a
non-executive Director. By virtue of the above, Paco Corporation is
a connected person of the Company and the entering into of the
Tenancy Agreement between Supreme Cycle and Paco Corporation
constitutes a continuing connected transaction for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTION (Continued)

Continuing Connected Transaction (Continued)
Lease of commercial property in Hong Kong (Continued)
Principal terms

The terms of the Tenancy Agreement were determined after arm’s
length negotiations between the parties thereto. The principal terms
of the Tenancy Agreement are set out below:

Use: Operation of a karaoke outlet or related business ancillary to
karaoke operations conducted by Paco Corporation and its
affiliated companies.

Term: Three years commencing from 1 August 2023 to 31 July 2026

(both dates inclusive).

Rent: A monthly rent of HK$262,400 (exclusive of Government rent,
rates, management fee, air-conditioning charges (if any) and all
other outgoings) payable monthly in advance.

During the Year, the rental income charged by the Group to Paco
Corporation was approximately HK$1.3 million (Year 2022: Nil).
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EFEHRS

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTION (Continued)

Continuing Connected Transaction (Continued)

Lease of commercial property in Hong Kong (Continued)
Annual caps

The annual caps for the transaction contemplated under the Tenancy

Agreement (the “Annual Caps”) are set out below:

For the year

Eg\ 5&%&? n\E 7‘?% (I%g)

if‘é’e;#ﬁfg Eﬁi /ELC ),
FE LR
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Annual Caps

ended/ending 31 December amount
BE+"HA=1+—HLEE FELREE

(HK$)

(B7T)
2023 :giifﬁ 1,312,000
2024 —ZMmF 3,148,800
2025 —TTHEF 3,148,800
2026 “ETX 1,836,800

Details of the above transaction have been set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 1 August 2023.

The terms of the Tenancy Agreement were negotiated between
Supreme Cycle and Paco Corporation on an arm’s length basis.
The monthly rent was determined based on the prevailing market
conditions and with reference to (i) the amount of market rent
for comparable properties situated in the vicinity of the Yuen
Long Property around the time when the Tenancy Agreement was
signed; and (i) the monthly rent received by Supreme Cycle from an
independent tenant for the leasing of the Yuen Long Property from 1
August 2020 to 31 July 2023, which was also HK$262,400.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTION (Continued)

Continuing Connected Transaction (Continued)

The Group has undertaken the following internal control measures to
monitor the rent and the terms of the transaction contemplated under
the Tenancy Agreement and ensure that the same will be no more
favourable than rents and terms offered by the Group to independent
tenants and that the Annual Caps are not exceeded:

(i) monitoring the prevailing market rents at similar locations on a
quarterly basis;

(ii) adhering to the relevant internal control policy of the Group
on connected transactions in monitoring the rent under
the Tenancy Agreement to ensure that it shall be no more
favourable than those offered by the Group to independent
tenants;

(iii) the independent non-executive Directors will review and
confirm on an annual basis that the rent and the terms under
the Tenancy Agreement are fair and reasonable to the Group
and in the interests of the Shareholders and the Group as
a whole, and are no more favourable than rents and terms
offered by the Group to independent tenants; and

(iv) the auditors of the Company will review the rent and the
terms under the Tenancy Agreement and the Annual Caps on
an annual basis in compliance with the annual reporting and
review requirements under the Listing Rules.

The above continuing connected transaction has been reviewed by
the independent non-executive Directors. The independent non-
executive Directors have confirmed that it was entered into (i) in
the ordinary and usual course of the Group's Property Investment
Business; (i) on normal commercial terms; and (iii) in accordance with
the Tenancy Agreement and on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interest of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTION (Continued)

Continuing Connected Transaction (Continued)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
engaged its external auditors to perform certain agreed-upon
procedures in respect of the above continuing connected transaction.
The auditors have reported to the Board confirming that nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that the above
continuing connected transaction (i) has not been approved by the
Board; (ii) was not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the Tenancy Agreement; and (iii) has exceeded the relevant
Annual Cap.

The Directors confirmed that the related party transactions as
disclosed in note 36(a) to the consolidated financial statements fall
under the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” (as the case may be) under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Directors confirmed that the Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of such transactions.

The Directors confirmed that the related party transactions as
disclosed in note 36(b) to the consolidated financial statements do not
fall under the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” (as the case may be) under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the existing independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her
independence with reference to the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the existing
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Particular consideration was paid in assessing the independence of Mr.
LEE Kwok Wan, an independent non-executive Director, who has been
serving on the Board for more than 9 years since 5 April 2013 and will
be seeking to be re-elected at the 2024 AGM. Reasons will be given
in the circular of the 2024 AGM as to why the Board believes he is still
independent and should be re-elected.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the general staff of the Group is determined
by the management of the Group with reference to the market
conditions and qualifications of the employees. The reward packages
for the staff are generally reviewed on an annual basis, depending on
the staff's and the Group’s performance.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board having
regard to the Company's operating results, individual duties and
responsibilities and performance and market practice and conditions.

The Existing Share Option Scheme as set out on pages 67 to 70
above was also adopted by the Company as a long-term incentive or
rewards for the staff’s contribution.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Throughout the Year, the Company applied the principles of and
complied with all the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
contained in Part 2 of Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules. Details of the
corporate governance practices of the Group during the Year are set
out in Corporate Governance Report on pages 27 to 50.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Year and as at the date of this Directors’ Report, an
indemnity provision was in force such that the Directors should be
indemnified by the Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses they may incur or sustain in the execution of
their duty.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance for the
Directors and officers of the Group for indemnifying their liabilities
arising out of corporate activities of the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.
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TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the shares
of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date
prior to the date of this Directors’ Report, at least 25% of the issued
Shares were held by the public throughout the Year.

DONATIONS

The Group made donations for charitable or other purposes of
approximately HK$295,000 for the Year (Year 2022: approximately
HK$260,000) and donated a total of 220 boxes, each containing 50
surgical masks to the charitable organisations in Hong Kong.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND ENVIRONMENTAL
POLICIES

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it engages. Acting in an
environmentally responsible manner, the Group endeavours to identify
and adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of resources,
energy saving and waste reduction. Please refer to the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report on pages 81 to 163 for further
information on the work done and efforts made by the Company on
environmental protection and other aspects for sustainable growth
and development of the business of the Group.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial performance, operating results, business operation
and prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties.
The key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group are set out
below. However, there may be other risks and uncertainties in addition
to those shown below, which are not known to the Group or which
may not be material now but may become material in the future. The
management of the Company meets periodically to discuss these risks,
and where appropriate, will monitor these risks closely and adopt any
necessary risk mitigation measures. In respect of the details of the
risk management system and internal audit function of the Company,
please refer to the paragraphs headed “Risk Management and Internal
Control” on pages 42 to 45.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(Continued)

Business Risk

The Group currently has seven operating segments in various
industries and each operating segment has its specific business risks.
For the Manufacturing and Sales Business and the Trading Business,
the Group is subject to intense competition in terms of product
prices and production costs, and is also affected by seasonal factors
prevailing in the countries of targeted and existing customers. For
the Lending Business, the collectability of outstanding loans and
the customer network of the Group are both affecting the financial
performance of the segment. The Music and Entertainment Business
may be affected by the economic environment of Hong Kong and
the PRC as it will have an impact on the consumption behaviors of
both individual and corporate customers. Besides, for the Property
Development Business, the demand for industrial buildings in and
adjacent to Qingyuan City and the economic environment of the
PRC may also affect the sales of industrial buildings of the Zhongxing
Industrial Park. To maintain the competitiveness of the Group, the
management of the Company will meet regularly with the head of the
respective business units to keep itself up-to-date with the business
environment.

Environmental Risk

The Group’s Manufacturing and Sales Business is obliged to comply
with a variety of environment protection laws and regulations on the
discharge and disposal of waste materials, water and gas imposed by
relevant governmental bodies in the PRC. These law and regulations
govern the disposal of these wastes and impose fines and penalties
for serious violation of environmental requirements, and any non-
compliance may jeopardise the operating licences of the Group's
subsidiaries engaged in the Manufacturing and Sales Business.

Moreover, environmental laws and regulations applicable to the Group
are subject to change from time to time. It may be impracticable
for the Group to continuously quantify the costs of complying with
such laws and regulations, and any further change may also lead
to a substantial increase in the operating costs of the Group. In this
regard, the management of the Company regularly reviews adherence
to relevant environmental laws and regulations with the head of the
Manufacturing and Sales Business.
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Directors’ Report

EFEHRS

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(Continued)

Market Price Risk

The Group’'s Securities Trading Business is exposed to the risk of
decreasing fair values of equity securities as a result of the volatile
market changes. The management of the Company together with
the Investment Management Committee of the Board monitor
the changes of respective securities’ prices and may change the
investment portfolio held and investment strategy whenever
necessary.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group's operations are carried out both in Hong Kong and the
PRC and are regulated by their laws and regulations accordingly. In
particular, the Group’s Manufacturing and Sales Business is obliged
to comply with a variety of environmental protection laws and
regulations on the discharge of waste, water and pollutants and the
labour law in the PRC. While any non-compliance may attract fines
and penalties and jeopardise the operating licences of the Group,
the imposition of more stringent regulations may also increase the
operating costs of the business segment.

During the Year and up to date of this Directors’ Report, the Group
has complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact in Hong Kong and the PRC. For details, please refer
to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 81 to
163.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the percentage of purchases attributable to the 5
largest suppliers combined was less than 30%. The percentage of
revenue from sales of goods or rendering of services attributable to
the 5 largest customers combined was also less than 30%.
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EFEHRS

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group strives to maintain a strong relationship with its suppliers,
customers, employees and other stakeholders to meet its immediate
and long-term goals. Please refer to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report on pages 81 to 163 for further information.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu who shall retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-appointment at the 2024 AGM. A resolution will be proposed
at the 2024 AGM to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the
auditors of the Company.

There has been no change of auditors of the Company in any of the
preceding three financial years.

On behalf of the Board

SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2024
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This report is the eighth Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG)
report released by Neway Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”),
including its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the “Group” or
‘'we", since 2016. It provides insights into the Group’s management
methodologies, goals, and performance across environmental,
social, and governance aspects, thereby enhancing stakeholders’
understanding of the Group’s sustainable development strategies and
efforts.

The ESG Report focuses on the Group's printing business in Hong
Kong and Mainland China, and complies with the Environmental,
Social, and Governance Reporting Guide of Appendix C2 to the
Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEX")
and the “comply or explain” provisions.

Reporting Standard and Principles

The ESG Report has been prepared in compliance with the reporting
principles outlined in the Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG)
Reporting Guide of HKEX. The principles of Materiality, Quantitative,
Balance and Consistency form the foundation of the content
presented in this ESG Report.

Reporting Boundary and Scope

The boundary of this ESG Report remains unchanged from the
previous year. Three principal subsidiaries of the Group’s printing
products manufacturing and sales business, which have an important
impact on the Group’s operations, are listed below:

o Chung Tai Printing (International) Company Limited;

. 2R KENR) CEYI) BFRAE (unofficial English translation
being Neway Chung Tai Printing (Shenzhen) Company Limited)

("Neway Chung Tai Printing”);

. tREENR] CRII) BFRAE (unofficial English translation being
Kam Hon Printing (Shenzhen) Company Limited) (“Kam Hon
Printing”).

The reporting period is from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023,
which is the same as financial year of the Group’s 2023 annual report.
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY
Board Statement

We believe that robust ESG governance principles and strategies are
crucial for long-term sustainable development of the Group'’s business.
The Board is responsible for overseeing the overall environmental,
social, and governance risks and opportunities. This includes
establishing sustainable development strategies and goals, reviewing
target progress, regularly reporting to stakeholders, and managing the
potential impact of ESG risks on operations.

The Group has established a top-down ESG governance structure and
mechanism for regular risk assessments and recommending measures
to management representatives for mitigating risks, with specific
responsibilities. Under the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer,
management representatives lead five major groups, responsible
for the management of ESG risks, which include labour risks,
occupational health and safety risks, environmental risks, business
ethics risks and compliance risks, and reporting to the Board of
Directors in a timely manner.

Management Representatives
BEEAR

Labour Executive

Committee
BIRTES/NE

Remuneration and
benefits _
eyl

Discrimination
prevention

B LR 7R

Child/forced labour
prevenUon

BHJJ: ERET R

Freedom of association

£gHMH
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Health and Safety
Executive Committee

BREZ291TE8/4E

Occupational health
and safety
BERRERZE

Emergency
preparedness
e
Work injury
I =

77

Machinery
maintenance

8

Health and safety
communication

REAZEER

Environmental Executive

Committee

RIBEATERE/NAE

Pollution prevention
Ve

Resources conservation

BNER

Waste and effluent

BEEMRI5K

Raw materials

[RH#

Hazardous materials

BEEME
Air and GHG emissions

control
ERRRERETK

2]

Extreme weather
events
BiHARER

AIIFEEER
EETEH
R4 F2MESGHRIBRAIF K

HAEREGHNRANFELZRER
EE-EERaSREERNRE

gRERRERE RS b@%%ﬂfﬁﬁﬁ%}
BERBRNBEE BEERER

HRFNERS U EEESGAR ’ij‘
EENEERE-

REBCEIB LM NWESGEAZRE

Rl 0 EHET B ET S wmEE
BAREL RRERIEIESR BRREME

FERE - EITHEHNEET BB
ﬁ%@%%ﬁﬁfligd\ FEEEEIRE
HenEARE ETREES TAER-
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EERRERERAR THNEETER
]

Ethics Executive
Com_mittee
EERTEE/NE

Management System

Executive Cgmmittee
BIERBRIITEZENAE

Business ethics ¢ Legal compliance
[EESELS ERA
Information disclosure e Risk assessment and
EERE management
KTl B B TR
Intellectual property
rights protection e Target management
REFHERE BREE
Privacy protection e Training management
TREBTARE EIIEE
e Employee engagement
BES2H

e Supplier management

HEmEE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY (Continued)
Board Statement (Continued)

The Group has set its goals under the guidance of the Board,
for enhancement of its social, environmental, and governance
performance and to better fulfil the needs of stakeholders. These
goals are regularly reviewed and updated as necessary to promote
sustainable development of the Group.

The Board takes responsibility to ensure the integrity of the report
and confirms that it includes all significant material issues, accurately
reflecting the Group’s ESG performance. To the best of its knowledge,
this ESG Report fairly discloses the details, impact, and management
of significant issues related to the environment, society, and
governance for the Group. The ESG Report has been reviewed and
approved by the Board.

Sustainable Development Pillar

Sustainable
Development Pillar

Our
Commitment
A (] opE s

AFEERIE

o] {5 4R 3% R R g ()
EFEEH®
FERBRBEFGIE3IRULABU
M HME BEREARRREF
MERNEFR LEHBERLER
SRR B R » L2 1 S P 0 5
BEo

EFgAERFRARS TEMENEE:
WHESBIRS P RENAE EXEE KR
ERBAEENRE - HERERE
B-BEFEMAN ARIE-HERK
ERARMESAEMIFE T RIRE - HEK
EAEMNERZENMS -FERE
BER -ARE-HEREABRSEL
BEFEER A

AFFEERE

ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION
IRIGREE

climate change.

BIEHER

PEOPLE-ORIENTED
YN EN

SR TRIRIG

OPERATIONAL
EXCELLENCE
EESW

business environment.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
HESHR

o

The Group is dedicated to building a sound environmental management
system and actively explores energy-saving and emissions reduction measures.
We aim to contribute to promoting green development and protecting the
ecological environment while actively addressing the risks and opportunities of

FEERNINRYRE2MIRFEERG TRBRRAERIIEMR KPS
ERBEHRESCNERMREBNRE  BEERCERNRELRIR

The Group advocates a diverse and inclusive corporate culture, placing high
importance on the professional and personal development of employees.
Through talent retention, attraction, and development, we strive to create a
safe, equitable, and harmonious work environment.

FEERERUZSTHOFTNEENL SEERETIHNEERERAR
BAAZER - BBATRE RIIREE ZABAORAELE  AERM

The Group places great emphasis on management of the supply chain,
products, and anti-corruption efforts. Through the implementation of strict
control measures and goal setting, we are committed to building a favourable

AEMIFEERBAEBEE  ERSTBEURKETIE - SBEMBEHES
Btk ERRE RARIRBEZENNBERE

The Group carries a sense of social responsibility and actively participates in
charitable endeavours, contributing to a better community.

FEESEHEEMAR YRB2RAZEFE BERBPEFNUHEFHE

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE&EEZKARAT | Annual Report 2023 F iR

83




Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY (Continued)
Process to determine materiality

In the process of pursuing sustainable development of the Group,
we maintain regular and consistent communication through diverse
channels with stakeholders such as employees, customers, suppliers,
investors, government, and the community in order to understand
their concerns and perspectives on sustainability issues and our

performance.
Stakeholder Groups Issues of Concern
FinERE R
Customers Customer satisfaction
ER ERMERRE
Data privacy
BRFETA
Employees Training and development
== Bl R
Occupational health and safety
BERERRZE
Suppliers Third party risk management
g =FHREERE
Investors Corporate governance
KREE TEER
Business operations
FHBEME
Information disclosure
ERKE
Government Legitimacy of service and business ethics
AT RIS EME REEER
Tax Compliance
MBER
Community Environmental protection
& IRIE(RE
Contribution to the community
HENE/
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Communication Channels

BERE

Company website
PN/NSIE N
Feedback by phone
BENEER

Formal process for handling complaints

RERFHNENER

Staff meetings
ETE3E

Annual appraisals

R RS

Website for prospective suppliers

BEHIERE AL

Supplier assessment

g

Supplier conference

{/\FEF% = D?‘z

Annual reports and interim reports

FHRMPHERS

Corporate communications and press
releases

= SEHNE S

Compliance with applicable laws and
regulations

BT ERERRER

Compliance with applicable laws and
regulations

BTERERRER

Support charitable institutions

SR ERRE
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY (Continued)
Process to determine materiality (Continued)

Our materiality assessments follow the principle of “materiality”

E.I- ?‘f n= é;% }E ﬁ Eg (n\E)
EEEEMMNBEE (@)
?/;ﬁE’J%E‘I‘iuﬂﬁf_ﬁ*%%ﬁs&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ

reporting required by the ESG Reporting Guide of the Hong Kong (IRIE - HEREARSIESIDIFIRE
Stock Exchange. We regularly review the issue inventory based on MIEEM I RERA - RFARBELAER

the development of the Group and industry dynamics, and take
actions based on the outcome of materiality assessment validated by

management.

RITEHENERERRSZESE
TRECEEBEMBNEZ TG
E’JI\D%TKHY{T@JO

Material Topics Action Taken
BEEEE REEITE

satisfaction

ERMEREE

ﬁ@ Customer

Occupational
Health and

@H) Safety
BERBERZR

Corporate
governance
@ RES

AN Environmental

protection
. L IRIERE

Conduct annual customer satisfaction survey

ETFERAAEERAE

Communicate with customers regularly to get feedback
EHAE R R B E L EUS

Set internal policy to ensure data privacy

1 % P9 BR BURFE (R BUR R A

Educate and train all staff to protect data

HE MBI ZRE T RERE

Provide various kinds of training to all staff

~EBE TR EEI

Received ISO 45001 certification for OHS Management System
BRBERRRZEEERRISO 4500112 % E

Set up EHS committee to address and monitor OHS issues of the Group
RURE - BEEZ2ZENERERGEEAEERERERLES
H

The Board oversees management of the relevant issues, and takes
responsibility for reviewing the report

EFEgREHMEENEEREEERRE

Various internal policies are set such as Business Conduct Guidelines to
ensure our business operations comply with the laws and regulations
BRIEZENSN B RN EETAHERERRMNEELERTS A
R ER

Take responsibility for protecting the environment and set sustainability
targets

AIERERERGEFEERNEE

Actively engage with the community in ways such as donations, activities
participation

NUZBAHNBE2ET&ED (IBE R EES)
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AWARDS RECEIVED IN 2023

Awards

8218

Kam Hon Printing

S R EN R

National (Shenzhen) Excellent Enterprises with
Foreign Investment — Harmonious Labour
relationship Promotion (2022-2023)

2E GFRY) EFIEmRECE-—NELEE
B IES (2022-20234FE)

National (Shenzhen) Excellent Enterprises with
Foreign Investment — Compliance Construction
Promotion (2022-2023)

2 (R BFIIERELE-—ERERR
# 5% (2022-20235 )

National (Shenzhen) Excellent Enterprises

with Foreign Investment — Carbon Reduction
Promotion (2022-2023)

2E CFY) BHFIEEELE —BERRIE
#HE (2022-20235F)

Awards
4218
Neway Chung Tai Printing
R Fh 2 KENRI

National (Shenzhen) Excellent Enterprises
with Foreign Investment — Carbon Reduction
_I Promotion (2022-2023)

20 GRY) BEFIINEREDE S ORI
A (2022-20235F )

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group attaches great importance to environmental protection
and remains dedicated to mitigating the environmental impacts of
its operations. The Group continuously strengthens its environmental
management approach and keeps the environmental targets on track.
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Awarding organisations

NREEEAE

China Association of Enterprises with
Foreign Investment, Shenzhen Association of
Enterprises with Foreign Investment

PEINBKREREGS RIS ERERER
&=

=

China Association of Enterprises with

Foreign Investment, Shenzhen Association of
Enterprises with Foreign Investment
FESMEER B EEGE RIS EEREEER
©r

=

China Association of Enterprises with

Foreign Investment, Shenzhen Association of
Enterprises with Foreign Investment
FESNERBEEEGE RN EREEER
&

=

Awarding organisations

NRERHEAE

China Association of Enterprises with
Foreign Investment, Shenzhen Association of
Enterprises with Foreign Investment

PEIMEREREGE RSB RERER
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Environmental Management

To strengthen the environmental management and reduce the
impacts of its operations on the environment, the Group has set up
an Environmental Executive Committee responsible for identifying
potential impacts of its operations through site inspections and
reviewing performance records and reports. The management of
the Group takes the full responsibility of assuring the environmental
management is effectively incorporated into business processes,
approving the environmental targets, and ensuring efficient allocation
of resources and compliance with the related laws and regulations’.
To strengthen environmental management, the Group has established
the environmental management system (“EMS”) that helps stringent
control of environmental factors. The EMSs of the Group's two
subsidiaries: Neway Chung Tai Printing and Kam Hon Printing have
been certified for ISO 14001:2016 standard.

An Environmental Management Team has been set up by the Group'’s
subsidiaries, led by management representatives to ensure efficient
management in factories. The team handles environmental issues and
takes the responsibility of planning and implementing environmental
practices including hazardous chemicals control and monitoring of
environmental indicators. The team manages these issues according to
a series of well defined management procedures set for management
of waste, handling of chemicals and dangerous goods and utilisation
of energy and resources.

L Please refer to the section headed Laws and Regulations for
environmental-related laws and regulations.

IRIGRE (1)
RIREE

ANBREEERRVHEHEEHIRE
MEE REBRERENTEZE /N
H EEEEREBRERBERIER
mRREUFRNEEENBETE
AEBEEE2HEERRIREEE
BRI AERRIR RAREBERZ
WREBENDEERKETHERE LR
MER - ANRIRIESE AEEERE
VTIREEERZ (IRIEEEREZR) »
MBI HERIIRIBERRB BRI o &
EEETHMXKN B RSB P EHKEH
R S SRR ENRIMNIRIE B IR EE R B JEISO
14001:20161Z £V EH ©

FEENBRAEAERUAEERAR
BENRFEEEE UEFRIMNE
MNEE ZEKEEREBREHE I
BEREAERRIEEE  SEERIE
2Rt & EERIRIBIER - ZEXIRE
—RIREEYEE - tELRER D
RIEBUKRERKRERERAERER
EEEFERILERE-

‘ BERERBOER 8 U T AR
RIBRERRER
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Environmental Performance Tracking

In order to effectively manage the material environmental issues
and understand the environmental performance of the Group, both
subsidiaries, Neway Chung Tai Printing and Kam Hon Printing have
set targets for eight environmental aspects including air emissions,
effluent discharge, hazardous waste management, resource
consumption, noise emissions and so on. The subsidiaries keep track
of the data and monitor the target progress, aiming to achieve the
targets for all facets.

The table below shows the Group's progress towards the
environmental targets set for the Year.

iaiFM% sz (:%Eé)
IRIZRIRIEHE

HEAVNEEERNREBERTHELE
EIRERRE MRMBATHERK
ENRI R SRENENRI 19 B fl €\ KIR1R B
BoBEERFEBR SRR -BEEE
EYVEE - BRHEE - BREHRE-I
BAR—BHEMBEIENBRER
NREMBELEHIEDBR

T?@ ,,,,, ‘I’ZIK% BERAXFEIRREER
=R

Environmental Aspects Neway Chung Tai Printing Kam Hon Printing Corresponding Section
IRIG SR rh £ B K ENRY EREENR] HESE

Electricity Consumption 79.4% achieved Energy
* EAENIE 79.4%3ZEE AR
o Water Consumption Achieved Water
KERHFE ER KER
e Paper Consumption 57.8% achieved Paper Usage and Packaging
S 57.8%E % : 4 5t
MRIRIHFE o 100% achieved HIRFERAREE
() an
é Effluent Discharge Achieved 100% 1% Effluent Management
35K EIR SKEE
A Hazardous Waste Management Achieved Waste Management
BEBREYER ZR BRNER
Noise Emissions Achieved Noise Management
MR HEI ER RS EE
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Promoting Green Products

The Group strictly complied with all applicable environmental laws
and regulations during the Year and made efforts to reduce the
environmental impacts of its operations, promoting healthier and
more eco-friendly products among customers. By following Forest
Stewardship Council's ("FSC") standard of COC (Chain of Custody)
certification, the Group has established a set of policies to ensure
long-term compliance with FSC principles and standards and
demonstrate traceability of wood-based products (paper, mainly).
We actively purchase FSC-certified raw materials, and strictly monitor
the use of wood products in the manufacturing process, to ensure
the minimisation of forest damage and environmental impacts of
products. We also commit that only FSC-certified paper is used in our
printing business.

To protect the environment, all purchased raw materials and sold
goods at Neway Chung Tai Printing are FSC-certified goods. Kam Hon
Printing is certified by FSC International Forest Management System.
The Group will gradually increase the proportion of FSC products in its
sales by 5% in the next five years.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any incident of non-
compliance of relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group relating to air and greenhouse gas (GHG)
emissions, discharges into water or land, and generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste.

IRIGRE (1)
HEESEEM

AEBRAEERKETHMEERAN
BREZREREIFR - BHRLVEEEY
RENEE ANEBELHEERE &
BRENER BEEREARMEELZES
(TFSC 1) WICOC (EREEHE) REE
Ey2 REBEHIE—RIBERERERS
FTAFSCIR Bl R 1Z %8 e 0] 48 3 AY ) 4t R
B (FEERR) - HMBEBRBES
FSCRRAEEMEREME MBHREERIEB
BrPARESNER BESSH D HK
MBI IR K E R RV IRIE R & o M
INERITEEIR = {EF B EFSCRE
BY AR5 ©

AFRERIE FERKERIFKBEFT
BEEMEKREENEERBERTEFSC
B IREEIR EEBFSCREBEHME
HREANRB - NEBRBZETIRSFSC
EmNHE b EL IR A FE M
5% o

RAEE > AEE LA REAEMERE
AR RERFREERRENAER
BEHER s MK R s LUK B B R
EERYNEL UREHAEBRBEN
BARENEHF-
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Resources Conservation

Paper Usage and Packaging

Paper Consumption Targets

MIRHFERR

IRIG (RaE (&)
EHE IR
MRERAREE

Neway Chung Tai Printing
H £ R KEN R

Consume <8 pieces of paper per thousand
press pile boards of production units
FTENRIA E B NFERAS T EBESEK

57.8% achieved

57.8% i

Kam Hon Printing

SREAENRI

Average monthly consumption of <55,000
pieces of paper
B A TIFEME T BiB55,0005

100% achieved
100% ==

The major raw material used in our printing production process is
paper. We fully understand the Group's responsibility for minimising
its paper usage. To ensure paper used is produced by wood from
certified forests, the Group only procures paper with FSC's (Forest
Stewardship Council’s) certification.

The Group also strives to conserve paper in its offices and implements
green office practices. Double-side printing and photocopying are
encouraged among all staff. Paper consumption is tracked and
managed monthly to prevent wastage. Classification of wastepaper
and collection of recyclable wastepaper are required.

To minimise generation of packaging waste, we encourage clients to
return carton boxes for reuse. During the Year, the Group consumed
2,027.52 tonnes of paper, 676.60 tonnes of plastics and 0.30 tonnes
of metals for packaging.

HPMBEEBRRETETEZEANRM
Rk AR ERAEETER
BOHRER S BT - AR
FRAVALSRE BB BRIARM  AERE
PREBEFSCEUEE B IR ©

FEBTHRAOREERAZHNAML

BB AR RSB EES

TrEAEEYIMNKRIEH 5B HARE

AEETEHRERE  UHIERE %
5§ RT3 B R [Bl U A [B] IR Y BE AR o

ABREREEBEEYNES  BM
EEEAXOGERUBBER -PX
FE > RNEBHFE2,027.52A M4 R
676.60 A AMEE K K030 MBS B IEE S
ZHe

Packaging Materials Unit 2022 2023
Consumption BEMMES ==L i B2 ==

Paper ok tonnes A MA 1,982.53 2,027.52
Plastics il tonnes A ME 575.98 676.60
Metals =B tonnes ‘AN 1.00 0.30
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R - EREGRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued) IRIB(RE (48)
Resources Conservation (Continued) EAEIR (18
Water KER
Water Consumption Targets
KERHEBR
Neway Chung Tai Printing Kam Hon Printing
R E R KENRI FRENEN R
Consuming <1 tonnes of water per thousand Monthly water consumption <800 m* (May —
press pile boards of production units September) or <700 m? (October — April)
TR EEBARFEKERBIBEIAM SAEKERBIBEI0IA K (BBENA) T

ABiB7001L A K (HBEMA)

100% achieved 100% achieved
100% =iz 100% 3=z

Fresh water is one of the most precious resources on Earth. In order MK FEREENE R — AR
to reduce the consumption of water and the cost of operations, DK HFE RSB R AN 0 NEBE N IR
the Group is committed to using various practices, including WNERBIEmEAN/KER 815 THIES A
regular monitoring of water consumption, on-site inspections and HEKE - RIGRE RHEEHENKEIT UL
maintenance of water facilities to identify any instances of abnormal HAEERNKEREGLIERK AEH
consumption of water and prevent leakage. The Group is also TNEZER B KRR/ D FEKE > LR
working on recycling wastewater and reducing water usage for SRAKMEK hERKRENRIFEBEEF
enhancing water consumption efficiency. Neway Chung Tai Printing AiE K & ERIEIE S K HRBILUIEIR
recycles wastewater by reusing the boiler water and treated waste FBSS /K MERSENRIB N EEE R
water for toilet flushing while Kam Hon Printing reuses treated RIBEN I S/KBF A

industrial wastewater in its operations.
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Resources Conservation (Continued)
Water (Continued)

During the Year, the Group consumed a total of 67,974.19 tonnes of
water with intensity of 0.12 tonnes per thousand Hong Kong Dollars
revenue. The Group did not have any issue in sourcing water that is fit
for the purpose during the Year.

Unit
B

IRIZ(REE (4B)

MAER (B)

KE R (48)

REAEE ZXEBNEEKEAS
67,974 19 MR- FEXKBREN AT T H
TTUWEFO0. 12 AME e N AFEE » RERE
EX45 78 FB 7K R 75 T iz 3 1 {n] S 8 o

2022 2023

e — — —_—
g —_—<—

Total water consumption HrEKE tonnes AME
Water consumption intensity FE/KZRE tonnes/'000 HKD
revenue

85,199.00 67,974.19
0.19 0.12

AW/ FE T

Water Consumption (tonne) and Intensity
(tonnes/ '000 HKD revenue)
FKkE (RM) REBEE

(D0, F 8 e has)

100,000 0.19 . N
- 80,000 . » S
= ¥
i’ 60,000 - § ‘L
E . <
E_ 400  85199.00
= 67,974.19
SW 20,000
gx
=W 5

2022 2023
B —oF —ZEB-=H
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Emissions Control

Air Emissions

Air Emission Targets

B BR

H 2
#
S

IRIBE(RE
BER =
gty

(H‘E)

Neway Chung Tai Printing and Kam Hon Printing

H £ K EN R 57 0 EN

Conduct annual test for vehicle exhaust gas
to ensure compliance with the Shenzhen
Motor Vehicle Emission Standard
SHEETEWMNERBCAE  URERR
BRI B B R RAREE

Ftt@

100% achieved

100% iz

The Group’s air emissions are from the Company vehicles and
stationary sources of Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) used in
production. The Group strictly complies with the Printing Industry
VOC Emission Standard (DB44/815-2010) and the Guangdong
Province Standards for Air Pollution Emission Limit Value (DB44/27-
2001), and regularly monitors and tests the exhaust emissions to
ensure compliance.

To reduce air emissions, the Group regularly maintains all the related
equipment and has installed exhaust air treatment facilities. Neway
Chung Tai Printing has carried out a gas boiler upgrade project to
reduce NOx emissions. Besides, the Group’s production involves
emission of VOCs from the use of printing ink, so we have an exhaust
gas treatment unit to remove the VOCs generated during production.

2. Monitor the VOCs level and other
parameters for stationary exhaust gas
to ensure compliance with the Printing
Industry VOCs Emission Standard
DB44/815-2010 and the Guangdong
Province Standards for Air Pollution
Emission Limit Value (DB44/27-2001)
BREEEU ARSI T REERERRN
H2% > F{RRT 5DB44/815-2010EN /1T
EEEMERICESMRNREERERE KN
RS A B R E R 2E(DB44/27-2001)

100% achieved
100% ==

AEBNTEREBEBYIKR B AR QT EHEH
REEBRERFEANEZE LB
EYMHETH R  AEERIKETE
RIITEEZEMERECEYHEREE
(DB44/815-2010); EER & KR 545k
(DB44/27-2001) > I & HA %4

BRER 2
AR A BE R RE R

I ERBER AEEEREETA
&ff 0 I B R R AR E R o P
ERARERIEEMNRBETRER
LUR D R AEBIBERR o L SN > R EEH
WEED RFREIR HEERBREE

EET

EREEEERCEY > FRUAFIR

BREERMUEGREEBRTESE

MEEMARIESY -
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IRIE - g hESKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued) IBis{R:E (ﬁ%)
Emissions Control (Continued) BERIZ S (48)
Air Emissions (Continued) EmBEHY (48)

Gas Boiler Upgrade Project
AR BIEFARIEE

By installing low NOx burners in natural gas boilers, Neway Chung Tai Printing has lowered NOx emissions.
Less NOx is produced during combustion when the peak flame temperature in the boiler is reduced. The
Group has replaced the present gas boiler with steam generators, in addition to installing low NOx burners,
to improve steam generation efficiency and minimise NOx emissions.

BBNRARBELZEEARIESE > RERKREDRIFRE T RS CYRIBE - & $8NE A RY A E BB R E R R > 1A
FEEBRPELENESCYRORD BRERBRIRERIN AEBTE UNEAARBIRARANSIE  SERAES
EEME R ANRER D RASICYRIBER

, Exhaust Gas Treatment Facility

ﬂ,v—vl- BE RERIER T

Ink is one of the most important materials used in printing, and VOCs are unavoidably produced during
operations. The Group has established an exhaust gas treatment facility to remove VOCs before the gas is
discharged. VOCs are removed from the exhaust gas using a spray column and activated carbon adsorption
towers, allowing regulation and reduction of VOCs emissions. The restoration of the facility can reduce
VOCs emissions by approximately 48%.

HERNRBIEAANREENMEZ — ERMANCEART B EELBEEEARECEY AEEEERL—
ERE AR IR SR I E REG B AT R IR EE AR S A AEBFEREMERIRMER EE EARIESYRERT
AR e eI LB E RRl MBS M B R E SR - (BB Z R I P LU/ 4948 % R (M B C S MIBE

To mitigate air emissions from motor vehicles, the Group is switching AR OEBIEBENTEREIEO AEBEE
to high energy-efficiency fuel in vehicles to enhance engine P LR = SE AR LU FH 5 | B MERE o
performance. In addition, the Group performs annual maintenance o REBSFHEREERAET
of exhaust treatment systems and examines vehicles’ exhaust gas to M WInTEEMWER UZBESR
verify exhaust treatment efficiency. BRI o
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Emissions Control (Continued)
Air Emissions (Continued)

During the Year, the Group’s vehicles emitted a total of 0.38 kg of
sulphur oxides (SOx), 54.58 kg of nitrogen oxides (NOx) and 4.66 kg of
particulate matter (PM). The total Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs)
of the Group is 11.79 tonnes in 2023.

Air Emissions (kg)
ZREEBYM (AF)

100

5.38

o~ 466
50
2Ll 54.58
. 039 038

2022 2023
—EBE-_F ZZB-=H

IRIGRE ()
BT ()
ERmBHY ()

RAFE > REBNBEFHEEF0.38
ARHREEY 5458 AR/t &
A66AFBFBN NM_BE_=ZF K
EEMEZUHERIEEYEES11.79
YN

R
R AR
NOx
Rt
SO«
maty
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RIE - EREGRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued) IRIB{R:E (48)
Emissions Control (Continued) HER R (48)
Effluent Management Tk EHE
BB B R
Neway Chung Tai Printing Kam Hon Printing

H 2 R KEN R ERENEN

1. Monitor various parameters related to 1. Domestic effluent is discharged into
effluent to ensure compliance with the the municipal sewer system
Discharge Limits of Water Pollutants in FIE B KA T I B A R IR
Guangdong Province DB44/26-2001,
the first level of the second stage
ERSKBEZ2HEUBERFTS
DB44/26-2001 (& &R & 7K 75 F M BE K
RE) > BH ZPEEE—KFE

100% achieved 100% achieved
100% =iz 100% :zi=

2. Reduce the purchase of banana oil (i.,e. 2. Monitor various parameters related to

thinner) by more than 50% compared effluent to ensure compliance with the
to the previous year Discharge Limits of Water Pollutants in
KENSEK BIXENK BREFRD Guangdong Province DB44/26-2001,
50% A £ the third level of the second stage

ERTAKZSBEZRHURRNS
DB44/26-2001 {E B & K5 Y HER
REY A% RS =/KE

100% achieved 100% achieved
100% =iz 100% =iz
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Emissions Control (Continued)
Effluent Management (Continued)

The Group’s operations generate wastewater from its industrial
applications, as well as domestic usage. The Group strictly complies
with the Guangdong Provincial Discharge Limits of Water Pollutants
for wastewater discharge. Domestic wastewater is discharged into the
municipal sewer system, while industrial wastewater is treated and
reused in the wastewater recycling system. Regular third-party testing
of water quality indicators such as pH, Chemical Oxygen Demand
(COD), Biological Oxygen Demand (BOD) and Suspended Solids (SS) is
carried out to monitor the quality of effluent discharged. During the
Year, the Group discharged 7,565 tonnes of wastewater.

Effluent Emissions (tonnes)

JEREER (AWE)
10000
8000
6000

T 5,274.00

7,565.00
2000

Waste Management

IRIGRE ()
BT ()
SIKEE (8)

AEENEERAETEERURE
EEREET K KEBBERET(E
REK TRV IRE) R EBERS
KoL BB KEATHEN  MIES
KERIBEETKBIWAZHIBEIEF
o ERH/KEIRZEETE = FA
NERE 2R aE(COD)-EYE
S E(BOD) KB F E BE(SS) » UBEZRFTHE
MBS KBIKE - RAFEE > REBHEK
7,565 AMETS K o

Effluent
VEUN

BREYEE

Waste Emission Targets
EEZYIHER B 1R

ﬁ/% Kam Hon Printing
RENEN R

Waste be disposed of in accordance with regulations and 100% transfer of hazardous

waste

BEEY IR ERBEN B100%E R EEEEY)
100% achieved

100% i
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Emissions Control (Continued)
Waste Management (Continued)

To effectively manage the waste generated from its operations, the
Group strictly complies with related laws and regulations, including
but not limited to the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste. We classify waste into non-
hazardous waste and hazardous waste according to the ‘National
Hazardous Waste List" and the actual situation of the Company. All
hazardous waste are transferred to an authorised third-party collector
for handling while non-hazardous waste is handled or recycled by the
waste collector.

To categorise and handle each type of waste generated in the
manufacturing process, the Group has established a systematic waste
management approach. The approach includes waste separation,
collection, storage, and control. The responsibility of monitoring lies
with the quality management department.

During the Year, the Group generated a total of 74.56 tonnes of
hazardous waste and 311.00 tonnes of non-hazardous wastes.

Hazardous Waste Generation (tonnes) and Intensity
(kg/'000 HKD revenue)
EEBEYELE (AW) REE (DF /TRl

8
—. 100 0.20 S
5 £
=
S < S
£ w0 0.16 0.14 S S
5 015 g 3
S 3 E
S 60 o [}
S = %l i
S= 010 5 = Qi
= =
25w g1k =S
§ T:Ml S 3 nl":"l :
i 73.58 7456 005 T e
S % = 5
o K 2 S ik
IS ﬁ% Jop = {\%ﬁ
=
Zir 0 000 = ™ 2%
2022 2023
—EBI-F ZEBZZ=HF
Hazardous waste O-O Hazardous waste intensity .
BEEREY BERENTE
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IE iﬂ 1% (:I\E)
FEmE (na)
BEEYEE (&)

REVEEHEETELENERY) &
SEBRBETHERZRER 8FET
PRI (P [E B BE 475 RIRIZ B IRE )
HPRBE(EREEREYRE) URAE
AEBERER RERYDERIELR
BEYNERERY FTEAEEREY
BEEERENE =S WREBRE ﬁ'ﬁ
EERERYHRBERYREBREE
FRIE UL -

ATHEEBBEYTEEANIEBERY
ETDEARE AEEERI—EZ
GNEEYEEB A Zh iBIEEE
MO -IWE - RHEREG -BEANE
FHESEEIPIRIE-

RAEEE  AEBSGHELT4 56 AW
BEEEEYR311.00AEEEZEEY -

Non-hazardous Waste Generation (tonnes) and Intensity

(kg/'000 HKD revenue)

BEBRYELE (AW) REE (AF/FETKRE)

0.60

0.57
0.50
0.40
31100 O
220,00

2022
—EF

/'000 HKD revenue)

2023
—E-=F

Non-hazardous waste O-O Non-hazardous waste intensity
EERERY)

BEBRRNEE



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R - EREGRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued) IRIZ{REE (48)
Emissions Control (Continued) HERUZ S (48)
Waste Management (Continued) BEYEIE (8B)
Unit 2022 2023
Waste Emissions EEE4IHERR ==K} e “®BT=F
Hazardous waste BEEBEEY tonnes AWM 73.58 74.56
Non-hazardous wastes mEBEEY tonnes A M§ 220.00 311.00
Hazardous waste intensity B EEEYRE kg/'000 HKD 0.16 0.14
revenue
AR/ TR
Non-hazardous BEEEYERE kg/'000 HKD 0.49 0.57
wastes intensity revenue
A/ FRTWE
Noise Management IR E &%

Noise Management Targets

IREEEEE
Neway Chung Tai Printing Kam Hon Printing
) S\ (( FEERDA R EF)
) Not exceeding 60 decibel (dB) during Not exceeding 65 decibel (dB) during
daytime and 50 dB at night daytime and 55 dB at night
AEE 21 158iB0N BERMmERSE HESETEBB65DBRBEREE
B507 B @557 B
100% achieved 100% achieved
100% &1z 100% iz
The noise generated from the Group's operations is strictly managed. REBLSEFMELNRSKAERE
The Group has set a noise level target to minimise its impact on the o REFZTET—ARZKEERE Y
surroundings. The target is set to be below the noise limits during RS2 VHEBERENFEZ - ZBR
the daytime and at night. In addition, to ensure compliance with the WRERATHEREREBDERERERSR
Emission Standard for Industrial Enterprises Noise at Boundary, the il ot ok » BFERET (T ER AR
Group employs external professionals to monitor and assess the noise BPERZAE)  REBREDBINTEZE A
level around its facilities. BRI R s H R B E AV IR S KT
HER o
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Tackling Climate Changes

The Group is well aware of climate-related risks in its operations
and the importance of addressing the related issues. As a result, the
Group continues to comply with its climate policy and commits to
reduce the environmental impacts by strengthening its environmental
management approach and keeping its environmental targets
progress on track.

Governance

The Board is responsible for overseeing overall ESG risks and
opportunities, including climate-related risks and opportunities. The
Group has formed an Environmental Executive Committee, which
is responsible for matters such as air and greenhouse gas emission
control and extreme weather events.

Strategy

Climate change presents multiple challenges to various businesses
and operations within our group, including physical risks such as
extreme weather events and rising sea levels, as well as transitional
risks related to policy and technological developments. At the same
time, we also recognise the new opportunities brought about by
climate change, inspiring us to seek innovation in our business and
support the transition to a low-carbon economy. In the future, we
will continue to commit to implementing various energy-saving and
emission-reduction measures, optimizing resource utilization, and
achieving sustainable development through green transformation.
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IRIG{RE ()
FE 3t RARE 1

FEERDERIHEETRREE
BB R R DU R R RV E R It -
Hit AER#EESTHREER > K
A B BMRIRIEEE T ARFRFIR
BEENERLURDHIRIENEE -

A
EFEe e EEEEEBESGR R RS
BiEEREERAN R RS  AEE
ERRUIRERITEZES/NE BETR
KR ZE R BEBERUES U M iR s K RSB
HEERHo

K

RIEBEHAEBANSBER RE
BROZEUE BEBRERREME R
BYEELAFERRRE  UKREBRK
B i 2% R ARRE BB S R B o [B) B > TR 1P
75 50 4 B | 1 BB T R BY R A% 48 > BN
BRMAEED LSXRAH L FRE
B AS A BB B o SRR B PR A2 )
SERRSEE AR BEHEE  BIEEIRA
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R - EREGRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued) IRIS(F:E (48)
Tackling Climate Changes (Continued) FEH RIEEME (48)
Risk Management and opportunities B E IR %5

Risk Type
e ki

Physical Risk
BRERE

Risk Description

NG g

Potential Financial Impacts

BEMBRE

Actions

178

\ \_/ ’ e Cyclones/typhoons e Increased capital costs Implementation of EHS Global
~( “N\- RIE B R because of damage to Standard for Emergency
— - facilities Preparation and Response at
e Flood A EEERMIEMNE all sites to ensure procedures
Ak PN and resources are in place

Extremely high
temperature and
extremely cold

Increased material and
transport costs

A EA 22 881 B A 1 A0

to effectively respond to
emergency situations
RPTAE ST B MIRIE 2R
L2 EEEERERERR

weather 2 DRI ANERRZ
L P S e N e Increased overhead costs ERNERRER

B

due to more idle time and
higher workforce costs
HEEREEZRES
B9 25 8h Al A IE INAVAS B
MR

Maintain close collaboration
between our procurement
and supply chain teams and
suppliers as potential extreme
weather events arise

REBEEBBRREFELR

R itrEss/ BB (g
REREEE

Adjustment of shifts and
schedules at facilities currently
affected by extreme heat and
other extreme weather events
to reduce staff exposure to
adverse working environments
FEE B A R % =R K H At
1l K R 1 5 B R Y
BERMEFER LUV ETH
BEAHMNIERIER
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RIE - EREGRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Tackling Climate Changes (Continued)

Risk Management and opportunities (Continued)

Risk Type Risk Description Potential Financial Impacts
[ Bz EE B Y pa BEMBTE
Physical Risk
BRRE
LY e Water scarcity e Increase in operating o
n 70— IKER TR costs: the availability of
- O - :— fresh water decreases,
’/ | \\ - e Rising mean water prices rise
temperatures AR AN AN ¢ KL E
Chronic THER L D
R
e Changes in weather * Increased material costs o
patterns AR} R A I N
RRERI

e Increased insurance
premiums and potential
for reduced availability
of insurance on assets in
“high-risk” locations
REREIE NN K = R B
& & EREET A .
4 FEE
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IR RE ()
i3 2R
mfE EELE ()

215 ()

Actions

178

Development of new low-
emission products, with a
focus on higher energy-
efficiency and lower emissions
R IRV R HE I E @ > SR 1R
= BE R R AN PERBER

Implementation of EHS &
sustainable investments to
achieve a sustainable financial
return in the long term that
covers the additional costs
BHEHSIE B U B IR Mg
AR EY R HEA AT FF BRI B 75 0]
£}

Continuation of case studies
on climate risk management,
scenario analysis, disclosure
and innovation
FEETHRRERRE
BmEEs o mimalHn
FES VI



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - g hESKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued) IRIB(F:E (8)
Tackling Climate Changes (Continued) FEH mI=EE (&)
Risk Management and opportunities (Continued) B ETEE %8 (B)

Risk Type Risk Description Potential Financial Impacts Actions

R R R B it BEMBREE 178

e More stringent e Increased cost of e Set a carbon reduction target
government policies compliance and R BRI EE
for decarbonisation operations
58 BR A% BY BT 5 B B AL E R A N
1B R
Policy and Legal
SR RER
¢ Intensified e Reduced revenue due to e Prudent and well-planned
O—r competition caused competition multi-year investment to apply
oQC) by green technology P BB AR green technologies
AR BTSN * Increased long-term BEMSEBEZNZFRE
] cost of applying green DAFE B B2l
Technology
. technology
-] FE PR 11 6 B S
I8N
The Group is well aware of coexistence of risks and opportunities. KEETOEZHI AEHE BN F o 7F
While addressing climate-related risks, we also seize the opportunities FE % BA R (E= A RE A b B9 B B > B P37 M
and take actions to seek further development. EHOBWIKETINUE R E—FT LR
Opportunities Type Opportunities Description Actions
WisEn kR 178
e Higher energy efficiency in response to e Implement energy-saving initiatives and
-LI government and market requirements promote industry best practices
%eo H B 350 2 KM iE s8R E A HITHERERITEREERR
~ s
Energy
BEIR
Qp e Increased market demand for green and e Prudent and well-planned multi-year
éb 0 o environment-friendly products investment to apply green technologies
oo MG HE A ENIRRE @B KAVIEM BENFEEENLEREUNRRASE
--la o Rl
-~ 1n
Products
Em
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RIE - EREGRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued) IRIE(RE (8)

Tackling Climate Changes (Continued) FEH mI=EME (48)
Metrics and Targets EEREE
Energy BEIR

Energy Consumption Targets

AERHFER R

Transition Risks
BRI R

Kam Hon Printing

EREMENRI

Neway Chung Tai Printing
R E R KENR

Consume <129 kWh of electricity per thousand 1. Electricity consumption of floors 1-4 <400

press pile boards of production units kWh/1,000 RMB stock-in quantity

BTERIEEBUNAEETBIBI129TRE 1-4ENHEBERBBI00TER AR
BT T AERR

2. Energy consumption for 5th floor:<18,000
kWh (May to September) or<12,000 kWh
(October to April)

SIERAERHFES | B4R 18,000F FLEF
(EAENA) HA8iE12,000F B (4
BZEMA)

100% achieved
100% =iz

79.4% achieved

79.4% &=

Energy used by the Group is made up of purchased electricity, diesel,
natural gas for boilers, and gasoline for mobile vehicles. Electricity
purchased is the primary consumption. The Group used 46,579.46
GJ of energy in total during the Year, with a corresponding energy
intensity of 0.08 GJ per thousand Hong Kong Dollars revenue.

AEBEHANERBENEE N R
S SE AR ARARAMEBN BRI UM
EHAERIIMNBEN -NEFE > ~EH
HOH#E46,579. 46 TIKEEERIBEIR 10
FERSERE E RS T B a0.08F K

£H-

Unit 2022 2023
Energy consumption RERHFESE B TEICF =
Electricity B kwWh FRBF 12,570,453.00 11,306,704.78
Petrol i litres AF+ 26,219.28 25,763.07
Natural Gas KRR, m? 1L 75 K 156,608.00 123,695.00
Diesel s litres 2 F+ 10,832.00 6,660.67
Total energy consumption  BEJRIHIELE 2 Gl TIHEE 52,574.28 46,579.46
Energy consumption AERERE GJ/'000 HKD 0.12 0.08

intensity revenue
FIEEFET
&
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Tackling Climate Changes (Continued)

Metrics and Targets (Continued)

Energy (Continued)

Energy Composition (GJ) and Intensity
(GJ/ "000 HKD revenue)
BERAN (TREE) K

EE (TREE THETWE)

60,000

0.12
388.09
5000 609691 008 53864
835.66 | 4,815.57
_ 40,000 821.12
gﬁ 30,000
233
éé 20,000 45,253.63 40,704.14
£,
()
?Esi 10,000
S
0
2022 2023
—EBECF —ZEB-=HF

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The Group generates direct greenhouse gases (GHG) emissions
(Scope 1) from the combustion of fuel oil used by its vehicles and
indirect emissions (Scope 2) from purchased electricity. Purchased
electricity is a major contributor to greenhouse gas emissions. The
Group has implemented several energy saving measures to increase
energy efficiency and reduce consumption. Boilers using non-invasive
electromagnetic scale control systems are more energy efficient
and use less natural gas. The Group continues to improve indoor
ventilation and indoor temperature control by using energy-efficient
equipment which help reduce the amount of energy used for air
conditioning. The Group also regularly monitors and analyses energy
consumption data to identify any unusual energy use in its operations.

During the Year, the Group's total GHG emissions were 7,585.67
tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent (tCO2e), with an intensity of 0.01
tCO:ze per thousand Hong Kong Dollars revenue.

0.15

010 ==

0.0

IRIG (R (&)
FEH RIREE (B)

S1E R B IR ()
FEIR ()

‘ Electricity
EW))
‘ Petrol

ba::
Natural Gas
Diesel
Le3h
Intensity

v
o0

Al E A HEEL

AEBEHEMERIANETRE
TEHERERES N EEN) > EINE
BHRELEBESFR GEE2) S BE
HEBERBEHRNEIEREF - AEH
ERBRBIEIAESRTE RS REAN
RFEEHFE - RIBERBIFBRAINE
HOROKIRBRARFABSERME &
AELDRAR - AEBEBENBRERNE
R A ER BB E AR EE
B ZE B IRBVEE A - AEB N E M
AR D BEIRFE R BUIR » LRI HEE
PEVEREEERER

REEE AEBEREREHINES
#7,585.67 A _FIbiRE & BEE
EASTETWZEVIAM _|tikE
2o
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued) IRIZ{R:E (48)
Tackling Climate Changes (Continued) FEHmREE (&)
Greenhouse Gas Emissions (Continued) BERmAEBEL (B)

Unit 2022 2023
GHG emissions i E R AR HERR B =2 “E=HF
Scope' #i[E1 tCOe AME_SFLIREE 432.90 352.00
Scope2 #i[E2 tCOxe AME—ELiIRES 9,332.16 7,233.67
Total emission BEiEE tCOxe A ZEILIREE 9,765.06 7,585.67
Emission intensity BE R E tC0O2e/'000 HKD revenue 0.02 0.01

NB_FIEHRES

FaETR G

GHG Emissions (tCO2e) and Intensity
(tCO2e/'000 HKD revenue)
BEREHR (ME-SLBREE) &
BE (MM-StnEE/T BTl

=}
o
@

12,000

T 0.02 % Jj
= L IR
£ 9,000 0.01 2w
,\lﬂ 002 £
] = (=g
e 7,23367 g%
TE 9,332.16 2
2 Y 001 3 F:?
<2 &= 3,000 =3
2 e
z £ ux
I 432.90 }200 2
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Carbon Reduction

To enhance awareness of the importance of energy conservation and
make all employees feel responsible, the Group conducts resource
management training for authorised staff in each department and
requires those employees who operate energy-intensive equipment to
complete the training before starting work.

RIGRE ()

ik ik
ARBHMAEESENDE WEDE
RERIAEER FEMEE G
KB E TRESREREY L BRI
fEREREFER BN REL AR T
{E Bl 5E B H o

Mitigation
Ak

e Reduce carbon footprint by setting and o
implementing long-term carbon emissions
reduction targets
BIBHIE K& E iR BAR AR B R ik B

e Implement energy-saving measures and energy-
efficient equipment o
B eI e T S ER R (R AEAER B

e Implement sustainable procurement of paper
and water, and launch quota system

BITASR R ACRBY B A8 ER B8 R AT EC BR

e Establish management system for procurement o
of FSC-certified raw materials and green
products
I ERBEFSCRENRMERIRRERNE
HHIE
e Incorporate sustainable development into
workspace

PRETFeBAFEERE

EHIIE G
5]

Communicate with stakeholders to spread
messages about the impact of climate change,
and offer training on resource management
MM EERBERESCEENHEERIE
HERBEIEE

Develop plans to deal with unforeseen weather
conditions and protect corporate properties
from the climate change impact

B TE 581 LUFE 1 0] T8 H BY RUAR K 14 K 1R 28
REIMERRRIBEEIEEE

Provide relevant information and resources to
strengthen resilience, and monitor the impact
of climate change on business and the Group’s
carbon management goals and objectives
IR M REEEERARE R BEARES
EHEBNEERAIEEREEERERER
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued) i%iﬁ{%%% (,f.i%‘"_)
Carbon Reduction (Continued) A (48)

Phase out the
use of diesel

BE AR HNER

Adopted non-invasive
electromagnetic scale
control system since 2017
BIZ—tFRRAEHRA
NEBHIRKIEBRRR

Switch off electronic
appliances and lights when
leaving rooms

BRFANMAEFRAEREE

Energy-saving
Initiatives

BN REfE T

Reduce operations
duration of energy-
intensive machinery

i) 7 FE BE A A B SE 1T B

Provide energy-saving
training to employees

) i & 12 it B AE 15 3

Regular maintenance
of machinery to ensure
operational efficiency
UERETHE

Improve air ventilation and
switch off air-conditioners if
room temperature > 26°C
HEZENBER MEZERREETR
{E4226°C > BIRARAZEER
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Environmental Emergency Management

The Group attaches great importance to addressing any
environmental emergencies and disasters, including fires, chemicals
spill and other natural disasters that could have a significant negative
impact on the environment.

An emergency response team is established and it is responsible for
dealing with the incident. In addition, fire and chemicals spill drills are
conducted regularly to ensure that employees are prepared to deal
effectively and quickly with emergency situations. During the Year, the
Group has carried out six emergency drills.

In order to efficiently manage the risks that may have impacts on
the Group’s business operations, we conduct a business continuity
risk assessment. The Group has established a contingency plan and a
disaster recovery plan based on risks assessment. The risks identified
and the measures taken by the Group are shown in the table below:

IRIGRE (1)
RIGERERE

FEESEEREEEMNREEZRSE
HFRKE > MAK B MR R REM
AEHREEEEATAZENBEAR

o

AEBENIBR/NE BERESR
Mo lbsh s REBEMBITNERIER
mRRRE  BREETBRUIAKREE
BMEHERBER -FFE > AEEER
BAREBZEE -

AL E R SRR B EEN
AR RNEHRYBCESEENE
BaR (s o AR E B RBABRFEFE R
BB RS BN RT3 B - KR
E#BINEARRERRNIERTHR
WF&:

Type of Risk Potential Impacts
R bR BETE

Physical Risk o
BEREAR

IT System Risk 3
ITR GRS

Fire, explosion and chemical spill
may influence our production and
cause injuries to employees, leading
to property damage and may delay
deliveries to customers
KKNBIERIEBERBRAIETE
BPMNEERGRESEGT SR
MEBKRKPIEEEIERAE R

The IT system risk may result in
the leakage of our data related to
customers, clients, suppliers, etc
ITRFRBAIEEREERT T
P HEREEANEERESE

Actions

7%

Establish emergency plans and
conduct regular drills

REEFERARENES

Install a fire alarm system

ZRERMNERERRR

Strictly manage and store chemical
materials in designated places only
BREERERIEEMBFRHL
B

Establish firewalls and intrusion
detection system

RE NG R MR IR R A

Set data encryption, backup and
disaster recovery strategies to ensure
data security and recoverability
HIE BB INE B RBEZWER
BE DR IS 5 22 & K BT IS 1%

Provide cybersecurity training
courses to employees

HESETREZ ARSI
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued) IRIE(RE (8)

110

Environmental Emergency Management (Continued) IRIFESEIE (48)
Type of Risk Potential Impacts Actions
EprEas BELE i78h

Utilities/Key Equipment Risk
DR MAZ O R E R

Labour, Government, Civil Risk

S I B RBE R R

Natural Catastrophe Risk
B A K 2 B

Utilities and key equipment risk
including power failure, water
supply failure and gas supply failure
may influence our production,
leading to loss of revenue
’\,itaﬁﬁm)i’z@/u % 1 B B B4 i
K HEHE REERE
ﬁﬁ'ﬁﬂ’\]ﬂi& i R IR

A labour strike may lead to labour
shortage
BT AEERATIFTER

Improper discharge of waste water,
air pollutants and solid waste
may violate local laws and have a
negative impact on production and
reputation
B ERISRYMN ERBEEYN
FEHHRAIEER EMIEE WH
TENBEELTAETE

An earthquake, floods or a hurricane
may have an impact on our building
structure, supply chain, employees,
and delivery on time, leading to loss
of revenue

R ~ K R P] SR & BRI
EELEE TR EE R
SR SR AR
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Ensure availability of backup power
and water sources
REkHEERS
{3

R B K RBYF] A

Perform regular maintenance and
servicing of elevators

TEHHEE R AEIE S

Develop emergency plans and
measures for addressing events
like power outages, water supply
failures, elevator failures, and gas
supply failures

RIUFEHMMEE ok~ BIE R
RBES R G E RIEH

Set up communication channels for
employees and increase employee
welfare

REREBBRERRSREEREN
Set environment management policies
and mechanisms to ensure compliance

HERIR B EBER MG RRER

Use the latest technology to reduce
emissions

2 AR R ST A B AT R D BRI

Establish emergency plans

i 7E e =5t &

Conduct regular drills, maintain and
update equipment and facilities
HETHER HEREMIZER
B3l

Back up important data and documents

[GRZEE:2 ¢ IS8°E0

Ensure reserve stocks of raw materials
and semi-finished products

BERRME R+ R mBI R
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)

Environmental Emergency Management (Continued)

Type of Risk

R RERE

Health and lliness Risk

2 B Re 7 L B

Supply Chain and
Transportation Risk

1 8 8 5 32 60 L B2

Potential Impacts

3 =04
BERE

Infectious diseases, industrial injuries,
poisoning, etc. may affect our
employees, production, and supply
chain, leading to loss of reputation
and decrease in productivity
BRAMERR - ITHE - PEFOUET
FERMNEE L ERMRERE
BHNEETHEKEEES

Shortages or interruptions in the
supply of materials and interruptions
in the shipment of products may
result in delayed deliveries
MEMEERAR P E > RERER
R A B R S R AT A

IRIGRE ()
RIFESERE (B)

Actions

T8

Take effective measures to prevent
and control the spread of infectious
diseases, such as regular disinfection
and work from home

R ARG M T R iE G ERm
RRNER NEMHERERT
1E

Establish an emergency plan to address
emergencies related to health problems

HERHEREERFHNEZEE

Establish cooperative relationships
with multiple suppliers
B L EMHERREIIS -G

Develop a supply chain backup plan
RIUHREREDTER
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

PEOPLE-ORIENTED

The Group places great emphasis on the welfare and development
of its employees. We are dedicated to providing a safe, comfortable
work environment that ensures our staff's occupational health
and safety. Additionally, we offer a wealth of on-the-job training
opportunities to assist employees in their continuous career growth.
Furthermore, we have established a comprehensive communication
mechanism to listen to our employees’ feedback and take action
to enhance their sense of happiness and belonging. Through these
efforts, we aspire to enable our employees to realise their self-worth
and lead better lives.

UANBT

FERSEEREESRNKRER M
RAORRERHE—EAZ2 - FENIFIR
HoEREEBMERREZ 2 1L
AT RHEEENEREIIR S Bl
BEFEBBREL R -FI HFACHEE
E—ERSEEHS MERESER
WHREEN IR B S =R R R B R -
BPRREBZFE N AISEEER
HESEBE ERBHFEE-

e Zero child labour
EET

100%MEEMXRRHEX

Zero work-related accidents
TTHEEW
e Zero occupational diseases

THERR

* 100% employee occupational health examination rate

("O") o Zero fire and explosion accidents
%@LP TAKIRIFEH
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

PEOPLE-ORIENTED (Continued)
Talent Acquisition

In order to standardise employee recruitment, we have laid down
well-defined Recruitment Guidelines. To ensure that the rights and
benefits of our team members are upheld, we have also established
Procedures for Free Association and Employee Representation. We
remain steadfast in respecting employees’ rights to freely associate
and elect representatives without constraints, enabling them to
negotiate relevant matters with management and enjoy procedural
fairness. This ensures that all employees’ legitimate rights and
obligations are safeguarded. To scrutinise executive conduct and
ensure compliance with rules and regulations?, we have formulated an
Employee Complaint Management Policy, further strengthening our
democratic work environment.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 998 employees.
Among them are 536 male and 462 female employees. Detailed
information is shown as follows.

g Please refer to the section headed Laws and Regulations for labour-
related laws and regulations.

U&7 (58)
AFBEE

AL EERE WA EHEYN
(FBEES|) - REFEERNERE RS
IR RATEME(EHELRE
BARER) RFIKREERERR
PR B AT (L SRR ARBIER] >
REPREEEEMEBREELEA
BEF AT ILRPIRRFTARENG A
RAEAZBRIRE - RBETHAE
IR RERETERER RAEHE
(BEERFEEHR) E—FMNREK
PR T TRRIRE

BHE_EZ_="F#+"_BA=+—H &x&
EHESKLES - HH536 A B4
4622 AL M o SEMERFIRIN TR o

2 FRREERER B UTHARE T
BYERRER
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PEOPLE-ORIENTED (Continued)

Talent Acquisition (Continued)

Employment Type

MmEREE
Part-time
3
1
Age
FHe
Over 50
5058 £
117
31to 50
31 ES505%
789

Educational Background

HAHR

Below tertiary
education
AT

844

U&7 (1)
AT BEE (8)

Geographical Region

Hong Kong HE
T3
74
924
Gender
45!
Male
462

Professional Profile
BREAE
General staff
—EET
802

196
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

PEOPLE-ORIENTED (Continued)
Talent Acquisition (Continued)

During the Year, the overall employee turnover rate was 43%. The
employee turnover rate by gender, age group, and region is as
follows.

Turnover by Gender

J‘/(A%zt (:I\E)
A7 i5EE (&)

REFE EEBERMAKRERIZ% &
MR i Rt E B R B RARU
—Fo

Turnover by Age

MR D EERR KL BB DR R
60 150
45% o 120 116%
40
90
60
20 37% 32%
30
0 0 .
Male Female Under 30 31 to 50 Over 50
B 7 30BAT  316EES0m  S05EME
Turnover by Geographical Region
aihlE SRR R R LR
60
44%
40
31%
20
0
Mainland China  Hong Kong
R E A B &8
Diversity and Equal Opportunity ZE R ELHE

We are committed to providing a diverse and equal-opportunity work
environment and encourage our employees to report discrimination
to the Human Resources Department. All complaints are handled
fairly in accordance with the Group’s anti-discrimination management
procedures, maintaining anonymity and confidentiality. Our
employee representatives meetings, held quarterly, offer employees
the opportunity to raise any complaints of unfair treatment or to
report directly to the Human Resources Department manager. In
our corporate culture, respecting every employee's dignity and
value is paramount. To this end, we have established a set of anti-
discrimination management procedures. Discrimination Management
Procedures were updated in 2022 and have been well-implemented
internally, with no instances of discrimination occurring.

BRI REHR—EZTERFEH
IR REEERANERS
BEBAREENTR PTARSITRR
BAEEREREBREFATEE Y
RELRRE - AEESTEAR—RX
EBEAXRAE BESRMTE—ERRL
FAAREFBRFUEZOANE
REPE R ERH T - ERFIAVRE
th BERESHEABENAFE B

EZomtrE EMERI—ERIESR
BEERERF RIEEE f@&f‘_ﬁ\_gii
FETHBREF  UTRABEURTE
B WS B RE Mo
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

PEOPLE-ORIENTED (Continued)
Welfare and Care

In accordance with labour laws, the Group has established the Wage
Compensation and Benefits Implementation Procedures to provide
employees with competitive salaries and benefits. For employees who
leave the Group, we commit to disbursing their wages within three
working days after completing the departure procedures.

Furthermore, the Group offers a variety of recreational and
entertainment activities for employees, including team-building
activities, new employee forums, employee birthday meals/gifts, and
Mid-Autumn Festival park outings, among others. We make every
effort to care for and assist our employees, with the aim of enhancing
their sense of belonging and cohesion.

Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

The Group has always emphasised labour contracts with
management, standardising employment practices, and strictly
registering the identities of new hires to eliminate any form of child
labour or forced labour. During the Year, there was no instance of
child or forced labour getting employed by the Group and there were
no violations of any related laws or regulations?.

We have established the Prohibition of Forced Labour Management
Procedures, respecting workers’ freedom regarding employment,
resignation, overtime, and mobility. Additionally, we provide channels
for employees to convey grievances, such as employee representatives
and suggestion boxes. Our Human Resources department rigorously
verifies identity documents during recruitment to avoid employing
child labour. It employs physical appearance checks and interview
spot checks to prevent oversights. Should there be any instances of
underage employees, the Group takes appropriate measures.

g Please refer to the section headed Laws and Regulations for labour-
related laws and regulations.
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RXTHFHS -

S FEEREERHSEXERRE
mE BEEREY - HMESESKE
BEEHE 1B hFAIBLEE S
FoRMIBEFERESRHREIERE
B EENRRSEFEBRERR -

BrlbE T Kaa%5%5 T

FEE-—BEEREEERBITUFTE
WRBAITRA BRESMABE
1 HEERE A E 55 %
IT-REFE FERTEEBEIN
wHlE TE M NEEREAERER
ERR e

HAFIET(BILRBEHEERRF)
SERESEXE HE MERBEN
BHEUN HAR/EBERMIRFE
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RIE - g hESKRS

PEOPLE-ORIENTED (Continued)

Prevention of Child and Forced Labour (Continued)

J‘XA% ZK (n‘E)
BrlEE T Raa#l % T (48)

For Worker under 16 years old

HiM6UL TR I A

For Worker between 16 - 18 years

HIN16E18N T A

e |Immediately stop the worker’s work and settle all o
his/her salary.

VEMRIEZ T ANIE HAFHEEIE-

Strictly comply with Regulations on Special
Protection for Juvenile Workers.

BIEET (CRE TR HRRERTE)

Prohibit harmful and risky work assignment.

RiI-2HAE A AR IE

e Check the worker's identity details and find out o
the reasons for the fake entry into the factory.
Report to the local public security authority if

found to be forced. ¢ No overtime or night shift shall be arranged.
BETASHER  LHEHEREALRNER TELHIMPE SR

o (HEFIREBIE > A EMAZIKERER
e Physical examination as required.
e Arrange health checks at the local CDC and notify IR EITRRE

the local labour security authorities.
REMBERZERLLHRERE > Wil
ZERE -

AR & ith 55 5 .

Register with the labour administrative department.

EEHEENFIETER

e Provide sufficient financial assistance to the child .

if from a low-income family to finish compulsory
education until 16 years of age.

Establish special files for juvenile workers and
regularly understand their work, physical and
living conditions to effectively protect the physical

MREBBARENZERHTDHEEED
EYHTREFHEEE16ER

and mental health of juvenile workers.

BURBFETAERESR

CEHTRETIES

REREEER VBERERNFIASOREE

Employee Communication

The Group highly values employees’ opinions and feedback. To
this end, the Management System Executive Committee has
established multiple communication channels, including a WeChat
public account, to collect employees’ feedback and complaints
effectively. We encourage employees to join unions to express
their concerns regarding labour issues. During the Year, employee
representative meetings were held in March, June, September, and
December, to address issues related to the cafeteria, dormitories,
and work uniforms, all of which were discussed by management and
corresponding solutions were proposed.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance
of relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

BEES
FERSEEREERRKRRE FIIL

Mms EEERAHTEZEZERIEE
MELARRENNZSEERRE UBA
MBERERERBRET -HMATEES
MALE UREREHSHEBFET
MEE-MNEAFEE BERTRZ S

R=R-R"A-WBKRTIZAHZ1T X’
BAEHEEE - BEakILIFREME
EEEBECHMAEMEETHmILIE SN
TIEERRAZE -

RAEFEE > AEBLANEBEMER
EREEERE BELES  TIFkK
BB FEHE 2 REBEK
EEm k@M ESTEBEERTY
ERRERERER
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PEOPLE-ORIENTED (Continued)

Employee Communication (Continued)

2023 Targets and Indicators

—E_=FHERERER
000 The Group

TEE
1. No employees aged 16 or below
memI U THES

100% achieved

100% itz

BB (B)
BEEE (8

. 100% coverage of employee social insurance

100% M EEH G REEEX

100% achieved
100% =iz

Nurturing Talent

Since its establishment, employees have always constituted the most
precious asset of the Company. We acknowledge that qualitative
and quantitative enhancement of the Group’s business cannot
be separated from elevation of employees’ vocational qualities
and professional capabilities. Hence, employee training is a vital
prerequisite for ensuring the positive and sustainable development
of the Group. In light of this understanding, we have committed to
implementing a robust and dynamic training programme that not only
aligns with the strategic objectives of the Group but also caters to
individual growth aspirations of our staff. By fostering an environment
of continuous learning and professional development, we aim to
empower our employees to excel in their current roles and prepare
them for the challenges of tomorrow, thereby securing a competitive
edge in the ever-evolving market landscape.

The Group has delegated the responsibility for overseeing and
devising training and development strategies to the Human Resources
department, with the onus to determine specific training needs to
each department. Following deliberation and planning, this annual
report reveals that the Group has established distinct annual training
programmes for 18 departments. Training spans various months, with
course offerings that are both general and specialised, encompassing
six broad categories: professional, general knowledge, management,
integrated, systems and safety. The objective is not only to ensure the
necessary accumulation of knowledge among the staff of different
departments but also to provide targeted professional knowledge
courses that effectively enhance competitiveness in various functions.
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PEOPLE-ORIENTED (Continued)

Nurturing Talent (Continued)

Safety
z2

Management

B

Professional

L E S

Systems

R

General Knowledge
B

Integrated

g A
=]

Six Categories Courses 7~ A8 7l sR 12

Machine Safety Operation and Proper Maintenance
WL 2R (PR EEERE

Key Account Management Training

A& R EEEI

Hazardous Substance Management Training
BEYWEEEEI

Confidentiality of Customer and Product Information

ERNMEREBRE
Employee Code of Ethics
EEERER]

Management of Sharp Instruments and Medicine Cabinets

EENEIE

Total Quality Management (TQM)
TEHREEE

Supply Chain Initiatives

RS RS

Qil Blending Techniques
SHEA R T

Accounts Receivable and Payable Management Training

FEWUR FE T BR A E B 155l
Communication Skills
VEEIAE

Quality Issue Analysis and Prevention for Forklift Operators

XERIFAESRNEERBE DRI

Fundamental Knowledge of ISO9001/I1SO14001/1ISO45001

ISO9001/1SO14001/1SO4500 1 Y £ 7 &1 38
Documentation/Record Management Requirements
X REREEER

Knowledge of System Policies and Objectives
THRAGBREBR

Silk Screen Printing Technology Training

KRB EN R B AT

Environmental Health and Safety (EHS) Training
RIGEERZ2E

Tax Law Interpretation

A fRE

Export Tax Rebate Management
HORREE
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PEOPLE-ORIENTED (Continued)
Nurturing Talent (Continued)

In addition to departmental needs, our training system offers courses
tailored to individual requirements of employees at three different
stages: pre-employment, during employment, and when transitioning
roles. This helps them to achieve personal development or transition
more smoothly. Where appropriate, we also invite external trainers
to provide high-quality training, or encourage and sponsor suitable
employees for external training programmes. During the Year, we
have brought in professional trainers to deliver courses on “Common
Business Document Writing” and “Building High-Performance Teams
and Group Motivation”.

On-the-job training

Pre-employment

B0 35 Sl TE RS

e Operational procedures and
standards
EERERREE

Company background, organisation
NEVH = A

Industrial and fire safety
THERHBZE Maintenance and operation of
equipments

Environmental policies and targets SRR RIRE
IRIEBERRER
International standards IR RIRRERE
B AR E
e Labour Safety Management

BIZ2EIE

J

e Sustainable and Green procurement

J

U (&)
AFEE (@)

FREBPIR SN IR R T AR
ERABA THRAM B8R=E1TF
FEERBYEMERRIBHERIREZ - LR
AHEHNREBREAERIIEFBE -
EBERRT BT BB IR E
EiREESEN B RENEER
B2 8B 5T 8 e R A FE > T
EBFEEEIMEHEABHAX
BIF) KR TR EE B E R
EYER

e QOperations and responsibility of
new position

MBI EEREE
—)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

PEOPLE-ORIENTED (Continued)
Nurturing Talent (Continued)

Over the years, through persistent follow-up, improvement, and
investment, the Group has established a systematic and diverse
training system. Following the well-devised training plan, we have
steadily advanced our training courses under the supervision of the
Human Resources department.

To ensure high-quality training, we appoint individuals with relevant
teaching credentials or professional qualifications as instructors,
such as those certified in 1ISO 9000 Quality Management, ISO 14000
Environmental Management, FSC (Forest Stewardship Council)
certification, or experts in other fields, to deliver training involving
professional techniques and knowledge. Furthermore, employees
must undergo assessments in various forms, including oral, written,
and practical exams, to ensure their mastery of the knowledge
acquired, with records maintained of exam results and attendance.

In terms of course offerings, apart from professional skills and
technical and industry knowledge related to daily operations, we
have arranged for a professional coach to conduct two months of
complimentary yoga training for our staff, providing a professional
yet comfortable way to maintain physical health and offering them a
respite amidst their busy work schedules.

U&7 (58)
AT tEE (8)

ZER BRBHFIWEH BT K&
BRAEECRYERFEREEN
IEEIEE 2 o LB KB O HIE BIIF A B -
EANEREMAEE T~ ~EBERY
HERIIRE -

AEFREBEEI BMEETEEERH
BERYFEEE > WISO 9000BEE
I ISO 14000 REEB - HMEES
EEREHATHEMBIEFWERE
AIEES RECEEERMENFAN
gZillo b9 EE BB ARIF AT
frERO0BE-Ea&EEAE > MUE
RIEEHFAENRNER  WHRZ A
ERREHG R

MABHEIME  FEAEEEE/HEN
B E KA R M LA AT AN - Foffd
ZH T EEHRRB T ETRIME
ARNREmMIBEI SETRMHEEM
HENAARFRTERER BELHE
THRECZHER/NEZ K-
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

PEOPLE-ORIENTED (Continued)
Nurturing Talent (Continued)

According to statistics, during the Year, the training coverage for
both male and female employees reached 93%, with coverage for
management and general staff reaching 85% and 95% respectively,
marking an increase from the previous year.

2023 Training Cover Rate
(by gender and function)

—ECCHIEIEER

(FR1E R R RE R 53)
100 92.72%  92.86% 94.64%
85.20%

800
60
40
20
0

Male Female Management General

B kg staff staff
BEEBET —RET

Occupational Health and Safety

2023 Targets and Indicators

FERRER

20

10

J‘XA%ZIS (H‘E)
AT IEE ()

RIBE#EBREN RAFEE BERTHE
BEMEIIBEXHEINR%  BEEEK

—RETHEBEEEXDH%A85%K95% »
BAFREER-

2023 Average Training Hours
(by gender and function)

—E = IEIRrE

(FR1E R R B RE R 53)
14.28 15.07 15.26
I 12.16
Male Female Management General

B eqid staff staff
BIEEBET —KET

BEERKRZR

000 The Group

EME
Zero case of occupational disease

Zero incident in relation to combustible substance explosion, fire
incidents induced by chemicals, smoking, open flame operations and

circuit 1000 :
= 0 SRR KRB Z6 DR G S B ~ TR B 2 R %0 achieved
2| BAG W S 100% ;z1=

3. 100% coverage in employee OHS check-up
100%BEERSHERERZERE

4. 100% coverage in employee EHS knowledge training
100%EEFZARMIRE  REEZ 2N
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

PEOPLE-ORIENTED (Continued)
Occupational Health and Safety (Continued)
OHS Management System

The Group strictly complies with related laws and regulations* and
has always regarded its employees’ occupational health and safety
as one of its most important responsibilities. We are deeply aware
that maintaining employees’ physical and mental health during work
is of utmost importance. Therefore, the Group has been dedicated
to implementing comprehensive policies and operating procedures
to eliminate potential occupational health and safety risks. We have
obtained ISO45001 certification and have published the Identification,
Evaluation and Control of Company Risk Sources internally. When
dealing with any issues related to occupational health and safety, the
Group adheres to the following important safety principles:

—_— 43 i, 5 — =
*

i

ISO 45001 CERTIFICATE

By rmanen 4ty
Bccupathonal ith fnd Safety
Manageman 1
a6 e a st et ot
compbarce win ¢ sard
GEIT 45001-2020 ide 45001:2018

= Please refer to the section headed Laws and Regulations for
occupational health and safety-related laws and regulations.

UAEL (B)

HERERZZ (@
BEBERZZEEZERT
AEEBEETHREEZRERS LK
REEEENHEERAEALZ2RMEH
BASEMNSEZ — -RMENEERE
ETFHENEVEREILEMER-
It AAEBIBA N DR ERITE2EMNEER
MigERER  HRRBENBERERZY
2 B kg o FH M EEN{FISO450015858 » I
B P B0 25 4 A B &L B A R 38 Bl ~ BR A
FeiEdl) c MR IEEBERERTEE
ANEASEER AEERFUTEE
Z2RE):

N FBRREERRER 8 UT AR
RERZ2HERRER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

PEOPLE-ORIENTED (Continued)
Occupational Health and Safety (Continued)
OHS Management System (Continued)

In the past year, maintaining a safe and healthy work environment
has been a collaborative effort that requires representatives from
different departments to work closely with the EHS Committee
to jointly take on the responsibilities for handling various safety-
related matters. Management representatives on the EHS Committee
oversee the overall implementation of the OHS management system
and communicate with relevant parties. Under their supervision,
the occupational health team is responsible for preventive measures
against occupational diseases and various health hazards, including
noise, dust, and viral infections. Moreover, each department has a
qualified first aider to provide first aid in case of injuries.

U&7 (58)
BEREREZZ (B)
BERBERLEEEZERT (B)

BEA—F HEF—EXEERENIFR
BEREEFFPARERE HIR
B REEZE2ZEERYSE HF
AEERERBEZE2EASENSE-
BRI RERZE2ZEENEEEAR
EEBXREERZEEERANER
Bl RER S ETER -EREFREE
TOBERRNMEEERERRERESE
BEAEENAEN SERE ME
RmEER - LS B EPITEEER —
LEBERBRAE BEAEBRGER
TETERK

Environmental Management
RIFEE

EHS Management Representatives
R -REAZZEBEASAR

OHS Team

WERBERZE/IVE ITEKHBmZE2E

As a printing products manufacturer, OHS is of paramount importance
to us, especially when using machinery. Therefore, we have
established a designated industrial and fire safety team within the
EHS Committee to ensure that our machinery and equipment are
operated and maintained safely and properly, thereby reducing the
risk of accidents and injuries. The Group also assigns a fire team head
to prevent fire incidents within this team.
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Industrial & Fire Safety Team

Environmental Management Team
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

PEOPLE-ORIENTED (Continued)
Occupational Health and Safety (Continued)
OHS Management System (Continued)

To protect employees from safety hazards and occupational diseases,
all employees are equipped with personal protective equipment
according to their job-related needs. For employees engaged in toxic
and hazardous operations, we arrange health checks annually during
their employment, and before departure for those who are leaving,
to proactively identify occupationally related health issues. In the Year,
the Group did not record any cases of occupational diseases.

Combating Potential Safety Hazards

To prevent potential occupational risks, we follow safety principles
and prioritise prevention. Throughout the Year, we maintained a list
of hazard identification, assessment, and control measures, listing the
sources of risks, potential dangers, and risk assessments for various
work areas and activities. This list also prescribes control measures to
guide employees in preventing safety hazards.

The Group’s fire safety management policy requires employees
to obtain authorization from relevant departments before using
flammable materials at production sites and office facilities, thereby
eliminating fire hazards. In addition, we conduct monthly fire safety
inspections to identify any defects in firefighting equipment and
promptly rectify them if necessary.

The Group holds six fire drills annually to raise employees’ safety
awareness and crisis response capabilities. Drills are designed to
practice evacuation strategies to be followed in emergencies.

U&7 (58)
BERRKRZR (&
BERERZZEZRT ()
PHRERERRZE2EBENRBERR
FFEREEREZBNIEEREEZY
BERAAREEG MREAFAEEL
ERNEEMS HAEEERABEE
—RUENESRBA 2 RRRE 1B
BEBERME A EREE A
FE > AERTERSTARERNE

7% o
Bt 22 EE

mUEEERERE RABREZER
ARBHERE-REFE > HFA—EF
B— ek #n - 5F b R ER BB
B DI H AR TIF&E 8 ok 2By EL R
B BECR BT o 25 B8]
BRI EERERIZE2RSER -

FEERHEMHZEEERRERES
IREES PR R AR AN LR Z W7
Fa1 AEVS AE RSB PI RV IR 48 - 1E T oH bR
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R - EREGRS

PEOPLE-ORIENTED (Continued) UANBEZ (48)

Occupational Health and Safety (Continued) BERRERZE (B

Combating Potential Safety Hazards (Continued) BrIt 22 [EE (1B)

To avoid severe injuries and accidents (including fires and explosions), ARCHRESEREWN (BFENKRIE
we have established a Hazardous Chemical Goods Management Policy VE) B BRI AE(EESL2REER

to supervise chemicals purchase, storage, and use.

Chemicals
Storage
- =]

Chemicals
Use

fEREEm

R) UEELtE2EMNEBEE - BERE
o

Use non-hazardous goods instead of hazardous chemicals as much as possible
EOECARSTEERMIFES1EE2R

Purchase hazardous chemicals that require MSDS (material safety data sheet)
EEEEYHZ2BEBERNEZEEESR

Each department should keep a Chemicals Inventory to ensure proper management

BMPIARECRERFEURFRZEEE

Dangerous goods must be stored in indoor environment with sufficient ventilation

fem B AR B EENERIRE TFKR

Chemicals should be labelled with MSDS and sealed properly to prevent leakage
C2REBERNBMRL2BBRNEH T ZSH O UK ERRE

Dispose spillage and leakage only in designated containers

ERIEEABANRIE G H ERR

Wear safety protection equipment including goggles, masks and gloves when handling chemicals

REBCERBEHZERERE UERERE OERFE

The Group has set strict emergency procedures to be followed in the KEBEXRBE—ENRNANKNIBIEELE B
event of a fire or explosion, to control the situation and minimise NINEEENZEZER  UIEEHIB R &
casualties. Relevant measures include immediately notifying all FIRET - BB HEIEILRIBA S
departments, evacuating safely, and extinguishing fire with fire P Z2WmBC WRATER NEE
extinguishers if feasible. In case of leakage, employees should cut off AN —BELRF BEEIL

power and isolate the spread of liquid (if any).

B BB R A PR B AR RS BV IR B (M0 A) ©
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

PEOPLE-ORIENTED (Continued)
Occupational Health and Safety (Continued)
Combating Potential Safety Hazards (Continued)

During the Year, there were 12 work-related accidents, resulting in
463 lost workdays due to work injuries. No work-related fatalities
have occurred in the past three years. The Group is unaware of any
significant non-compliance issues regarding laws and regulations
regarding a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

Safety Training

Cultivating a safety culture in the workplace is crucial. We have
developed annual training plans to meet the different needs of
employees in this area. New employees and those switching to
new positions receive training tailored to safety requirements of
their respective positions. Similarly, personnel engaged in special
operations or working in high-risk positions must undergo specialised
training to ensure they have the knowledge and skills to meet safety
requirements during operations. We regularly organise relevant
training courses for management personnel to help them manage and
supervise the implementation of rules and regulations promulgated by
the government, besides internal procedures mandated by the Group.
In addition to caring for employees’ safety, we communicate with
suppliers and contractors to ensure they are informed of the latest
safety policies. The Group conducted 7,852 hours of safety training
during the Year.

The Group accords high priority to training in environmental, health,
and safety aspects, committing to fulfill its social responsibilities
toward employees and stakeholders. During the Year, we have
conducted multiple drills, including emergency fire evacuation drills
tailored to different seasons and times, and hazardous chemicals
spill drills, aiming to strengthen employees’ ability to handle various
emergencies and enhance their awareness of sustainable development
concepts.
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE
Supplier Management

Supplier management plays a vital role in the development of our
Group, and selecting responsible suppliers is crucial to achieving
sustainable development. The Group pays attention to supplier
performance in the context of environment, safety and social
responsibilities. The Group constantly improves and optimises the
supplier management system by establishing unified standards for
procurement procedures such as selection, admission and evaluation
of suppliers, in order to provide safe, healthy and quality products to
its customers.

During the Year, the Group had a total of 300 approved suppliers and
sub-contractors, of which 8 are located in Hong Kong, 291 are in
Mainland China, and 1 in another region.

EHES W
HEBER

HEFEENNAEENERMEE
HEE ALREESENHEREE
RAFELERVER ~EBREMHE
BERE - ZENEEEEHFEMNEX
Ro-BBRIM—HNHEBRE EA
M EERBREFRE  SEETE T
EMBLHEFERERS UAEF IR
Mz BE-BENEM-

RAFE > ZEBHBI00RBAIHE
BRkDEE HPSRMUNEH 291K
I 7S FR B PO #th DA Re 1 SR AL S EL A 3 & o

Supplier Selection Criteria {itFERER EIT

greener suppliers

e Set Supplier Selection Criteria to better manage the risk of the supply chain and choose qualified and

FIEHEERERE LUEEFHERHERE AR EMEESERBRFRIMHER

FSC Certified Paper FSC 3235 413K

e Use only FSC-certified paper and follow the FSC Chain of Custody Management Manual

FHFIEEAFSCREMRR WETFSCEREEREIETM

Regular Assessment and Monitoring & 57 £2 85 &

e Monthly and annual assessments are conducted to continuously monitor the performance of suppliers

ERETRAEREENEHEEEHEBINERR
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE (Continued)

Supplier Management (Continued)

Green Procurement

R ERE

European RoHS 2.0, REACH, Packaging
Directive
BU8ERoHS 2.0 * REACH - @#E%

US ASTM Standard
EEIASTMAZZE

Sony Standard
RERE

Panasonic Standard
N
Waste/rubbish classification

BEEYHR AR

Emergency plan

3= |

Chemical Safety Management
tBERRZ2EE

Manage chemical safety using Material
Safety Data Sheet (MSDS)
EAMHZ2BEREELERZE

Hazardous chemical suppliers must obtain
corresponding licences

BECBRHtERLARGHEEBNFTA

EESH (8
HEBER (8

Security Management
ZHERE

Security management system
ZHERRL

Control of the process of storage and
transportation of goods

ERENNRTRERRER

Control of the personnel in and out of factory

BEHEATIBNAE

Quality Management

mEEE

Supplier Selection
Criteria

HERTERE

Certification of 1ISO 9001 - Quality
Management System
1SO 9001 R EMEEERL

Quality management measures
mEEEEk
Recycling mechanism for non-conforming

products

TEME R E S

Social Responsibility

HEEE

Prohibition of child labour, forced labour
and prison labour
HIIEABET BAELIRET

Safety management
REEE

Community investment and engagement

HERERSHE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE (Continued)
Supplier Management (Continued)

We adhere to strict internal regulations, such as the Supplier
Management Policy, and have developed Supplier evaluation
and certification procedures the Year. The Quality Management
Department, Purchasing Department, and System Group are jointly
responsible for overseeing the management of suppliers and
conducting evaluations and audits. In our supplier selection process,
we prioritise suppliers with good environmental management
practices. We review their business licences, as well as relevant quality,
safety, and environmental certifications. Additionally, we conduct
product tests to ensure compliance with our standards.

As part of our requirements, all suppliers must provide samples
along with third-party environmental test reports that demonstrate
compliance. If any materials provided by suppliers fail to meet the
specified environmental standards, we suspend purchases and request
replacements. The replacement materials undergo re-testing to ensure
adherence to environmental standards.
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i85

HERERKRS

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE (Continued) SESH (18)

Supplier Management (Continued) HEBHEIE (@)

The Supplier Management Policy with detailed assessments and rating HEESERREDE AFMMNTG
criteria ensures the materials and services provided by suppliers meet R sTap Az 2 > MR EERF IR VK
the requisite quality standards: RERBHEFTEEERENRTE -

Monthly Assessment B E:T {4

Evaluation of suppliers of raw materials to grade them into three levels: A, B and C
H R M EHI FE R Y 5T 9 A ~ BRRC =B AR 3]

For suppliers rated C, notices are issued, asking them to take corrective measures and to follow up on
implementation of improvement measures

BT RCRNEEEMS  ERREFHBEN  ERRERMEBIIE WL REERHFEEBNR

Suppliers who have been C-rated for three consecutive months must face corresponding measures such as
reduced purchases and suspension of new projects

BB ERETACROMERSEER D RBR R LIRS SREER

Annual Assessment F E ik

Suppliers” monthly scores are reviewed, and the annual score is obtained through an onsite examination,
which is used to grade them into three levels: A, B, and C

ERHEENAERY BRRESERESFERY UBEBRIREEDRA BRC=EMRK]!

For suppliers with an annual rating of C, a “supplier corrective action request” will be issued, while reducing
the purchases and suspending new orders. If the supplier does not make significant improvement, and the
monthly score is still C-rated for 2 consecutive months, the supplier will be disqualified
MEETRACANEEEMS  HEARKFEL MBEEAUETHESR > ANGREUADEKE R LR
STEREIE o MM AER W MEARECN S > B B R D EEWE B AR T ACHR B HER K SR AIR
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE (Continued)
Supplier Management (Continued)

Suppliers are encouraged to take on social responsibilities. All
suppliers are required to sign the environmental protection
commitment, quality assurance agreement and meet the
environmental requirements. We closely monitor supplier performance
to ensure compliance with commitment.

EHEHY ()

HEBERE (@)

RIS A A G BT - FA 1
BEHREBRERAAE HERE
%558 > ¥ 38 FIRRIAE o RAIB ) B 1%
HEBNRR > URRBEEETRE

FSCTM Chain of Custody
FSCTMZE R & E##

Establish the FSC-COC Management Manual which was updated in 2022 according to the FSC Chain of
Custody standard to ensure that raw materials for the purchased paper, wood, are from FSC-certified,

controlled and protected forests.

R¥E FSC EMBEEIHEIZEE B FSC-COCEEFM M-S _FFH) » MRFTIREIAAR  AMH

RMFHE B FSC 5858 ~ RIEMZ(REN R o

o Appoint a management representative to manage and supervise the FSC-COC system implementation

IEREEAEBRKREEEEREEFSC-COCRAMENMIB T

o Commit to maximise the use of renewable materials in the procurement process.

EERERBRRETEAEERIBEMK -

o Promise to gradually increase the proportion of FSC products in the Company’s sales.

EERZE LIRS FSC EMAEARRRHERPAILLA -

o Require all suppliers to provide environmental protection-related certificates and pass tests.

ERFAAHREHRMIRFEMELRBRE
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE (Continued)
Green Procurement

The Group is dedicated to upholding green and sustainable practices
across its supply chain, with the aim of minimising the environmental
impact of its products and services. This is achieved by carefully
selecting and procuring materials and services that exhibit a high level
of environmental performance. To guide these efforts, the Group has
developed a comprehensive Green Product Management Handbook
that provides clear guidance on the selection and management of
eco-friendly products.

Additionally, the Group is committed to procuring products that align
with stringent environmental standards. It ensures the use of only
Forest Stewardship Council (FSC)-certified paper and strictly adheres
to the guidelines outlined in the FSC Chain of Custody Management
Manual when managing such products. By integrating green and
sustainable practices into its supply chain, the Group actively works
towards reducing its ecological footprint and contributing to a more
environmentally conscious business landscape. During the Year, we
provided FSC training to employees to ensure that the Group's FSC
system meets the relevant requirements, and enable our employees to
have a better understanding of the FSC system.
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE (Continued)
Certified Quality Management System

The Company has established, implemented, maintained, and
continuously improved a quality management system. Our Quality
Manual is based on the ISO 9001:2015 and IATF 16949:2016
standards, providing comprehensive guidance on our products and
services. The Group has received the following certificates:

HESH (R

REEEEEAMR

AAB BRI EHE 4 ENOE
BERAM RMNERFMOER

ISO9001:2015KIATF 16949:2016 4R

B REMANERABRFRHEZES
5o A E B AL TEYEE ¢

. ISO 9001: 2015 Quality Management System . ISO 9001:2015 B EE R R
. ICTI Ethical Toy Program . ICTIETEESERED
. BRCGS Global Standard for Packaging Materials o BRCGSEIKBIEMEIE A
. G7 Master Qualification . VTN
e —ﬁq?,u— - (.:(_-;—)b—-- [ AR,
|509£EJMCE_EIF£||E:QTE 1S09001 CE.HILQC_:_\"TE
W heraby cortify that

Py Crusg T Prieding [Ehen Zrec] Company Lt

By rnanon of i
Quality Managemaent System
has boon awarded tes cerificate for
compliance with the slandard

iy g it
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE (Continued)
Certified Quality Management System (Continued)

To continuously improve our technology and management and
provide the best service, we set annual quality goals and conduct
monthly analyses to measure progress and identify reasons if targets
are not achieved. The Group’s Quality Manual clearly stipulates
product and service requirements.

Quality Assurance Targets of Neway Chung Tai Printing
REFRKERINEEFRERR

O I-ll-ll
e

Prevent occurrence of returns due to excessive
levels of harmful substances

MIERBEESMEBRMEERE

Prevent occurrence of product injuries

MR EERSBE

Customer Satisfaction

The Group views customer satisfaction as a key point of focus and
actively identifies customers’ demands. We continuously upgrade
our service capability throughout the service process through
several measures. The Group has established procedures such as the
"Customer Satisfaction Management Procedure” and “Customer
Management Procedure” to ensure customer satisfaction. The
business department is responsible for interacting with customers,
understanding the details and needs related to complaints, and
gathering information on customer satisfaction. In 2023, the Group
achieved a customer satisfaction rate of 96.72%, surpassing the
target of 95.00% satisfaction in areas such as products, business
services, delivery services, and production/quality.

Indicators

B

HESH (R

RBEUBEEAL (@
AFEERNRER REBFOR
% RMEHEFEEEERE 165
EITHM > LU BRI R R
BIREE - A EENEEFMARRE
ERRRHER-

Progress

R

Zero return due to
excessive levels of
harmful substances

BEEMEBREZTRE

=

100% achieved
100% =iz

Zero chemical injury
Z2EE

Zero chemical injury
=L T e

Zero chemical injury
T(LBMGE

ERREE
REBREEREEAEZY  BikEE
BRER -BMBEBLIERE  ERD
BRETPAERARBTSE N - AEEER
TR REEEERER ) R(ERERE
ER)EER BREL MR EFKIA
BEHETPEH, 7THRKRFEREER
ER MW EERER REENER -
R _E_=F AEENERREE
E96.72% 1T E M EBRBE
IREMREE/BE2EHFENREEBB
95.00% MY B 1Z -
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IR - HHERERKRS

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE (Continued)

EESH (8

Customer Satisfaction (Continued) ZEREREE (B
2023
ZEI=F
Business Delivery Production Customer
Products . . . . .
=5 Services Services Quality Satisfaction
EHBIR AT AR5 EnEE ERREREE

During the Year, a total of 9 products and/or service related
complaints were received. Upon receiving a complaint, the business
department promptly contacts the customer, actively follows up, and
handles the complaint according to specific procedures. All customer

complaints received by the Group have been resolved, resulting in
high satisfaction among the concerned customers.

Complaints Handling Procedures

Verify the issue
and liaise with
customers
AL
BB

Conduct
tests and
investigation

ETASKRRAE

Receive

complaints

BERR

96.03% 96.16% 97.14% 96.94% 96.33%

RAEFE AEBREEIREHRER
K/ HBR B R A o BB FE - FHE
FIgHRBMBRER  RIZBHERE I
RIBABETEREZPR R -~EEE
ENFTAERZRRFEER R EERE
Bt+amee

RiFEEREF

Rectify the
problem and
formulate
preventive
measures

A 1E A R
I E FEBA FE

Recall or
reproduce

products }
(5] i 3% = i
SEER

The Group strictly complies with applicable laws and regulations®
in Hong Kong and mainland China concerning product and service
liability, ensuring strict control over product quality. We have
established a process for handling non-compliant products, and when
it comes to product recalls, we maintain close communication with
our customers. Our recall team analyses the reasons and applicability
and initiates the recall process within 48 hours. During the Year, no
product sold by the Group had to be recalled due to health and safety
concerns.

. Please refer to the section headed Laws and Regulations for product
responsibility-related laws and regulations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE (Continued)
Responsible Service Provider

The Group continued to optimise the quality of its products and
service, maintain high quality standards, and provide reliable and
creditable products. The Group is committed to conducting business
responsibly, strictly adhering to all applicable laws and regulations,
and respecting the rights of stakeholders. In order to foster a
healthy, fair, and sustainable business environment, we ensure that
all advertising information we disseminate is truthful, accurate, and
free from misleading content that could harm society, public interests,
or the environment. Furthermore, we prohibit the publication of any
advertisements that may damage the reputation of competitors or
infringe upon trade secrets, in order to safeguard the reputation of
our partners.

During the Year, the Group did not suffer any violations of relevant
laws and regulations concerning the health and safety of products
and services, advertising, labelling, privacy, or corrective measures that
could have had a significant impact on the Group.

SESH (@)
BRENRBHERS

FERFEBCERNBRBEE R
EPmERE TRHEEERFNIEE
me REENNNUBEEENHFAFE
A% BRETREBERNERER
WEBFMDENEN BITEREAF
MAFEERNEBIRE IR R
LMHNFMAESEEBEEER BHE
AIREREMLE AR @D WIRIZARE
B o lESh RAIR LRI E R FH
FEREENREFERENEFES UL
REXBBHNZE-

REFE AERTRELEEMERE
FEMRRBNRERZE - EE 1B
B TARSSUA ERTRB A RIA R BRI 8E
HEAEEENEATENER
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R - EREGRS

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE (Continued) EEEH (8

Protection of Intellectual Property Rights REEX R ERE

The Group attaches great importance to the protection of intellectual REBSEZERFRENBERE - FMT
property rights. We fully respect intellectual property rights of our NEESIEBRHENMBERE I EIKIR
partners and strictly regulate the use of their intellectual properties in RBAOTEHIERDIRSBEEREEMBERE &
accordance with agreed terms. The Group has established procedures EECFICHHEETERRERR
for evaluating and protecting intellectual property and procedures MERE LGRS FE SEIMPHas
for controlling the confidentiality of products. The management R EMNEIEE N BEEs5U0
department is responsible for overseeing the management of o

intellectual property rights, as listed below.

Review

B2E

Application

2
]

Handling
Litigation
A

Signing
Contracts

et A
BT AN

Marketing &
Education

EHRBE

Formulate various intellectual property management regulations and coordinate management,
guidance, supervision, and inspection of intellectual property management work in other
departments

HESBENHEREEEZRLHAEE EE - BEERGEEMBPINNHEREERTL(F

Review business unit applications, organise, and formulate intellectual property management
BEEBBAUNFF AR KT ENHAEREIE

Responsible for intellectual property rights applications

BENBEEFD

Responsible for handling intellectual property rights disputes and litigation

& 5 R IR A A Ay Re ARl

Participate in the signing or review of various intellectual property rights-related contracts
SRRBNHEBEBSONRITNES

Organise intellectual property rights-related marketing education activities and experience
exchanges

AR E AR E I B AR B R AR SR
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE (Continued)
Protection of Intellectual Property Rights (Continued)

The Group has established a Confidential Product Control Programme
and a mechanism for reporting any potential violations of intellectual
property rights. During the Year, the Group obtained two patents
authorisations, and was not involved in any complaints, lawsuits or
any non-compliance with laws and regulations related to intellectual
property rights.

Data Security and Information Protection

The Group values data protection and is dedicated to maintaining the
security of customers and stakeholders information. Our subsidiaries
have established a Privacy Protection Management Policy to preserve
confidentiality of information of suppliers, customers and employees.
During the Year, the Group has not encountered any data leakage or
violations of relevant laws and regulations.

To prevent unauthorised access and use, the Group strictly prohibits
unauthorised access to data. The Product Confidentiality Control
Policy outlines effective measures to protect the data of suppliers,
clients, consumers, and employees.

SESH (@)
&R HERE ()

FEBFECRI(REBEREMNRER) X
BEEMBERICMBAERIT R
fle RAEE > ZEBRSMEAEZRNE
R BARBETARSF  FRHERA
s E R AR ERNBE R

BELZERIEERE

FEEERBIBERE > LR ONEER
FHRFHENEEZE -RMANKEBA
B EfIE (AR IREEIEBR) » LURE
HEF ZERMESNEEER &
FE FAEBTAREBETHBIRREN
BRBRAERERNER

LR EE BN ERER A5&H
BRRLEREEESHHE - ERFRE
ERIBRBEE R REREE TR
HEEREEEFBIEH -
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RIE - EREGRS

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE (Continued) EEEH (8
Data Security and Information Protection (Continued) HIEZ 2 RESRE (B)

\_

Suppliers and Clients tEEFEEZ

Entering confidential production areas without being accompanied by staff is prohibited

RIEGEUEEETER TEAKRBEEED

A confidentiality agreement is signed with clients for every order received
MBEINESETEHERRERE W HE

An appointed person from each department oversees the entire production process

BHPIEE—RAEBEREELEERR

Employees E&

The Employee Code of Ethics is strictly followed, which prohibits the disclosure or publishing of any
confidential documents of the Group

BRETREEERRLTR ERRILRENEMAER AT

Annual training and inspections are provided on data protection and privacy

SHERHARBBRFRERMLBIEIIIREE

New employees are required to sign a confidentiality agreement
WABBEESRE R
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE (Continued)

Anti-corruption

e Zero corruption cases in 2023
RIBEZ=FUEFLESERE

anti-corruption system

BIUEAKE BEEERESER

The Group places high importance on establishing a culture of
integrity and nurturing an anti-corruption corporate culture in
the organisation. We have a “zero tolerance” policy towards
any unethical behaviour, including but not limited to bribery,
embezzlement, improper gains, and fraud. To regulate and
prevent occurrence of such issues among company employees and
management, Neway Chung Tai Printing and Kam Hon Printing have
developed a Code of Conduct for Employees and a management
procedure for conducting business without consideration of
any vested interests. The Human Resources and Administration
departments are responsible for supervising the implementation of
these guidelines. Additionally, we have established an investigation
procedure for unethical behavior to effectively carry out anti-
corruption investigations.

To safeguard the rights of and prevent retaliation against
whistleblowers, we have implemented a procedure for protecting
informants. Furthermore, we provide anti-corruption training for all
employees, including management, and assess their understanding
through offline examinations to ensure the effectiveness of the
training.

e Provide anti-corruption training for all employees
including management
AEEEEETANEBEERERESE AR

e Establish governance mechanism and build an enterprise

SESH (@)
RES

SN

FEESEERTHBANRLMEX
EREEREFNEEXE HFAIBE
AR EENTR (BEERRINERE.
MABEER - FERAKRIEE BT IE2S
BIBR-BRERBMIEETRHEEE
2 HRZFEE > fE PR KR
MR ERIE —BESRT TR KR—
BAEBERER TR ETER
ZEERERF - ANERESFIRATEERFT
BEEEZSESINERIBR IS
HPERUAERTR/AERER UAE
MHARKRESHE

HRERBEEN BT HBEA
BITEHRE  RPICBEHEBARER
Feoltsh BB EEEBEANE
RESRMREFEI LEERTE
A A H IR E > MERIEHINE
o

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE&EEZKARAT | Annual Report 2023 F iR

141



142

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - EREGRS

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE (Continued)

Anti-corruption (Continued)

During the Year, the Group has not been informed of any violations
of laws and regulations® related to bribery, extortion, fraud, or
money laundering that could have a significant impact on the
Group. Moreover, the Group has not faced any concluded legal cases
related to corrupt practices. We will continue to strengthen our anti-
corruption efforts to ensure the integrity and sustainable development

of the Company.

The Group actively takes the actions listed below to set an effective

corporate anti-corruption system:

\_

Whistleblowing channels 3R =38

HESH (R

R&ES (8)

RASE AEBLFANBIMER
BRI B3 FEIR SRR A AR R
FRCAEHAEBENEAY BNE
72 o Itk b - s S B 3 45 D R S O S AT
BB REARRE - RMBRENR
RE5 TIE URERE AR ZHIE R
HERR

FEBBEBRRNTE BUTZE
MHEERESER !

\

We have established various reporting channels, such as email, text message, and anonymous call. We
encourage our employees to report any potentially unethical behaviour and a protection mechanism is also in

place to protect the safety of whistleblowers

RMERIZBEREE BB REARERBRS HRAEERSEMEENFERTR TRAR

ERBIRRERRENEZ S

J

Education and Training 2 & Kz

Regular assessment and monitoring 7 £ 57 B2 85 &

We provide regular anti-corruption training for all staff including management with the requirement of

participation and completion on time

ZARE2EET BREEER RUHEPNNRESEI EXRE TZRES ML e iEHl

The Group assesses and monitors regularly the implementation of relevant policies

AERERTEREEABBRNERBNR

Please refer to the section headed Laws and Regulations for anti-

corruption-related laws and regulations.
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE (Continued)
Whistleblowing

The Group has established clear whistleblowing procedures and takes
all reports seriously. We encourage all employees to actively report any
suspected unethical behaviour through anonymous hotlines, emails,
text messages, and other channels to the Human Resources and
Administration departments. To ensure the safety of whistleblowers,
we have implemented policies and measures to protect their identity
and ensure confidentiality. Additionally, we have developed the
“Policy for Investigation of Unethical Behavior,” which provides
clear and robust guidelines for conducting investigations, ensuring
that every report is handled promptly, fairly, and professionally.
Upon receiving a report, the following investigation procedures are
followed:

Investigation Procedures

EESH (8
2%

FEBEZUMARNBERER  WER
HEFMARS HAXBFMAREES
B4R BB EEREMRERA
FEIRERFI R AT EEBFI R B ¥ 5 A
BRABROTR RERBRENR
£ HFIE RENBUER R B T AR E TR 5
S P W RRERE - IE5h > HFITHIE
(TEERTR/AEER) > ZBRAH
RATIRMBARKRE NS5 BT
BNBRERFZIAEFEMBE I
BEERE FAERFUT

AERERF

Conducting the investigation: FIERE :

WEAMEANER  MUBE/NMERGEFAEFE

e Gathering information on the incident, assembling an investigation team, and creating an investigation plan

Gathering evidence and testimonies: Uz 5 # K 3557

e Collecting information and obtaining statements from witnesses

W &S B I ES 8 AR FR At

Analysis, handling, and prevention: 94 « i2 32 K T8RS :

e Identifying the cause of the incident, determining responsibility, and making recommendations for

preventing similar incidents in the future

BESHNRE BEEEME UMEMRREUSEHABERERHER
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE (Continued)

Community Engagement

¢

The Group has consistently placed great importance on community
investment and engagement. In 2023, we donated approximately
HK$295,000, our team of volunteers contributed 9,720 hours
of volunteer activities, and supported one disabled person. As a
responsible corporate entity, we prioritise environmental protection
and are committed to contributing to the well-being of the
community through various health and social initiatives.
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- e 9,720 Hours Voluntary Activities
| Sy

SREE RSN, 720/

e HK$295,000 Donation
$878295,0003E 75

HESH (@
HESH

AEEB—EBH+OERBHTENKRER
Z2E R _E_=F > HZALEEILY
295,000/ 70 B2 HEREEEZHN
RFRE, 720/ BB — &5 HE A
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - g hESKRS

LAWS AND REGULATIONS ERREER
The Group devotes unremitting efforts to ensure that its business KEEFESENMMEERHEERESES
operations are in full compliance with all applicable laws and PETFAEBIE - T EREANFFERE
regulations in respect of ESG. The list of applicable laws and BiEEEEREBAERE L ERYIERW
regulations is as follows: B
Applicable Laws and Regulations Section
HRERRER EEf
Emissions ° Environmental Protection Law of the PRC ENVIRONMENTAL
213 &Y RE ANRJEMBEIRIRREE PROTECTION
o Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC IBIE{FE

FhEE N R HABEKSEREEAEE

o Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC
hEE N RHMEARSEEERE

° Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Waste
FREE A\ R H A E RS BE )5 RIRIER AT

° Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of Environmental
Noise Pollution
hEE A REMRIRIERE SR EE

° The National Hazardous Waste List
Bl =X 1 Bea s 4 %4 %

o Integrated Air Pollutant Discharge Standard
RKRSEMEEEBEEE

o Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard
B AR

° Boiler Air Pollutants Emission Standard

IBIE KRS R BEUIREE

Use of Resources ° Energy Conservation Law of the PRC ENVIRONMENTAL
LEFEH RE AR BESAERZE PROTECTION
o Cleaner Production Promotion Law of the PRC IBIE(RE
REARENEBREERES
Environmental and |*  Forest Law of the PRC ENVIRONMENTAL
Natural Resources EP%AE;E*D’T‘MMZ . . PROTECTION
EBIER K AEE o Regulations of Guangdong Province on Forest Protection RIS (R
Management

[E R AR E E IR A
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RIE - EREGRS

LAWS AND REGULATIONS (Continued) EREER (8)
Applicable Laws and Regulations Section
BRERRER =1:]
Labour . Labour Law of the PRC PEOPLE-ORIENTED
BT hE ARXNRSE WA BZ

o Labour Contract Law of the PRC
FREARENMBESEHERE

o Law of the PRC on the Protection of Disabled Persons
hEE N RHEMBEIRE A RE

o Law of the PRC on the Protection of Minorities
REARENBEDEREREE

o Trade Union Law of the PRC
REAREMBEITEX

o Women's Right Protection Law of the PRC
hEE AR EMBEGE LR REE

o Special Rules on the Labour Protection of Female Employees
IS REFHRE

o The Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong
BEERGRG

o The Employee’s Compensation Ordinance in Hong Kong
BHHEEESRERG

o The Sex Discrimination Ordinance in Hong Kong
E AR IR GG

° The Race Discrimination Ordinance in Hong Kong
BEBIREARGD

° The Disability Discrimination Ordinance in Hong Kong

B BRI AR G
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RIE - g hESKRS

LAWS AND REGULATIONS (Continued) ERBOER (8)
Applicable Laws and Regulations Section
BRZRKRER =321
Health and Safety e Production Safety Law of the PRC PEOPLE-ORIENTED
BERZER PEARANMERZEEER WA B

o Special Equipment Safety Law of the PRC
REARENMERERERZRZE

o Fire Protection Law of the PRC
RE NRHEMBEERRE

o Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases
REANREMBEIBE R A

o The Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance in Hong Kong
BB 2 & R R BR ARG

Labour standards ° Law of the PRC on the Protection of Minors PEOPLE-ORIENTED

& TR hE AR EMBERBLE AREE WA BZE

o Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour
ZILFERETRE

Product ° Product Quality Law of the PRC OPERATIONAL
Responsibility Eﬂf/\tfﬁ éi\ijEL A g%} e EXCELLENCE
o= o roduction Safety Law of the oy :
RN thiE \RHAE LR LA HneE
o Intellectual Property Laws of the PRC
FREE A B A B A0 8 AR A
o Cybersecurity Law of the PRC
hEE A\RBEMEBEEZ A
o Patent Law of the PRC
hE ARIEMEEFE
o Personal Information Protection Law of the PRC
hEE N RHAEEAEEREE

o The Personal Data Ordinance in Hong Kong

HBRMEAEREA
Anti-corruption ¢ Criminal Law of the PRC OPERATIONAL
R&S I NRHAMEIR A EXCELLENCE
o Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC B S

PEAREMBERFEEHRFEE
o The Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in Hong Kong

BB LEEBRRRG
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RIE - EREGRS

Aspects
HE

Environment

IRIR

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY RIFEBEEE
Indicator 2023 2022
512 —EZ= —E-C
Total Energy Consumption GJ 46,579.46 52,574.28
RERHFEEE FIKEE
Energy consumption intensity GJ/HKD ('000) 0.08 0.12
BERETE FIKEE, BT (F)
Electricity kWh 11,306,704.78 12,570,453.00
E TERE
Natural gas m3 123,695.00 156,608.00
RAR AR
Petrol litres 25,763.07 26,219.28
b At
Diesel litres 6,660.67 10,832.00
5538 AF
Water Consumption tonnes 67,974.19 85,199.00
FekE NI
Water consumption intensity tonnes/HKD ('000) 0.12 0.19
FEKBE Amg/ BT (F)
Packaging Materials
B
Paper tonnes 2,027.52 1982.53
AR YN
Plastic tonnes 676.60 575.98
2B ANE
Metal tonnes 0.30 1.00
=8B YN
Greenhouse Gases (GHG) Emissions
BERBEHEK
Scope 1: direct carbon emissions tCOze 352.00 432.90
E BRI RB_EEREE
Scope 2: indirect carbon emissions tCO2e 7,233.67 9,332.16
81[E2 | BN RE_REHES
Total GHG emissions tCO2e 7,585.67 9,765.06
RERBHIES RBE_FEREE
Total GHG emission intensity tCO2e/HKD ('000) 0.01 0.02
BRERBENEEES RE_EEREES

7 ()
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R - EREGRS

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY (Continued) RINBIEHE (48)

Aspects Indicator 2023 2022

HE 512 —EZ= —E-C
Air Pollutants
ERISEY
SO« kg 0.38 0.39
mEty N
NOx kg 54.58 61.30
K81 N
PM kg 4.66 5.38
6T FERL N
VOCs tonnes 11.79 15.46
BEMAERIEEY NI
Waste

Environment BEY

IRIR Hazardous waste tonnes 74.56 73.58

BEEEEY NI
Hazardous waste intensity kg/HKD ('000) 0.14 0.16
BEBEENRE DR/ BT (F)
Non-hazardous waste tonnes 311.00 220.00
mEREEY NI
Non-hazardous waste intensity kg/HKD ('000) 0.57 0.49
BREBRENRE ADF /BTt (F)
Effluent tonnes 7,565.00 5,274.00
5K YN
Effluent intensity tonnes/HKD (‘000) 0.01 0.01
SIKERE AmE/ BT (F)
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RIE - EREGRS

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY (Continued)

Aspects
HE

Workforce

Demographics
SEh
ANEmst

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE2&£EZERBRAE | Annual Report 2023 F iR

Indicator
i
Total Headcount

EEEH

RRBEME (B

2023
— =

— e

998

2022
———

— =

1,190

By Geographical Distribution
&

Mainland China
EalEpN 55

924

1,104

Hong Kong
BHE

74

86

By Age
BEE

30 or Below

30pR AT

92

148

31-50
315 E505%

789

915

Above 50
505% A

117

127

By Gender
BRI

Male
B

536

643

Female

g3

462

547

By Educational Background
REBEAR

Tertiary education or above

AR L E

154

215

Below tertiary education

AR

844

975




Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R - EREGRS

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY (Continued)

Aspects
BE

Workforce

Demographics
SEN
A4 st

Indicator
5%
By Professional Profile

R AE

RBBEME (B)

2023
— e

—_—<——

2022

—=— —

— =

Management staff
EEEET

196

295

General staff
—RET

802

895

Employee Turnover Rate

BERKLLE

Total

43%

58%

By Age
REE

30 or Below
30 TIA T

116%

95%

31-50
315 E505%

37%

46%

Above 50
50 A

32%

105%

By Gender
tz:qkdall

Male
B

45%

56%

Female

pogis

42%

61%

By Geographical Distribution
&

Mainland China
e alEpN 125

44%

60%

Hong Kong
R

31%

38%
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RIE - EREGRS

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY (Continued) KIFEME (8)

Aspects Indicator 2023 2022
HE 512 —EZ= ==

Employee New Hire Rate

{2 5 # {2 f LE =

Total 31% 39%
BB

By Age
RE

30 or Below 109% 107%
Workforce EENZETSEN

Demographics EEXES]0] 25% 33%
L) 315 E508%

ANE#r st Above 50 7% 1%
507% ML E

By Gender
biqE 3l

Male 34% 43%
B

Female 27% 35%
g

Percentage of employees trained 93% 94%

RillEEE 2L

By Gender
RIER

Male 93% 54%
B

Female 93% 46%
Z%

By Professional Profile

R AE

Management staff 85% 24%
EEEET

General staff 95% 76%
—fRET

Training and

Development A trainina h 15 16
EHIRERE verage training hours per person

A 95 B B

By Gender
R

Male hours 14 16
B INEF

Female hours 15 16

pogk NS

By Professional Profile

R AE

Management staff hours 12 15
EEEET NS

General staff hours 15 16
—fRET INEF
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R - EREGRS

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY (Continued)

Aspects

B

Health and

Safety
BEREZ

Community
Investment

HERE

Indicator

517

REYEME (B

Work-related incident cases 12 9

TEHERASE REL

Lost days due to work-related injury days 463 430

THEBERTERH X

Work-related fatalities no. of employees 0 0

TEAERASET A BB A

Number of employees participating in safety | person-times 5,342 2,493

training AR

2HZ2EIEEAM

Total safety training hours hours 7,852 4,390

TR IB AR /NEF

Donations HK$ 295,000 260,000

B BT (approximately) (approximately)
(1 #9) (HE#9)
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RIE - EREGRS

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX BEABMXRIRBE - HERER
2FSEAE]

KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section

RRRARMIEIR BEMIZMRIE L EREBRSEIESIER =

Governance Structure

EAEE

Mandatory Disclosure | A statement from the Board containing: Board Statement

SR () Disclose the Board's oversight of ESG issues; EEgEH

(i)  the Board’s ESG management approach and strategy, including
the process of evaluating, prioritising and managing material
ESG-related issues (including risks to the issuer’s business); and

(iii)  how the Board reviews progress against ESG-related objectives
and explains how they relate to the issuer’s business.

MEFGELMER ERHBTIRS

(i BWEEEFGHRF HEREREENEE;

(il EBEFEMNRB -HERELEEFH AR BFEHE B
I RERESEMNRE - HERELAEAEE (BEHETA
EBRERR) NBRE; &

(i) EFGUERIRE TG RELARE RGN ERS  TREE
I EL 8547 N X5 R R
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HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

KPls

LR RS

Reporting Principles
BE R /R Al

RB RS (&

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
BEAMZMIRIE - ERERREIESIEX

ERMRFARE - HEREA

Section

8211

Mandatory Disclosure

s8R

Description or explanation of how the following reporting principles
have been applied in the preparation of the ESG Report:

HANMBERAERRE HEAEARSFKUNFEATIERRE

Materiality: The ESG Report should disclose: (i) the process for
identifying and selecting material ESG factors; and (ii) if the issuer
has engaged stakeholders, a description of the identified material
stakeholders, and the process and results of the issuer’s stakeholder
engagement.

EEM RE - HEAEAREEREE ()HINEERE - HER
ERRRNBREREREELEARNER (NNBTABETHENE
280 BHNEERDENEARETAFTNHESHENBERERS
% o

The Group
communicates with
stakeholders through
various channels to
identify material issues
that have an impact on
the Group’s business
from the perspective of
Environmental, Social
and Governance. This
report comprehensively
discloses the Group’s
approach to and
performance in
addressing the main
environmental, social
and governance issues
that the stakeholders
are concerned about.
TEBBEBLERE
B ) EBE > MR
B EREAAEH
R EAREREHH
BEEME - AREEE
WBEAEERERD
ERINFBRIRE 1
eREARBENG I
R o
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HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued) EARABMTAARE - HERES
RBE5| (&)

KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section

RRRAR ISR BEAMZMIRIE - ERERREIESIEX =

Reporting Principles

EER IR A

Mandatory Disclosure | Quantitative: Information on the standards, methodologies, The Group applies

SR I BB assumptions and/or calculation tools used, and source of conversion | quantitative principles.
factors used, for the reporting of emissions/energy consumption The Performance Data
(where applicable) should be disclosed. Summary is presented

216 : BRERBENE SERER WER) FRANRE 7575 ~ &R |in a manner conducive
B/ ETENER URAERANESBREAZNICRETIE . | to comparison of year-
on-year changes. The
measures are described
adequately, including
the method of
calculation of indicators
of emissions in the
notes.
REEHRBECREA] -
RIBHEHMEUER
BRTRBEZHN A
23 -2EHERUR
D BiE s BT
PR IERR 75 0%
Consistency: The issuer should disclose in the ESG Report any The Group adheres to
changes to the methods or KPIs used, if any, or any other relevant consistent standards
factors affecting a meaningful comparison. in the preparation of
—HM BTARTRE - HEREARSTPIRBERASTH AR | the reports. The way
BYIEENEE WA) EAEMEEE SRR L ERMNERER- this report is prepared
has not changed
significantly from
previous years.
REEBHBREHE
FFERA— R % o 3R
ENRE G EEESF
FrAEMELETmEXR
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RIE - g hESKRS

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued) ERAMAFIEREE - HEAE S

RE RS (&)

KPls

BB IR SR

A. Environmental
A. IRiE

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
BEAMZMIRIE - ERERREIESIEX

Section

8211

Aspect A1:
Emissions
[EmEA1 :
B4

General Disclosure ENVIRONMENTAL
Information on: PROTECTION
(@) the policies; and IBIE(RE
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
— eI E
ERRERAERBHR Rk - EERBEEEEYN
BEER
(@) BER; &
(b) FETFHBETABEAZENEMERERRFINER -
KPI A1.1 Types of emissions and their respective emissions data. | ENVIRONMENTAL
AN | S EEREARI ISR PROTECTION — Tackling
E1EA1 Climate Changes
KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) fiﬁ”ﬁ%_%ﬁ%@
RRSREN greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where 21t
$5142A1.2 | appropriate, intensity.
B @EN) REREE EE2) AERBHHRE (X
AW E) REE (WBRA) °
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where | ENVIRONMENTAL
RASEMEM | appropriate, intensity. PROTECTION —
IE1EA13 |(FIEAEZEEEYES LURMEE) REE WHE Emissions Control
A o IRIB (R E —HE U
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
RASEME | where appropriate, intensity.
1EEA14 |FMELEREEEYEE UAHEEE) REE WE
A)
KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to | ENVIRONMENTAL
RASEER | achieve them. PROTECTION —

$51RA15

AP ST S BV PF I E B R R A E B E £ B ARPR HRENBY

Environmental

TERo Performance Tracking,
Emissions Control
RIBFRE-IRIERR
BHE ; BEBUZES
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous ENVIRONMENTAL
RRSREN wastes are handled, and a description of reduction PROTECTION —

}54EA1.6 | target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

B RIEAEREEREREYN DA REFTEI LA
HMEERRSEDSEB R T R

Environmental
Performance Tracking,
Emissions Control
RIBRE-IRIZERIR
B BERUES!
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IRIE - g hESKRS

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued) EARABMTAARE - HERES
RB%ES| (&)

KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section

RRRAR ISR BEAMZMIRIE - ERERREIESIEX =

Aspect A2: General Disclosure ENVIRONMENTAL

Use of Resources Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and |PROTECTION

JEMEA2 : other raw materials. IRIBRE

BiRER — R

BUERAEIR (B4EREIR KR EAMERAME) BOBER
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in ENVIRONMENTAL

RASEAERL | total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity. PROTECTION — Tackling
151EA2.1 BBV SNER R HEEEREEEE (UFE |Climate Changes
TREFE REE- IRIBRE-—EHAE
1t
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. ENVIRONMENTAL
RBEN |BEKERBE- PROTECTION —
1512A2.2 Resources Conservation

RIFRE-—HNER
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and ENVIRONMENTAL

RASE4ERL | steps taken to achieve them. PROTECTION — Tackling
151EA2.3 | HEMPIET I HBERE A M m B R R AIERELEBEMT | Climate Changes
HREXBY 5% o IRIERE-—EHAE
&1t

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing ENVIRONMENTAL
RASR4ERL | water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) |PROTECTION —
}§48A2.4  |set and steps taken to achieve them. Resources Conservation
I RBUBE R AR LI BERIERE URFAETIINA |[RERE-HAOER
KM B IR R A B S e B AR P IRER Y & B o
KPI A2.5 Total packaging materials used for finished products (in | ENVIRONMENTAL
RASR4ERL  |tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit PROTECTION —

}I51EA2.5 produced. Resources Conservation
S RTAEEMENEE URAMEFE) &k WER) |REFRE-HNER
SEEBMESE
Aspect A3: General Disclosure ENVIRONMENTAL
The Environment and | Policies on minimising the issuers’ significant impact on the PROTECTION
Natural Resources environment and natural resources. IRIG {RoE
[BMEAS3 : — IR E
RERRXARER EETABRIERARERERNE AR ENEBGR -
KPI A3.1 Description of significant impacts of activities on the ENVIRONMENTAL
RASE4ERL | environment and natural resources and the actions PROTECTION
}51EA3.1 taken to manage them. — Emissions
HEBHIRE R RAABE RN EALERERENER | Control, Tackling
BREEENTH - Climate Changes,
Environmental
Emergency
Management
IRIG IRl —HEUES ;
FEHRIZEE ; IRIGAE
=B
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HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

KPls

BB IR SR

Aspect A4:

Climate Change

NBE5| (&)
HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
EARABRAIRIE - ERERBREESIEK
General Disclosure
Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related

ERMRFARE - HEREA

Section

=111

ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION — Tackling

significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
—fRiEE
EEBEREE -BREEKSH TEFE RA-TEXS -2t
RERUREMFBREF

EEA4 : issues which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer. | Climate Changes
RIFL1E —RIRE RIBRE-EHRE
HAREHERAOUEEHETAELERENETAREEAEEN | &1t
BUR o
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues
RASEM | which have impacted, and those which may impact, the
I51EAL.1 issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.
BB R RAEEHBRTAEELENEARIEER
FH REHTH-
B. Social
B. 4%
Aspect B1: General Disclosure PEOPLE-ORIENTED
Employment Information on: DN
EEB1 : (@) the policies; and
217 (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

@@ BE; &

(b) BFHETABEARENHERBEIRRROAINEEK

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group | PEOPLE-ORIENTED —
RATRER and geographical region. Talent Acquisition
$51%B1.1 MR EERE FRAEN RN e THNEEMAR - | UAR/E— ATIRE
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and PEOPLE-ORIENTED —
RABE4ER | geographical region. Talent Acquisition
ai@B1.2 | MR FEARRIMER DREERKLE R MARAE— NT1BEE
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HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

KPls

BB IR SR

Aspect B2:
Health and Safety
[EEB2 :

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
ERABMRIRE - HERERREESIEX
General Disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

ERMRFAIRE - HEREA
RER3| (&)

Section

=
PEOPLE-ORIENTED —
Occupational Health
and Safety

BEHZR (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a UANBE-BEERE
significant impact on the issuer Rz

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting

employees from occupational hazards.

— AR IR EE

BRREZ2THREREEARREREERTHELLEM :

(@ BER; &

(b) BFHETABEARXENHERBEIRRROINER

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in

RS AE X each of the past three years including the reporting year.

EIRB2.1 | BE=LF (QEERFE SEET URNABRRL

$ o

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injuries.

RARE RAITEERXITIEEH-

$51%B2.2

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures

RARAER adopted, how they are implemented and monitored.

ai%B2.3 | HIMFTERMBIB R R ERE Z 2 DURERRRITR

B P Ee

Aspect B3: General Disclosure PEOPLE-ORIENTED —
Development and Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging | Nurturing Talent
Training duties at work. Description of training activities. MUANBR—-ANAEE
8 mEB3 : —RRIRE
B R RIEIN BRARAEE BT TIER S AR 3 K B AE I BUER  # it IE I E B ©

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and

RASEM | employee category.

¥51EB3.1 BRI REEEBEIDHNZINREEBT DL

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by

RASE4ERL | gender and employee category.

f51%B3.2 gl@t%ﬂ&ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬂ &l BRES TR FIIETIR
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HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

KPls

BB IR SR

RE RS (&)

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
BEAMZMIRIE - ERERREIESIEX

ERMRFARE - HEREA

Section

8211

Aspect B4: General Disclosure PEOPLE-ORIENTED —
Labour Standards Information on: Prevention of Child and
[2EB4 : (@) the policies; and Forced Labour
& T#R| (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a UABE—-FFIEET
significant impact on the issuer R g 55 T
relating to preventing child or forced labour.
— AR IR EE
BRAM L& T aisamss TaY !
(@ BER; &
(b) BTFHETABEAZENEREIERRINER -
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices
RASE4ERL | to avoid child and forced labour.
151EB4.1 s RS RE MR R E T RaRfss T o
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices
RABE4ER | when discovered.
EfFB4.2 |HIMTEEIRERIBNE H RS BB RPTERERBI & 5 o
Aspect B5: General Disclosure OPERATIONAL
Supply Chain Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply EXCELLENCE
Management chain EESW
8 EB5 : —RRIRE
{3t FE 5% & 38 FIRMEENIRIE RS R REE
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. OPERATIONAL
FRER |(EtwEIoNMEEmEE- EXCELLENCE — Supplier
$54€B5.1 Management
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, SESR-HEEE
RATRER number of suppliers where the practices are being 2

}51¥B5.2 implemented, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

Bt A AR A HERVER > mENITARRIEH Y H
EEEE  URBEARTRERS A

KPI B5.3
RASRAEN
}54EB5.3

Description of practices used to identify environmental
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they
are implemented and monitored.

Hl B R EEESEIRNNIRE T RIS
B> LU B RABAT I BR R 5 7% o

KPI B5.4
RAREN
}51EB5.4

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and services when
selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

H T REHEE RS RIRRERKRIRFBNIE
B> U B RABAT IR B 5 7% o

OPERATIONAL
EXCELLENCE — Supplier
Management; Green
Procurement

e e HER
BIE ; L BIXRE
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HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued) BEAEAMITAEBEE - HERES
NARS| (8

KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section

RSB AERIE1E ERAHMRIIRE - HERERREIESIEX =921

Aspect B6: General Disclosure OPERATIONAL

Product Information on: EXCELLENCE

Responsibility (@) the policies; and EEa

2 EB6 : (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

EmEE significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.

—RRiRE
BRFMRHERNRENERAZ2 ES ERAIESTEUR
R £

(@) B &

(b)) BTFTHETABERTZENERERRROIBIER -

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to | OPERATIONAL
RASEM | recalls for safety and health reasons. EXCELLENCE —
}54ZB6.1 DERDEZXERBETRAZ 2 HEEERMERIUL | Customer Satisfaction,
NEDLE Responsible Service
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints ETF?!der . .
RASEM | received and how they are dealt with. HESU-ELWE
$51EB6.2 | HEERIESD KRS HR B E UR S Sk o B RRENREHE
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and OPERATIONAL
RATRER protecting intellectual property rights. EXCELLENCE -
f51%B6.3 |t N RIEA AR A RMNIER o Protection of
Intellectual Property
Rights
SE S RENH
EETE
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall OPERATIONAL
RABE4ER | procedures. EXCELLENCE -
{51%B6.4 |HMIMBERTBENERLOWER - Customer Satisfaction
SEFH-FRWE
i3
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy OPERATIONAL
R E policies, how they are implemented and monitored. EXCELLENCE -
151%B6.5 O B E B RHMRE R A RBREER » U ERA#ITRE | Data Security and
Bk Information Protection
SEFU-#ELE
K5 BfRE
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RIE - g hESKRS

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued) EARABMATAARE - HERES
ABES ()
KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section
RRRAR ISR BEAMZMIRIE - ERERREIESIEX =
Aspect B7: General Disclosure OPERATIONAL
Anti-corruption Information on: EXCELLENCE -
JEmEB7 : (@) the policies; and Anti-corruption;
k&= (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a Whistleblowing
significant impact on the issuer EESH-KRES;
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. 23R
— IR E \
BRAP LEFRRR ~ R ~ INFF Rk R ERAY ¢
(@) BE; &
(b) BFHETABEARENMERBEIRRROINEER
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
RABEAE R practices brought against the issuer or its employees
$51EB7.1 during the reporting period and outcomes of the cases.

RREMEANEET AR EERE L EELENES
AU B KRG R

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
RATRER procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.
$51EB7.2 B R RRERF U RBERAIT MR G E
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to
RARAER directors and staff.

51ZB7.3 HWNEERETRENRESIE -

Aspect B8: General Disclosure COMMUNITY
Community Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the ENGAGEMENT
Investment communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take | #L & £ £
JEEBS : into consideration the communities’ interests.

HERE —ARIREE

B ERERTRETASEMTINCEETEMBEREERE
HEEBHLERNDRBER

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution.

RASRAER HAEREE-

}512B8.1

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area.
RASRAERL EEIHEBMHBBERC
}51ZB8.2
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Independent Auditor’s Report
i RVR 2 ETE

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NEWAY GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Neway
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 171 to 317,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B EEMER S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that,

in our professional

judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Valuation of investment properties

We identified the valuation of
investment properties as a key
audit matter due to the inherent
level of complex and subjective
judgement and estimates
required in determining the fair
values.

The Group's investment
properties portfolio comprises
commercial and industrial
properties located in Hong Kong
and the People Republic of China
(the “PRC") and is stated at fair
value of HK$162,019,272 as
at 31 December 2023 with a
fair value loss of HK$6,125,444
recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for
the year then ended.

Our procedures in relation to
the valuation of investment
properties included:

e Evaluating the competence,
capabilities and objectivity
of the valuers and obtaining
an understanding of the
valuers' scope of work and
their terms of engagement;

e Evaluating the appropriateness
of the valuers’ valuation
approaches to assess if they
meet the requirements of the
HKFRSs and industry norms;

FISEEstF IR

FREASFSEERBEESTHNEEN

RBRHB ARG BREERE
ENFR-ZEFTEREESTHER
ﬁé%?ﬁ%&ﬁﬁ%%ﬁt“fﬁ
W-EE N EHRFETREHEBNE
Bo

BEENE MR
MREHEE REAZRETRE
REWENLGE
EERRRENENG BFERRBENEN
EABMREAEE L HENEFESE:
DHEREEATERS
EEABRMIFHER
REBENHE KMt o FHEGEMNE

EEENKREMEA
GEREUREARD
EARHEME (THED)
MEERTEYE T
UWRZE_=F+_
B=1+t—-HAMNATE
162,019,2728 T5I1E
i#ﬁﬁ“aiﬁﬁm
uT =) ﬁm&ﬁﬂﬂiﬁuy
ABRERARDAFEES
186,125,444 77 0

BN RES
o MR T R AE
BN T FEE
RBEENERF
s

o SHEEERAR
FBREET AR
BEMY LT

BERTHAE

BRBREER
HERITER
B
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AL EEMER S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

How our audit addressed

Key audit matter

the key audit matter

Valuation of investment properties (Continued)

The Group's investment
properties are measured using
the fair value model based
on a valuation performed
by independent qualified
professional valuers. As
disclosed in notes 4 and 15
to the consolidated financial
statements, in determining
the fair values of the Group’s
investment properties, the
valuers have applied income
capitalisation approach for
respective properties, which
involve, inter-alia, certain
estimates, including appropriate
capitalisation rates and market
transactions of comparable
properties, as appropriate.
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Challenging the reasonableness
and appropriateness of
valuation models applied
based on available market
information and our
knowledge of the property
industry and whether the
methodologies are consistent
with the bases used in prior
year; and

Assessing the reasonableness
of key inputs used in the
valuation, on a sample
basis, by checking to the
publicly available information
on market transactions of
comparable properties,
comparing rental income,
terms of existing leases to
the existing lease summaries
of the Group and evaluating
whether capitalisation rates
adopted are comparable to
the market.

FEETFH (B)

EENE S MAHE
MRESFE REAFHEETRE
REWENGE &)
EEENRENZENE o REIENTS
AATERN BREE BHRESHY
UGERBEMGER ESSESIEEDN
FETNEESE S RBERGRE
iR B M B kM 4 ERAEE—
RMEEISHRE K& B WA
t BEERENZEZ HERANGE
ATER HEMEY HRBEMERS
ZENEERBBRAESR BiE R
& Efis R (K
B1F) ET st (BEG
BREXCERAIEL o ZBBZYEAERL
EMEZHHRS (1 BMETHERS
BAR)) MARARFE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
i RVR 22 ETE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
i RVR 2 ETE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
i RVR 22 ETE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
i RVR 2 ETE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Ms. YEUNG PIK FUNG.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
22 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

maRm M EHMEENARR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=F+"B=+—HILEE

2023 2022
== T &
NOTES HK$ HK$
ioEz3 BT BT
Revenue g 5
Revenue from goods and services KB & MM ARFE 2 Wik 540,232,497 443,424,752
Rental income L ON 2,783,890 2,194,059
Interest income from lending RENEEHEZ
business MEWA 5,672,580 3,784,531
Total revenue 4B 548,688,967 449,403,342
Cost of sales and services HE MRS A A (460,341,448) (355,117,682)
Gross profit EF 88,347,519 94,285,660
Other interest income HhF] S WA 11 6,000,913 1,097,425
Other income HMA 17 3,412,917 11,140,500
Selling and distribution expenses THE REH X (36,795,432) (33,677,921)
Administrative and other expenses  {TE & E B (121,691,637) (142,000,770)
Other gains and losses Hham & E518 7 (7,116,401) 68,716,756
Impairment losses under expected H®MEEKRSHNEETER 11
credit loss (“ECL") model on EE85E ((EREE
financial assets and contract B8 BT
assets, net BIEEE R (345,629) (574,833)
Finance costs FRE A A 8 (6,525,347) (4,034,427)
Share of results of joint ventures DMEEBERBZEE (3,750) (3,750)
Loss before taxation PRI ARS8 (74,716,847) (5,051,360)
Taxation (charge) credit RIE (ZH) 8% 10 (7,355,103) 2,650,146
Loss for the year KERE 11 (82,071,950) (2,401,214)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

raRm M EMEENARR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=F+"_B=+—HIEEE

2023 2022
—E_= BT F
NOTE HK$ HK$
Vi3 AT BT
Other comprehensive (expense) Hth2E (k) KA :
income:
Item that may be reclassified HEEFEEEm 2
subsequently to profit or loss: EH -
Exchange differences arising on IERINEBTEELE Y
translation of foreign operations PERZ=RE (12,150,897) (41,415,715)
Items that will not be reclassified to B EF I E 8w 2
profit or loss: EH
Surplus on transfer from property, ¥ ERREESEE
plant and equipment to REY B B
investment properties 38,512,183 -
Deferred tax arising from Y2 R B R 5 e 3
transfer of property, plant EREMEMELZ
and equipment to investment IR IR
properties (9,628,046) -
16,733,240 (41,415,715)
Total comprehensive expense KELERHZELE
for the year (65,338,710) (43,816,929)
Loss for the year attributable to: UF AT AR FEE -
Owners of the Company FN/NETEZZ= N (81,961,487) (1,942,228)
Non-controlling interests El2 8 (110,463) (458,986)
(82,071,950) (2,401,214)
Total comprehensive expense UTFALEGEESZ@
for the year attributable to: FASZAR%R .
Owners of the Company EN/NETEZ TSN (65,334,885) (43,639,256)
Non-controlling interests R R (3.825) (177,673)
(65,338,710) (43,816,929)
Loss per share SREE 13
Basic (HK cents) B GBA) (32.35) (0.77)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ma IR AR
At 31 December 2023
A B —F+ZB=+—H

2023 2022
—_E-= BT TF
NOTES HK$ HK$
K&t BT BT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M= BERKE 14 154,585,377 206,577,809
Investment properties KB 15 162,019,272 111,151,556
Equity instruments at fair value FEEEMEEU AR 16
through other comprehensive NEEVER (TEBHE
income (“FVTOCI") MmEEWAZATFE
HIER)) 2 AT A 22,193,495 22,285,289
Club membership BFTEiE 3,403,700 3,403,700
Prepayments and deposits i‘ﬁﬁi BRG] & 21 4,395,817 5,969,564
Interests in joint ventures AEB AT 2R 18 389,232 392,982
Loans receivable %u B 22 17,933,940 15,938,198
Deposit paid for acquisition of Eﬁﬂ%%%% BB R
property, plant and equipment REZE]E 148,829 2,297,517
Deferred tax assets BEERIEEE 29 12,661,692 13,971,096
377,731,354 381,987,711
Current assets MENE E
Inventories =78 19 25,134,618 37,117,846
Properties under development for ~ FEEEDYE 20
sale/properties for sales HEYE 258,459,215 326,097,115
Financial assets at fair value BHRBEmBEATFESR 16
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") (MEBETRATFE
FIER)) 2 REE 15,770,920 17,375,128
Trade and other receivables, B 5 By E At & IRk I8 ~ 21
prepayments and deposits FBRIEU KT E 138,847,263 116,131,495
Contract assets BNEE 17 26,334,377 30,264,935
Loans receivable = EN 22 29,810,691 33,414,687
Tax recoverable EILEIE | = 477,682
Pledged bank deposits BEFIRITTER 23 76,274,798 60,000,000
Short-term bank deposits THRIRITIERX 23 20,297,256 15,597,000
Cash and cash equivalents BERASEE 23 99,493,689 125,297,011
690,422,827 761,772,899
Current liabilities mEIEE
Trade and other payables and B 5 R EMEARIBU 24
accruals K EsTFIE 124,685,719 138,417,524
Lease liabilities HEAaR 25 12,532,717 12,996,178
Contract liabilities =L 26 35,937,801 8,798,267
Tax liabilities G=S=RE 6,701,088 5,268,629
Amount due to a non-controlling  FE—REIRE AT —% 27
shareholder of a subsidiary JEFER IR RRIE 16,499,835 16,977,929
Bank borrowings SRITER 28 70,338,782 72,730,973
266,695,942 255,189,500

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE&EEZKARAT | Annual Report 2023 F iR

173



174

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

r e FEIR AR
At 31 December 2023
A _E_=F+"HA=+—H

2023 2022

NOTES HK$ HK$

K&t BT BT

Net current assets MEBIEEFE 423,726,885 506,583,399

Total assets less current liabilities BMEERMEAE 801,458,239 888,571,110
Non-current liabilities ERHEE

Lease liabilities HESE 25 40,840,321 54,701,933

Bank borrowings RITER 28 23,209,768 38,483,305

Deferred tax liabilities FIERIBEE 29 14,606,063 7,245,075

78,656,152 100,430,313

Net assets BEEFE 722,802,087 788,140,797
Capital and reserves BARKHE

Share capital &N 30 2,533,595 2,533,595

Reserves EE 724,105,767 789,440,652

Total attributable to owners of the AT HE AFE(G4E%E

Company 726,639,362 791,974,247

Non-controlling interests JEIERG RS (3,837,275) (3,833,450)

Total equity MR 48R 722,802,087 788,140,797

The consolidated financial statements on pages 171 to 317 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22

March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by:

SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie &%% [
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

= 4=
ReEDEER
For the year ended 31 December 2023

HEr—E=—=

F+-RA=1T—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FABEBNES
Deemed
contribution Properties
Share Share from valuation Translation Retained
capital premium  a shareholder Teserve Teserve profits Sub-total Total
BfE—4 MmEEE
BR  BROEE RRZEK EAEOHE (1] ERHE  REER gt @zt
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
o B o B B B B B
At 1 January 2022 RIZZZFE-F-H 2,536,395 368,949,127 188,956,957 63,252,165 39,901,986 91,469,922 835,714,053 832,058,276
Loss for the year KEFE - - - - - (1942,228)  (1,942,228) (2,401,214)
Exchange differences arising on BEBNERMEL L
translation of foreign operations EREH S - - - (41,697,028) - (41,697,028) (41,415.715)
Other comprehensive (expense) FEEMRE (33 WA
income for the year - - - - (41,697,028) - (41,697,028) (41,415,715)
Total comprehensive expense FEZARTAE
for the year - - - - (41,697,028)  (1,942,228)  (43,639,256) ) (43,816,929)
Shares repurchased (note 30) FREIRA (Hist30) (2,800) (97,750) - - - - (100,550) (100,550)
At 31 December 2022 RZB_ZF
+ZA=+-8 2,533,595 368,851,377 188,956,957 63,252,165 (1,795,042) 89,527,694 791,974,247 788,140,797
Loss for the year FEER S S S S - (81,961,487) (81,961,487) ) (82,071,950)
Exchange differences arising on BREENERMELZ
translation of foreign operations ~~ EREE - - - - (12,257,535) - (12,257,535) (12,150,897)
Surplus on transfer from property, 1% BERREFHE
plant and equipment to RENEE R
investment properties (note 15) Wis15) - = - 38,512,183 - - 38512,183 38,512,183
Deferred tax arising from transfer of FA¥) % MERRGEAZE
property, plant and equipment to  REMEMEE 2L
investment properties (note 29) I8 (#at29) - - - (9,628,046) - - (9,628,046) (9,628,046)
Other comprehensive income FEEMPEANA BD)
(expense) for the year - - - 28,884,137 (12,257,535) - 16,626,602 16,733,240
Total comprehensive income FEZARA (B 88
(expense) for the year - - - 28,884,137 (12,257,535)  (81,961,487)  (65,334,885) ) (65,338,710)
At 31 December 2023 RZBZZE
+ZA=+-8 2,533,595 368,851,377 188,956,957 92,136,302 (14,052,577) 7,566,207 726,639,362 722,802,087
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

maRERERR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=F+"_B=+—HIEEE

2023 2022
—E== BT HF
HK$ HK$
AT BT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KEER
Loss before taxation BRAR Al &S 18 (74,716,847) (5,051,360)
Adjustments for: BEHTIREE :
Write-down of inventories WoREE - 240,984
Depreciation on property, plant and ME- -BERREBINE
equipment 34,084,278 36,199,616
Net loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEWE BERREN
plant and equipment B518 () JF 28 396,762 (1,625,999)
Change in fair value of investment KEMENTEE
properties 6,125,444 14,498,870
Change in fair value of financial assets ~ #BBBRIE AT EYEZ
at FVTPL TMEBEZ AT EES) 1,604,208 7,341,372
Impairment losses (reversal of B RBHIBETEREERE
impairment losses) under ECL model BT RERE
on trade receivables, net CRUERSIE (D)) JF 58 380,190 (85,753)
Impairment losses (reversal of BHNEETRHREERBEER
impairment losses) under ECL model TRYREREE
on contract assets, net CRER51E#[0]) F58 354,813 (269,264)
(Reversal of impairment losses) FEMERMTEEEERBEER
impairment losses under ECL model T8 CR{EREEE(T])
on loans receivable, net ERIE S RE (389,374) 929,850
Share of results of joint ventures PMEEERBZER 3,750 3,750
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HENEAR Z W - (76,441,616)
Dividend income L E=YON (641,519) (1,115,144)
Finance costs =% 6,525,347 4,034,427
Interest income A=Y N (6,000,913) (1,097,425)
Operating cash flows before movements in K 5 & E & & &A1~
working capital KERFTME (32,273,861) (22,437,692)
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERD (8m) 11,329,742 (17,992,246)
Decrease (increase) in properties under ~ HEZEERYE FEYE
development for sale/properties for sales &/, (1&70) 58,674,539 (146,930,803)
(Increase) decrease in trade and other 85 KR EEWREIE s T I8
receivables, prepayments and deposits MR 5T (gm) #b (23,474,542) 34,683,548
Decrease in contract assets BB ERD 2,735,049 13,259,504
Decrease (increase) in loans receivable W E FRR D (35 0) 1,997,628 (41,144,904)
Decrease in trade and other payables and &5 K EthERIBLUK
accruals & 5T TR IR (10,392,570) (7,884,365)
Increase in contract liabilities SHEEEM 27,338,648 221,298
Cash from (used in) operations RT3 (FTFE) W 35,934,633 (188,225,660)
Dividend income Iz B 641,519 1,115,144
Net Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded (paid) (BEf) BEREEHBFER FE 351,179 (2,071,523)
Overseas tax paid BEINRIA (6,749,867) (3,654,281)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING 4S8 ¥ ¥5F1S (FRiE) & 358
ACTIVITIES 30,177,464 (192,836,320)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

maRERERR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_Z-=F+"B=1+—HI=FE

2023 2022
== BT H
HK$ HK$
BT BT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES KREES
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, BtEEYE -HBEK
plant and equipment REZET® (149,387) (2,352,641)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal of a ~HE—BHBABEEZ
subsidiary REMA AR - 226,313,606
Placement of pledge bank deposits EHREBERIRITEMR (16,274,798) (60,000,000)
Placement of short-term bank deposits  TFEHASEITIE =N (20,309,025) (15,597,000)
Withdrawal of short-term bank deposits 1R EVAZ EAIR1T 17X 15,608,769 3,056,027
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B AYI 2 = K % & (2,256,576) (3,234,842)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HE¥E -BERBHEZ
and equipment FriS I8 397,412 3,656,235
Addition of investment property REREYE - (5,082,968)
Interest received BUWFHIE 5,979,534 993,992
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM KEED (FTH) RE8REF5
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (17,004,071) 147,752,409
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REED
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIRITER (201,075,026) (65,830,573)
New bank borrowings raised HIGIRITER 184,558,033 115,467,716
Payments of lease liabilities HEAaBMNW (14,624,200) (14,933,367)
Repayment to a related company m—EEEABZIER - (240,745)
Payment on repurchase of ordinary shares F& [0 & 48 IR =X - (100,550)
Interest paid BAFE (6,525,347) (4,034,427)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM REEE (FIFE) RIS RSP
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (37,666,540) 30,328,054
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND BERIBEEFER I FEE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (24,493,147) (14,755,857)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FZER&ERIEEEE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 125,297,011 145,679,792
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXEHFE
RATE CHANGES (1,310,175) (5,626,924)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZz2\BERIASEE
AT END OF THE YEAR 99,493,689 125,297,011
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF ReEMREEB/EFRZDWT
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash IRITHAGRRIRE 99,493,689 125,297,011
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E=R bt e

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BH=E

1.

B+ HA=+—HI=FE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Neway Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in Corporate Information to the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) and other details of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 41.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period
beginning on 1 January 2023 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_Z_—F+-_A=1+—HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(Continued)

HKFRS 17 (including the
October 2020 and February
2022 amendments to
HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Insurance Contracts

Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction

International Tax Reform-Pillar
Two Model Rules

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

2.1 Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The Group has applied the amendments for the first
time in the current year. The amendments narrow the
scope of the recognition exemption of deferred tax
liabilities and deferred tax assets in paragraphs 15
and 24 of HKAS 12 Income Taxes so that it no longer
applies to transactions that, on initial recognition,
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary

differences.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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2.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

2.1 Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
(Continued)

In accordance with the transition provision:

(i) the Group has applied the new accounting
policy retrospectively to leasing transactions that
occurred on or after 1 January 2022;

(i) the Group also, as at 1 January 2022,
recognised a deferred tax asset (to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised) and a
deferred tax liability for all deductible and
taxable temporary difference associated with
right-of-use-assets and lease liabilities.

The application of the amendments has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial position and
performance, except that the Group recognized the
related deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
with same amount of HK$10,375,010 as at 1 January
2022 on a gross basis but it has no impact on the
retained earnings at the earliest period.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

2.2

Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKAS 12 Income Taxes International Tax
Reform-Pillar two model Rules

The Group has applied the amendments for the
first time in the current year. HKAS 12 is amended
to add the exception to recognising and disclosing
information about deferred tax assets and liabilities
that are related to tax law enacted or substantively
enacted to implement the Pillar Two model rules
published by the Organisation for Economic Co-
operation and Development (the “Pillar Two
legislation”). The amendments require that entities
apply the amendments immediately upon issuance
and retrospectively. The amendments also require that
entities to disclose separately its current tax expense/
income related to Pillar Two income taxes in periods
which the Pillar Two legislation is in effect, and the
qualitative and quantitative information about its
exposure to Pillar Two income taxes in periods in which
the Pillar Two legislation is enacted or substantially
enacted but not yet in effect in annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

The Group is yet to apply the temporary exception
during the current year because the Group’s entities are
operating in jurisdictions which the Pillar Two legislation
has not yet been enacted or substantially enacted. The
Group will disclose known or reasonably estimable
information that helps users of financial statements to
understand the Group's exposure to Pillar Two income
taxes in the Group’s annual consolidation financial
statements when the Pillar Two legislation is enacted
or substantially enacted and will disclose separately
current tax expenses/income related to Pillar Two
income taxes when it is in effect.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

2.3

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE2EEZERBRAE | Annual Report 2023 F iR

Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The Group has applied the amendments for the first
time in the current year. HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements is amended to replace all instances
of the term “significant accounting policies” with
“material accounting policy information”. Accounting
policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of
the related transactions, other events or conditions,
even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not
all accounting policy information relating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is itself
material. If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial
accounting policy information, such information must
not obscure material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements (the “Practice Statement”) is also amended
to illustrate how an entity applies the “four-step
materiality process” to accounting policy disclosures
and to judge whether information about an accounting
policy is material to its financial statements. Guidance
and examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments in current year has
no material impact on the Group's financial positions
and performance but has affected the disclosure of the
Group's accounting policies set out in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Sale of Contribution of Assets
between the Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture'

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)?

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with

Covenants?
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements?
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or 1 January 2024.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
all amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

3.1

3.2

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE2EEZERBRAE | Annual Report 2023 F iR

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary users.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The directors of the Company have, at the time of
approving the consolidated financial statements, a
reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

Material accounting policy information
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

R MBRRNERESE
REAXGHBERER

S
\_|

3.1 ZEMBHRRIERE

Li

i

RN

U S

MBBRERILIRRES
EmAE Rz & B
2E BI) B o T
UHHRERME WA
BENGERPEXET
EELHVRE R
B R BER I
REMBRREES
BMEXZMAERLQEE
= EHERIR BB (RFE
PIVFREEZBRKRES
Igo

bzl

S
T op

WwIN

e}
i

war ¥ O 5% 24 o)
1=

= ot K
&
M 38

R ES S M B HRRE
KABEESERAARE
E B B HE RN AR R
PRAGL B E o AL EHTE
MRS MR EE
REFEKEGTEE

3.2 EAGSHTHEER
ARERERE
EEMBRRREBELRLNT
URBANBREREB A E
EHERBEEREK S
KABHIBMU B RE

B (2 21

. ABBREFTE
N ;

. E2BEWBAHE
BMAREKRRE
EEERRES
ATBEE ; &

. BERENERERR
REHZENTE
[E]%R

HMEBRIERER L=
HERIETRR —ERLL
FEmREF AEEES
EFTEERORWKET
mEESIE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e MR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of the subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE2EEZERBRAE | Annual Report 2023 F iR

Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Loss of control over subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs).

Revenue from contracts with customers

Information about the Group's accounting policies
relating to contracts with customer is provided in Note
5, 17 and 26.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease
based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms
and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability; and

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

When the Group obtains ownership of the underlying
leased assets at the end of the lease term, upon
exercising purchase options, the cost of the relevant
right-of-use assets and the related accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss are transferred to
property, plant and equipment.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not
meet the definition of investment property or inventory
in “property, plant and equipment”, the same line
item within which the corresponding underlying assets
would be presented if they were owned. Right-of-
use assets that meet the definition of inventory are
presented within “properties under development for
sale”.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2
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Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at
that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
received and receivable and the exercise price of a
purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise the option.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or more
underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by
an amount commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope and
any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use assets.

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and
such costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model.

Rental income which are derived from the Group's
ordinary course of business (i.e. Property Investment
Business as defined in note 6) are presented as revenue.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2
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Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair values, adjusted to exclude
any prepaid or accrued operating lease income. All of
the Group's property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are classified and accounted for as investment
properties.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for
the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or
loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets
that are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes other
than properties construction in progress as described
below. Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at
initial recognition. To the extent the allocation of
the relevant payments can be made reliably, interest
in leasehold land is presented as “property, plant
and equipment” in the consolidated statement of
financial position except for those that are classified
and accounted for as investment properties under the
fair value model. When the consideration cannot be
allocated reliably between non-lease building element
and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land,
the entire properties are classified as property, plant
and equipment.

If a property becomes an investment property because
its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying
amount and the fair value of that item (including
the relevant leasehold land classified as right-of-use
assets) at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in properties
valuation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement
of the property, the relevant properties valuation
reserve will be permanently retained in properties
valuation reserve and will not be transferred to retained
profits.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets, less their residual values, over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2
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Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventories are determined
on a first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale. Costs necessary to make
the sale include incremental costs directly attributable
to the sale and non-incremental costs which the Group
must incur to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e MR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_Z-=F+"B=1+—HI=FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Properties under development for
sale/properties for sales

Properties under development for sale which are
intended to be sold upon completion of development
and properties for sale are classified as current
assets. Except for the leasehold land element which
is measured at cost model in accordance with the
accounting policies of right-of-use assets, properties
under development for sale/properties for sales are
carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on a specific identification basis
including allocation of the related development
expenditure incurred and where appropriate, borrowing
costs capitalised. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for the properties less estimated
cost to completion and costs necessary to make
the sales. Cost necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and
non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to
make the sale.

Properties under development for sale are transferred
to properties for sale upon completion.

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2
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Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
(Continued)

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the
consolidated statement of financial position include:

(a) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and
demand deposits, excluding bank balances
that are subject to regulatory restrictions that
result in such balances no longer meeting the
definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-
term (generally with original maturity of three
months or less), highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible to a known amount of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents are
held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitments rather than for investment or
other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
cash equivalents as defined above.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2
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Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as and included in
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and
deferred income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from loss before
taxation because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit and at the time of the transaction
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and interests in joint ventures, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE2EEZERBRAE | Annual Report 2023 F iR

Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” requirements to the lease
liabilities and the related assets separately. The Group
recognises a deferred tax asset related to lease liabilities
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilised and a deferred tax liability for
all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. When a fair value gain or loss on
a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is also
recognised in profit or loss. When a fair value gain or
loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in other
comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2
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Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using
exchange rate prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Income and expenses items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of the
translation reserve (attributable to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss in
which the Group recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to subsidy income from
government for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they become receivable. Such grants are
presented under “other income”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e MR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_Z-=F+"B=1+—HI=FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits
scheme, state-managed retirement benefit scheme and
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme"”)
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For long service payments (the “LSP”) obligation, the
Group accounts for the employer MPF contributions
expected to be offset as a deemed employee
contribution towards the LSP obligation in terms of
HKAS 19.93(a) and it is measure on a net basis. The
estimated amount of future benefit is determined
after deducting the negative service cost arising from
the accrued benefits derived from the Group’s MPF
contributions that have been vested with employees,
which are deemed to be contributions from the
relevant employees.

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries and annual
leave) after deducting any amount already paid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_E_—F+"A=1+—HIEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the

market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit

or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial assets or financial
liabilities and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e MR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_Z_=—F+_A=+—HLEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business (i.e. Lending Business as
defined in note 6) are presented as revenue.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a
financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in
a business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” applies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2
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Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see
below). For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI
(Continued)

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right
to receive the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost
of the investment. Dividends are included in the “other
income” line item in profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of the reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included
in the “other gains and losses” line item.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2
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Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model on financial assets (including trade and other
receivables and deposits, loans receivable, pledged
bank deposits, short-term bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents), contract assets and financial
guarantee contracts which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected
to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets without significant
financing component. Contract assets and trade
receivables with outstanding significant balances
exceeding HK$2,500,000 have been assessed
individually, the remaining contract assets and trade
receivables balances are assessed collectively using a
provision matrix grouped with internal credit rating.
The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress
and have substantially the same risk characteristics as
the trade receivables for the same types of contracts.
The Group has therefore concluded that the expected
loss rates for the trade receivables and the contract
assets on the same basis.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases
in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2
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Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information, among others,
is taken into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating; and

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group has rebutted the presumption that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due as the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates.

4 A

o2 R =

3.2

MEBHRRIRREE
REXE

stBEREM (88)

EXRGSTHREH (B)

B =)
THEE (B)
BN

B BT 15 8 L R B A 4 R
S LSRR A A I A B
AEETSRE OB M
T B 6038 49 LI B2 4 14 7R
DEBEBIENEYNE

5377 LB 0 B 1F 1B 7D
HER AEEEEES
B AR N E R
EMER BERARY
9 o 4 5 ) B A
8003B 74T B R AT B
Kho

LHR RFEEERR
BEKRIBIEME > §F &
THER Hpa) :

. TRt TERINER (10
B) A BHEE TR
LR A HIRE
Rt ;s &

. BHEANEERRE
HREAFBHHIRE
REfke

om L FEfE B9 45 R
=) T—_rT)\E;/CHHﬁL3O
B &Ax&EBEHIMEER

% B IR FE SR AR B K18
i"i]DE’MExE P ThE R A
BEEEcEMNEEEX
FHNENBERBERILIEN
It



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e MR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_Z_=—F+_A=+—HLEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the
Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment
is considered to be the date of initial recognition for the
purposes of assessing impairment. In assessing whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit
risk since initial recognition of a financial guarantee
contract, the Group considers the changes in the risk
that the specified debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group has rebutted
the presumption that default has occurred when
the instrument is more than 90 days past due as the
Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is “credit-impaired” when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following

events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer of the
borrower;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

o the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or

contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; or

o it is becoming probably that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_Z-=F+"B=1+—HI=FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when the
Group has no reasonable expectations of recovering
the relevant financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
The Group usually writes off when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
e.g. when the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or in the case of trade receivables when the amounts
are over one year past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice when
appropriate. Any recoveries are recognised in profit or
loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of
the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at
default. The assessment of the probability of default
and loss given default is based on historical data
and forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2
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Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms
of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly, the
ECL is the present value of the expected payments to
reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less
any amounts that the Group expects to receive from
the holder, the debtor or any other party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which the
effective interest rate cannot be determined, the Group
will apply a discount rate that reflects the current
market assessment of the time value of money and
the risks that are specific to the cash flows but only if,
and to the extent that, the risks are taken into account
by adjusting the discount rate instead of adjusting the
cash shortfalls being discounted.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables and contract
assets are considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant credit
information such as forward looking macroeconomic
information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

. Past-due status;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_Z_=—F+_A=+—HLEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowances
are recognised at the higher of the amount of the loss
allowance determined in accordance with HKFRS 9; and
the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amount of income recognised over the
guarantee period.

Except for financial guarantee contracts, the Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade and other
receivables and deposits, contract assets, pledged bank
deposits, loans receivable, short-term bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2
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Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial asset

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition
to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is
transferred to retained profits.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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3.

— i —

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured
initially at their fair values. It is subsequently measured
at the higher of:

° the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and

o the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
over the guarantee period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

]

4,

TR =HF+A=+—HLEEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The followings are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred tax arising from fair value changes in
investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group's investment property portfolios and concluded that the
Group’s investment properties are not held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time. Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred tax
on investment properties, the directors of the Company have
determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts
of investment properties measured using the fair value model
are recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted. The
Group has not recognised any deferred tax on changes in fair
value of investment properties in Hong Kong as the Group
is not subject to any income taxes on the fair value changes
on investment properties in Hong Kong on disposal. The
Group has recognised deferred tax on changes in fair value
of investment property in the PRC in note 29 as the Group
is subject to any income taxes on the fair value changes on
investment property in the PRC on disposal.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within
the next financial year.

Fair value measurement of investment properties

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group's investment
properties are stated at fair value based on the valuation
performed by independent qualified professional valuers.
In determining the fair value, the valuers have based their
valuation on income capitalisation approach for respective
investment properties, which involves certain estimates,
including appropriate capitalisation rates and market
transactions of comparable properties, as appropriate. In
relying on the valuation, management of the Group has
exercised its judgement and is satisfied that the methods of
valuation adopted are appropriate for the relevant property
and reflective of current market conditions. As at 31 December
2023, the aggregate fair value of investment properties is
HK$162,019,272 (2022: HK$111,151,556). Details of the
valuation methodology are disclosed in note 15.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment (including right-of-use assets)

Property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use
assets) is stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether a cash generating
unit is impaired, the Group has to exercise judgement and
make estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an
event has occurred or any indicators that may affect the
value of the cash generating unit; (2) whether the carrying
value of the cash generating unit can be supported by the
recoverable amount, in the case of value in use, the net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the cash generating unit; and (3)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating
the recoverable amounts including cash flow projections
and an appropriate discount rate. The Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the
assets belongs based on value in use calculation. Changing
the assumptions and estimates, including the discount rates or
the growth rate in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the recoverable amounts.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) subject
to impairment assessment were HK$153,715,000 (2022:
HK$205,942,000). Details of the impairment assessment of
property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) is
disclosed in note 14.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Net realisable value assessment of properties under
development for sale

The management uses their judgement and estimates in
determining the net realisable value of properties under
development for sale/properties for sales with reference to
the comparable market transactions in similar locations.
Where there are any changes to the market conditions in the
PRC causing the net realisable value of the properties under
development for sale/properties for sales below its cost, the
properties under development for sale is written down to its
net realisable value. As at 31 December 2023, the carrying
amount of properties under development for sale/properties
for sales/properties for sales is HK$258,459,215 (2022:
HK$326,097,115).

Provision of ECL for trade receivables and contract
assets

Trade receivables with outstanding significant balances
exceeding HK$2,500,000 and relevant contract assets
and credit-impaired financial assets are assessed for ECL
individually. The remaining trade receivables and contract
assets are assessed collectively. The expected loss rates are
based on internal credit ratings as groupings of various debtors
that have similar loss patterns.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
Due to greater financial uncertainty triggered by the
macroeconomic downturn, the Group has increased the ECL
rates in current year as there is higher risk that a volatility or
disruptions in energy, financial currency or commodity markets
could led to increase in credit default rates. The information
about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables and contract
assets are disclosed in note 38. The carrying amounts of trade
receivables and contract assets are HK$105,626,311 (2022:
HK$92,280,913) and HK$26,334,377 (2022: HK$30,264,935),
respectively.
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5. REVENUE 5.

(i) Revenue from goods and services

Revenue represents the amounts received and
receivable for goods sold and services provided by the
Group, less discounts and sales related taxes during the
year.

An analysis of the Group's revenue from goods and
services by segment for the year is as follows:

() XRBEEm&ERFHZW

WmiErERFARE D
B o 1% 11 BR 75 P W R '
Woz mRE CRiT 0 K 85 & 48
BT IR) o

AEBXEFREEMKR
Bz WmB D BAINT

2023 2022
—EZ= =
HK$ HK$
#ATT BT
Types of goods or services: BmaiARFEaER
Manufacturing and Sales Business* 838 R § & 2 75+
— Income from manufacturing and —RBHRERRER
sales of printing products HE Z WA 346,642,843 411,781,643
Property Development Business* M RER
— Sales of properties —HEME 160,429,227 =
Music and Entertainment Business* 544 42 2% 3¢ 55+
— Income from the use of —EREREFERZIA
the musical works 2,469,281 2,017,280
— Promotion income —EFKA 12,000 98,000
— Sales of albums —SHERER 1,504,425 1,690,787
3,985,706 3,806,067
Trading Business* BRER
— Sales of printing products — R EREE 29,174,721 27,837,042
540,232,497 443,424,752
* The segment names are defined in the section * NELE T THEEN G

“Segment information” in note 6.
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in e MR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIEE

5. REVENUE (Continued)

W a (48)

(i) Revenue from goods and services (i) kBEmMEFZWZ=E

(Continued) (48)
2023 2022
—E°= —ET &
HK$ HK$
#ATT BT

Geographical markets: ulENp N

Hong Kong 5% 121,776,085 123,178,628
The PRC I 353,122,728 231,688,354
Europe BN 13,481,744 18,678,521
United States = 45,121,554 57,628,959
Others Hith 6,730,386 12,250,290
540,232,497 443,424,752

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the locations of the

shipments of goods or the services provided.

BRAEERBEIIBER
Z Wz B B R P 1R (1
EmsikFBzHEME R

B e

2023 2022

—E=% BT F

HK$ HK$

AT BIT

Timing of revenue recognition: W FEsR A -

Over time & 55 346,642,843 411,781,643

A point in time T FAE R BT B 193,589,654 31,643,109
540,232,497 443,424,752
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_Z-_=F+"A=t+—HIEE

5. REVENUE (Continued) 5. Y (48)
(i) Revenue from goods and services (i) RBEBEMMRFZW=
(Continued) (48)

TXHIER G DA
DEEHFIRESRNY

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from
contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in

222

the segment information:

ik :

2023 2022

HK$ HK$

BT BT
Manufacturing and Sales Business BERIHEER 346,642,843 411,781,643
Music and Entertainment Business EE I E S 3,985,706 3,806,067
Property Development Business Y E IS 160,429,227 =
Trading Business B2ER 29,174,721 27,837,042
Revenue from contracts with customers & B & 43U 540,232,497 443,424,752
Property Investment Business MEREER 2,783,890 2,194,059
Lending Business WEET 5,672,580 3,784,531
Total revenue g 548,688,967 449,403,342
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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5. REVENUE (Continued)

()

Revenue from goods and services
(Continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers and revenue recognition policies

Revenue from trading of printing products/sales of
albums

Revenue from trading of printing products/sales of
albums is recognised when control of the printing
products, which are not manufactured by the Group,
and albums has been transferred to the customers,
being at the point the goods are delivered to the
customer’s specific location. Transportation and other
related activities that occur before customers obtains
control of the related good are considered as fulfilment
activities. A receivable is recognised by the Group
when the goods are delivered to the customers as
this represents the point in time at which the right
to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the
passage of time is required before payment is due.
The normal credit term is 60 to 90 days upon delivery,
which is approximate the time of issuing the invoices to
the customers. The Group requires certain customers to
provide upfront deposits ranging from 10% to 30% of
total contract sum, when the Group receives a deposit
before the printing products delivery, this will give rise
to contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the
revenue recognised on the specific contract exceeds the
amount of the deposit.

Revenue from manufacturing and sales of printing
products

The Group provides tailored-manufacturing of printing
products to the customers. Such revenue from
manufacturing and sales of printing products are
recognised as this performance obligation is satisfied
over time because the Group's performance does not
create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Wat (48)

()

KEEmMIRTEZ W=
=)

BERSHZBHEE
Kz (B ST

2 E IR Em B S, I8
ZHEZ W

HRERES B ZH#H
EZWERITIERERER
SENEHRERNERZ
EHEERERR IE
MEBEXEERIEEZBEW
HBFRESY o E R P BN 4
e MR ETHR
BLREMAEREZHSEIES
BHIEE - KEBNE &
T FE A EEDEWRR
B> RAAFNRE
EREL S DR ik avEd
WE B 2 R a2 K
HZREE —REEH
[RAXMN (BMEBEFF
BENFBESR) B260F
IR AEEERETE
PRENEBESTENIO%E
30%RMFENITE - BA
EERENRIE MR 1T a1
BT BN &4
BRELESNEE BE
MIEESNRIBHN W EE
BsIEEEEe

BUE K 3 B ER E dn 2

I

AEERDEFREHEER
EBYENRI 2 gh o RIS M 3K
EHRERZBRBW@mEN
ERENERERERERETT
Fr e a0 0 R & A R E BY
BAI A IE ¥ A B
ERAEENRAENEE B
REBEHEZSETMHE
MBYRRIR A BB AT R
e
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5. REVENUE (Continued)

(M

Revenue from goods and services
(Continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers and revenue recognition policies
(Continued)

Revenue from manufacturing and sales of printing
products (Continued)

The progress towards completing satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on input
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of the Group’s efforts in terms of inputs (i.e. materials
costs, direct staff costs and other direct overhead
costs incurred) to the satisfaction of a performance
obligation relative to the total expected inputs to the
satisfaction of that performance obligation, that best
depicts the Group's performance in transferring control
of products. Contract assets arise when the Group has
right to consideration for satisfaction of a performance
obligation under the relevant contracts, and the right
is conditioned on factors other than passage of time.
Contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables
when such right become unconditional other than
the passage of time. Invoices to the customers were
issued upon the delivery of manufactured printing
products to the customers. The normal credit term is
60 to 120 days upon the issuance of invoices to the
customers. The Group requires certain customers to
provide upfront deposits ranging from 10% to 50% of
total contract sum, when the Group receives a deposit
before manufacturing of printing products commences,
this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a
contract, until the revenue recognised on the specific
contract exceeds the amount of the deposit.

Income from the use of the musical works

Revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
Group's musical works are used by the customers as
this represents the point in time at which the right
to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the
passage of time is required before payment is due.
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5.

REVENUE (Continued)

()

Revenue from goods and services
(Continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers and revenue recognition policies
(Continued)

Revenue from sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when
the respective properties have been completed and
delivered to the customers which is a point in time
when customers have the ability to direct the use of
the properties and obtain substantially all benefits of
the properties. Deposits received from customers prior
to meeting the aforementioned revenue recognition
criteria are regarded as the contract liabilities and
included in current liabilities as pre-sale proceeds
received on sales of properties in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group considers that the pre-sale proceeds
received on sales of properties do not contain
significant financing component as the contracts
where the period between payment and transfer of
the associated properties is less than one year, the
Group applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the transaction price for any significant financing
component.

For the contracts that contain the performance
obligation of providing financial guarantee to banks
with respect to mortgage loans procured by the
purchasers of the Group's properties in the contracts
on sales of properties, the Group should allocate
the transaction price to the performance obligations
between the sales of properties and provision of
financial guarantee on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. The Group considers that the impact in
the allocation of provision of financial guarantee on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis is insignificant
during the year ended 31 December 2023 and thus
all the revenue recognised from the contracts with
customers on sales of properties is then allocated to the
revenue from sales of completed properties for sale.

5.

Wat (48)

()

KEEmMIRTEZ W=
=)

BERSHZBHEE
Kzt B ST (4E)

KEYFEHE WA

W) 2 EH E WA T AR RE YD
FEBLRNFER R
o TRENERARENIEE
YMIZERG I ISY)EER
WAF Rz B EEER L
iU A BESB AR M Rl B & P
WERZITERIEENE
B TEFEMHFTRRE
SFARBERFERBHE
MEWRBZBERSTN
Igo
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Z AR B R AR RR Y SR BT
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B 5E®K-

METRAETEZ2E4 B
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5. REVENUE (Continued)

()

(ii)

(iii)

Revenue from goods and services
(Continued)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations

All the Group's contracts with customers with
unsatisfied performance obligations have original
expected duration of one year or less. As permitted
under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to
the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied

5.

Wat (48)

()

KEEmMIRTEZ W=
(&)

ﬁﬁﬂ;‘?ﬂ?’/&?@ FIE1ERY
X51EH%

FEBEFERTHREL

ENER SR E’Jl_ﬁ
RHHR A —F LU T
REEEMBREELNS
15%}“Fﬁ¢tt)&’ﬂ‘iﬁ%)§iaﬁﬁ\

or satisfied) as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 is not TEC=EENE
disclosed. +-_B=1+—H2EER
TRAEE GRETTHERE
T IR G B
Leases (i) 7S
2023 2022
—E_=HF TEBICH
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
For operating leases: MEEHREMS !
Lease payments that are fixed BEEHEENR 2,783,890 2,194,059
Lending business (iii) MEXEFH
2023 2022
—E_=F BT TF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Interest income FEUWA 5,672,580 3,784,531
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment revenue and results

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker
("CODM"), for the purposes of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of
goods or services delivered or provided.

The Group's reportable and operating segments are therefore
as follows:

(a)

(b)

Money lending (“Lending Business”);

Manufacturing and sales of printing and other products
("Manufacturing and Sales Business”);

Artistes management, production and distribution of
music albums, licensing of musical works and shows
investment (“Music and Entertainment Business”);

Property development (“Property Development
Business”), including properties development projects
in the PRC and Hong Kong;

Property investment (“Property Investment Business”),
including properties leasing and investments in the PRC
and Hong Kong;

Securities trading (”Securities Trading Business”); and

Trading of printing and other products (“Trading
Business”).

DEEH
ik L E

MERDEC R D ERRFT AT
ERBRTESE BIETEEER
RETETBEERERE)) WEZ
B TERAARMNE MR
HARFSBEE 7 o

HIE > ZEBZ AIHREREED

f|OF

(@ ME (HEEH),;

(b)  ENRI B B fih 2 S B 18 K 6
€ ((NERIHEER)

0 BABE UERETS
MER BHEERBHFR
RERE (SRR pue
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

]

6.

B+ HA=+—HI=FE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.
Segment revenue and results (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results

SEER (&
S EER AR R AR ()
FEBBEERAREHEYD

by operating and reportable segment. W R EE DU T o
Revenue Segment profit (loss)
Wz DR (F518)
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E-= BT ZBZ= 2O F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
AT BT BT BT
Lending Business MEER 5,672,580 3,784,531 3,069,979 864,299
Manufacturing and Sales Business 3438 K i & 275 346,642,843 411,781,643  (50,753,897)  (6,613,348)
Music and Entertainment Business & %45 {2 842 75 3,985,706 3,806,067  (3,447,739)  (3,448,885)
Property Development Business ~ #1ZE & B EH 160,429,227 - 11,569,298 (11,870,601)
Property Investment Business MERBED 2,783,890 2,194,059  (12,825,280) 53,618,253
Securities Trading Business BHEEER - - (1,635,221)  (7,568,380)
Trading Business BRER 29,174,721 27,837,042  (2,306,067)  (4,886,272)
Total HmEt 548,688,967 449,403,342 (56,328,927) 20,095,066
Bank interest income RITH B UWA 5,979,534 993,991
Unallocated corporate expenses R BB (24,363,704) (26,122,231)
Share of results of joint ventures A EBERT 2 EE (3,750) (3,750)
Certain finance costs ATRERAE = (14,436)
Loss before taxation BRIG RIS 18 (74,716,847)  (5,051,360)

All of the segment revenue reported above is from external
customers.

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment profit (loss) represents the profit
earned/loss incurred by each segment without allocation
of bank interest income, unallocated corporate expenses,
share of results of joint ventures and certain finance costs on
lease liabilities. This is the measure reported to the Group's
management for the purpose of resources allocation and
performance assessment.

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE2EEZERBRAE | Annual Report 2023 F iR

EXFREZE D ERm IR
BANEBE o

KERFBREDEZEHHR
B2 MY 5E3PR AL A~ 5 B & 5T R AR
B paf (B8 5% 0 Ek
RzmH,/ EEZEE B
EDECIRTHEWA S RDECE
EFRZ - DEREATDEEKRAE
EERZETREMSE LLAT
ERNEARRFEFERAFTERE
BREREZABH A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

M BHwRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
—EC=Ht-B=t+—HALEE

o e R —

nv'F
HE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities

by operating and reportable segment:

As at 31 December 2023

ﬁ | é *;I' (n‘ﬁ)

PHEEERGRE
EEMIZ

PACE:

L =

EROREDEID

ZEERGEINUWT :

R-®Z

=F+ZA=+—H

Manufacturing Music and Property Property Securities
Lending and Sales  Entertai I lop Trading Trading Segment
Business Business Business Business Business Business Business total Elimination  Consolidated
BEEE RERHERE SLRBEEE MEREEER  MRLEEY  B5EERR LEES ] HEE A ga
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
&7 #7 BT R &7 #n BT R #7 BT
Segment assets NEEE 47,821,990 305,030,240 5.748,977 162,400,126 280,054,004 16,459,278 16,441,965 833,956,580 - 833,956,580
Other assets HtEE 234,197,601
Consolidated assets GREE 1,068,154,181
Segment liabilities HEEE 486,913 180,619,885 5,463,033 17,703,680 108,142,553 56,200 10320926 322,793,190 - 322,793,190
Inter-group labilities E@BAE 117,375,854 = = = = 103,458,835 - 220,834,689 (220,834,689) -
Total b 117,862,767 180,619,885 5463,033 17,703,680 108,142,553 103,515,035 10,320,926 543,627,879  (220,834,689) 322,793,190
Other liabiities HiEE 22,558,904
Consolidated liabilities LaBfE 345,352,094
AN — —_ — = J—
As at 31 December 2022 \ZEITHF+ZHR=+—H
Manufacturing Music and Property Property Securities
Lending and Sales  Entertainment Investment Development Trading Trading Segment

Business Business Business Business Business Business Business total Elimination Consolidated
HEEH BERHELE TERBREE WEREER  MEEERE  H5EEEE 8555 AR i Ra
HKS HKS HK$ HK$ HKS HKS HK$ HK$ HKS HKS
A A En An A A En A A A
Segment assets NEEE 49,579,534 363,679,995 3,512,862 111,850,125 331,024,651 18,979,493 17,072,175 895,698,835 - 895,698,835
Other assets HEE 248,061,775
Consolidated assets SREE 1,143,760,610
Segment liabilities NEEE 514,290 190,155,196 4,580,783 18,888,186 113,804,745 169,003 13,434,144 341,546,347 - 341,546,347
Inter-group liablities £MBaE 119,439,041 - - - - 98,513,130 - MW (217,952171) =
Total gt 119,953,331 190,155,196 4,580,783 18,888,186 113,804,745 98,682,133 13,434,144 559498518 (217,952,171) 341,546,347
Other liabilties HitaE 14,073,466
Consolidated liabiities REBE 355,619,813
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=

TEC=HF+RA=1+—HLEEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources among segments:

all assets are allocated to operating and reportable
segments other than certain property and equipment,
interest in a joint venture, equity instruments at
FVTOCI, club membership, deferred tax assets, certain
other receivables, prepayments and deposits, tax
recoverable, short-term bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents.

all liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable
segments other than certain other payables and
accruals, tax liabilities and deferred tax liabilities.

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December 2023

6- ﬁ *E é *‘I’ (n\E)
PHEEERAER (@)

MERDBERAMRN 2 EE DA
BERME :

. BrETHERKE R
BEERRZEm B8
Hth2EUE AR R FET
BRZBRATHE GFFEE-
BERBEEE & T HM
FEWRIE ~ TR RIE R 5]
£~ P UR[EIFRIE ~ FEHRER T
FRUARBEERIFEEEE
SNoFFEEEGNERER
ERPIRE DI

. BrETEMEARIEBERE
FRIE-RIESERIRELE
MEBEAEIN FTEAESR
PTEELKERATRE D
$Ho

Hith EEH
BE_ZT_=+"A=+—H

IEFE
Manufacturing Music and Property Property Securities
Lending and sales i i Jeveloy trading Trading Segment
business business business business business business business total unallocated  consolidated
BEEE RERMEEE SURNLER VEREER  NEIRER  RSEEER BRER NEMH AR Ra
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS$ HKS HKS HKS
BT R BT BT BT R BT BT R #T
Amounts included in the HENBREANBEER
measure of segment results HAZEE!
or segment assets:
Interest income (included in FIBKA
“other interest income”) (GHATEARIS AL - (20,974) - - - (405) - (21379)  (597953)  (6000913)
Interest expenses fBR - 4,149,518 - 2,375,829 - - - 6,525,347 - 6,525,347
Depreciation of property, nE BERZENE
plant and equipment - 33,700,519 208 46,843 171491 47,400 17,817 34,084,278 - 34,084,278
Impairment losses (reversal of ~ BREKFEZ HEHE
impairment losses) on (REFBERD) 35
trade receivables, net - 372,288 (61,839) - - - 69,741 380,190 = 380,190
Impairment losses on contract ~ AHEEZHEFEFE
assets, net - 354,813 - - - - - 354,813 - 354,813
Reversal of impairment losses on  FEIXE 7 2 i B
loan receivable, net BEFE (389,374) - - - - - - (389,374) - (389,374)
Additions to property, plant and  FE% BER&E
equipment - 4,653,371 - - 338,904 - 426,912 5,419,187 - 5419,187
Change i fair value of financial  FEBBEERATEFIRZ
assets at FVTPL SHEEZATEED = = = = = 1,604,208 = 1,604,208 - 1,604,208
Net loss on disposal of property, &&M%FE&W%Z
plant and equipment BEFE - 396,762 - - - - - 396,762 - 396,762
Change in fair value of fﬁﬁ%%@?
investment properties - - - 6,125,444 - - - 6,125,444 = 6,125,444
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. NEEFR @
Other segment information (Continued) HEtoEEE (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BHE_ZE“F+ZH=+—H
IS
Manufacturing Music and Property Property Securities
Lending andsales  entertainment investment development trading Trading Segment
business business business business business business business total unallocated consolidated
MEEH LERMELE SURMEEE WEREER  WEEREE  R5EEER BR%% b FHE &a
HKS HKS HK$ HK$ HKS HKS HK$ HK$ HKS HKS
AT AT A AT AT AT A BT o An
Amounts included in the HENBREANBERR
measure of segment results HAZEE!
or segment assets:
Interest income (included in FIEKA
“other interest income”) (EtATEMRIBHRAY) (7,446) (92,874) - - - (619) (2.495) (103,434) (993991)  (1,097,425)
Interest expenses il 30,889 3,453,508 - 527,808 - 3,586 4,200 4,019,991 14,436 4,034427
Depreciation of property, nE BERZENE
plant and equipment 709,667 34,549,720 176 537,784 75,865 71,099 255,305 36,199,616 - 36,199,616
Write-down of inventories HiaEs - 240984 - - - - - 240984 - 240984
(Reversal of impairment losses) ~ EREKNZEZ
impairment losses on (AEFEEE
trade receivables, net HEEEFE - (85,959) 703 - - - (497) (85,753) = (85,753)
Reversal of impairment losses on - &4 & 2 iR
contract assets, net BEFE - (269,264) - - - - - (269,264) - (269,264)
Impairment losses on loan EUERZAEFESE
receivable, net 929,850 - - - - - - 929,850 - 929,850
Additions to property, plant and  FEHE BERFE
equipment - 15,299,097 - - 249917 - 89,278 15,638,292 - 15,638,292
Change in fair value of financial  EBEHBATEFIEZ
assets at FVTPL SHEEZATEED = - - - - 7,820,160 - 7,820,160 - 7,820,160
Net gain on disposal of property, HE&E#%BERFEZ
plant and equipment BEFE - (1,625,999) - - - - - (1,625,999) - (1,625,999
Change in fair value of RENELTEE
investment properties - - - 14,498,870 - - - 14,498,870 - 14,498,870
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary  HE—FHBAR 2 M - - - 76,441,616 - - - 76,441,616 = 76,441,616

Revenue from major products and services

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from its

KRBT EEmMKRREZ WS

UTHAEERBEEFTEER N

major products and services: IRFEZ W= 4 -

2023 2022

HKS$ HK$

AT BT

Sales of printing products #HE EN R & G 375,817,564 439,618,685

Sales of properties HEYE 160,429,227 =
Income from the use of the FRE&ERZIA

musical works 2,469,281 2,017,280
Loan interest income from REBREEEZEMR

Lending Business ) B 5,672,580 3,784,531

Promotion income SEKA 12,000 98,000

Rental income HEWA 2,783,890 2,194,059

Sales of albums HERER 1,504,425 1,690,787

548,688,967 449,403,342
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

Geographical information

The Group's operation of Manufacturing and Sales Business
and Property Development Business and Property Investment
Business are located in Hong Kong and the PRC, while the
Group's operation of Lending Business, Trading Business, Music
and Entertainment Business and Securities Trading Business are
located in Hong Kong.

ﬁ | é *‘I’ (n\E)
& &k

FEBZHERBEER WE
EREGRMEREEBIES
BARTPEEE MAEEZHE
B BEED BHENBRRE
BUKESEEEHUNEEBE

o

The Group’s revenue from external customers and information REERBINIZERZ WA KRE
about non-current assets by geographical location of the BIEREBEEZEROEEE
customers and assets respectively are set out below: REEMETMHEETWT -
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
RESMPEF 2K ERBEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
—EZ= g ZEZEZ= e E
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
AT BT AT BT
Hong Kong B 129,812,990 129,157,218 96,645,941 102,396,638
The PRC R 353,542,293 231,688,354 227,021,403 224,547,862
Europe B 13,481,744 18,678,521 - =
United States EET 45,121,554 57,628,959 - -
Others Hth 6,730,386 12,250,290 - -
548,688,967 449,403,342 323,667,344 326,944,500
Note: Non-current assets exclude financial assets and deferred tax Mzt FERHEEFCEBEETHNEELE
assets. ERRIBEE
Information about major customers FEZARER

There was no customer contributing over 10% of total
revenue of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022.

REE_E_=FF T
+_B=+—HLEEFE HER
PFEEBMOEAER W EEEEH
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7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. Hithhz=m REsiE
2023 2022
—E_= B F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Net foreign exchange gain HhEE IS 2 % BR 1,010,013 12,968,171
Change in fair value of investment KREMENTEEE
properties (note 15) (Hta£15) (6,125,444) (14,498,870)
Net (loss) gain on disposal of property, HEYHE MERKREZ
plant and equipment (&518) W 358 (396,762) 1,625,999
Change in fair value in financial assets HBEFIRAFEHEEZ
at FVTPL SRHEBEEZ ATEES (1,604,208) (7,820,160)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RBNB ARz W
(note 31) (Hta£31) - 76,441,616
(7,116,401) 68,716,756
FINANCE COSTS =0
2023 2022
== TEBICH
HKS$ HK$
AT BT
Interest on: UTFERZHE
Bank borrowings IRITER 4,188,174 1,528,644
Amount due to a related company FE —REIRAE R B FUIE - 19,737
Lease liabilities HEaE 2,337,173 2,486,046
6,525,347 4,034,427

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE&EEZKARAT | Annual Report 2023 F iR 233



234

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E=R bt e

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_Z_=F+"A=+—HIHEE

9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine (2022:

nine) directors are as follows:

EETHES RS M
&
EERITHARKMNE

UTABARERTAL (C2
—oE AR BB

Executive directors Non-executive directors Independent non-executive directors
#ER FanES BuFanES
SUEK SUEK CHAN NG LEE LAl SIN
Ka Lun, Chai  Kwing Choi, WONG Wai Kwok CHU Sai Wo, Chui Pik,
Ernie Hong Warren Sun Fat Kwan Wan Gun Pui Ricky Christine Total
E2H HEE RiAn EHE REH ZEZ KE Bt HRE @3t
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$ HK$ HKS
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
(note §) (note ) (note vj)
() (Hzv) (Hztvi)
2023 kSt
Fees ik - - 169,992 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 60,000 31,000 740,992
Other emoluments Hitie
- Salaries and other benefits —-HERAMER 2310000 1,386,000 - - - - - - - 3,696,000
- Contributions to retirement —RAEREEER
benefits schemes 18,000 18,000 8,500 - - - - - - 44,500
Total emoluments Hews 2328000 1,404,000 178,492 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 60,000 31,000 4,481,492
Alternate
Executive directors Non-executive directors Independent non-executive directors director
#7EE HTES BUFanES EfEZ
SUEK SUEK CHAN NG LEE LAI LAU
Ka Lun, Chai Kwing Choi, WONG Wai Kwok CHU Sai Wo, Kam
Ernie Hong Warren Sun Fat Kwan Wan Gun Pui Ricky Cheong Total
BER BEE FBeEbt BiE SEE ZEE FE R 2Ra @
HKS$ HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
AR B o o An AT AT AT AT AT
(note §) (notev) (note i)
7 () (i)
2022 St
Fees ik S S 161,492 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 - 761,492
Other emoluments Hiti e
- Salaries and other benefits —HEREME 2,292,000 1,368,000 - - - - - - 38500 3,698,500
- Contributions to retirement —RAER IR
benefits schemes 18,000 18,000 8,500 - - - - - 1,500 46,000
Total emoluments Hens 2310,000 1,386,000 169,992 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 40,000 4,505,992
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BE

9.

TERC=HF+A=+—HLEEE

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration
(Continued)

Notes:

(i) Mr. SUEK Chai Hong is also the chief executive of the
Company and his remuneration disclosed above included
those for services rendered by him as chief executive.

(i) The emoluments of executive directors were for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group. The emoluments of non-executive
directors and independent non-executive directors were for
their services as the directors of the Company.

(iii) Incentive performance bonuses for the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022 were determined by the
remuneration committee and approved by the board of
directors having regard to the performance and duties of
directors.

(iv) Mr. LAU Kam Cheong resigned as the alternate director to Dr.
NG Wai Kwan with effect from 31 January 2022.

(v) Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky resigned as independent non-executive
director with effect from 30 June 2023.

(vi) Ms. SIN Chui Pik, Christine was appointed as independent
non-executive director with effect from 28 September 2023.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of the
Company as an inducement to joint or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office in any of the year.

EFTHRABRKRESM
& (48)

EER

Mt -

=
=

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

Eimuikwﬂﬁ (nﬁ)

BERERETAERT ZITHA
BoHREXREZNECBRE
H B 1T AR # P 12 #BR 75 = B
%o

BITEFZHFMEREEER
RERFEBNEEMEHZR
BEB - FRTESRBILIER
TEFEZFHFMDOMREERER
BESEREZRBMEEL

HEZZ-=_"FNZZTZZ
+=-/= + HiEEEMNERRE
BEABHFNEZE BT I

KEZGHE ERETRES
BRI H o

RELERERBEHRELZ
BREEF BET-_"_F—A8
=+—HEEM-

HUEMAEEREBILIFNTE
FHEIE=FA=+HE
£

FREBZITEEZERBIUF
HUITEF BT -=ZFN1A
“HNAHEERK-

RAEFE > SEEFNITER
BMEHABDEREEFAHFMZ 2

B o

RERNBEFE  ~EERED
KRBEEXNEAME > 1FS
A& B BN ER 1R =~ 52 B ol B
B mE
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BH=E

9.

TR =HF+A=+—HLEEE

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2022: two) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the
remaining three (2022: three) highest paid employees who
were neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are

EFTHRBRKRESM
& (48)

BEME
ErEEARERRHFALHR W

B(CEEITE  WR) BERT
EF REM2HBEHN L
XoHBp=%(CT-"F:=4)
itiEK NEEFHITEHRBH IR

as follows: S EEZMEUWT
2023 2022
—g== —E-—f
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Salaries and other benefits e MEMER 5,058,000 3,227,500
Contributions to retirement BIREFRFT B RR
benefits schemes 54,000 54,000
5,112,000 3,281,500
The number of the highest paid employees who were not the WIFARNBEEZREHFEEDN

directors of the Company and whose remuneration fell within
the following bands is as follows:

MEBRUTEEZ AT !

2023 2022

—E-= S

Number of Number of

employees employees

EEA# BEEA#

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z£%1,000,0007% 7T - 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001787c% 1,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7c22,000,0007%8 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 75 23,000,000 7T 1 =
3 3

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office in any of the years.
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10. TAXATION (CHARGE) CREDIT MIE (ZH) E %
2023 2022
2= —EF
HKS$ HK$
BT BIT
The taxation comprises: MIBEE -
Hong Kong Profits Tax HHBFER
Charge for the year KEZH (117,201) (126,892)
Under provision in prior years BEFERERR = (1,724,551)
(117,201) (1,851,443)
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") FRE IR ER
(Mt H#IBEFR )
Charge for the year REZ W (4,474,177) =
PRC Enterprise Income Tax Rl PRSI
Charge for the year KEZH (4,248,984) (1,410,813)
Overprovision in prior years BEEEBREEE 494,862 1,878,362
(3,754,122) 467,549
Deferred tax credit for RERERIEE R
the year (note 29) (Ht5£29) 990,397 4,034,040
(7,355,103) 2,650,146

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2
million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed
at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at
a flat rate of 16.5%.

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million
of the estimated assessable profits of one of the subsidiaries
of the Company and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits above HK$2 million. The profits of corporation not
qualified for the two-tier profit tax regime will continue to be
taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

BEMEKEANERKEFNE &
ﬁ%%l; E@Ez,ooo,ooo%
TTHEM B8 25% R MiB e
2,000,000 70 A9 EL 93 BI13%16.5%
HIR - A& M ARF) FHRR G
ENEEER EafSEED
—3216.5% 1

BE_EBE_=—"Fh_FB__fF
+-_RB=+—HBLFEEEE
FAF 1 5 A A B K A — M

BAEEtESERENZ2E
2,000,00078701%8.25% st & > M
ELZ 000,000 o By 14 5t FE R
R BIE16.5%5 Bo RTFS
MARF)EMMEHEN T EN G
A BB R —3216.5% 15 ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE

10.

TR =HF+A=+—HLEEE

TAXATION (CHARGE) CREDIT (Continued)

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law"”) and Implementation Regulations of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Under the Provisional Regulations of LAT ({FZE AR HLFE
TR ERETIEA)) effective on 1 January 1994, and the
Detailed Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations
of the PRC on LAT ((F#EARIME L MIZERGITH
BIEHEAME])) effective from 27 January 1995, all income
from the sale or transfer of state-owned land use rights,
buildings and their attached facilities in the PRC is subject to
LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% of the
appreciation value, being the proceeds of sales of properties
less deductible expenditures including borrowing costs, land
costs and property development expenditures in relation to the
gains arising from sales of properties in the PRC effective from
1 January 2004.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company reached a preliminary
agreement with the Inland Revenue Department to accept a
tax penalty of approximately HK$3,700,000 and additional tax
payables of approximately HK$2,094,000 for previous years
of assessment from 2008/2009 to 2020/2021. Accordingly,
tax penalty of approximately HK$3,700,000 was provided
during the year ended 31 December 2022 and included in
“Administrative and other expenses” and the additional
tax payables of approximately HK$2,094,000 was provided
during the year ended 31 December 2022 and included in
"Taxation charge”. Tax reserve certificates of approximately
HK$5,794,000 purchased by the Group have been utilised to
settle the aforesaid payables.

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE2EEZERBRAE | Annual Report 2023 F iR

10.

MIE (i) K% (&)

BE(PRERFAERZE) ((d
FFREIED ) RAEERBIUE
BHEERA) > EIME AR W
FEZMEHGRH25% -

BEE-—NANNF—A—HEE
MY (PEARANE LB (E
METHRAD)  RE—NNAAF
—)% T+ HEEMB(REA
HANBE T MIBEREGTHRNE
HHE'J>> BB ZRNF—F—
EIE RPEHERBERE L
mERE BREYNENBRE
BYFR B WA S EIZIBEER30% =
60% By R#E R R G T 1B B
Mo IBEREHEYEAENRIR
R 2 B H1JRl B S2 (@%ﬁ%ﬂ?‘qﬂ
BEHEEMSRaNEE
A~ EB A R SRR R ©

REE_ZE__F+_B=+—
HEFEE AR B —HEE2E
MBAREREBE %m*ﬁ
W& R M NE3,700,000
BAUMRBREFER_ZTZ
INE/ —_EENEFE_E_Z
F/ B —FEWNFREBINE
F#378492,094,000B T2 HE °
At - REBEE_T-__F£+_H
=+ —HEFEZRBEIREL
3,700,000 Tl 5t A TMTTEUR E
MmEZ MR BEE_E -
+_B=1+—HILFEEZEEIE
I I8 2 492,094,0007 7T 30 5T A
MBS H AEERBEFH
M&H5 495,794,000 0B BRIE
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10. TAXATION (CHARGE) CREDIT (Continued)

The taxation (charge) credit for the year can be reconciled to
the loss before taxation per the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

10.

MIE (i) K% (&)

REMRIE L) BRI REGTIE
m R H A 2 UL A RR PR ERIR
AR IREERIDT

2023 2022
—Eg-= BT T4
HKS$ HK$
BT BIT
Loss before taxation PRI ARS8 (74,716,847) (5,051,360)
Tax at the income tax rate of 16.5% PSR E16.5%
(2022: 16.5%) (ZTEZ-ZF .16.5%) 12,328,280 833,474
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ~ FREJHIRFEZT 2 NFEFE
for tax purposes (1,077,797) (3,068,099)
Tax effect of income not taxable BEZRRBAZREE
for tax purposes 1,039,331 13,486,141
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised ~ RIESRINFSETIE 2 75
FE (15,216,845) (9,396,446)
Overprovision in prior years BIEFEEBREERE 494,862 153,811
Provision for LAT for the year AT HIR(EREE (4,474,177) =
Tax effect of LAT deductible for FRE 1B 2T SHR 2 AT 30R
PRC EIT THIEER 2 R E 738,239 -
Effect of different tax rates of REMBEEERE 2
subsidiaries operating in other MEABSITERE
jurisdictions " (1,351,377) 514,992
Tax effect of share of results of DEHEBERDEEZ
joint ventures MBEE (619) (619)
Tax effect of two-tiered tax rate MARIRE 2 MB L& 165,000 126,892
Taxation (charge) credit for the year REMRIA (W) HR (7.355,103) 2,650,146
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11. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 1. FFEE
2023 2022
—E_= B F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Loss for the year has been arrived at ~ stEAFEEBESINMG
after charging (crediting): GtA) -
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEMEN =
— Audit services — BT RTS 2,395,000 2,165,000
— Non-audit services —IJEE TR 839,300 606,000
3,234,300 2,771,000
Cost of inventories recognised as an RAEEZ 2 FERAE
expense (including write-down of (BERE_ZE__F
inventories of HK$240,984 for the +ZA=+—HBULEEFE
year ended 31 December 2022) IR E &240,9847E 7T) 167,249,165 200,817,058
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEERE 13,215,482 14,378,993
Depreciation of other property, Ht¥ 2 BE K
plant and equipment REITE 20,868,796 21,820,623
Depreciation of property, plant and ME- -BERREITE
equipment 34,084,278 36,199,616
Less: included in cost of sales and B ETAHE RIRFE A
services (18,324,012) (19,758,629)
15,760,266 16,440,987
Staff costs (including directors’ ETA (BIFEEFHE)
emoluments)
— Salaries, wages and other benefits —Fre s TEREMERN 162,026,334 176,764,704
— Contributions to retirement benefits —RBIKEF] 52 {HE
schemes 12,143,621 12,857,395
Less: included in cost of sales and ST AEE RIRFEAR A
services (95,122,975) (101,673,107)
79,046,980 87,948,992
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11. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued) 1. FFEHE (@)
2023 2022
=== BT F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Legal and professional fees HRNEEER 6,252,000 10,922,258
Gross rental income from investment  REREYEZHEIWA
properties ks (2,783,890) (2,194,059)
Less: Direct operating expenses incurred & : AREELERESWAZ
for investment properties that KREMEESZ
generated rental income during BHEKER%
the year 217,988 392,878
(2,565,902) (1,801,181)
Staff redundancy costs included in HEMAFAUTIEER
Cost of sales SHE R A 4,887,400 1,720,054
Selling and distribution expenses HE RKHS 937,866 367,061
Administrative and other expenses TB R EMBES 536,991 923,856
6,362,257 3,010,971
The following items are included in UTEEstAEREE K&
(reversal of impairment losses) BHEETRIEERIE
impairment losses under ECL model BT CRERER
on financial assets and contract [B) B ERIEFEE
assets, net:
— Impairment losses (reversal of —E S RIRIEZ RIE
impairment losses) on trade B518 CRfE 51850
receivables, net FE 380,190 (85,753)
— Impairment losses (reversal of —EBNEEZRERE
impairment losses) on contract (R EEERER) FE
assets, net 354,813 (269,264)
— (Reversal of impairment losses) —EWERZ CRERE
impairment losses on loans #0) RERERE
receivable, net (389,374) 929,850
345,629 574,833
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BH=E

11.

12.

B+ HA=+—HI=FE

LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued) 1. BEEE (@)
2023 2022
=== TECF
HK$ HK$
#EIT BT
The following items are included in MTIEEBSTAEMAIE
other interest income: WA
— Bank interest income —IRTHIEWA (5,979,534) (993,991)
— Interest income on rental deposits —HERE2FMEWA (21,379) (103,434)
(6,000,913) (1,097,425)
The following items are included in UTIEEBETAEMUA :
other income:
— Dividend income —REWHA (641,519) (1,115,144)
— Government grants (Note) — B R (M5 (485,455) (7,196,142)
— Others —HAth (2,285,943) (2,829,214)
(3,412,917) (11,140,500)
Note: Biat -
The government grants that are receivable as a compensation for EABE_S”_=F+Z"“A=+—H1Lt
expenses incurred of HK$485,455 (2022: HK$5,450,892) during the F B PR E B ST B B0 PR UKL AT R B
year ended 31 December 2023. For the year ended 31 December 485,455 75 (Z & " "4 © 5,450,892
2022, government grants represented one-off government grants in BT cBEZ_Z_F+ZHR=+—H
the PRC of HK$11,590 related to grants under Covid-19 pandemic. IEFE BA@MIEE20198 KBS K
There were also government grants received for Employment Support 15 T HBN B B8 BB — R %R Bh
Scheme launched by the Hong Kong Government of HK$1,733,660. 11,5907 7T o TR pL & 7B BUN #E H 89 TR 7L
EETE WERER T/ BN1,733,66078 7T ©
DIVIDENDS 12. BE

No dividend was paid or proposed for the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period.
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13. LOSS PER SHARE 13. 8KEEE
The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to RNEEE ANELESREREIE
owners of the Company is based on the following data: TAERUTEIESTHE .
Loss figures are calculated as follows: EEEFAENT
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HKS HKS
AT BT
Loss for the year attributable to owners BREtEEREXREEZ
of the Company for the purpose of RABVER NEGARE
calculating basic loss per share 518 (81,961,487) (1,942,228)
2023 2022
—E=F = —
Weighted average number of ordinary BRI EEREREEZ
shares in issue for the purpose of BETEER
calculating basic loss per share IR B 253,359,456 253,581,100

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic loss per share has been adjusted for the share
repurchase on 14 October 2022 and 17 October 2022 as
disclosed in note 30.

No separate diluted loss per share information has been
presented as there were no potential ordinary shares
outstanding issue for both years.

UM R30I E  BRETES
REABEEZ ZERINEFSH
BEmMR _E-_F#+8+mH
NMZE-__F+HB+tHNKG
BBOELFEE-

R M EFE G EETEIZ
BrEEk HUEBIZIE
REEFEEREF -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

BH=E

14.

BT A=+

—RHIEFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. YE- -BENZE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures Machinery
lands and Leasehold and office and Motor
buildings  improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
HETHRK HiHER
BF  HENEEE WAERE KERRE RE @it
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT B
CosT A&
At 1 January 2022 RZZ-_£-B—-H 230,843,048 72,416,622 58,765,281 555,336,416 25,782,383 943,143,750
Exchange adjustments ERBE (2,586,274) (2,515,680) (1,014,967) (14,813,080) (474,962) (21,404,963)
Additions HE - 6,966,824 2,432,629 6,225,710 13,129 15,638,292
Modifications 54 20,348,640 - - - - 20,348,640
Disposals and written-offs HERMH (327,754) (1,479,057) (2,939,425) (9,249,453) (310,857) (14,306,546)
Disposal through disposal of a BRALE-HNBAIIZHE

subsidiary (note 31) (i31) (22,240,803) (6,575,994) (1,076,426) - = (29,893,223)
At 31 December 2022 RISZZE+ZA=+-H 226,036,857 68,812,715 56,167,092 537,499,593 25,009,693 913,525,950
Exchange adjustments ERBHE (1,235,716) (919,134) (393,013) (5,069,205) (159,744) (7,776,812)
Additions HE - 1,512,952 687,414 1,477,576 1,741,245 5,419,187
Modifications X 272,362 - - - - 272,362
Disposals and written-offs HERMH = (34,055,909) (34,496,343) (19,653,247) (6,946,341) (95,151,840)
Transfer to investment properties BEERENE W15)

(note 15) (25,236,086) - - - - (25,236,086)
At 31 December 2023 RIZZ=F+ZA=1+-H 199,837,417 35,350,624 21,965,150 514,254,717 19,644,853 791,052,761
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT TERAE
At 1 January 2022 RZZ-__£-F-H 93,868,195 65,578,048 53,883,396 476,492,658 18,406,731 708,229,028
Exchange adjustments ERBEE (1,541,281) (2,167,749) (712,411) (4,250,505) (308,289) (8,980,235)
Provided for the year TERE 14,918,232 4,744,622 3,632,847 10,375,950 2,527,965 36,199,616
Eliminated on disposals and written-offs 1 & R S5 884 (327,754) (1,557,114) (2,660,924) (7,450,747) (279,771) (12,276,310)
Disposal through disposal of a subsidiary ~ EBHE-BHBARZHE

(note 31) (Hz31) (11,197,913) (4,886,142) (139,903) - - (16,223,958)
At 31 December 2022 RIEZZE+ZA=1+-H 95,719,479 61,711,665 54,003,005 475,167,356 20,346,636 706,948,141
Exchange adjustments EREE (674,887) (759,170) (312,112) (2,052,260) (119,355) (3,917,784)
Provided for the year TERE 16,122,243 3,711,779 1,620,389 10,561,413 2,068,454 34,084,278
Eliminated on disposals and written-offs € Rl #4Fs 4184 - (34,055,814) (34,422,399) (18,933,112) (6,946,341) (94,357,666)
Transfer to investment properties BRERENE W15)

(note 15) (6,289,585) - - - = (6,289,585)
At 31 December 2023 RIEZ=ZF+ZA=1+-H 104,877,250 30,608,460 20,888,883 464,743,397 15,349,394 636,467,384
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2023 RIZZ=F+ZA=1+-H 94,960,167 4,742,164 1,076,267 49,511,320 4,295,459 154,585,377
At 31 December 2022 RIEZZFE+ZA=1+-H 130,317,378 7,101,050 2,164,087 62,332,237 4,663,057 206,577,809

Neway Group Holdings Limited P2 &£ EZERBRAE

Annual Report 2023 £ #§



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e MR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIEE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ME-BERSZE (&)
(Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, after taking Tt -BmENRKZEBER 2T
into account the residual values, are depreciated on a straight- EREEFNGEBER  JITHAUL
line basis at the following rates per annum: TERERIGELR FTE
Leasehold lands and Over the shorter of RELHMEK BHAMRH30E
buildings the lease terms or s 50 (MUBEE
30 - 50 years B )
Leasehold improvements 12.5% - 20% HEYEEE 12.5% - 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 10% — 25% GRS EERBA  10% -25%
office equipment =R
Machinery and equipment 10% — 25% HBRRE 10% - 25%
Motor vehicles Over the shorter of RE BHAHRR25%
the lease terms or F33% (UK
25% — 33'3% BEAE)
2023 2022
== B _F
HK$ HK$
HIT BT

The carrying values of leasehold land ~ F#ifAE +i#th R iEF
and buildings shown above comprise:  ZBREI{EEIE :

Leasehold land and buildings IR EEZHE LM
in Hong Kong Kig=F 310,941 149,499

Leasehold land and buildings in PRC IR R S
KIEF 94,649,226 130,167,879

94,960,167 130,317,378
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in e MR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_Z_=—Ft+_A=t—HLFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y= RERHE ()
(Continued)
The Group as lessee EEEREAEA
Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant 1FEHEELSE GIAYE - FE
and equipment) RER1E)
Leasehold land Motor
and building vehicles Total
HETMRIET RE Kzt
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BIT BT
At 31 December 2023 RZE-=%+"B=+—H
Carrying amount IRAEE 49,421,273 892,615 50,313,888
At 31 December 2022 RZE__H#+-RA=+—H
Carrying amount REE 62,896,429 2,854,958 65,751,387
For the year ended BE_ZT=HF+”"“HA=+—H
31 December 2023 LLEFE
Depreciation charge WEER 13,186,688 28,794 13,215,482
Additions B - 921,409 921,409
Modifications &8 272,362 - 272,362
For the year ended BE_E__H+°_RA=+—H
31 December 2022 ILEE
Depreciation charge WEER 13,371,361 1,007,632 14,378,993
Modifications B& 20,348,640 = 20,348,640
2023 2022
—E—= BT F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Expense relating to short-term leases  EAZGHATR S A RARIEE X 131,077 940,753

Expense relating to leases of low-value BEEEEZEHRE (FEE
assets, excluding short-term leases of RBEEZEEMNEHHEES

low-value assets BRI Y = 19,760
Total cash outflow for leases HENRES B85 17,092,450 18,379,926
For both years, the Group leases leasehold lands, various PREEE AEBAEHSEM
offices, warehouses and factory for its operations. Lease B4 -ZBPAE AF_)SZI
contracts are entered into for fixed term of one to fifty years. oMM ESNIEETERE—

A+FEIILe
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE

14.

TERC=HF+A=+—HLEEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant
and equipment) (Continued)

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for smaller
office premises and office equipment. As at 31 December
2023 and 2022, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar
to the portfolio of short-term leases for which the short-term
lease expenses is disclosed above.

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably
certain not to exercise a termination option, upon the
occurrence of either a significant event or a significant change
in circumstances that is within the control of the lessee. During
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there is no
such triggering event.

Leasehold improvements with an aggregate cost of HK$nil
(2022: HK$34,045,842) were fully depreciated are still in use
as at 31 December 2023.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has
disposed of property, plant and equipment of HK$13,669,265
through the disposal of a subsidiary as disclosed in note 31.

14.

YR~ BB Rz s (48)

AEBREAEEA (B)

REEEE GTAYE BE
Kx1E) (B)

FEEEHSBNENRAEY)
EJNEI YN EIRVE SRR N RN
=Y G — 2 g
=+—HB - ERAEEsALRN
Lt E’Jhﬁﬂ%ﬂ Sz B9 A2 HA
HEHE

o > B 4 1 AR A B4 &6
@WB@%#(%#&'I‘%‘R&E%#{
BULER AAEBEFHTHES
BT RN THERLLE E% °
RBEE_ZE_=ZFEK"_T__
+-_B=1+—HBLEFE WEH
BHMAEMH-

B ABZEEAET(TEZ
34,045,842%87T) WIEE rr@%#
BERBIFE TR _E_=
+ZB=+—H{NAER-

BE_ZE_"_F#+”"FB=+—H
IEFEE M sE3 1T E » &
SEEEBHE—ERB AR H
EYE- BB M#&E13,669,265
BT
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

]

14.

TR =HF+A=+—HLEEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant
and equipment) (Continued)

Due to the unsatisfactory financial performance of
Manufacturing and Sales Business, the management of
the Group concluded there was indication for impairment
and conducted impairment assessment on certain property,
plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) under
Manufacturing and Sales Business with carrying amounts of
HK$153,715,000 (2022: HK$205,942,000). The recoverable
amount has been determined based on a value in use
calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period, and pre-tax discount rate of 16.25%
(2022: 15.5%). Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 2.25% (2022: 2.25%) growth
rate. This growth rate is based on the relevant industry
growth forecasts and does not exceed the average long-
term growth rate for the relevant industry. Other key
assumptions for the value in use calculations relate to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted
sales and gross margin, such estimation is based on the past
performance and management's expectations for the market
development. During the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022, management of the Group determines that there
is no impairment on the property, plant and equipment.
As at 31 December 2023, the recoverable amount of
Manufacturing and Sales Business exceeds its carrying amount
by approximately HK$3,453,000. If the discount rate was
changed to 16.5% while other parameters remain constant,
the recoverable amount of Manufacturing and Sales Business
would equal its carrying amount.
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14.

YR~ BB Rz s (18)

AEBREAEEA (B)

REEEE GIAYE BE
RRfE) (&)

li ENMIHE EBRHNM B RIER
B AEEEEBRAEEN
HEXFBTHNETYE KE
NEE (BEERAEEE) IR
H1E153,715,0008 T (ZE - _
£ 1 205,942,000 7T) B R E M
KRR EETRETM - UK
Ol HERHEEREENTE
MEE ZtBEEREEEEM
EZ AERRMTEE I R16.25%
:%:: ©15.5%) M B84
SXRBHNIRERE/ M A F
%uézﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁz%%
(BT ZHF 1 2.25%) WigEE
EXREH ZIBREXRTEMNIERE
TENIRREER  BARBEER
TENFH R RE +ERE
BEBEFENEMETERRES
BERA/ AEBNEstER B
FEEHEEENLENE 8
HEERBAEXRBELNEEREY
MGEENER - #E_T =
ERE__F+_A=+—HL
FE $$H%ﬁﬁ#i%%
B MR B FERE-
=+ Z“R=+—H ®HEK
HEXB 2B SBEBHER
HE493,453,00078 7T o {5 i 8L IR
KNAE16.5%  MEMBEHES
g BB N E R 2 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e MR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_Z_=—F+_A=+—HLFE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group's investment properties are located in Hong Kong
and the PRC. All of the Group's property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are measured using the fair value model and are
classified and accounted as investment properties. The Group
leases out various offices in the PRC and commercial and
industrial premises in Hong Kong under operating leases with
rentals paid monthly. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one to four years (2022: one to three years) with no
rights to extend the lease beyond initial period held by lessees.

The lease contracts do not contain residual value guarantee
and/or lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end of

the lease term.

15.

REY=R

KREBREMETLUNRTEBLF
Bl o AEEMBENAETHNE ARG
BEMERBEKEHEREZMEY
EEHIIURNFEERSTE A
DENARINEREY £ -KAE
ERELCEHEHEEPENS
BMAENESANIEYE
HEESRSZN -MHEPE—KA
—ENFE(CE_—_F:—FE=
F) > BRBEAEZESHEBLERES
IEEABR & ©

AL BB ERREERRR
SN R TR RS
ZIEENRE

HK$
BT
At 1 January 2022 N _E__#F—H—H 259,294,789
Fair value change recognised in profit or loss I IEHFESRZ AT (EE (14,498,870)
Additions /d\% 5,082,968

Disposal through disposal of a subsidiary

BHE—RBNBASZHE WWa37)

(note 31) (137,357,335)
Exchange adjustments fE R (1,369,996)
At 31 December 2022 KRB "#+"A=+—H 111,151,556
Transfer from property, plant and equipment & BY)¥ = K& H 57,458,684
Fair value change recognised in profit or loss ET?E i e 2 N EEE) (6,125,444)
Exchange adjustments TR (465,524)
At 31 December 2023 RZE=#+"A=+—H 162,019,272
Unrealised loss on property revaluation FTAE MBI R EIR

included in other gains and losses MEEMEE

— for the year ended 31 December 2023 —-HEZZ_=_F+"HF=+—H

IFEE (6,125,444)

— for the year ended 31 December 2022

—BE_EZ__F+"B=+—H

IEFE

(14,498,870)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

]

15.

TR =HF+A=+—HLEEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the use of certain
premises of the Group have been changed from owner-
occupation to leasing out for rental income. The buildings
with carrying amount of HK$18,946,501 are transferred from
property, plant and equipment to investment properties at
the date of the end of owner-occupation. Upon the date of
transfer, the fair value of the building was HK$57,458,684
and the difference of HK$38,512,183 between the carrying
amount and the fair value of the buildings is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in “properties
valuation reserve”.

The fair value of all investment properties has been arrived
at on the basis of valuations carried out by Peak Vision
Appraisals Limited as at 31 December 2023 and 2022. They
are independent qualified professional valuers not related to
the Group.

Investment properties with fair value of HK$162,019,272
(2022: HK$111,151,556) as at 31 December 2023 are
determined based on the income capitalisation approach,
where the market rentals of all lettable units of the properties
are assessed and discounted at the market yield expected by
investors for this type of properties. The market rentals are
assessed based on estimates of future cash flows, supported
by the terms of existing lease and the market rentals of the
similar properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate
is determined by reference to the yields derived from analysing
the sales transactions of similar properties.
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BREBELHYE BEAR
BEEREREYE -NEREH
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B MEFREEEAAFER

RZ$38,512,183F TN HME
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IR Rt

FIEREMELNTFEHNRER
BIEERARNRN B2 =X
TR T+ "B =+—H¥ETT
HNEESH HEAHEAEE R
FEMNEI S EREXEEMe

6:7__E+ A=4+—Hz
NFEEA162,019,2728 T (CZE
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE

15.

B =F+_"_B=+—HULtEFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use and
adjusted to exclude prepaid or accrued operating lease income
to avoid double counting. At the end of the reporting period,
the financial controller works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs into the model. Where there is a material change in the
fair value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be
reported to management of the Group.

Except for the transfer of fair value measurement as
mentioned above, there were no changes to the valuation
techniques for investment properties. The carrying amount of
the Group’s remaining investment properties is a Level 3 fair
value measurement. There were no transfers into or out of
Level 3 for the investment properties during the year.

15.

REW=E (B)

RESRENMEZATER B
FMERzERERREBRINAH
EH0 AR T AS I LU PR AE e
BYRRAEEHEWRALESR
EEFE -RNMEHMK > FHR
RENMEERLEMRES
B EE S BRI MGSERM R & A
BRAZHBE - HEENQFESR
REREE FOAEEEEE
PR BB R -

(R EMANFESENERIN &
EY)ENGERMITEZES) A&
EENGRREVENREEBN
BIRAFESE - FA FIERR
BEY) R ESIRBALEL -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_Z_=—Ft+_A=t—HLFE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15.

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable inputs

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in
the determination of fair values for investment properties and
unobservable inputs used in the valuation models.

rRENE (@)

5 AT AT A B
2 AT EHEZ AN
TRIRRE R AR AT
ERGEXRMREERIAFAAE
B2 AR A B -

Inter relationship between
significant unobservable

Fair value as at Fairvalue  Valuation Significant Range of significant inputs and fair value
Description 31 December hierarchy ~ techniques unobservable inputs unobservable inputs measurement
EXTOURBAAUEE
it R+ZB=+-ANATE NTEER  HERE EXTIRRHEAME EXTURRHAMBEE  ATEHEZEANEEHAG
2023 2022 2023 2022
- i) " —8_= "
HKS HK$ HKS HKS
AT B BT B
Industrial properties in 58,189,418 - Level 3 Income capitalisation (i) Capitalisation rate 6.25% N/A - The lower/higher the
Shenzhen, the PRC approach capitalisation rate, the
higher/lower the fair value.
REERIZTENE £34 WABRIEHE () BALE TEE  EALEAE/ A5 ATA
e/ af-
(i) Market rental value RMB20 to N/A  The higher/lower the market
RMB25 per rental value, the higher/
square feet lower the fair value.
(i) THEEEE STAHR TER hEReds/RE ATA
AEBWTE s/ Bl
AEH257
Properties in Beijing, 14,629,854 16,751,556 Level 3 Income capitalisation (i) Capitalisation rate 3% 275%  The lower/igher the
the PRC approach capitalisation rate, the
higher/lower the fair value
RAELREZNE 34 WABRILHE ) ExL® ExftERE/ 28 AT
& r—J/ [
(i) Market rental value RMB111 to RMB119to  The higher/lower the market
RMB129 per RMB153 per rental value, the higher/
square feet square feet lower the fair value.

(i) HEAZEE

Commercial properties 89,200,000 94,400,000  Level 3 Income capitalisation (i) Capitalisation rate
in Yuen Long, approach

Hong Kong

REBTHZERNE 34 WABRIEHE () BxfE

(i) Market rental value

i) TEREEE

As at 31 December 2023, investment properties with
aggregate carrying value of HK$89,200,000 (2022:
HK$94,400,000) were pledged to banks to secure bank
borrowings as stated in note 28 and general banking facilities
granted to the Group.
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BTARARE STARARE wRf&ds/A6 AT
MTEARE  197ZARE  R5/2f

12970 1537
4% 35%  The lower/higher the
capitalisation rate, the
higher/\ower the fa|r value

HK$37 to HK$25 to  The higher/lower the market
HK$54 per HK$85 per  rental value, the higher/
square feet square feet —lower the fair value.
SEERTET  §TAR0ER TEA

e I5En 08/Afc

A B =F+_"_HA=+—H"
4EERE {8 789,200,0008 7T (=
T 4 194,400,000 7T) 2
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIEE

16. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI/FINANCIAL 16. EREM2EWARATE
ASSETS AT FVTPL EFRZIEATH EB
BB AFEIRZ &R

BE

Equity instruments at FVTOCI FEHEMEZEBARLTFE
FIBRZRATH

2023 2022

ZEI=HF . ——

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Unlisted equity securities established REB S PERBINEILZ

in Hong Kong, the PRC and JE LR ARE S (WaE)
overseas (note) 22,193,495 22,285,289

Note: As at 31 December 2023, the Group has investments in three Kz " _E_=Z=F#+-_B=+—H">
(2022: three) unlisted equity securities established in the AERHEFERIN=ZR(CZE
PRC, three (2022: three) unlisted equity securities established TF I ZR) FFLEHFRAES

in overseas and one (2022: one) unlisted equity security EBIMNRIN=R (ZE=
incorporated in Hong Kong which were held for an identified =) LEHRAFERNESH
long term strategic purpose. MR —E (CEZ2F —/)
FFEMRABFETRE  ZE
KRENDFEERENRERKER
These investments in equity instruments are not held for ZERATERXRETIFIEE
trading. Instead, they are held for medium to long-term BoER BENLEEDLERSR
strategic purposes. Accordingly, the directors of the Company BEAG A KA EFE
have elected to designate these investments in equity BEEZERANTELESIEEAE
instruments as at FVTOCI as they believe that recognising BEMEEWARATFEEYEE
short-term fluctuations in these investments’ fair value in profit BRANEDRS BAZEKRE
or loss would not be consistent with the Group's strategy of REE KA A T E S K B
holding these investments for long-term purposes and realising HARERAEEZEENEEZSR
their performance potential in the long run. BENEREREREBERIFAVERRE

ARFFo
Details of the fair value measurement on equity instruments at FHiBEMmEmEmk AIZ AT (E R
FVTOCI are disclosed in note 38. ZRATHAZ AFESFEFHBR
MIsE38EE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_Z_=F+"A=+—HIHEE

16. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI/FINANCIAL 16. FTHRBHMZEWARAF

ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued) EYRZRATH BB
BEERAFEIRZERM
BE (8)
Financial assets at FVTPL BEBREEATEYERZE
MEE
2023 2022
HK$ HK$
#HIT BT
Listed equity investments in Hong Kong MR&BZ EHRAEE 15,770,920 17,375,128
Details of the fair value measurement on financial assets at FEEGEREATEY R EME
FVTPL are disclosed in note 38. EZ AN EE:F181 M 138K
2o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=F+"B=+—HILEE

17.

CONTRACT ASSETS 17. 8HEE
2023 2022
—E_= B F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT

Contract assets from Manufacturing SIS R IHEEBN

and Sales Business BHNEE 26,847,507 30,424,210
Less: allowance for credit loss B EEEREEE (513,130) (159,275)
26,334,377 30,264,935

As at 1 January 2022, contract assets amounted to
HK$46,446,817.

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group's right to
consideration from the customers for the manufacturing and
sales of printing products. Contract assets arise when the
Group has right to consideration for the work completed
under relevant contracts and their right is conditioned on
factors other than passage of time. The contract assets
are transferred to trade receivables upon the delivery and
acceptance of products by customers.

Typical payment terms is 60 to 120 days upon delivery.

The Group classifies these contract assets as current assets
because the Group expects to realise them in its normal
operating cycle which is within 12 months after the end of the

reporting period.

Details of the impairment assessment are set out in note 38.

RN_E - " F—F—H'a8&
E 446,446,817 HIT o

GHNEETERMAERMNE
KEHEENR E mm & P WEAE
ZREF - ENEERAEBEGE
R REAEBGHNFT TN
B BmERRF ALRER
HUIINEARDREREE -G
NEERTR XM RIZWE DR
BEEESERNIE

— MR RHIR A 3 12860%E 120
Ho

FEBBZEGNEEDEASM
EE REASAEBERHANIE
FEEBRR AMREMRETZ
BAM) BzEEEER-

BB AEFIB I I EE 381K EE o
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BE_Z_=F+"A=+—HIHEE

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

18. MEBEABZER

2023 2022
—E_= B F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Costs of investments in unlisted RIELHEBEREZ

joint ventures KREMA 16 16

Share of post-acquisition profit and DM B R ER] R EM
other comprehensive income EE PN 389,216 392,966
389,232 392,982

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had interests in
the following joint ventures:

RN_E_=FEN_E__F+_
B=+—H &~&EBERUTEE

NEVERET
Proportion of
Form of Principal nominal value
business Country of place of Class of of issued capital Proportion of
Name of entity structure incorporation operation share held held by the Group voting power held Principal activities
AEEAH
B4R E 3 i HARHIER IRERE FiRHER BEfTRAEREL FrsRRELh IBEH
2023 2022 2023 2022
Z¥I=F C3CCF CEISE C3ICE
% % % %
Reliance Partner Incorporated Anquilla Hong Kong Ordinary 50 50 50 50 Investment holding
B3 el &k R RERR
Estate Summit Incorporated British Virgin Hong Kong Ordinary 50 50 50 50 Inactive
Islands ("BVI")
B3 ERELES &k R EE2E
(EREREE)

Aggregate information of joint ventures that are

ERERERZEELTE

not individually material HwEE
2023 2022
—_E-=HF BT THF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
The Group’s share of loss KERD(LEE 3,750 3,750
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19.

20.

M HwRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_Z_—F+-_A=1+—HILEE

INVENTORIES 19. =8

2023 2022

—E-= —ET &

HKS$ HK$

BT BT
Raw materials R A% 15,757,760 24,247,131
Finished goods Sk 9,376,858 12,870,715

25,134,618 37,117,846

During the year ended 31 December 2022, certain finished BE_E-_ "+ -"H=+—H
goods were damaged and as a result, write-down of EFEFEE  BETERRIEIEE
inventories of HK$240,984 has been recognised and included Itk > BERF E 5,240,984 7%
in cost of sales and services. 70 Wi EF A SHE M ARFE A A A o
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR 200 FEZERYE FEWY
SALE/PROPERTIES FOR SALES 3

2023 2022

HK$ HK$

BT BT
Properties under development for sale FEZEERY)E 154,528,634 326,097,115
Properties for sale FEYE 103,930,581 =

258,459,215 326,097,115
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e MR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
F+_A=+T—HLEFE

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR
SALE/PROPERTIES FOR SALES (Continued)

FEERTYE FEY

HK$
BT
At 1 January 2022 W_E - _F—HF—H 198,365,480
Additions nNE 146,930,803
Exchange adjustments BE R FEEE (19,199,168)

At 31 December 2022 WIEZZTHF+ZA=+—H 326,097,115
Additions wE 73,506,479
Disposals HE (132,181,018)
Exchange adjustments BE 2 FEEE (8,963,361)
At 31 December 2023 RIEZ=F+"8=+—H 258,459,215
Analysis of leasehold lands: BELHOIF
HK$
BT
As at 31 December 2023 R-E-=%#+="HB=+—H
Carrying amount REE 93,740,430
As at 31 December 2022 nm-E-—-f#+=-A=+—H
Carrying amount BREE 96,456,622

B £ 3 BY BR [ B DA BR 4 ORL 1
o] Rt i 8 RAE AR BB K5
E-FpEEEESEE LM
PHESHEBE ERIN T

The carrying amount of leasehold lands is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The residual values are determined as the estimated disposal
value of the leasehold land component. No depreciation

charge is made on the leaseholder lands taking into account NI EZZF+ZH
the estimated residual values as at 31 December 2023 and =+—HHMGSRGEE HE

2022. T AFHRITEER
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M HwRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE

20.

TERC=HF+A=+—HLEEE

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR
SALE/PROPERTIES FOR SALES (Continued)

The properties under development for sale of the Group are
situated on the land located in the PRC.

Properties under development for sale include a land
in the PRC owned by BEMHEEMEREBRA
8] (“Zhongging”), a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company with the carrying amount of approximately
HK$37,123,076 (2022: HK$38,198,739).

On 18 June 2014, FRYTHEEBEREEEFRAF
("Zhongxing Guosheng’ ), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and the immediate holding company of Zhongging,
initiated civil proceedings against Zhongging in the F®3IT
BZ&ARZEBR (“People’s Court of Baoan District”) for the
repayment of the shareholder’s loan owing to Zhongxing
Guosheng of RMB23,479,330. On 19 June 2014, pursuant
to an application made by Zhongxing Guosheng to freeze
and preserve assets of Zhongging in the total value of
RMB23,400,000, an order was granted by the People’s Court
of Baoan District to freeze and preserve the lands owned by
Zhongging during the period from 24 June 2014 to 23 June
2016 ("Freeze Order”), aiming to ensure that Zhongging
would have sufficient assets for the repayment of the
shareholder’s loan to the Group.

On 15 October 2014, the Group received the civil mediation
document (REFHEZE) issued by the People’s Court of
Baoan District, acknowledging that (i) both Zhongging and
the Group confirmed the shareholder’s loan was in sum of
RMB23,479,330; (ii) Zhongqing agreed to repay to Zhongxing
Guosheng the sum of RMB23,479,330 together with the
interests accrued from 18 June 2014 until the date of
repayment which was supposed to be within 15 days after the
effective date of the civil mediation document (i.e. 15 October
2016); and (iii) if Zhongging failed to repay the amount stated
in (i) in full on time, the Group had the right to request
Zhongging to pay default interests calculated at two times of
the lending rate of the People’s Bank of China over the same
period.

20.

EXRPVE TEY
¥ (H\E)

FEBZHELZRTYEMAR T
Bz £ ko

FEREOYEQERBEEDT
REREMEREERLAE (M4
Bl ARBZIEZENBRE)
RoREEES 2z TH REENS
37,123,076 8T (T2 "% :
38,198,739%75) °

RNZZE—WEANB+/\H>
Y EFERKREERERA
(T 2B 721&’&ﬂ2%iéw
BABRTBEZEHEERAT)
MEBEEXNTEFRRKREER
AR #623,479,330 AR THE
Ze ANRZR ((BZE ARZE
Bl) B BIREEREETHR N
E—OEXB+AB REFRE
FHBRRAFRENGRETEERS
H AR 23,400,000 02 B E >
BEZEARZERES KN _IE
—OERBZH+ENHE_ZE—/X
FERBZ+= EHHFEE%ND&T%EE\
FEEE T (NRES)) @ §
EHEARTEEBHEEURAE
BEEREEMN

R_E—NOFE+B+HB &xE&E
BWEHELZE ARAPTEH
ZREFABEE  AR)PBRK
SEHEIRRETREHEAA
K #23,479,3307% ; (inHE B A
EWEPEIE%E%:.AAE%
23,479,33070 ERIAH _-Z—M
FRB+/N\BEEEAREAR
ELEMBEERISH BIZZE— X
F+HB+AH) 2EFHHPLER
HFIE ; M) S o B2 B
SHEZB(TEz2FHE BARE
BERERPBELZNERONE
TR EE—ABFPRARET
BRMEZMEBAE -
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M HwRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

]

20.

TR =HF+A=+—HLEEE

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR
SALE/PROPERTIES FOR SALES (Continued)

On 27 May 2016, the Group received the assistance execution
notice (IBBNENITIEENE) issued by the People’s Court of
Baoan District to freeze and preserve the land owned by
Zhongging during the period from 13 June 2016 to 12 June
2019. The period covered by the Freeze Order was further
extended to 12 May 2022 by the People’s Court of Baoan
District on 15 May 2019 and was further extended to 12 May
2025 on 14 April 2022.

On 11 March 2022, the Company announced the intention
to apply to the People’s Court of Baoan District for the
commencement of the compulsory enforcement proceedings
against Zhongging to put the freezed land (the “Land”) for
sale in the judicial auction (the “Compulsory Enforcement”)
through the Online Auction Platform as decided by the
People’'s Court of Baoan District for the sale of the land use
rights of the Land (the “Auction”) in order to settle the
shareholder’s Loan. The Auction will be opened to the public.
In view of the potential development value of the Land, in the
event that there are other bidders in any round of the Auction,
the Group intends to participate in the Auction through the
Group's potential bidder (subject to factors such as the market
condition and the prevailing regulatory regime). The maximum
amount which the Group's Potential Bidder is prepared to
bid at the Auction is RMB30,700,000 (equivalent to HK
$38,068,000) (the “Ceiling”). If the Auction lapses for absence
of bidder, pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations,
Zhongxing Guosheng as the applicant of the Compulsory
Enforcement will have the right to take over the Land to set
off against the shareholder’s Loan with the amount equivalent
to the initial bid price prevailing at the second auction as
stipulated under the relevant PRC laws and regulations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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20.

B =F+_"_B=+—HULtEFE

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR
SALE/PROPERTIES FOR SALES (Continued)

In the event that a bidder other than the Group's potential
bidder offers a price higher than the Ceiling or that the market
condition and/or the relevant regulatory regime has changed
such that it will not be commercially beneficial for the Group’s
potential bidder to acquire the Land, the Group’s potential
bidder will not participate in the Auction or bid further in
the Auction. In such circumstances, Zhongging will then be
obliged to sell the Land to the bidder who offers the highest
price in the Auction and the sale will constitute a disposal
transaction of the Group.

On 15 July 2022 the Compulsory Enforcement was approved
by the shareholders’ of the Company and the Group submitted
the application to the People’s Court of Baoan District to
commence the Company Enforcement in July 2022.

As at 31 December 2023, the People’s Court of Baoan District
has completed all internal verification procedures regarding
the land with various relevant government departments in
Qingyuan, but the auction progress is not yet commenced.

Properties under development for sale/properties for sale with
aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$221,336,139
(2022: HK$287,898,376) have been pledged to a PRC bank to
secure bank borrowings as disclosed in note 28 granted to the
Group.

20.

FEERPME/FEY
X ®

fit 2 5 80 7B 75 3 3% A LUSM B0 7R
BARMEER LIRNER > &
3B R oA B B

EEFEENBEHRRABEL
BN ZAEENEBEERKAGT
S2ERPNBEANHERE—TH
B-RZFBERT HEREE
Bzt MEETFHETHER
SRR A M B ERBR A
EENHERS

R_E__FtA+HH &
HITEEALBREHE MA
EEERNBEZEARARIRHE
EOMUR - E-__FEAEKR
HIBAT 0

RoZB-=#+"A=+—8>
HRE ARZEREHAABERE
BHZEMEBBASBPIEENA
BBERERF BHERRRSG

UM EE28FT I EE - AEEE
FEBREOYE FEYER
H4B(E%9221,336,1398 ¢ (&
T T4 287,898,376 T) BT
F—HEHREIET FIRITERZ
EiRe
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS

21.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e MR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
“EC-F+"A=+—HLEE

B RHEMEURIE TR
NEREDOSHE

2023 2022
—E=F BT THF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Trade receivables B 5 FEWFIE 106,716,136 93,003,027
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (1,089,825) (722,114)
105,626,311 92,280,913
Receivables with brokers’ houses KA ITRE IR FRIE 667,524 2,279,423
Deposits and other receivables & R EMEWRIE 8,405,959 10,017,055
Other tax recoverable Hh e eliR1E 18,571,261 3,947,629
Prepayments FETRIE 9,972,025 13,576,039
143,243,080 122,101,059

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEBEREDINA
Current assets MENEE 138,847,263 116,131,495
Non-current assets EREBNEE 4,395,817 5,969,564
143,243,080 122,101,059

As at 1 January 2022, trade receivables from contracts with
customers amounted to HK$120,349,927.

The Group's credit terms on Manufacturing and Sales Business
and Trading Business generally range from 60 to 90 days.
Credit period of 120 days is granted to a few customers of the
Manufacturing and Sales Business with whom the Group has
a good business relationship and who are in sound financial
condition. The Group allows an average credit period of 60 to
90 days to its customers of Music and Entertainment Business.
The following is an ageing analysis of the trade receivables net
of allowance for credit losses presented based on the invoice
date at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e MR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_Z_=—F+_A=+—HLEFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 21. B REMEWFHRIE-TE
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued) TRIBUREETE (48)

2023 2022

—ET=F BT HF

HKS$ HK$

BT BIT

Manufacturing and Sales Business and U5 K 85 & 2 F5 MU K%

Trading Business: B2ER .
0 — 30 days 0ZE30H 50,287,241 50,200,857
31 - 60 days 31260H 19,316,180 21,552,763
61 — 90 days 61290H 11,166,391 10,240,281
Over 90 days HBBI0H 6,589,418 9,919,140
87,359,230 91,913,041
Music and Entertainment Business: EE Y4
0 — 30 days 0Z30H 404,674 286,382
31 - 60 days 31Z260H 1,921 -
61 — 90 days 61290H - 300
Over 90 days B3890 H 7,665 81,190
414,260 367,872
Property Development Business: MEBRET
0 — 30 days 0ZF30H 17,852,821 -
Total trade receivables B2 R IaAEEE 105,626,311 92,280,913
Trade receivables of approximately HK$5,671,000 (2022: N_E-_=F+_"_HB=+—H">
HK$8,027,000) and HK$501,000 (2022: HK$729,000) were 495,671,000 T (ZE -4 :
denominated in United States dollars (“USD") and Renminbi 8,027,000 7t) &2501,0007& 7T
("RMB"), respectively as at 31 December 2023, the currency (:%::E : 729 0008 7T) 2
other than the functional currency of the respective group BoEWHBEBSRIUET (MTE
entities. EJ)&AEW(U\EM)?\%
fiI %#%%I?F%%Eﬁ%z
INEER 1
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE

21.

TR =HF+A=+—HLEEE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$21,258,572 (2022: HK$30,690,679) which
are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due
balances, HK$2,007,361 (2022: HK$2,567,051) has been
past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default.
With reference to the historical records, past experience and
also available reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information to those customers, the directors of the Company
do not consider these receivables as credit-impaired as these
customers have a good business relationship with the Group
and recurring overdue records of these customers with
satisfactory settlement history.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables and deposits for the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022 are set out in note 38.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e MR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_Z_=—F+_A=+—HLFE

22. LOANS RECEIVABLE 22. EER

2023 2022
—E_= B F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Fixed-rate loans receivable EWEEER 48,285,559 50,283,187
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEREES (540,928) (930,302)
47,744,631 49,352,885

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MBERRDINA -
Current TRE) 29,810,691 33,414,687
Non-current JETRE 17,933,940 15,938,198
47,744,631 49,352,885

The loans receivable has contractual maturity within one to ten
years (2022: within one to six years) as at 31 December 2023.
The average interest rate for the fixed-rate loans receivable
was ranging from 6% to 37% (2022: 13% to 37%) per
annum. Loan receivable with maturity terms over one year are
classified as non-current assets.

There is no loans receivable which past due as at 31 December
2023 and 2022.

Details of impairment assessment of loans receivable for the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are set out in note
38.

R-ZE_=F+Z"F=+—8H"
EWEFTNENINARA—ZF
+ER(ZEZZ I —ERE
M E%%W%ﬁzﬁﬂiﬂ
BNAF6%E3IT% (ZE -
13%iW%)oﬁ%E fﬂxi
ZEBNERBDEAERDE
?Eo

AN BT EENTE I F+ T
B=+—HB HMEREKEZS
HR o

BE_Z =" FT__

+ZB=+—HLEFENEKRE
R BB A B & MIEE38

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE&EEZKARAT | Annual Report 2023 F iR

265



266

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e MBHRRM

ml 3

For the year ended 31 December 2023

]

23.

TR =HF+A=+—HLEEE

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/SHORT-
TERM BANK DEPOSITS/CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Pledged bank deposits amounting to HK$76,274,798 (2022:
HK$60,000,000) carry interest rates with a range from 0.1%
to 5.13% (2022: 0.1% to 4.39%) and represent deposits
pledged to banks to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group as disclosed in note 28 and deposits paid in relation
to the financial guarantee as disclosed in note 39. Out of
these deposits, fixed-rate deposits and variable-rate deposits
amounting to HK$60,000,000 (2022: HK$59,424,321) and
HK$16,274,798 (2022: HK$575,679) respectively. Such
deposits have been pledged to secure short-term bank
borrowings and are therefore classified as current assets.

Short-term bank deposits include bank deposits with original
maturity more than three months. Cash and cash equivalents
include demand deposits and short term deposits with original
maturity less than three months for the purpose of meeting
the Group's short term cash commitments.

As at 31 December 2023, pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and short-term bank deposits of approximately
HK$88,992,000 (2022: HK$91,592,000), HK$2,122,000
(2022: HK$2,170,000), and HK$146,000 (2022:
HK$2,625,000) were denominated in USD, HK$ and RMB
respectively, the currencies other than the functional currency
of the respective group entities.

Furthermore, included in the short-term bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents are amounts denominated in RMB
of HK$49,667,717 (2022: HK$22,615,645), which are not
freely convertible into other currencies.

The bank balances and short-term bank deposits carry interest
rates with a range from 0.1% to 5.3% (2022: 0.1% to
4.87%) per annum.
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23.

24,

TERC=HF+A=+—HLEEE

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/SHORT-

TERM BANK DEPOSITS/CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

Details of impairment assessment of short-term bank deposits

and cash and cash equivalents for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022 are set out in note 38.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

23.

24,

BIRRITER G HALR
TERRERREEE
(48)
BHE_ZE_ZEN"ZETE "
‘f’ A=+—HLEFENFRHIR

TERURREERIFEZFEBR
Téuﬂéﬁla EICHMI5E38

B2 KREMEMRIBEUKR
,EE'l'mAIE
MTFARBRERRBHEEZEH

HIZ2EZRENRIENKRE D
#r e

2023 2022
—E=F BT THF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
0 — 30 days 0&30H 45,979,952 41,536,006
31 - 60 days 31&260H 6,864,442 10,502,193
61 — 90 days 61290H 2,697,564 2,774,078
Over 90 days #B4890H 1,989,695 1,294,405
57,531,653 56,106,682

Accrued construction costs for properties FEstH = E S ERY)E >
under development for sale BE A 34,463,294 50,351,981
Accrued expenses and other payables  FE&tBE Sz K E fth FE S F0 18 32,690,772 31,958,861
124,685,719 138,417,524

The credit period ranges from 90 days to 120 days. The Group
has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that
all payables are within the credit timeframe.

Trade and other payables of approximately HK$4,285,000
(2022: HK$4,894,000) were denominated in RMB as at 31
December 2023, the currencies other than the functional
currency of the respective group entities.

SESHNFIOHE120H & &E
BEEGERFRBEREEE MU
MRFTE B IER AL (T o

N_E_=F+"FA=+—8H>
A8#94,285,0008 T (ZE ==
F 14,894,000 7w) 2B MEH

Tﬁﬁ’éﬁﬁlﬁb{kﬁ stHE AR
ERSEENEEERZINER
W o
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in e MR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_Z-_=F+"A=t+—HIEE

25. LEASE LIABILITIES 25. HHE&E
2023 2022
== TECF
HKS$ HK$
BT BIT
Lease liabilities payable: FENHEEAE
Within one year R—FEA 12,532,717 12,996,178
Within a period of more than one year BB —SE BB
but not more than two years YR RS 9 8,170,562 12,991,005
Within a period of more than two BEmEERBE
years but not more than five years HEMERBE R 3,008,748 10,842,510
Within a period of more than BEAFNRBER
five years 29,661,011 30,868,418
53,373,038 67,698,111
Less: Amount due for settlement B RAREAaEE TR
with 12 months shown 12{EB WEIFAEER
under current liabilities I (12,532,717) (12,996,178)
Amount due for settlement after RIERBEEE T RN
12 months shown under non-current  121E B % B A& E 1A
liabilities 40,840,321 54,701,933
Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies other VIR EE S ENINEES I 2 40
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are MNEKAAENHEEEEHNT
set out below: X .
2023 2022
T = T &
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Denominated in HK$ against RMB MATRARESE 34,614,000 35,227,000
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to THEaERMNNINEESZEE
lease liabilities range from 2.98% to 5.88% (2022: from 2.2% FHEANF298%EFE5.88% (ZF
t0 5.38%). T THF 122%%E538%) °
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in e MR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_Z_=—F+_A=+—HLFE

26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES B8R

2023 2022

—E_= B F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Contract liabilities from Trading Business 2R B B 5 (BN AN AE 319,549 758,859
Contract liabilities from Music and RE BB IR BEZETE

Entertainment Business NEHaRE 1,172,467 1,538,219
Contract liabilities from Manufacturing 2k B85 R 4 E 2575

and Sales Business HNEaNa’E 5,021,550 6,501,189

Contract liabilities from Property REVMEERET
Development Business HNEHNEaR 29,424,235 =
35,937,801 8,798,267

As at 1 January 2022, the carrying amount of contract
liabilities was HK$8,576,969.

Contract liabilities are classified as current liabilities because
the Group expects to settle them within 12 months after the
end of the reporting period.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

When the Group receives a deposit before the printing
products delivery, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the
start of a contract, until the revenue recognised on the specific
contract exceeds the amount of the deposit. The Group
receives a 10% to 30% deposit on acceptance of orders for
trading of printing products from certain customers.

When the Group receives a deposit before the completion of
concert and show, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the
start of a contract, until the revenue recognised on the specific
contract exceeds the amount of the deposit. The Group
receives a 10% to 30% deposit on from certain customers
when the contract for concert and show signed.

/\\: = ——E E El ’ ] r\/j
BV ERE 878,576,969/ 7T ©

sHaEnE Eﬁ/)lb@j%f » JRA
%K%l%ﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁiﬁ}%XféJr:
BEAEBNENER.

HERISENaESHRELRE
By — AR ST (T RFRE0 T

B AREE R ENR E A T IRl
S AR EaNHERESE
BHNEE BEENMIEETANRER
NN HBBEIEEEE o ZK%ITJA
BETERWIENRERE
BRERWEN0%E30%ME]E

EAEENERSNRETME]
WEIZTE » Bl Y & 4B tA B
EEXeNat EEMETEEY
BRANWGEBEIEEE AE
BREEZMRENGHREE
REETERWEI0%E30%H
HEA
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BEZE=F+"_A=+—HIEFE
26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 26. §HEaE @)
When the Group receives a deposit before the manufacturing EAREFRIEHRE RBEBR
of printing product commences, this will give rise to contract WHTE Bl bR &6
liabilities at the start of a contract, until the revenue recognised EXSaE BEEMIEESN
on the relevant contract exceeds the amount of the deposit. BN EBRs I E KE
The Group receives a 10% to 50% deposit on acceptance of BERraErFEapla8iEsTER
manufacturing orders from certain customers. UZER10% E50%H95] % ©
When the Group generally receives a 20% to 30% as SAREE-NEZLTYEHE
deposit upon signing the sales and purchase agreement with S EEEEBIWENR20%E30%
customers for the properties selling and further receives the HeTER N ERIBEFTZTY
remaining sales consideration when the mortgage loans B ME—FTWEEG FHHENR
were granted to the property purchasers, this will result in B HERENAERNEEY
contract liabilities being recognised throughout the property %L;\_Hﬂ B Esl BEE2RF
construction period until the customer obtains control of EEOCERSEYENITH|FEo
the completed properties for sale. During the year ended R_E_=#+"FB=+—HLt
31 December 2023, the Group commenced the pre-sales FEH> AEBEBHBHE 200
for the properties under development for sale/properties for WEFEXERYE 1FEY
sale as disclosed in note 20 and therefore certain deposits XETEE FItEem &2 =
were received from the customers in respect of the sales and E—f— B=+—H%E:IZzE851%
purchase agreement signed as at 31 December 2023 which EORPWEE TS HESR
caused the significant increase in contract liabilities. S4B EREEEe
The following table shows how much of the revenue TRIRNPEREERINK DS
recognised in the current year relates to carried-forward B NEESNEE
contract liabilities.
HK$
BT
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE_E_=F+"HA=+—HLEE
Revenue recognised that was included SFAFE SN B BEAEERRY
in the contract liabilities balance at the [
beginning of the year 8,798,267
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE_ZT-__F+HA=+—HLEE
Revenue recognised that was included ARV EHNaEERN
in the contract liabilities balance BRI W
at the beginning of the year 8,576,969
27. AMOUNT DUE TO A NON-CONTROLLING 27. BfI—RMBAT—%IE

SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY

The amount is unsecured,
demand.

interest-free and repayable on
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE

28.

TERC=HF+A=+—HLEEE

BANK BORROWINGS

28. IRITEEH

2023 2022
—E-= TECF
HKS$ HK$
BT BIT
Secured bank borrowings BIRRIR1TEE 93,548,550 111,214,278
The carrying amount of bank FEERIBITEEZER
borrowings are repayable*: HE*:
— Within one year ——FR 54,179,186 54,816,125
— Within a period of more than —BE—FENBE
one year but not exceeding RV EAE A
two years 9,037,179 6,282,700
— Within a period of more than — BB M EERBE
two years but not exceeding HENHAREA
five years 20,393,625 38,821,637
— Over five years —BiRAF 9,938,560 11,293,816
93,548,550 111,214,278
Less: Amounts due within one year B R—EARE IR
or contains a repayment on EREEBRR
demand clause shown under (RReaf‘ET
current liabilities FIR) 2 %8 (70,338,782) (72,730,973)
Amounts shown under non-current RIERESHBEE T
liabilities Z&%R 23,209,768 38,483,305
* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set * IR IBIR B AR P & T EI(E

out in the loan agreements.

As at 31 December 2023, the bank borrowings of
HK$68,380,802 (2022: HK$68,203,525) are secured and
carry interest at HIBOR plus 1.25% to 2.5% (2022: 1.25%
to 2.25%) per annum. Such bank borrowings contain a
repayment on demand clause. As at 31 December 2023,
the secured bank borrowings are secured by the pledged
assets as disclosed in note 15 or pledged bank deposits of
HK$60,000,000 (2022: HK$60,000,000) as disclosed in note
23.

BHREE -

i

F+ZRA=+—8"

68,380,8028 7 (ZE - " & :
68,203,525%87T) ZiRITEEA
BEEEREEBRTRAERE

M1.25%F2.5% (ZE_-—

1.25%%2.2

59%) > R EEHE o

uz—frﬁﬁfﬂﬁfé@ﬁ?ﬁgﬁ BB
i __fE—l— A=+—

EI  BEHRIRIRITEE

ERMEE153

BB EEINF23IREZ

BEERIRTT

7Z7%60,000,000& 7T

(_%f::ﬁ : 60,000,000 7T)

fEIE IR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

BH=E

28.

29.

B+ HA=+—HI=FE

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, bank borrowing of HK$25,167,748
(2022: HK$43,010,753) carry fixed interest at 5.98% per
annum (2022: 5.98% per annum) are secured by the
properties under development for sale of HK$221,336,139
(2022: HK$287,898,376) as disclosed in note 20 and
guaranteed by Mr. Suek Ka Lun, Ernie, who is a director of the
Company. Out of these bank borrowings, the bank borrowings
of HK$23,209,768 (2022: HK$38,483,305) are repayable one
year after the end of the reporting period and classified as
non-current liabilities.

DEFERRED TAX

For the purpose of presentation of the consolidated financial
statements, certain deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis for
reporting propose:

28.

29.

RITEE (B

N _E_=ZFE+__B=+—H>
25,167,7488B Tt (ZE - _F :
43,010,753% 7T) #E T F F
FT598% (CE-_F . F£FI=X
5.98%) st R ZIRITEEHM T
20888 2 221,336,139 1 (=
T T4 :287,898,3768 ) HE
ERDYEFBRFTIRANEE
EEEBITLEETER ZEIR
TfEEH 23,209,768 (Z&
T 138,483,305 7T) sRITE
BEERREBEREN —FRE
BN BEAIERBAE.

MBREEHMBRERMS & T
RIEM IR E B NRIER T & J K
BHEE - UTHHERSAEND
#r

2023 2022

—=E-= BT THF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Deferred tax assets RIERIBE E 12,661,692 13,971,096

Deferred tax liabilities EIERIBEE (14,606,063) (7,245,075)
(1,944,371) 6,726,021
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE

29.

TERC=HF+A=+—HLEEE

DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 29. RERIE (BB)
The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets MWTRARKRKEENBEEERESS
recognised and movements thereon during the current year ZEEIFRIERIE (BB BEEUN
and prior years: Higrs .
ECL on
financial
Accelerated assets and
tax Tax contract Lease Right-of
depreciation losses assets liabilities  -use assets Others Total
SREER
BHEEZ
MERHITE nEeE BREESE HERE FREZE Hitr b
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT B B BT B B
(Note)
Wiz
At 1 January 2022 “Z-"#-FA-H (5,365,186) 10,660,000 243,306 - - (4,639,716) 898,404
Adjustment (note 2) ﬁ% Wz22) - - - 10375010  (10,375,010) = =
At 1 January 2022 (restated) RZEZZF—F—H
(&=7) (5365,186) 10,660,000 243306 10375010 (103750100  (4,639,716) 898,404
Credit (charge) to profit or BAUIB) AEEBH
loss for the year 63,319 3,093,473 91,946 2,243,357 (2,243,357) 785,302 4,034,040
Disposal through disposal of ~ BBEE—EHBATZ
a subsidiary (note 31) HE (Hit31) 1,500,741 - - - - - 1,500,741
Exchange adjustments ERHEE 108,256 - - - - 184,580 292,836
At 31 December 2022 (restated) R T _F
+ZB=1—H (€5 (3,692,870) 13,753,473 335,252 12,618,367  (12,618,367) (3,669,834) 6,726,021
(Charge) credit to profit or (ne) BALFRR
loss for the year (168,868) - 79,032 (3,173,685) 3,173,685 1,080,233 990,397
Charge to other comprehensive 1 BAEEM2FEKRA
income for the year - - - - - (9,628,046) (9,628,046)
Exchange adjustments ERREE 33,742 (82,369) (3,060) = = 18,943 (32,743)
At 31 December 2023 RIZZ=F&
+-B=+—-H (3,827,996) 13,671,105 411,224 9,444,682 (9,444,682)  (12,198,704) (1,944,371)
Note: As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the deferred tax liabilities Miat. MIBE =T -__F+=

“others” are arising from the revaluation of investment
properties upon change of use of certain premises from
owner-occupation to leasing out for rental income, the change
in fair value of the investment properties and the temporary
difference arising from the revenue recognised over time
from manufacturing and sales of printing products for PRC
subsidiaries under HKFRS 15.

A=+—H  EERBEEEHA)
DRETYXNRZHERES
HAEUBEESWAREREY
FETEARELE MREYE
NP EESHREFZERBES
B BREERE15REE B
FE S8 2R B P B Y B A S ENRRI 2 f
SUE N IHERN W R EL -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

]

29.

TR =HF+A=+—HLEEE

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has estimated unused
tax losses of approximately HK$601,824,000 (2022:
HK$509,601,000) available to offset against future profits.
As at 31 December 2023, a deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the tax losses of approximately
HK$82,855,000 (2022: HK$83,354,000). No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses
of HK$518,969,000 (2022: HK$426,247,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in unused tax
losses of HK$43,690,000 (2022: HK$9,620,000) that can be
carried forward for five years from the year in which the losses
arose. Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred tax has
not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of temporary differences attributable to retained
profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately
HK$28,311,000 (2022: HK$55,174,000) as the Group is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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A _E_=F+"B=+—
H o 25 B of 1§ 88 & 2K im F
2@%%@%%?%@7%
601,824,000/ (ZE - "4 :
509,601,000 7T) R _ZE =
FE+-_RA=+—H &xEEBE
A 84982,855,0008 T (=
— 1 :83,354,000%T) 21
BEEERIELEREEE -BR
?ELX]V’E Jﬂ’ij{ %lJ/}ILE fﬂ]ﬁjﬁi
ThH R 75 E518518,969,0008
TT(ZT - "4 426,247,000
/%TE)EEDMLL*RIEEE D-I—A
RENHMIER B 243,690,000
BT (ZE "4 :9,620,000%
EWW%%EFEEfimEE
o HfhE5 18 0] (R R 45 &

R P ERERZE DEM
BATH_ZZTN\E—H—HQiE
BEE 2 HA Bk ZBe B BB MmTE
R o R FL A B AT 25 ) o B B
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B0 BEBREZHEAK
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_Z_=—F+_A=+—HLFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. fgZs
Number of shares HK$
Shares of HK$0.01 each E=R0.01BTHRG Rin &8 BT
Authorised: AR
At 1 January 2022, RZZ2ZZHF—H—8-
31 December 2022 and 2023 BT THER
BT =4F
+ZBA=+—H 50,000,000,000 500,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BRTREE
At 1 January 2022 W_E2__F#£—HF—H 253,639,456 2,536,395
Shares repurchased (note) BRI (H52) (280,000) (2,800)
At 31 December 2022 and 2023 RE__FK_ZT_=
+-B=+—H 253,359,456 2,533,595
Note: On 14 October 2022 and 17 October 2022, the Company has W RZEZ_F+A+mHAMAZTE

repurchased 100,000 shares at consideration of HK$0.3575
and HK$0.36 per share respectively with aggregate
consideration of HK$100,550. The aggregate par value of the
respective shares was approximately HK$2,800. The difference
of approximately HK$97,750 between the aggregate
consideration and the aggregate par value of the shares have
been debited to share premium.

31. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 21 October 2021, Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
("Chung Tai Printing”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a provisional sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party pursuant to which
Chung Tai Printing conditionally agreed to sell the entire issued
share capital of Profit Link which owned the properties located
in Fanling, at an initial purchase price of HK$231,000,000 (the
“Disposal”). On 7 January 2022, the Disposal was approved by
the shareholders in the special general meeting. On 28 January
2022, the Disposal was completed upon both parties have
satisfied all conditions under the provisional sale and purchase
agreement and Chung Tai Printing ceased to have control
over Profit Link since then. The net consideration received was
HK$226,710,393 after deducting those legal and professional
fee directly attributable to the Disposal with an amount of
HK$4,289,607.

31.

ZZE+A+EH ARTERA
MR EBER0.35758 T %0.3638
TCEE[E]100,000/% 8819 - A BAL4E
#100,5508 7L BRAK M 2 EE
KAEBX 72,8008 T o A {BAREE A
R EEAREER 2 = 884V97,750
BB ARMDEE

HE—RWEQE

A _E_—F+HB_-_+—H %
AKEIRIEBEBR AT (T KED
Rl AT ZE2ENBAT) &
Z%_L% Euj—iﬁuuﬂ%,\,\bﬂmﬁz’
Bt P AEHIREREREHE
R (BEEEMURDENYE) 19
E2MEBTRE ITBEES
231,000,000 7T (THEEIE]) °
RZE_—_F—BtH RER
Hy%frT%IJj(AJ:%tt)&ﬁ’%%IEo
RIEZZF—HB=Z+/\H>
,\\’JRH%EZﬁuuB%E\ETmD&IE_FFﬁ
BB HEFEESREM
Bt KRB ABHEEHF K
MG KNG EEER B
RHESEZ IR REXER
4,289,6078c1& B EFRE
#226,710,3934E T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

B+ HA=+—HI=FE

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued) 31. HE—RMBAT ()
HK$
BT
Net assets disposed of: BHEEESRE:
Property, plant and equipment ME--BERZE 13,669,265
Investment properties KEYE 137,357,335
Other receivables HhpEug s 500,013
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESEE 396,787
Accruals FEETFRIA (153,882)
Deferred tax liabilities RILRIBEE (1,500,741)
150,268,777
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—BRBAR Z W -
Consideration RE 226,710,393
Net assets disposed of BHEEEZFE (150,268,777)

76,441,616

Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEELZIRERATEE .
Consideration KB 226,710,393
Less: bank balances disposed of B BEHEIRTTAERR (396,787)
226,313,606

— ==

During the period from 1 January 2022 to 28 January 2022,
Profit Link did not contribute any profit or loss or incur any
operating cash flows to the Group.

S e

F—B—HEEZE_Z

“THF—RBZ+/\BLLHEREF
R EHRAREBRE R Em

EERAEERTRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE

32.

TERC=HF+A=+—HLEEE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 16 June 2023, a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme™) was approved by shareholders of the Company and
adopted by the Company replacing the share option scheme
adopted since 13 February 2014. Unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, the Share Option Scheme will remain in force until
19 June 2033, being 10 years after the date of its adoption.

The purposes of the Share Option Scheme are to enable the
Company to grant options to eligible participants as incentives
or rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to
the growth and development of Group and/or to enable the
Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract
human resources that are valuable to the Group.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the directors of the Company
may grant options to eligible employees, including directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares of the
Company. Additionally, the Company may, from time to time,
grant share options to certain external service providers. Details
of the Share Option Scheme are disclosed in the directors’
report of this annual report.

No share options have been granted since the adoption of the
Share Option Scheme.

32.

iz {5 HATE 5t &l

A B =ZFEXA+AB &
NEREHIE—TER D EARESTE
(TR P HAREETE)) » MAHARE]
R UK BE S —NWE " H
+ = BEERM R RSt o
BRIESITEUBSIER] > IRy HRHE
HEE—EERNE_E=Z=FX
B+ B BB E+F-

RipHAES 8 EERE QR A D
CERSEEREBRE (S
REHEERERRNERFHE
PASBE RN RY IR S AR R - K
SREREERERRIREES
BE  WRENAERNLEAE
KREBRBEBEZANTER

WRERDAESE xR ES
ARcEREERLBRE &
%K VEINRERBATRNES

LUSBEBAABBERAD o b oh > &<

NE] R A AE TR AR 5 B 1
ERGEBRE - BREARKROAES
FNFBEREERNEFTERS
TR EE o

BRI 8IS
RHEERE -

B &
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

BH=E

33.

34.

TR =HF+A=+—HLEEE

OPERATING LEASING ARRANGEMENTS 33.

The Group as lessor

All of the Group’s properties held for rental purposes have
committed tenants for the next one to four years (2022: one
to three years). At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has contracted with tenants for the future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of
rented premises which fall due as follows:

Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as

follows:

mEHEZH
FEBEMER/EEA

rEBFFEFRFHERBBRZYE
RAR—ENFE (CE"F 1 —
E=F) HBEATEME - NS H
Ko AEBEBRITN BHE
YR Z ARG EHER T
HAR ZI B AR 2 R R R R B
THWE ¢

BHE T Z KRR EWEERIA
mE

2023 2022
—g=-= —Eo—F
HK$ HK$
AT BT
Within one year —FR 5,287,288 1,836,800
In the second year FE 7,536,014 -
In the third year E=F 6,224,014 =
In the fourth year FEMF 4,570,015 -
In the fifth year BHE 767,763 -
24,385,094 1,836,800
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 34, BEXREIE
2023 2022
—E=F BT TF
HK$ HK$
T =
Capital expenditure contracted for but FLIUTFERIEEITHER
not provided in the consolidated TReMBHRERTF
financial statements in respect of: FHEEHB 2 BARY !
— acquisition of property, plant and —BEME -BEX
equipment Baia] 347,267 960,583
— construction cost for properties —SEHRERYES
under development for sale BEM A 150,063,225 176,276,366
150,410,492 177,236,949
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BE

35.

B =F+_"_B=+—HULtEFE

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme
which is registered under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance (the ORSO Scheme) and the MPF Scheme
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of trustees. Employees who were members of the
ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the MPF Scheme
were offered a choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme or
switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees
joining the Group on or after 1 December 2000 are required to
join the MPF Scheme.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the plan
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a monthly
cap of HK$1,500.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions
from both employees and the Group at a rate of 5% of the
employee’s basic salary, depending on the length of service
with the Group.

The employees of the Group'’s subsidiaries in PRC are members
of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by
the local municipal government of Shenzhen. The subsidiary
is required to contribute 5% of payroll costs to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, there were no significant
forfeited contributions which arose upon employees leaving
the schemes before they are fully vested in the contributions
and which are available to reduce the contributions payable by
the Group in the future.

The total expenses recognised in profit or loss of
HK$12,143,621(2022: HK$12,857,395) represent
contributions payable to these plans by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the plans.
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE2EEZERBRAE | Annual Report 2023 F iR

Save as disclosed elsewhere of the consolidated
financial statements, the Group has entered into
significant transactions between related parties and

36.

REALXS
() BESHBRREMMNS

PTIREEIN  AEEBH
K TE%@)\:tX’zBﬁ):“

subsidiaries of the Company as follows: ET Y ELAR
2023 2022
—E-= B CHFE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Rental income (Note) WA (11:2) 1,312,000 -
Finance costs (Note) BMEMA (1732) - 19,737

Note: The transactions were carried out with the related
companies which are controlled by a family member
of Mr. Suek Ka Lun, Ernie.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of

et ZERFTHHEMERERT
EZ—BHKEREZEGZ
REABETT

(b) FEEIEABZIRM
UTHEENHEMEEE

key management during the year was as follows: BAEBRERNZFHM :
2023 2022
—g-= B F
HK$ HK$
AT ATT
Short-term benefits ZHAER 8,754,000 6,887,500
Post-employment benefits BEE 2R A 90,000 90,000
8,844,000 6,977,500

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

EENFTETHABZF
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38.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. EXRABERE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the REEBSEEEANUBREAER
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while ETEEREHERE  BREE
maximising the return to owners through the optimisation of BHEFRENEE M ER T
the debt and equity balance. =ERSEEARK.
The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which NKEFB ZEAEEREIE (8
includes amount due to a related company and bank W27 280 BB 21—
borrowings as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 disclosed in g~ = —E"_F+°H
notes 27 and 28, respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents —+—HZEMN—ERAEQATN
and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising BENETEE NEGESsNIRS
share capital and reserves. ZE) MARBEE ABLER
(BIFER A K Rt ) AR K
The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on AEBCEBBEHEMTE AN
a continuous basis taking into account the cost of capital and B ERZEBELRARANNEE
the risk associated with the capital. The Group will balance its ZNFE B8 2 B [ o AN EE [ S S i 38
overall capital structure through new share issues, repurchase TR B RETHED
of shares and the issue of new debt or the redemption of the BEBoIRAaEIE L HEREE AL
existing debt. 1% o
The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior NEE 7 HRERKRE FFEEHES
year. Riho
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 38. EfMTH
Categories of financial instruments ST AR
2023 2022
—EC-=H t- St - S
HKS$ HK$
BT BIT
Financial assets EREE
Equity instruments at FVTOCI FEEEHMEE AR
NFEIFRZERATA 22,193,495 22,285,289
Financial assets at FVTPL FBEmERAFEYER
ZERMEE 15,770,920 17,375,128
Financial assets at amortised cost R AT 2
ZEMEE 358,510,168 354,824,287
Financial liabilities o 3=RE
Amortised cost LA 232,209,961 262,220,452
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38.

B+ HA=+—HI=FE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include equity
instruments at FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL, trade and
other receivables and deposits, loans receivable, pledged bank
deposits, short-term bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other payables and accruals, amount due to a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, bank borrowings and
lease liabilities. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (interest rate risk,
currency risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The directors of the Company manage and monitor these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose the Group
to foreign currency risk. In addition, certain trade
receivables, bank balances, short-term bank deposits,
trade payables and lease liabilities of the Group are
denominated in RMB, USD and HK$, the currencies
other than the functional currency of the respective
group entities as disclosed in notes 21, 23, 24 and 25
respectively.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, directors of the Company
monitor foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &I A (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies MEEREIEEERBE (B
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) 5 R g (48)
() Currency risk (Continued) ()  EEEEE
The Group's intra-group balances do not form part of NEBEBBESGIER
the net investment in foreign operations. The carrying BINEFEBREN—IF
amounts of the foreign currency denominated intra- DB ETERSHR
group balances which have been eliminated in the AT AREAINEN
consolidated financial statements of certain subsidiaries EHNETHRB AT
of which the functional currency is HK$ and RMB at the &R R G E A LN
end of the reporting period are as follows: Bt ENEERAERNER
HEWT :
2023 2022
—_E-=HF =2 HF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Net amounts due (to) from (FET) B ABI R AR
companies denominated in RATTEHENFEMIE
RMB against HK$ (21,238,434) 16,124,959
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency RNEB DN EEZERE
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities BEMEMBENRRSH
at the end of the reporting period are approximately as KZBANBREmESEINUWT
follows:
Lease liabilities Monetary assets Monetary liabilities
HEAR EREE akaf
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ZEZ= “E-"F IZBCZZ g ZBZ= ZEICE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
AT BT AT BT AT BT

USD against HK$  ExRABTT - - 94,663,000 99,619,000 - =
HKS$ against RMB BT R AR 34,614,000 35227,000 2,122,000 2,170,000 = =
RMB against HK§  ARHBRET = = 647,000 3,354,000 4,285,000 4,894,000
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &R TH (88)
Financial risk management objectives and policies HEEEEIEBIEREE (B
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) 45 b (48)
() Currency risk (Continued) ()  EEEE G
Sensitivity analysis BURE D i
Since the exchange rate of HK$ is pegged with USD, e T BB X HE & T i
the Group does not expect any significant movements o REBEEHET B
in the USD/HK$ exchange rates. T BEEAGHIREME
K& o
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a TRFVE—YH MO &
10% (2022: 10%) increase and decrease in functional EALAEHNER T AE
currency of respective group entity against relevant HERNEBESE 2INEE
foreign currencies (other than USD) and all other S FRAINE CRETE
variables were held constant 10% (2022: 10%) is the E7t) AENREEI1I0% (Z
sensitivity rate used and represents management's BT "F110%) 28R
assessment of the reasonably possible change in EoFTAMRELEERA10%
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes (ZE-"F:10%) * 4
only outstanding foreign currency denominated EIREBFATT(EEXROAE
monetary items, and adjusts their translation at the W E5EBEHF  BEHE D
end of the reporting period for a 10% (2022: 10%) MEREFELUINESEZ R
change in foreign currency rates. A positive number BEE®IED THEXR
below indicates an increase in post-tax loss for the HIR10% (ZE - :
year where functional currency of respective group 10%) BEFERHZENIR
entity strengthen 10% (2022: 10%) against foreign LSHRkZBE S T X
currencies. For a 10% (2022: 10%) weakening of FTRMREEERE R
functional currency of respective group entity against ZIHWEEE R N H (5
foreign currencies, there would be an equal and 10% (ZEZ-Z"F :10%)
opposite impact on the result for the year. ZERT  AERRES
BHE PTG o e @ 7 &
ERZEE KR INE

EEI10% (ZEZ &
10%) @ B R EZEEHF A
EI#MIEERERZFZE-

Impact of Impact of
HK$ RMB
BRTZRE AR ZHE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
2023 —E-=
Decrease in loss for the year FEEBERLD (2,713,000) (2,077,000)
2022 B HF
(Decrease) increase in loss FEEEE () 1M
for the year (2,760,000) 1,218,000
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38.

=

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
primarily relates to variable-rate pledged bank deposits,
variable-rate short-term bank deposits, bank balances
and variable-rate bank borrowings as at 31 December
2023 and 2022. The Group is also exposed to fair
value interest rate risk relates primarily to the fixed-
rate loans receivable, fixed-rate pledged bank deposits,
fixed-rate bank borrowings and lease liabilities as at 31
December 2023 and 2022. The Group has not used any
derivative instruments in order to mitigate its exposure
associated with fluctuations relating to interest cash
flows. However, the directors of the Company monitor
interest rate exposure and will consider other necessary
actions when significant interest rate exposure is
anticipated.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. £RITH (&
Financial risk management objectives and policies HEEEEIEEIERBE (8)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) B 5 RE (4)
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued) (i)  FIEEE (&)
Total interest revenue/income from financial assets that NEE_E_=FN_
are measured at amortised cost during the years ended —_—_&F#+“-H=+—H JJ:
31 December 2023 and 2022 is as follows: R K S B A 5t
EZEMEEZME NG
S WRAKBEEINE ¢
2023 2022
—E-= s T
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Interest revenue =g
Financial assets at HEIHR AT E Y
amortised cost EREE 5,672,580 3,784,531
Other income Eu A
Financial assets at BEHR AT EZ
amortised cost THEE 6,000,913 1,097,425
Total interest income FMEUWA4EZE 11,673,493 4,881,956
Interest expense on financial liabilities not measured N _E =N _E
at FVTPL during 31 December 2023 and 2022 is as F+-_HB=+—H W3
follows: FREBEGEATESEZ
THEENERXZ
2023 2022
—E= BT HF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial liabilities at BEHR AT EZ
amortised cost THEE 4,188,174 1,548,381
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TECEHFFRA=T—HLEEFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The management of the Group considers that the
Group's exposure to future cash flow risk on variable-
rate bank balances and pledged bank deposits as
a result of the change of market interest rate is
insignificant and thus variable-rate bank balances
and pledged bank deposits are not included in the
sensitivity analysis.

The impact on the Group's cash flow is due in part
to its sensitivity to interest rate which has been
determined based on the exposure to the variable-
rate short-term bank deposits and bank borrowings.
The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of
asset outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis
points increase or decrease is used which represents
management’s assessment of the reasonable possible
change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2022: 50
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the year
would increase/decrease by approximately HK$201,000
(2022: HK$220,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group's exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate
short-term bank deposits and bank borrowings.
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j#nl&ﬁgiia*%&ﬁk (n‘E)
5 R g (48)

(ii) KRSz (&)
BREDH
AEBEBEERA &
BRATSNZEEMLF
BHR1THEGNEERET
EREAZZRKIBEME

R BE R > HIE > ¥ BIRTT
,‘Da%);ze 5 HER1T 7R
RNEFEEBREDTA -

HAEERTREBEMAY
TELORBANRERFE
ZHRERE 2B RE
TWRBPRA R 2 ¥ B2 5
%Eﬁﬁ?}\&fﬁﬁfﬁféﬂﬁA

MEE > Z DM THIRRK
%E%/HHEEHEE%&ZQJXBE

BERBEFETAKRER
M1 H o Fr# B Z 5018 &
B EREE D EEERTET
A RAJEHRZ A EE
o

WHZE EFH FES0EE
B(ZEZ_F . 50@E
By) > MFr A H fih o] # X

A8 AEBEXF B
ﬁ%fﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ—ri‘m/ﬁ’)\“
201,0008 T (& -

220,000 7T) ° ﬁ%ﬁﬁm
FTERBEAEEMRTERE
BRI NMIRTTEERT

A 7 H)E G s o

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE&EEZKARAT | Annual Report 2023 F iR

287



288

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MR R M 5L

A

ml 3

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B CHF+"A=T—HLEEE

BE

38.

==

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(iir)

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE2EEZERBRAE | Annual Report 2023 F iR

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk in respect of listed
equity investments in Hong Kong and unlisted equity
investments in Hong Kong and PRC as at 31 December
2023 and 2022.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses on listed equity investments
in Hong Kong during the year have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the end
of the reporting period. For sensitivity analysis purpose,
the sensitivity rate considers at 10% in the current
year. If the prices of the respective equity instruments
had been 10% higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for
the year would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$1,317,000 (2022: HK$1,451,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of held-for-trading investments.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables and deposits, contract assets, loans
receivable, pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits,
bank balances and financial guarantee contracts as at 31
December 2023 and 2022.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is the carrying amounts of the respective
recognised financial assets and financial guarantee contracts
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with its
financial assets, except that the credit risks associated with
loans receivable is mitigated because they are secured over
properties located in Hong Kong.

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from
contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of the
Company have delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits and credit approvals. Before accepting any
new customer, the Group uses an internal credit rating system
to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Except for (i) debtors who are credit-
impaired; and (i) customers with outstanding significant
balances exceeding HK$2,500,000 and relevant contract
assets; which are assessed for impairment individually, the
remaining trade receivables and contract assets are grouped
into four internal credit rating buckets (namely: low risk,
medium risk, high risk and doubtful) based on shared credit
risk characteristics by reference to repayment histories for
recurring customers and current past due exposure for the
new customers. The contract assets have substantially the
same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the same
type of contracts. Limits and scoring attributed to customers
are reviewed twice a year. Other monitoring procedures are
in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from
contracts with customers (Continued)

Net impairment loss allowance of HK$380,190 (2022: net
reversal of impairment loss allowance of HK$85,753) and
HK$354,813 (2022: net reversal of impairment loss allowance
of HK$269,264) have been recognised in respect of trade
receivables and contract assets, respectively, during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Loans receivable

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of the
Company have delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, interest rate offered to customers and
collaterals received. Monitoring procedures are in place to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
The Group has concentration of credit risk as 53% (2022:
61%) of the total loans receivable was due from three (2022:
four) independent third parties of total of approximately
HK$25,402,000 (2022: HK$30,843,000). Loans receivable are
assessed individually.

The directors of the Company estimate the estimated loss rates
of loans receivable based on historical credit loss experience of
the debtors as well as the fair value of the collateral pledged
by the customers to the loans receivable. For those loans
receivable secured by properties located in Hong Kong with
aggregate amount of HK$29,171,479 (2022: HK$31,601,091),
the directors of the Company considered the credit risk is low
in view of the fair value of the collaterals are higher than the
carrying amounts of the respective loans receivable. The Group
has not recognised a loss allowance for the loans receivable as
a result of these collaterals.

Gross carrying amount of loans receivable amounting to
HK$15,600,000 (2022: HK$15,600,000) as at 31 December
2023, which is secured by the entire issued share capital
and guaranteed by the shareholder of the borrower. The
Group has recognised net reversal of impairment allowance
of HK$338,520 (2022: net impairment allowance of
HK$780,000) during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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38.

B =F+_"_B=+—HULtEFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Loans receivable (Continued)

Gross carrying amount of loans receivable amounting to
HK$3,514,080 (2022: HK$3,082,096) is unsecured as at 31
December 2023. The Group has recognised net reversal of
impairment allowance of HK$50,854 (2022: net impairment
allowance of HK$149,850) on the remaining unsecured loans
receivable during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Net reversal of impairment loss allowance of HK$389,374
(2022: net impairment loss allowance of HK$929,850) has
been recognised in respect of these loans receivable during the
year ended 31 December 2023.

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the directors of the
Company make individual assessment on other receivables
and deposits based on historical settlement records, past
experience, and also quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
The directors of the Company believe that there is no material
credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding balance of other
receivables and deposits. The Group assessed the ECL for
other receivables and deposits were immaterial. Thus no loss
allowance was recognised.

Pledged bank deposits/short-term bank deposits/cash
and cash equivalents

The Group only transacts with reputable banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies and
therefore the directors of the Company consider the risk of
default is low. The Group uses 12-month ECL to perform the
assessment under ECL on pledged bank deposits, short-term
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents individually based
on the average loss rate by reference to credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies. The Group assessed
the ECL for pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents were immaterial. Thus no loss
allowance was recognised.

38.

EMIA @)
M EREERERBE (&

15 BRI BER B EF S (4B)
BEIRE (&)

A _E_=ZF+_B=+—08>
BRMEAR(E 43,514,080 T (&
T4 13,082,096 7T) BUFELR
ERABEHR - BE_T_=
+ZRB=1+—HILEE  x&EH
BT T~ EIRIFEKERIRE
B 5 % 3 [0 ;F R850,85478 7T (Z
T T TR ERE$EE149,850
B °

BEr__=—#+_HA=+—H
LtEE O SEIKNERRES
1B 5 18 135 5 35 [0] 7P RE389,374
HT (B & REGRRE
S$%8929,8503E 7T) ©

Bt fEWRERET £

EREMBURIERT S A2
B E G IR S IR R0 B
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5 HL A AU SR R 3T 2 (71 )
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mNBEEREESENAMIE
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38.

TR =HF+A=+—HLEEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Pledged bank deposits/short-term bank deposits/cash
and cash equivalents (Continued)

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises
the following categories:

38. T A (&)

BB EREEBERER (&)

FEmRE
EE#FRITZ

KR IEFIE (45)
K IERIIRITIE AN

S REREeEE (&)

KEBAEE

T8

Trade receivables/

BERTEEEuU

Other financial

Internal credit rating Description contract assets assets

o \ 85 ENHE,/ .
AN EETR an BNEE HthEmEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does ~ Lifetime ECL - 12-month ECL

not have any past-due amounts

AR HFEANENERBE B & EaiTE
Medium risk Debtor has past-due balance overdue less than 90 days

as at year end

R BHARERER B DI0H MBI EER

High risk Debtor has past-due balance overdue more than 90

N days as at year end

BEkE BHEARERER BHRBE0R N BRER

Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk
since initial recognition through information
developed internally or external resources

75t EERRBNREDLURBEEEN B8R
S BEEEE £ 8)

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired

B FEBBETEMEEBLREENE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery

6] EME%T@ﬁAhAﬁEm%Wl%E$$I$

sos A& Pl B RRUE
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not credit-impaired
SHBERESSE—
FEREEHE

Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired
rHBEREERE-
FEREEAHE

Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired

cHBERELSHE-
AEREFRE

Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired

cHRBEERE-
ARESAE

Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired

2HRAEERE-
BUHREERE

Amount is written off

AR

+ZER B

12-month ECL

T {ERRH

12-month ECL

TZ{EARH

Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired

EHRBEERE-
ARESHE

Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired

SHBERESSE—
BUHREERE

Amount is written off

AR
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38.

TERC=HF+A=+—HLEEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group's
financial assets (trade receivables, other receivables and
deposits, loans receivable, pledged bank deposits, short-term
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents) and contract assets,

which are subject to ECL assessment:

EEER

KE] &

EMIA @)
B #5 LIS 1R B AR R BUR ()

SE =]
ﬁ%\*hﬁﬂﬁﬁ TR
%%ﬁ)&é%’]iﬁ&ﬂ’]ﬁgﬂﬁ

RiEFE (48)

TRAMI B A ERSCHEE
(%%ﬁ’%u&yxlﬁ ~HthFE W sk 1E
5 IR1T
RBENIR

MO ZEeMEERETER
(S E SR
External Internal
credit credit 12-month or
rating ratin lifetime ECL Gross carrying amounts
%"Mnﬁﬁ‘s& ABEETR +-ERR2BRNEEER BERE(E
2023 2022
b -3 it S
Notes HK$ HKS
Vi3 Vi BT
Financial assets at amortised cost R A ENEREE
Trade receivables B ElHE 21 NA (note 1) Lifetime ECL (collective assessment) 72,853,756 56,702,483
TER (1) 2HBHEERE i)
/nofg 1) Lifetime ECL (individual assessment) 33,862,380 36,300,544
(Hizt1) 2HBHEEFE (@R
Other receivables and deposits  EtEEMFIAR:TE 21 NA (note 2) 12-month ECL 9,073,483 12,296,478
TER (Hiz2) +ZEAEHREEFE
Loans receivable EUER 2 NA Lowrisk ~ 12-monthECL 29,171,479 31,601,091
TER RER +ZEAEHREEFE
ngh risk 12-month ECL N 19,114,080 18,682,096
BER +-BAEHEESE
Pledged bank deposits BEREITER 23 Aoraboe  NA 12-month ECL 76,274,798 60,000,000
e AER +-BAEHEESE
Short-term bank deposits RHETEN 23 BBB /A 12-month ECL 20,297,256 15,597,000
~aR +-BAEHEESE
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEE 23 BBB /A 12-month ECL 30,119,227 14,497,692
~aR +-BAESEESE
A or above /A 12-month ECL 69,374,462 110,799,319
AFIM L TER +ZBARHEESFS
Other items HitER
Financial guarantee contracts HHEREH 39 NA (note 3) 12-month ECL 133,890,661 =
TEA (Hst3) +ZEAEHREEFE
Contract assets BNEE 17 NA (note 1) Lifetime ECL (collective assessment) 24,811,766 26,139,432
TEA (Hizt1) 2HBHEEFE &)
Low risk Lifetime ECL (individual assessment) 2,035,741 4,284,778
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. EMT A (48)
HHERBREEREBFERER (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

294

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 1= 5 R MR i EEEE (48)
Notes: B
1. For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has EREBEEWHEBELERSNEE

applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Apart of debtors with credit-
impaired and customers with outstanding significant balances
exceeding HK$2,500,000 and relevant contract assets, the
Group determines the ECL on these items collectively with
reference to past default experience for recurring customers
and current past due exposure for new customers.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
applies internal credit rating for its customers in relation to
its Group's operation. Customers with outstanding significant
balances exceeding HK$2,500,000 and relevant contract
assets with gross carrying amounts of HK$33,862,380 (2022:
HK$36,300,544) and HK$2,035,741 (2022: HK$4,284,778)
respectively as at 31 December 2023 were assessed
individually. The following table provides information about
the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables and contract
assets which are assessed collectively as at 31 December 2023
and 2022 within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired).
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B ALERRIBIE2,500,0008 TR
ERGHNEENREMAENR S
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33,862,380 (& -
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. EEEIE (?’;‘E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BERAGESIEEEREE (B
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 1= 5 R MR i EEEE (48)
Notes: (Continued) Kzt © (&)
1. (Continued) 1. (%)
2023 —E-=
Gross carrying amount BRE4Ea%E
Average Trade Contract
loss rate receivables assets
Internal credit rating R EETR TFiEsia=xR BB EWIE BHEE
% HK$ HK$
BT BT
Low risk 16 L Bgx 0.27 36,158,347 11,480,231
Medium risk A &L B 1.97 33,193,438 7,360,304
High risk = 8 b 2.83 3,501,971 5,971,231
72,853,756 24,811,766
2022 —E-
Gross carrying amount IREAR%R
Average Trade Contract
loss rate receivables assets
Internal credit rating ANEEETR RIS ) = R B WA BNEE
% HK$ HK$
BT BT
Low risk 165 LB 0.1 21,457,807 14,193,581
Medium risk A &L B 1.0 32,862,102 10,472,349
High risk SER 2.0 2,382,574 1,473,502
56,702,483 26,139,432
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. €M T A (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies HEEEEIEEERBE (8)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 1EE BRI EFFE (4B)
Notes: (Continued) Kzt © (&)
1. (Continued) (%)

The estimated loss rates on trade receivables are estimated
based on historical credit loss experience of the debtors and
study of other corporates’ default and recovery data from
international credit-rating agencies including Moody's and
Standard and Poor’s, and are adjusted for forward-looking
information (for example, the forecasted default rate expected
by the international credit-rating agencies) that is available
without undue cost or effort. The contract assets have the
same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the
same type of contracts would apply the same internal credit
rating and loss rate. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure relevant information about specific
debtors and contract assets is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
provided net impairment allowance of HK$448,972 (2022:
net reversal of impairment allowance of HK$151,651) and
net impairment allowance of HK$17,245 (2022: HK$223,387)
for trade receivables and contract assets respectively, based
on the collective assessment during the year ended 31
December 2023. Net reversal of impairment allowance of
HK$68,782 (2022: net impairment allowance of HK$65,898)
and net impairment allowance of HK$337,568 (2022: net
reversal of impairment allowance of HK$45,877) was provided
respectively for trade receivables and contract assets which
are assessed individually with outstanding significant balances
exceeding HK$2,500,000.
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B R HIBEN G EEEDE
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B WERERBEEEETRK
BEEX BEEBTHEMZER
MEREHERABEWRTRL
BHNEENEREN -

BHE_ZE-_=F+ZB=1+—
HIEFE AEERBHEZS
—=E+ZB=Z+—BLEE
ERETEREZERZRERE
HMEEDATRABRETE
448,9728 (ZEZTF | HE
B R0 3%8151,65187T) &
WEREFE7.2458 T (°F
T T4 :223,38787T) cBME
B EAMREREREHBE
2,500,0008 7t & 5 RN IE K&
BHEEIRRERERCIFE

68,7828t (CE & | BEE
573 %865,89878 70) MoREREF
#8337,568%8 7 (CE " [ K
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &M T A (&

Financial risk management objectives and policies HEEEEIEEIERBE (8)

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 1S5 EFE (8)

Notes: (Continued) Kzt © (&)

2. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the 2. MAMEESRKBREEMs  &~&E
Group uses past due information to assess whether credit risk EEAARENTEEERRE
has increased significantly since initial recognition. BB R EELN -
2023 —EZ=

Not past due/

no fixed
repayment
Past due terms Total
KRR,
aH  EEEEEBERR #aEt
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT AT
Financial assets at BEERAtEZ
amortised cost EMEE
Other receivables and deposits ~ EAEWIE KR ] & - 9,073,483 9,073,483
2022 —E"
Not past due/
no fixed
repayment
Past due terms Total
F@fs
B EEEERENR st
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Financial assets at BREHERAtEZ
amortised cost EMEE
Other receivables and deposits ~ EAEWHIE R ] & - 12,296,478 12,296,478
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38.

TR =HF+A=+—HLEEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

3. For financial guarantee contracts as disclosed in note 39,
the maximum amount that the Group has guaranteed
under the respective contracts was HK$133,890,661 as at
31 December 2023 (2022: Nil). At the end of the reporting
period, the management of the Group has performed
impairment assessment and concluded that there has been no
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition of the
financial guarantee contracts. Accordingly, the loss allowance
for financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group is
measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECL. Based on
the assessment of the management, the ECL on financial
guarantee contracts is insignificant in view of the loss given
default in these contracts is insignificant as a result of the
pledged properties by counterparties.
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S4%4133,890,6618B7T (ZF
TIE R o RREHEK K&
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HEZ=_F+"A=1+—HIFE
38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. £RITH (4®
Financial risk management objectives and policies HERAGEIERENLEE (B)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 1= 5 R MR i EEEE (48)
The following table shows the movement in allowance for ECL TRISFESERTIE 54
that has been recognised for trade receivables, contract assets EENEKRKEFEIINTAHAEE
and loans receivable. BRI EEE -
Loans
Trade Contract receivable
receivables assets under under
under lifetime lifetime ECL 12-month
ECL (not credit- (not credit- ECL (not credit-
impaired) impaired) impaired) Total
R2HEREE RENEHEE B+-EBED
ER5IIRR EEYRN EEERTIRN
(RE| (RHE} (KRR
EERE) =ERE EERE) izt
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
As at 1 January 2022 R_E__F—-H—H 828,427 428,539 452 1,257,418
Changes due to financial ~ ER—B —BHERNER
instruments recognised TAHRNES .
as at 1 January:
~ Impairment loss reversed ~ — BB [EIR BB (828,427) (428,539) (452) (1,257,418)
New financial assets ML ERMEE
originated 742,674 159,275 930,302 1,832,251
Exchange adjustments ERRAE (20,560) = = (20,560)
As at 31 December 2022 RIB-Z#+-A
=+—H 722,114 159,275 930,302 1,811,691
Changes due to financial AR—F—BEINEH
instruments recognised TAHRENES:
as at 1 January:
— Impairment loss reversed ~ — B EEIE{ERE (722,114) (159,275) (403,524) (1,284,913)
New financial assets MEREERMEE
originated 1,102,304 514,088 14,150 1,630,542
Exchange adjustments ERAE (12,479) (958) = (13,437)
As at 31 December 2023 RIBE_=F+_H
=+—H 1,089,825 513,130 540,928 2,143,883
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_Z_=—Ft+_A=t—HLFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Changes in the loss allowance for trade receivables during the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are mainly due to:

38.

ERMIA @)
B #5 LIS 1R B AR R BUR ()

/5,5/7 RiEFE (48)

‘f’ A= —f’ EIJJ:fﬁEE’J%%WE
WRIEBEEEHEESH TEZHN .

(Decrease) increase in lifetime ECL

SHTAHAE EESIE (AL 1B

2023 2022
—E—= s F
Not credit- Not credit-
impaired impaired
REREERE FHIREERE
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Trade receivable with a gross carrying B 5 EWGRIEREE
Settlement in trade receivables BFEYEEELREER
with gross carrying amounts 93,003,027 7T (=
HK$93,003,027 — £ :1121,178,354%8
(2022: HK$121,178,354) since 7T) 2 B 5 RUWGRIE
beginning of the year (722,114) (828,427)
Impairment allowance recognised for  FERFIEREE FE
new originated trade receivables WFRIE (FREREEA
with gross carrying amounts 106,716,136 7T (ZZ
HK$106,716,136 — 4 193,003,0278
(2022: HK$93,003,027) 7T)) MRS 2R E R
during the year 1,102,304 742,674
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. £RITH (4®
Financial risk management objectives and policies HEEEEIEEIERBE (8)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 1= 5 R MR i EEEE (48)
Changes in the loss allowance for contract assets during the NEE__E_=FEN_E -
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are mainly due to: +—_B=4+—HIEEE &8 &
ENBEEEEHTIEAHN

(Decrease) increase in lifetime ECL
ZHATERRS E /518 (R2) g
Not credit-impaired

REREERE
2023 2022
—EZ= B F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Settlement in contract assets with gross B E4IEA BAREREE A
carrying amounts HK$30,424,210 30,424,210% 7k (TF
(2022: HK$46,875,356) since the % 46,875,356/
beginning of the year O ZERNEE (159,275) (428,539)
Impairment allowance recognised FERMMERESHOEE (18
for new originated contract BRE(E 426,847,507
assets with gross carrying B (T2
amounts HK$26,847,507 (2022: 30,424,210 7)) MR
HK$30,424,210) during the year ZREEE 514,088 159,275
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &R TH (88)
Financial risk management objectives and policies HEEEEIEEERBE (8)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EEREREFFEL ()
Changes in the loss allowance for loans receivable during the NEE__E_=FEN_E -
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are mainly due to: +ZBA=+—HIFE BKE
ANEEEEEFTERAN .
Increase in 12-month ECL
+ZE A FRERE B E518IE M
Not credit-impaired
FHREERE
2023 2022
—E=-= BT F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Settlement in loans receivable with a ~ BE#EEAEEEREES
gross carrying amount HK$10,229,498 10,229,498t (&
(2022: HK$22,612) since beginning of — 4 :22,612/87T) 2
the year FEWER (403,524) (452)
Impairment allowance recognised for — FtLL N & IEFESR 2 I8 (B
— new financial assets originated H—ERIMGRELR
with gross carrying amounts H{E748,231,8708 T8
HK$8,231,870 (2022: TREE (CE-_F:
HK$18,682,096) during the year 18,682,096787T) 14,150 930,302
The estimated loss rates on loans receivable are estimated EWERZGetERELENE

based on historical credit loss experience of the debtors and
study of other corporates’ default and recovery data from
international credit-rating agencies including Moody’s and
Standard and Poor’s, and are adjusted for forward-looking
information (for example, the forecasted default rate expected
by the international credit-rating agencies) that is available
without undue cost or effort.
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38.

B =F+_"_B=+—HULtEFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group manages its liquidity risk by monitoring and
maintaining a level of cash and cash equivalents secured
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash

flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensure compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities and lease liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.
Specifically, bank borrowings with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the earliest time band regardless of the
probability of the financial institutions choosing to exercise
their rights. The maturity dates for other financial liabilities and
lease liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from prevailing market rate at
the end of the reporting period.

38.

EMIA @)
M EREEEERBE (&

MBI EZRE

rEBEERBET AR ZTTE
THEEBRENREFTHAZIR
TRIVEFEKT UBMGEE
ERBEEMTESMRMIRE
RERZTE - BEEEREZER
TEEZERBR BREBREER
A

TRFLRAEERBEANRZ
REAEEZERMERENREER
BREFETEOEMB R - BEM
B MERERBEGRRZIRTT
BEHFARFEERHEE
A o AR R E T R E R
ZAREt -HithEme R RiEE
BRZIPEREHEENREH
BIE e

TROBEMERASRES R
A BB BT BRI 5t - B
SKAETR S B RR SR HAD
ETIESIE=E
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. £FTH (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies A SIEEEREE (&)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) TEE T EE (48)
Liquidity tables MBEEH
Weighted Carrying
average 3 months 1 year 2 years Total amount at
effective Within to to to Over undiscounted 31 December
interest rate  On demand 3 months 1 year 2 years 5 years Syears cash flows 2023
S 3
B +ZA
mETs RenE =t-A2
f{ES BER Z@AR Z@ERE-% —EEME WEERE BRLE a5 kEfE
% HK$ HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS
AT A7 BT AT AT A BT AT
2023 Z3IzE
Trade payables BRREAZE N/A = 55,541,958 1,989,695 = = = 57,531,653 57,531,653
FER
Other payables and accruals AR RIERE A N/A - 64,629,923 - - - - 64629923 64629923
FER
Amount due to a non-controlling Ef-BHBAR N/A
shareholder of a subsidiary —FERRRE TER 16499835 - - - - - 16499835 16,499,835
Secured bank borrowings RERRIEE 6.6 68,380,802 1,119,176 2,126,391 8,312,746 16,754,473 = 96,693,588 93,548,550
Leases liabilities HE&E 46 - 3,646,466 10,690,836 9,680,125 7,040,000 40,544,000 71,601,427 53,373,038
Financial quarantee contracts (nofe) UBERaH D) N/A 133,890,661 - - - - - 133,890,661 -
FER

218,771,298 124,937,523 14,806,922 17,992,871 23,794,473 40,544,000 440,847,087 285,582,999

Weighted Carrying
average 3 months 1 year 2 years Total amount at
effective Within to to to Over  undiscounted 31 December

interest rate On demand 3 months 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows 2022

ZEICE

RER +2A

METH B&fig  =t-Hz

BIRA=E BREX ZEAR ZEEE-% —EEME WEELE BELE e REE

% HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS

A AT A A A A B A

2022 CECCE

Trade payables EREITE NA - 56,106,682 - - - - 56106682 56,106,682
TER

Other payables and accruals HftEfIIEREN B NA - 77921563 - - - - 7191563 77921563
Sl

Amount due to a non-controlling Ef-EHBAR NA  16977,929 - - - - - 16977929 16977,929
shareholder of a subsidiary —2FERRENE TEB

Secured bank borrowings BEARIEE 59 68,203,525 2,884,550 4,067,538 6,683,602 34,130,711 - 115969926 111214278

Leases liabilities HEEE 46 - 3878801 11367911 14808690 15,086,148  4305,000  88,193550 67,698,111

85,181,454 140,791,59% 15,435,449 21,492,292 49,216,859 43,052,000 355,169,650 329,918,563
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38.

TERC=HF+A=+—HLEEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liguidity tables (Continued)

Note:

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts were
the maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle under
the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if the mortgage loans
are defaulted by the counterparties. Based on expectations at the end
of the reporting period, the Group considers that it is more likely than
not that no amount will be payable under that arrangement. However,
this estimate is subject to change depending on the probability of
the counterparties would default on the relevant loans under the
guarantee which is a function of the likelihood that the financial
receivables held by banks which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause as at 31
December 2023 and 2022 are included in the “on demand”
time band in the above maturity analysis. The carrying amount
of the bank borrowings amounted to HK$68,380,802 (2022:
HK$68,203,525) as at 31 December 2023. Taking into account
the Group’s financial position and assets pledged for the bank
borrowings, the directors of the Company do not believe that
it is probable that the financial institutions would exercise the
discretionary rights to demand immediate payment. As at 31
December 2023, the directors of the Company believed that
such bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
The aggregate principal and interest cash outflows amounted
to HK$76,901,742 (2022: HK$74,230,843) as at 31 December
2023. The repayment schedule based on the scheduled
repayment dates is set out below:

EMIA @)
B 5 L 1R B AR R BUSR ()

B EEZEE ()
B EEX (B
Wt -

NEHHERENTESMEFHEX
IRE™R > AERERIEL I SEWERE
BENES2H REERTE - BRERR
SHIRER AEERHRAUETER
ERIR YR RE 22 Bk M &S BOFRIA 24T -
ﬁtTEEJrE’J““%tlﬁ%??#%ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁ’ﬂ??ﬁ?
AR EMBY B A1 - UL TR R HERIR
ﬁﬁﬁE’JE?WWEH&ZMIETE%ZEEESET
BENESZ -

N BT EENTE I F+ T
B=1+—HWHEZEREEER
ZIRTTEERELME HHE > AT
et ATRER ) 2 BEE#EER-
RZE_=F+"B=+—8"
RITE ENERMEE 468,380,802
Bt (CE - "4 168,203,525
Br) cERBIANEBR ZHFHR
R&E‘T‘iﬁfﬂ%%ﬁ%ﬁZiﬁé’Z&
NEEERE VB HBAOIEE
TERNBEERBIRNR R
T _=F+_HBA=1+—H > &2n

BEERE ZFRTEESR
FER &8 TREE K HAE

BN _BE_=F+_A=+—
H> ZK@&*UEEE\Z:EMLHE'IW%E%
76,901,7428 7 (ZCE - _F :
74,230,843 70) *IRIEFAEEMN
HE EXREERUT :

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE&EEZKARAT | Annual Report 2023 F iR

305



306

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e MBHRRM

ml 3

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BH=E

38.

TR =HF+A=+—HLEEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

ERMIA @)
B 5 L 1R B AR R BUSR ()

BB EE (B)

2023 2022
—E-= —ET &
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Within one year —FR 57,305,743 51,845,622
Over one year but less than two years BB —FEB/DIRME 2,720,091 2,809,351
Over two years but less than five years BBEMEE/DRAE 6,782,867 7,445,435
Over five years BERF 10,093,041 12,130,435
76,901,742 74,230,843
Fair value measurements of financial instruments EMTAHZAFEHEE
This note provides information about how the Group IR ERNER W MBI XA
determines fair values of various financial assets. THEEANFEZER
Fair value measurement and valuation process N EEAERIEEREFE

The financial controller of the Company is responsible to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and key inputs
for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1
inputs are not available, the Group engaged independent
qualified professional valuers to perform the valuation. The
financial controller works closely with independent qualified
professional valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and key inputs to the model. Financial controller
reports to executive directors semi-annually to explain the
cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets.

Information about the valuation techniques and key inputs
used in determining the fair value of various assets are
disclosed below.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of these financial assets
are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and

38. SRT A (B
EMTAZATFEEE (B)
FEFBEARE EREZ L
—'7{; BAEZETHEEZLF

rEBEDEHEENKRSHR
BAFEFE- "F%%?'Ju%ﬁ%ﬁ;ﬂ
EZSETMEEATELEZE
B (LHEBFRBGERTREE

key inputs used).

WA o

Fair value as at Fair value  Valuation technique(s) and
Financial assets 31 December hierarchy  key input(s) Sensitivity
EHEE R+ZB=+—HZATE ATEER FERNRIESARE HRE
2023 2022
—E-=f CBTCE
HK$ HK$
AT BT
Investments in listed equity in Hong Kong 15,770,920 17,375,128 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active N/A
as financial assets at FVTPL market
NEABBBARATEIRzeHE 1R BRETE EZEARE TEA
EZREBLTNRARLE
Investments in equity securities 22,193,495 22,285,289 Level 3 Asset-based approach with key
established in Hong Kong, the PRC inputs of
and overseas measured at FVTOCI
BRZARARATEIIRAEZNH EE EEL TERAYER

BRI RAESRE

Fair value of the underlying
assets of the investees

BRESNIENEE
AT

A 10% increase/decrease
in the fair value of the
underlying assets of the
investees would result in
a HK$2,219,350 increase/
decrease in fair value.

BRERNEREERT
B/ TH10% 8
BAFELF/ T
2,219,350 7t 0
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

EWMIA (&
EMTIRAZATEE (B

BB T EEBHIER

Equity
instruments

at FVTOCI
EBHEHMER
WA BATESER
ZRAETHR

HK$

BT

At 1 January 2022 ATE - —HF—HF—H
Exchange adjustment FE R AR

22,550,619
(265,330)

At 31 December 2022 R_E2-__F+"A=+—H 22,285,289

~

Exchange adjustment FE R

(91,794)

At 31 December 2023 RN_E_=F+_A=+—H 22,193,495

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during the
years.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

The directors of the Company estimate the fair value of its
financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost using the discounted cash flows analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated statement of financial
position approximate their fair values.
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39.

B =F+_"_B=+—HULtEFE

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

During the year ended 31 December 2023, I AENR (Bi=)
BPRAHE (“Zhongda Qingyuan”) entered into cooperation
agreements with banks, pursuant to which Zhongda Qingyuan
agreed to provide the transitional guarantees for the
mortgage loans granted to the purchasers of properties under
development for sale. Accordingly, the Group is required to
pay 5% to 12% out of the granted guarantees amount to the
banks as pledged bank deposits. As at 31 December 2023,
the guarantees given to banks by the Group in respect of the
mortgage loans granted to property purchasers amounted to
HK$133,890,661 (31 December 2022: nil) and the pledged
bank deposits paid to the banks amounted to HK$16,274,798
(31 December 2022: nil).

39.

HAFEIER

BE _ ST _=F+"RB=+—
HIEEE B KREIR (B BIR
nE (ThAER)) BIRTTETIL
EEmZE Bk P ABERR
MEFEEERPYWENE FLE
HIZIBETIRMEEERMER E
b REBBL(TEREREEE
5% ZE12% FiRITIEA D ERF
BITER-R_E_=F+_H
=t+—HB > AEEMREIRITIEH
HNIERMIBTYWEE FIZIB
B4 %8133,890,6618 T (&
—__FE+ZA=+—H: &) >
NE(FIRITHEEIRIRITERS
%816,274,7988 T (& - —

+ZHB=+—H: 8| -
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40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 40.

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be
classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.

MEIBMEETEENS
AR

TR AEENRELZEFE
TERNEHHFE BEREN
FREEF METHFTELEN
BEABEEREWURRETRE
ERAEEGEREMANERT
WMOBEAMELTHRETARENG

o
Amount
due to
a related Lease Bank
company liabilities borrowings Total
FEft—H
MEARRE HEAR RITHE k]
HKS HK$ HK$ HKS
BT BT BT B
At 1 January 2022 R_E__F—H—H 240,745 61,038,248 62,609,035 123,888,028
Financing cash flows (note) MERSRE 73 (260,482)  (17,419,413) 48,108,499 30,428,604
Finance costs MEmMA 19,737 2,486,046 1,528,644 4,034,427
Modifications BR = 20,083,744 = 20,083,744
Exchange adjustments ERAE = 1,509,486 (1,031,900) 477,586
At 31 December 2022 RIEZZF+-F=+—H = 67,698,111 111,214,278 178,912,389
Financing cash flows (note) RERSRE W2 - (16,961,373)  (20,705,167)  (37,666,540)
Finance costs BB A - 2,337,173 4,188,174 6,525,347
Modifications BR = 269,157 = 269,157
New lease entered HIETE= = 921,409 = 921,409
Exchange adjustments [E R - (891,439) (1,148,735) (2,040,174)
At 31 December 2023 RIEZ=F+"HA=1+—H = 53,373,038 93,548,550 146,921,588

Note:  The cash flows in relation to repayments to a related company,
repayments for lease liabilities and bank borrowings and
finance costs.
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 41. EEMBABIZHIE
Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December KANTIRBABIN _E =K
2023 and 2022. “EHF+ZR=+—Hzs#

IE
Effective percentage
Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
FARFMFEETRE/
WEAERE EMEIL RS BRERT/HRBRE AMEXERESIL IBRH
2023 2022
%= 3R
% %
Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited BVI HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
FADRERERAE HEEYHE 10,0008 EB% REER
Chung Tai Printing Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
HARERIBRAE Ey HK$500,000 deferred REZER
non-voting
1,000/ 70 & #%500,000
BTERRERRLR
AT EERARBREERAR The PRC RMB1,000,000 100 100 Testing of printing
(note 1) (Mt 1) R registered capital products
AE#1,000,0007 ENRl iR
HHMEE
JWHEIR (RN BRAR The PRC HK$30,000,000 100 100 Label and paper
(note 1) (&t 1) R registered capital products printing
30,000,000& c s FE A BREREHRER
Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Hong Kong HK$1,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Limited BA HK$10,000 RELER
FARENR (RE) BRRAF deferred non-voting
1,000 E @R
10,000 7T
BRERELR
Chung Tai Smart Labelling Company Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Trading of label and
Limited &5E 1BTEER printing products
RRBEREBRAT BERB KR @
Chung Tai Printing (International) Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Trading of printing
Company Limited BE 1ETLER products

RAER (EF) BRAT

EEHRI®
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 4. FERBATZFHE (B)
(Continued)
Effective percentage
Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
FATFMBERTRE/
WEARAE AMmL MR BRERT/EREE AMEFERESL IBEH
2023 2022
ZEIZE TICH
% %
FERKER (RN BRAE The PRC HK$98,000,000 100 100 Label, packaging and
(note 1) (Hz#1) e registered capital paper products
98,000,000/ T3 & printing
2E ERAERM
EIF
Delight Source Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000 ordinary 100 100 Trading of printing
SIRBRAT /E 200,000 0 & @8 products
BEEMRER
Green Links Global Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary 100 100 Trading
- BIRERAR 5% TATEER B%
Star Entertainment (Universe) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary 100 100 Provision of artists
ERAIEF)IERAT EE 1BTEEK management and
music licensing
services and sales of
music aloums
f 1#%)&*"@&3”“
KRB REE
)
Neway Group Assets Management Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary 100 100 Property management
Company Limited B TETLER and project
FEEREEERERAT investment
WEEEREERE
Neway Smart Technology Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100 RFID printing products
(International) Company Limited oy 10,00078 75 & & % and RFID label
REBRRE ER) ERAF ?%T‘/FEEIWJEDD&
RESERR
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41.

—=— =

= _—=

F+-RA=1T—HLFE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 4. FERBATZFHE (B)
(Continued)
Effective percentage
Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
FARMFERTRE/
WEAERE AMmL MR BRERT/EREE AMEFERESL IBEH
2023 2022
ZEI=E ZCCF
% %
Neway Star Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Ordinary 100 100 Provision of music
HEREIRERAR 5E 10,0008 T BBR licensing services,
sales of music
albums and
investment holding
Ey=E SRR
HESRER KRR
BTk
Neway Star Artiste Management Hong Kong HK$10,000 Ordinary 100 100 Provision of artists
Limited A 10,00078 75 Z & % management
HRAEEEREERAR services
B AN EERE
Showtimes (Asia) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Organisation and
BERA G BRAF B TATEER investment of
concerts and shows
EMRREREER
RE
Kingbay Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Securities trading
LREEBRAT &% TETEER BERS
Grand Prospects Finance International Hong Kong HK$100,000 ordinary 100 100 Money lending
Limited BA 100,0007 7o & @M BE
EXUBERERAT
Supreme Cycle Inc. BVI US$1 ordinary 100 100 Property investment
Supreme Cycle Inc. HBRUEE 1ETLER MERE
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BH=E

41.

B+ HA=+—HI=FE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 4. FERBATZFHE (B)
(Continued)
Effective percentage
Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
FATFMBERTRE/
WEARAE AMmL MR BRERT/EREE AMEFERESL IBEH
2023 2022
ZEIZE TICH
% %
AT EEREEERERAD The PRC RMB2,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
(note 2) (f1z£2) e registered capital REER
AE2,000,0007
SER
Zhongqing (note 2) The PRC RMB2,000,000 60 60  Property development
HE (fi2) ] registered capital WEER
A %2,000,00070
SRER
Zhongda Qingyuan (note 1) The PRC HK$230,000,000 100 100 Property development
hRER W) al5i registered capital MEERE
230,000,000 7T
SHRER
Mercury Global Packaging & Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary 100 100 Trading of printing
Solutions Limited &% TETLER products
AEEREZERAR BEMRER
Mercury Global Packaging United Kingdom GBP10,000 Ordinary 100 100 Trading of printing
Solutions (UK) Limited HE 10,0005 52 EBR products
BEHRER
TR HERERAT The PRC RMB2,000,000 100 100 Trading of printing
(note 1) (H1) f registered capital products
A %2,000,00070 EEMRIER
SRER
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41.

TERC=HF+A=+—HLEEE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Notes:

) These subsidiaries are wholly foreign owned enterprises in the
PRC.

2) These subsidiaries are domestic-invested enterprises

established in the PRC.

The operations of all subsidiaries are carried out principally in
Hong Kong and the PRC.

Save for Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited, which is directly
owned by the Company, all other subsidiaries are indirectly
owned by the Company.

The above table only includes those subsidiaries which, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results of the Group for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of all subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, result in particulars of excessive length. The
deferred non-voting shares, which are not held by the Group,
practically carry no rights to dividends nor to receive notice of
nor to attend or vote at any general meeting of the relevant
companies or to participate in any distribution on winding up.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
the end of the year or at any time during the years.

41.

E#MTE/-\_J ZAQF (H\E)

htat -

(1 ZEWBRBFEAZINEEHE
B2

) ZEMBRB TR ILZ A
BRe

FANBARNESIERNES
KRBT o

BrPARERIEBERATHER
BEEERN FTEHEMBA
Bl A AT EEES -

ERECEEARTDESTIARERE
TEAEBRAFERENBNE
SEFEETEMINNBER
Bl BERDBRAMFAENB AR
RERBERBRTIR -BRER
TEIER CFRTEEFA) BE L
IR B R IR B R WA

AR ZKRRERARGRSHHEE
AIREAEHNE LRE > SR
BEFSEERND K

b 188 1 B) S 5 48 Bl AR ] 5
BEEAEREE ZEHRES-
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 42. ERBHFHFIRRER
COMPANY
2023 2022
—E=F BT THF
HKS$ HK$
AT BT
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERHEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AT ZERE 42,671,966 42,671,966
Amounts due from subsidiaries N =N ES S 726,493,251 796,385,078
769,165,217 839,057,044
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables, deposits and HihEWHIE 5]
prepayments Ko FEA =R I8 1,295,699 1,651,042
Cash and cash equivalents BHEKIEESEE 618,712 2,758,617
1,914,411 4,409,659
Liabilities afE
Current liabilities REBAaE
Other payables and accrued charges  ELfh & {J =R I8 K FE 5t
& 838,741 728,101
Amounts due to subsidiaries N ENCIESE 87,961,798 88,346,797
88,800,539 89,074,898
Net current liabilities mBBEPEE (86,886,128) (84,665,239)
Total assets less total liabilities BEEREAE 682,279,089 754,391,805
Capital and reserves BRR#E
Share capital [N 2,533,595 2,533,595
Reserves (Note) & (WaL) 679,745,494 751,858,210
Total equity e e 682,279,089 754,391,805
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

im e SRR R M E
For the year ended 31 December 2023
“EC=F+"A=+—HLEE

BH=E

42.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

42. ERBHBRAE (B)

Note: izt
Reserves e
Capital
Share  redemption  Contributed Reorganisation Retained
premium reserve surplus reserve profits Total
RivaE ErREHE BHRR B REER st
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT AT AT AT BT
At 1 January 2022 RZZ-“&#-A-H 368,949,127 62,400 103,571,033 19,782,427 264,543,108 756,908,095
Loss and total comprehensive expense  AERSER 2 HE R A
for the year - - - - (4,952,135) (4,952,135)
Shares repurchased (note 30) AP (Hizt30) (97,750) - - - - (97,750)
At 31 December 2022 RIBZZE+ZA=1+-H 368851377 62,400 103,571,033 19,782,427 259,590,973 751,858,210
Loss and total comprehensive expense  AERSER2EE R A
for the year - - - - (2ne)  (72,112,716)
At 31 December 2023 RZZZ=H+ZHA=+—H 368851377 62,400 103,571,033 19,782,427 187,478257 679,745,494
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Principal Properties

E LY/ S

At 31 December 2023
A _E_=F+"HA=+—H

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Group'’s effective

REME

Approximate

interest in gross Category of
Location the properties floor area Usage lease
FEERYEH B4 4EiEm
4 ZERER mE HRR AR
(sg. m)
(FFHK)
Yuen Long Town Lot No. 292, 100% 1,063.82 Commercial Medium-term
Units 21, 22, 23, 41 and 77 of GES lease
1/F and the whole of 3/F, FRARFRAY
Hop Yick Commercial Centre (Phase 1),
No. 33 Hop Choi Street, Yuen Long,
New Territories, Hong Kong
ERMA TS AE335%
BmEERL (—H) —822122
BNKRTITFREMNR=IBRE
JCEA T EE2925%
No. 1801, 15/F, 100% 175.66  Commercial Medium-term
Block 4, Yard 89, EES lease
89 Jianguo Road, Chaoyang District, FRERFRAY
Beijing, the PRC
FRE 30 R ARG & 3 E 25 895
895 FE4skiZ 1581801 %F
Block No.3 of an 100% 13,245 Industrial Medium-term
industrial complex erected on T lease

land lot No. G08218-9 located at

No. 6275 Longgang Avenue,

Bao'an Village, Henggang Town,
Longgang District, Shenzhen, the PRC
FREIRYIBE K & % R $E
RENBERAB62755 2
H#15£G08218-95%
TEEEREE3E
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Principal Properties

E LY/ S

At 31 December 2023
A _E_=_F+_"_HB=+—H

B. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR B. HEREDYE

SALE

Group’s effective
interest in  Approximate

Category of

Location the properties site area  Usage lease
TERRYES
8 ZER#E BOREER AR GEESEE
(sg. m)
(FEFHK)
Two parcels of land designated 60% 5,853.40  Mixed Medium-term
located at Lot No. B19001-1*1 and Residential lease
No. B19001-2*1 of Villagers ReEE FRERFEAY

Committee of Lian Tang Village,
Dong Cheng Sub-district Office,
Qingcheng District, Qingyuan City,
the PRC

Mg LS AP Bl E = 5 I & BRI AT
MERERENRZEGZIEE LM
(M ER AR SR 55B19001-1* 158 &
55B19001-2*15%)

A parcel of land with certain buildings 100% 207,999.95
under construction designated located

at Lot No. N32000004 of northern side

of Lianhu Industrial Park, Qingcheng

District, Qingyuan City, the PRC

—RUNFRBET R EAEE

BEICAIZ 5 T A — T EREY

(3 X 4R 5% 58N3200000455)

Industrial Use

TR

Medium-term
lease

FRERTRAY
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Five Year Financial Summary

hFEMBHE

RESULTS E
For the year ended 31 December
HE+_A=+—HALEE
2019* 2020 2021 2022 2023
“E—hEF ZBIBRE B ZBICE —EC=E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FERT FET FHET
Revenue Wz 560,585 532,674 623,577 449,403 548,689
Loss before taxation PR RIS 18 (24,994) (88,438) (11,752) (5,051) (74,717)
Taxation (charge) credit MIE X KR (5,979) 1,121 618 2,650 (7,355)
Loss for the year KEBHE (30,973) (87,317) (11,134) (2,401) (82,072)
Attributable to: DR AL :
Owners of the Company EATEEA (30,782) (87,187) (10,706) (1,942) (81,962)
Non-controlling interests FFPERR R (191) (130) (428) (459) (110)
(30,973) (87,317) (11,134) (2,401) (82,072)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENREE
As at 31 December
®K+=-—B=+—8
2019* 2020 2021 2022 2023
“E—hEF ZEBCERE —EC—F ZBICHE —EC=E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHETT FET FET FHET
Total assets BHEAE 1,172,501 1,126,722 1,156,303 1,143,761 1,068,154
Total liabilities BBEE%E (286,283) (296,794) (324,245) (355,620) (345,352)
Total equity TERIBEE 886,218 829,928 832,058 788,141 722,802
Equity attributable to owners Z&ABER A
of the Company eI 889,442 833,202 835,714 791,974 726,639
Non-controlling interests e S (3,224) (3,274) (3,656) (3,833) (3,837)
886,218 829,928 832,058 788,141 722,802

The amounts for the year ended 31 December 2019 were presented

upon the application of HKFRS 16, which the comparative financial
information was not restated.
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Neway Group Holdings Limited
PESEZERARAA

Units Nos. 1103 and 1105-1111, Level 11,

Tower 2, Grand Century Place,

193 Prince Edward Road West,

Mongkok, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BHENAEEAKXFE1935%

AL EZ2HE 11 12

1103ZEX1105-1111FE

Tel 3% © (852) 2669 6111 Fax {EH : (852) 2677 6556
Website #83t : www.newaygroup.com.hk
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